
inter-American 
Development Bank 

ANNUAL REPORT 1989 

ïfl'f V-1 <• * .« . * . . * . 
I-



THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT RANK 

The Inter-American Development Bank, the oldest and largest regional multilateral development institution, 
was established in December of 1959 to help accelerate economic and social development in Latin America 
and the Caribbean. 

The Bank was created in response to a longstanding desire on the part of the Latin American nations 
for a development institution that would focus on the pressing problems of the region. A resolution calling for 
the creation of such a bank was adopted at the First International American Conference, held in Washington, 
D.C. in 1890. While this initiative, and subsequent ones, failed to bear immediate fruit, in 1958 President 
Juscelino Kubitschek of Brazil proposed that the countries of the Hemisphere embark upon a bold 
cooperative effort to promote the economic and social development of the region. His proposal received 
support from throughout the Hemisphere and shortly thereafter a special committee of the Organization of 
American States drafted the Articles of Agreement Establishing the Inter-American Development Bank. 

The Bank's original membership included 19 Latin American and Caribbean countries and the 
United States. Subsequently, seven other Western Hemisphere nations, including Canada, joined the Bank. 
From the beginning, the Bank developed links with many industrialized countries on other continents and in 
1974 the Declaration of Madrid was signed to formalize their entry into the Bank. Thirteen European countries, 
as well as Japan and Israel became nonregional members of the Bank in 1976 and 1977, to be joined by 
Portugal in 1980 and Norway in 1986. Today Bank membership totals 44 nations. 

In its 30 years of operations, the Bank has become a major catalyst in mobilizing resources for the 
region. The Bank's Charter states that its principal functions are to utilize its own capital, funds raised by it in 
financial markets, and other available resources, for financing the development of the member countries; to 
encourage private investment in projects and to supplement private investment when private capital is not 
available on reasonable terms and conditions; and to provide technical assistance for the preparation, 
financing, and implementation of development plans and projects. 

In carrying out its mission, the Bank has mobilized financing for projects that represent a total 
investment of more than S122 billion. The Bank's annual lending grew dramatically from the S294 million in 
loans approved in 1961 to a peak of $3.5 billion in 1984. In recent years, annual lending has declined due to a 
variety of factors, but under the Seventh Increase in Resources, is expected to rise to an average of $5 billion 
in the 1990s. 

The Bank's operations cover the entire spectrum of economic development, with particular 
emphasis on the productive sectors of agriculture and industry, the physical infrastructure sectors of energy 
and transportation and the social sectors of environmental and public health, education and urban 
development. 

During the 1960s and 1970s, the Bank was a pioneer in financing social projects such as health and 
education. In fact, the Bank's first loan, approved in Febniary of 1961, was for improving the water and sewage 
system of Arequipa, Peni. Its innovative Small Projects Program seeks to provide small financings to 
microentrepreneurs and small-scale farmers. And the Bank has made an effort to see to it that its lending 
operations directly benefit low-income populations. Finally, future lending operations will include sector 
lending. 

The financial resources of the Bank consist of ordinary capital resources—comprised of subscribed 
capital, reserves and funds raised through borrowings—and Funds in Administration, comprised of 
contributions made by member countries. It should be noted that member countries' subscriptions to the 
Bank's capital fund consist of paid-in and callable capital. A paid-in subscription is in the form of a cash 
payment and represents a minor portion of a member's subscription (under the recently concluded Seventh 
Increase of the Bank's resources, the paid-in portion represents only 2.5 percent of a member's subscription). 
The major part of a member's subscription is in the form of callable capital—or guarantees of the Bank's 
borrowings in the world's financial markets. The Bank also has a Fund for Special Operations for lending on 
concessional terms for projects in countries classified as economically less developed. 

The Bank has borrowed funds for its ordinary operations from the capital markets of Europe, Japan, 
Latin America, the Caribbean and the United States. The Bank's debt is AAA rated by the three major rating 
services in the United States, and is accorded equivalent status in the other major capital markets. 

The Bank's highest authority is its Board of Governors, on which each member country is 
represented. Governors are usually Ministers of Finance, Presidents of Central Banks or officers of comparable 
rank. The Board of Governors has delegated many of its operational powers to the Board of Executive 
Directors, which is reponsible for the conduct of the Bank's operations. 

The Bank has field offices in each of its regional member countries, as well as in Paris and London. 
The Bank's headquarters are in Washington, D.C. 
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COVER: Agricultural research and production 
center grows crops for seed for farmers at 
Chimaltenango, Guatemala. Field workers hoe 
dirt around Green Boy cabbages, a variety that 
grows well in the Guatemalan highlands. The 
government center sells the cabbage seed to com
mercial seed growers who in turn sell the seed to 
farmers. Funds from a S13-9 million loan to Gua
temala in 1984 financed new buildings, equip
ment and vehiclesfor this and other agricultural 
research centers as part of a program to develop 
and disseminate practical agricultural and live
stock technology to 110,000 small-and medium-
scale farmers. The program, which also included 
improved irrigation methods, crop storage and 
processing, was co-financed by a $5 million loan 
from the International Fund for Agricultural 
Development. 
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30 YEARS OF ACTIVITIES 

Loans, Technical Cooperation, Smalt Projects: 

The Bank has approved 1,801 loans totaling $41.6 billion in 30 years 
of operation. The total investment in the projects financed with the 
help of the Bank is estimated at $122 billion. 

• The Bank has committed a total of $1,514 million for technical 
cooperation. Of this, $725 million was extended on a grant and 
contingent recovery basis. Another $789 million in technical coopera
tion was extended for preinvestment purposes or as part of specific 
loans to ensure the optimum execution of projects. 

• A total of $893 million has been approved for the financing of 
Small Projects. 

Resource Mobilization: 

• The authorized capital of the Bank totaled $34.5 billion, as of 
December 31, 1989. The Seventh General Increase in the Resources of 
the Bank, which went into effect January 17, 1990, increased the 
Bank's authorized capital to $61 billion. 

• Contributions to the Fund for Special Operations have totaled 
$8.4 billion. 

• 10 nations and entities have entrusted the Bank with special 
funds totaling over $1 billion. 

• A total of $199 billion has been borrowed in international 
capital markets for lending purposes. 

Sectoral Activities: 

• Agriculture and Fisheries: 455 loans amounting to $9.2 billion 
have helped to finance agricultural and fisheries projects costing a total 
of $21.5 billion. 

• Energy: 238 loans for $11.5 billion have helped to finance $41.7 
billion in projects in the energy sector. 

• Industry and Mining: 255 loans amounting to $5.5 billion have 
been approved for industrial and mining projects costing $27.5 billion. 

• Transportation and Communications: 231 loans totaling $5.4 
billion have financed transportation and communications projects 
with a combined cost of $11.9 billion. 

• Environmental and Public Health: 235 loans amounting to $4.2 
billion.have contributed to $9 billion in projects in water supply, sani
tation and public health. 

• Education, Science and Technology: 147 loans amounting to 
$1.8 billion have financed education projects costing $3.6 billion. 

• Urban Development: 95 loans amounting to $2 billion have 
helped finance $3.7 billion in urban development projects. 

• Tourism: 18 loans amounting to $522 million financed tourism 
projects whose total cost is $1.2 billion. 

• Preinvestment: 71 global preinvestment loans amounting to 
$400 million have been made. 

• Other: 56 loans, including export financing lines of credit, have 
amounted to $1.1 billion. 

Member Countries 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican 

Republic 

Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
famaica 
fapan 
Mexico 

Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 

Spain 
Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and 

Tobago 
United Kingdom 

United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
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PRESIDENTS IETTER OF TRANSMUTAI 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Washington, D.C. 

February 14, 1990 

Mr. Chairman: 

Pursuant to Section 2 of the By-Laws of the Inter-American Development Bank, I transmit to you the Annual 
Report of the Bank for 1989, which the Board of Executive Directors submits to the Board of Governors. 

The Report contains a brief summary of the economic situation of Latin America and a review of the Bank's 
activities in 1989. 

In addition, the Report contains a description on a country-by-country basis and a regional basis of the 
Bank's various operations—loans, financings for small projects and technical cooperation—on behalf of Latin 
America's development, as well as progress highlights on project execution; a summary statement of the loans 
approved in 1989; a series of tables of selected data on the region; the financial statements of the Bank, and 
its general appendices. 

Complying with Article III, Section 3(a), of the Agreement Establishing the Bank, the Report contains sepa
rate audited financial statements for its various sources of funds. For the ordinary capital resources, these are 
presented pursuant to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 6(a), of the Agreement; for the Fund for Special 
Operations, in accordance with the provisions of Article IV, Section 8(d), of the Agreement; for the Intermediate 
Financing Facility Account, complying with Section 5(d) of Resolution AG-12/83 of the Board of Governors; 
for the Social Progress Trust Fund, pursuant to Section 5.04 of the Agreement signed between the Government 
of the United States and the Bank, and for the Venezuelan Trust Fund, in accordance with Article VI, Section 
24, of the Agreement signed between the Government of Venezuela and the Bank. 

Sincerely yours, 

Enrique V. Iglesias 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

W 
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TABIE I. TEN YEARS OF OPERATIONS, 1980-89 In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

TOTAL RESOURCES 
Subscriptions (End of Year) 

Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

1980 

15,144 
7,669 
1,176 

1981 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

15,178 
7,671 
1,173 

19,230 
7,673 
1,173 

21,427 
8,211 
1,176 

24,537 
8,305 
1,180 

26,714 
8,362 
1,182 

34,073 
8,420 
1,188 

34,083 
8,476 
1,127 

34,083 
8,458 
1,192 

34,455 
8,458 
1,130 

23,989 24,022 28,076 30,814 34,022 36,258 43,681 43,686 43,733 44,043 

BORROWINGS 
Outstanding Debt (End of Year)-

Ordinary Capital' 3,038 3,477 4,252 
Gross Annual Borrowings 

Ordinary Capital1 460 787 1,296 

5,180 

1,408 

6,132 

1,763 

9,366 

2,333 

12,115 

1,911 

15,225 

1,115 

14,266 

902 

14,630 

1,984 

OPERATIONS 
Loans Authorized (Cumulative)2, 

Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

Loans Authorized (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

Loan Disbursements (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

Loan Repayments (Annual) 
Ordinary Capital 
Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

Nonreimbursable Technical 
Cooperation (Annual) 

Fund for Special Operations 
Other Funds 

Total 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
Income 

Loans 
Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Investments 

Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations 
Net Income 

Ordinary Capital1 

Fund for Special Operations1 

Reserves (End of Period) 
Ordinary Capital' 
Fund for Special Operations 

Total 

ADMINISTRATION 
Administrative Expenses5 

Total—All Funds 

9,473 
7,187 
1,180 

1,424 
824 
61 

2,309 

813 
469 
150 

1,432 

271 
160 
51 

482 

16 
16 
32 

302 
90 

175 

198 
74 

1,045 
450 

1,495 

106 

11,119 
7,736 
1,222 

12,770 
8,479 
1,276 

14,930 
8,809 
1,296 

17,511 
8,984 
1,277 

21,056 
9,150 
1,314 

24,772 
9,354 
1,312 

28,658 
9,664 
1,369 

28,466 
9,733 
1,426 

1,867 
569 
57 

2,49.3 

845 
556 
141 

1,542 

248 
142 
69 
459 

20 
21 

331 
93 

199 
51 

239 
70 

1,267 
501 

1,768 

1,892 
786 
66 

2,589 
412 

3,215 
307 
45 

2,766 
251 

2,706 
292 
39 

1,957 
346 
58 

2,744 3,045 3,567 3,061 3,037 2,361 

1,081 
485 
97 

1,170 
493 
67 

1,759 
568 
50 

1,781 
504 
58 

1,742 
478 
45 

1,574 
290 
55 

1,663 1,730 2,377 2,343 2,265 1,919 

248 
153 
80 

268 
163 
82 

335 
177 
78 

382 
187 

519 
202 
60 

646 
205 
^8 

481 513 590 643 781 929 

33 
16 

31 
23 

40 
8 

35 
6 

10 
10 

35 
12 

49 54 48 41 20 47 

386 
99 

231 
52 

243 
72 

1,493 
552 

453 
102 

233 
46 

219 
75 

1,692 
536 

543 
107 

271 
39 

252 
71 

1,923 
458 

695 
110 

311 
29 

271 
64 

2,207 
471 

945 
114 

367 

286 
79 

2,537 
528 

1,145 
120 

344 

282 
94 

2,882 
567 

2,045 2,228 2,381 2,678 3,065 3,449 

1.3.3 140 142 145 155 165 

1,474 
154 
54 

1,682 

1,942 
321 
65 

2,328 

850 
232 
78 

1,160 

40 
16 
56 

1,221 
111 

329 
62 

238 
50 

3,070 
559 

3,629 

30,113 
10,038 
1,448 

17,840 20,077 22,525 25,035 27,772 31,520 35,438 39,691 39,625 41,599 

2,235 
342 
41 

2,618 

2,193 
311 
45 

2,549 

935 
219 
68 

1,222 

44 
17 
61 

1,165 
103 

370 
73 

221 

3,296 
546 

3,842 

170 171 184 

1 Pursuant to the merger effective Dec. 31, 1987, prior years' operations of the inter-regional capital are included with those of the ordinary capital for 
comparative purposes. 

' After adjusting U.S. dollar equivalents of borrowed currencies to year-end exchange rates. 
* Net of cancellations. 
' Income before Technical Cooperation expense. 
5 Includes depreciation and amortization expenses relating to buildings. For consistency in comparison, 1987 and 1988 administrative expenses exclude 

reimbursements from funds under administration and IIC. 
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PARTI 

LATIN AMERICA 
AND THE BANK LN1989 

LATIN AMERICA IN 1989 

Overview 

The 1980s have been called the "lost decade" for the 
countries of Latin America and the Caribbean and 
economic indicators for 1989. the final year of the 
decade, give special emphasis to that characteriza
tion. 

Economic growth in the region continued to be 
flat—0.7 percent—in 1989, repeating the pattern of 
1988, and bringing overall expansion of gross do
mestic product for the decade of the 1980s to slightly 
less than 12 percent. Population growth outpaced 
economic expansion, however, and consequently 
per capita GDP declined by 1.1 percent from 1988 to 
1989. Regional GDP per capita declined by approxi
mately 8 percent in the decade, receding to 1978 
levels. 

POTABLE WATER PROJECT BENEFITSRURAL COM
MUNITIES IN ECUADOR. Construction on the main 
water line for an integrated potable water system 
for Máchala, Pasaje, Puerto Bolívar, El Guabo 
and several other small towns in southwestern 
Ecuador. The project, which also includes a cen
tral water treatment plant for the communities, 
wasfinanced by a $12.2 million loan to Ecuador in 
1977. 

If economic performance was disappointing 
overall, several countries performed quite well. Chile, 
at 8.5 percent; Paraguay at 5.6 percent and Costa Rica 
at 4.1 percent, led the region in economic expansion 
and were followed closely by Suriname, Guatemala, 
Barbados and Colombia which each registered an ex
pansion of 3-5 percent or greater. Brazil and Mexico 
each grew at 3 percent, but a large number of 
countries experienced almost no growth at all. 

Inflation, only modest export expansion and 
continuing debt servicing difficulties were the pre
dominant constraints on the region's economies in 
1989. In spite of determined efforts to control infla
tionary pressures, the region's average inflation rate 
rose for the third consecutive year. Hyperinflation 
threatened several countries and troubled all but a 
few. The region's exports reached an estimated level 
of $110 billion in 1989. A modest expansion in export 
volume was aided by improved prices for petroleum, 
metals and sugar. Over the decade, Latin American 
exports have expanded by 57 percent in volume 
terms, though only 24 percent in value terms because 
of continuing soft prices for primary exports. Latin 
America's external debt stood at $434 billion at year 
end, an increase of more than 1 percent over 1988 
levels. However, only five countries managed to 
reduce the level of their debt, and only Colombia and 
Venezuela received new loans from the private 
banking sector. Mexico experienced an important 
net inflow of capital that included funds from creditor 
banks and repatriation of private capital. 

The region's disappointing overall growth masks 
good performance in a number of countries and 
serious efforts in almost all to implement macro-
economic adjustments that will contribute to im
proved performance on a number of important 
dimensions in the 1990s. 
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The International Context 

Moderate expansion in Latin America in 1989 paral
leled the moderate economic growth in the interna
tional economy. World gross domestic product (GDP) 
output grew by 3-6 percent, down from 4.3 percent 
in 1988. At the same time, the volume of world trade 
expanded by about 7 percent, less than the 8 percent 
growth in the previous year. The growth in trade 
volume was partially offset by sluggish movements in 
the prices of traded goods, particularly primary 
commodities. An important exception was the price 
of petroleum, which rose sharply. In contrast, infla
tion in the industrialized countries continued to ac
celerate, causing a tightening of financial policies, 
higher interest rates, and a heavier debt-servicing 
burden. These uneven developments led to in
creased efforts to coordinate international economic 
policies in order to achieve higher growth rates and 
reduce the instability that characterizes exchange-
rates and interest rates. 

In 1989, the industrialized countries' continued 
economic growth helped to sustain a healthy volume 
of world trade. Although the 3.4 percent overall 
growth of real GDP was below that of 1988, contin
ued investment growth and the emergence of capac
ity constraints in a number of countries kept import 
demand strong. The industrialized countries' volume 
of imports rose by almost 6.5 percent. Nevertheless, 
economic growth was uneven. The slowdown in 
GDP growth was more pronounced in the United 
States than in Japan and the European Economic 
Community (EEC) and, consequently, import de
mand of the United States was lower than that of 
Japan and the EEC. Despite the slowdown, generally 
strong demand combined with capacity constraints 
pushed up inflation rates and resulted in tighter 
monetary policies in the United States and the EEC, 
and, as a consequence, interest rates rose to a five-
year high. 

The developing countries were able to finance 
the higher interest on their debt in 1989 by expanding 
exports. The volume growth rate of developing 
countries matched the industrialized countries' 6.5 
percent expansion in imports. However, Latin Amer
ica and Africa had below-average export growth 
rates of 2.5 and 3-4 percent respectively, whereas the 
developing Asia region had an above-average export 
growth rate of 9.4 percent. Export prices of the 
developing countries as a whole rose by only 4.4 

LATIN AMERICA AND WORLD EXPORT 
VOLUMES 
(Indices, 1980=100) 

WORLD LATIN AMERICA 

Sources: International Monetary Fund (IMF), Interna
tional Financial Statistics Yearbook; and IMF, World 
Outlook (October of 1989) 

percent, mainly reflecting higher oil and sugar prices; 
non-fuel commodity prices fell by nearly 2 percent— 
influenced largely by sharp drops in the prices of 
coffee and cocoa—and the average price of manufac
tured goods fell by about 1 percent. Coffee prices 
dropped as a result of the collapse of the Interna
tional Coffee Agreement, and the erosion in cocoa 
prices reflected above-normal stock levels for that 
product. The higher oil prices resulted from funda
mental changes in the market, notably strong world 
petroleum consumption, as well as unexpected tem
porary shortages. A tightening of world sugar stocks 
pushed the price of that product up to pre-1982 
levels. Among the region's other important primary 
commodity exports, maize, wheat, iron ore, ba
nanas, copper and cotton registered modest upward 
price movements, while there was some erosion in 
the prices of beef, bauxite, and soybeans. 

2 
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Table II. Gross Domestic Product, by Country, 1960—89 
(Percentages) 

Country 

Proportion of Regional GDP 

Averages 

Real Growth Rates 

Averages Annual 

196069 197079 198089 196170 197180 198185 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

16.2 
0.4 
0.2 
0.7 

25.7 

13.0 
0.3 
0.1 
0.7 

31.5 

9.9 
0.3 
0.1 
0.6 

35.1 

4.1 
6.8 
6.2 
5.0 
6.0 

2.6 
2.0 
1.6 
4.5 
8.6 

1.8 
1.4 

0.5 
1.8 
0.9 

5.5 
2.6 
5.1 

2.9 
7.6 

2.0 
4.4 
2.6 
2.1 
3.6 

1.1 
2.0 
3.5 
2.8 
0.3 

-5.0 
2.0 
3.5 
2.4 
3.0 

Chile 4.8 3.4 3.1 4.2 2.5  0 . 3 5.7 5.7 7.4 8.5 
Colombia 5.0 4.8 5.2 5.3 5.5 1.9 5.8 5.3 3.7 3.5 
Costa Rica 0.6 0.6 0.6 5.9 5.6 0.2 5.5 4.9 4.7 4.1 
Dominican Republic 0.9 1.0 1.0 5.1 6.9 1.3 3.2 7.2 1.1 2.0 
Ecuador 1.2 1.4 1.6 4.9 8.9 1.8 3.0  5 . 5 13.0 0.5 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

0.8 
1.5 
0.2 
0.3 
0.4 

0.7 
1.5 
0.1 
0.2 
0.4 

0.5 
1.4 
0.1 
0.2 
0.4 

5.6 
5.5 
3.5 
0.8 
5.5 

3.2 
5.7 
1.3 
4.7 
5.5 

1.6 
0.9 
3.0 
0.8 
0.9 

0.6 
0.1 
0.2 
1.0 
3.0 

2.7 
3.5 
0.7 

0.2 
5.0 

1.6 
3.7 
2.0 

0.2 
4.1 

1.4 
3.8 

1.7 
0.5 
2.8 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

0.9 
20.4 

0.6 
0.6 
0.5 

0.7 
21.8 

0.6 
0.6 
0.5 

0.5 
23.9 

0.4 
0.6 
0.6 

5.4 
7.0 
6.9 
7.9 
4.7 

0.8 
6.6 
0.3 
5.5 

0.1 
1.6 
0.5 
2.4 
1.9 

1.9 
3.8 
1.0 
3.4 
0.0 

5.2 
1.5 

0.7 
2.3 
4.3 

1.9 
1.1 

10.9 
16.0 
6.3 

0.9 
3.0 

-3.2 
■5.0 
5.6 

Peru 4.4 3.8 3.3 5.3 3.8  0 . 3 95 7.8  8 . 8  1 4 . 0 
Suriname 0.2 0.2 0.1 5.1 4.2  0 . 2 1.2  8 . 1 2.2 3.9 
Trinidad and Tobago 1.2 1.0 0.8 4.5 5.5  2 . 6  3 . 3  7 . 4  4 . 0  3 . 0 
Uruguay 1.7 1.2 1.0 1.5 3.0  2 . 5 7.5 5.9 0.5 1.0 
Venezuela 10.7 10.1 8.7 6.1 4.1  0 . 9 6.8 3.0 5.7  8 . 1 

Latin America 100.0 100.0 100.0 5.6 5.9 0.5 3.8 3.0 0.9 0.7 

Source: InterAmerican Development Bank, based on official statistics of member countries. 

The strong expansion in export volume, com

bined with the small rise in export prices, contributed 
to an increase in the value of all developing countries' 
exports of around 10 percent in 1989 Latin America's 
lower growth rate of exports yielded an estimated 7.5 
percent expansion in the value of export earnings. As 
the accompanying chart shows, the 1989 perform

ance continues the region's belowaverage perform

ance during the last five years, and suggests a signifi

cant unrealized potential for export growth. 

Growth 

The Latin American and Caribbean countries' overall 
economic growth rate of 0.7 percent in 1989 masked 
a wide variation in individual country performance 
(Table II). While some countries experienced growth 
rates above 3 percent, others registered negative 
growth rates. Mexico's growth was significantly above 
that reached during the last four years, and real per 
capita GDP improved for the first time in several 



SHRIMP PROCESSING PLANT IN GEORGETOWN, 
GUYANA EXPORTS ITS PRODUCT. A $12.7 million loan 
to Guyana Fisheries Ltd. in 1980 financed major im
provements for the company 'sfishingfleet and process
ing plant. The company now exports nearly one million 
pounds of shrimp to Japan and the United States and 
catches more than 8 million pounds offish for local 
consumption and export to other Caribbean Common 
Market countries. 

sector. Costa Rica, Guatemala and Suriname grew by 
around 4 percent, while Colombia and Barbados reg
istered a growth rate of 3.5 percent. Brazil grew at 3 
percent as a result of an increase in domestic de
mand. The deepest recessions were experienced by 
Peru (-14 percent), Venezuela (-8.1 percent), Argen
tina (-5 percent), Panama (-5 percent), and Nicaragua 
(-3.2 percent). 

The External Sector 

years. Chile continued to sustain a high rate of 
economic growth—estimated at almost 9 percent— 
led by strong export growth and high levels of gross 
fixed investment. Paraguay's growth rate neared 6 
percent, mainly due to expansion in the agricultural 

The increased value of exports and the slowdown in 
the growth of imports improved the developing 
countries' trade balances in general in 1989, and 
helped to narrow their current account imbalances. 
The strengthening of Latin America's current balance, 
together with increased net external borrowing, 
improved the overall financial position of the region 
compared with the previous year. The total external 
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debt of the region grew about the same amount as the 
region's overall economic growth. The Latin Ameri
can countries' total external debt relative to GDP re
mained nearly unchanged, although the ratio of total 
external debt to exports of goods and services 
declined for the third consecutive year. 

The Latin American countries' debt-servicing 
difficulties have been exacerbated by high interna
tional interest rates. In 1989, the region's interest 
servicing obligations on the debt amounted to almost 
$0.23 of each dollar earned from exports, down 
slightly from the year before, but still significantly 
above that of 1987. Latin America's debt-service ratio 
continues to greatly exceed that of any other devel
oping region, and limits the resources that the 
countries can channel to other areas to sustain their 
economic growth. 

Inflation 

Inflation continues to be a serious problem in a 
number of Latin American countries. Inflation has 
persisted in Argentina as a result of the large fiscal 
deficit and an explosive internal debt situation. 
Increases in real government wages toward the end 
of 1989 aggravated the fiscal deficit in Brazil, and the 
country is threatened by hyperinflation. Inflation 
reached the highest point in Peru's history by mid-
1989, decreasing thereafter, but still averaging almost 
3,000 percent for the year. Inflation rates also accel
erated, although moderately, in Chile, Jamaica, and 
Paraguay. In contrast, Mexico continues to be suc
cessful in controlling inflation and has maintained 
exchange rate stability without any major loss in 
competitiveness. 

Expectations of continued and in some cases 
increased inflation in many Latin American countries 
have left both nominal and real interest rates very 
high and in turn have dampened local investment. In 
Argentina, domestic economic stabilization policies 
have been accompanied by extremely high real 
interest rates. Mexico's real interest rates were very 
high at the beginning of its stabilization program, but 
have recently decreased; interest rate flexibility has 
kept a balance between the supply and demand for 
financial resources and has induced a net inflow of 
external resources needed to finance the current 
account deficit and stimulate private investment. On 
balance, the region's overall investment level in 1989 
remained virtually unchanged from that of 1988. 

Conclusion 

As the Latin American and Caribbean countries enter 
the 1990s, there is a growing consensus that concen
trated efforts to improve the region's competitiveness 
and export performance are a necessary condition 
for sustained overall growth. While success in im
proving export performance will depend considera
bly on internal policies, a favorable external environ
ment also will be essential. In this connection, a 
successful outcome of the Uruguay Round of multi
lateral trade negotiations would not only provide 
further incentives for countries in the region to open 
their economies, but would also provide an oppor
tunity to expand their exports to the industrialized 
countries and to other developing nations. Increased 
foreign exchange earnings will need to be comple
mented by measures to attenuate the region's debt 
service burden, in order to permit a return to the 
import and investment levels required to rebuild and 
expand the region's economic and social infrastruc
ture. Without sustained expansion in investment, 
output and employment, the deterioration in living 
conditions suffered by large segments of the region's 
population during the 1980s would continue in the 
decade ahead. 
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THE BANK IN 1989 

AGREEMENT ON SEVENTH GENERAL 
INCREASE OF RESOURCES 

In March of 1989, at the Bank's Annual Meeting, the 
Committee of the Board of Governors of the Bank 
recommended that the Governors representing the 
Bank's 44 member countries put into effect a $26.5 
billion increase in the Bank's authorized capital re
sources, enabling the Bank to lend $22.5 billion 
during the four-year period 1990-93. The Committee 
also recommended $200 million in new contribu
tions to the Fund for Special Operations, the Bank's 
concessional lending window. The increases became 
effective on January 17, 1990. 

The resource increase will allow the Bank to 
play a much expanded role in the economic recovery 
and development of the Hemisphere. Under previ
ous Replenishments, the Governors have designated 
which sectors of economic and social activity the 
Bank would focus on during the respective Replen
ishment period. Under the Seventh Replenishment 
the Governors determined that the Bank's program of 
activities should be designed on a country-by-coun-
try basis through the process of dialogue and consul
tation. 

Therefore, the Bank will strengthen its dialogue 
with the borrowing countries in macro and sector 
analysis, in identifying the constraints (social, struc
tural and economic) of the development process, and 
developing more defined strategies for the Bank's 
activities compatible with the national development 
programs for each country. The Bank also will 
continue to finance specific projects in the produc
tive sectors and the physical and social infrastructure 
sectors. 

Highlights of the Seventh Replenishment in
clude: 

• The introduction of sector lending into the 
Bank's program. Such loans are intended to help im
prove economic efficiency in the sector and to 
provide resources to make such improvements pos
sible. Sector loans will account for up to 25 percent 
of the Bank's lending program during the 1990-93 
period. Sector loans will be co-financed with the 
World Bank during the first two years of the Replen
ishment, permitting the Bank to draw on the World 
Bank's longer experience in this area; 

• Ensuring that as in previous replenishments 
50 percent of the Bank's own resources are allocated 
to benefit the lower income groups; 

• Devoting additional staff and financial re
sources to environmental protection and the conser
vation of natural resources; 

• Greater efforts to strengthen the role of 
women in development; 

• Increased support to microentrepreneurs; 
• Technical cooperation to support preinvest

ment and project cycle activities, institutional strength
ening, project implementation and the new sector 
policies and programs. Research and training pro
grams will be emphasized; 

• New guidelines for determining the maxi
mum percentage of foreign exchange financing allo
cated to a given project. The new criteria establish a 
single level of financing for each group of borrowing 
countries. The groupings and percentages are: 

A: Argentina, Brazil, Mexico and Venezuela 50 percent 
B: Chile, Colombia and Peni 60 percent 
C: The Bahamas, Barbados, Costa Rica, Jamaica, 

Panama, Suriname, Trinidad and Tobago 
and Uruguay 70 percent 

D: Bolivia, Fxuador, El Salvador, Guatemala, 
Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Nicaragua, 
Paraguay and Dominican Republic 80 percent 

The differential levels of financing would be 
supplemented with an additional 10 percentage 
point increase in every case in which at least 50 
percent of the project's net benefits are directed to 
low-income beneficiaries in the country in question. 

• Subscriptions to the capital stock by all 
member countries of 2.5 percent paid-in capital 
(actual budgetary outlays) and 97.5 percent of call
able capital. The latter constitutes, in effect, a guar
antee for the securities which the Bank places in the 
world's capital markets in order to obtain resources 
for lending. 

In the report recommending the increase of re
sources for the Bank, the Committee of the Board of 
Governors said: "The 1990s pose an unprecedented 
challenge to the Bank and its member countries.... 
The challenge facing the IDB today is how to help the 
countries of the region resume sustainable levels of 
economic growth, and to meet the socio-political as
pirations of its people. In addition, the Bank must 
assume a more active role in working with its 



borrowing member countries in the formulation and 
implementation of policies needed for the restructur
ing and modernization of their economies." 

BANK REORGANIZATION 

Since 1988, the Bank has been undergoing a thor
ough review of its role in the development process 
in Latin America. This examination has covered the 
Bank's policies and their implementation, the organi
zation and structure of the institution and staffing re
quirements. The goal has been to redefine the Bank's 
role and its operating procedures in order to be able 
to be responsive to the serious development chal
lenges confronting Latin America and the Caribbean 
during the 1990s. 

In 1988, the then newly-elected President of the 
Bank, Enrique V. Iglesias, selected a group of promi
nent persons to form a High-Level Review Committee 
whose mandate was to recommend a redefined role 
for a modernized Bank for the 1990s. The Commit-

WATER PUMPING STATION PROVIDES MEXICO CITY 
WITH DRINKING WATER. One of six pumping stations 
built to pump water 140 kms. over mountains to increase 
water supply for the Western Hemisphere's largest city. 
The $430 million project, partially financed by a 1980 
$170 million loan, included expansion of the city's water 
treatment plant and a 200,000-cubic-meter concrete 
emergency reservoir near the city. 

tee's report, submitted in December of 1988, recom
mended basic reforms of the Bank's internal structure 
and procedures. Concurrently, the President created 
three inter-departmental task forces to address the 
improvements needed in the Bank's policies, opera
tions and administrative matters. 

During 1989, the Bank began to implement rec-



COMPUTERS MONITOR PIPE PRODUCTION IN STEEL 
MILL AT CAMPANA, ARGENTINA SIDERCA, Argentina's 
largest exporter of industrial products, received a $40 
million loan in 1985 to modernize its seamless steel pipe 
plant. Improvements were completed in 1988, including 
ventilation/filtration systems (shown in inset) to mini
mize iii-plaiiI and external air pollution. Most of SID
ERCA 's products are used for oil and gas wells and 
refineries. Equipment and machinery for the project 
were purchased from Brazil, Germany, Italy, Norway 
and the United States. 

ommendations of the High-Level Review Committee 
and the interdepartmental task forces. A Special Em
ployment Termination Program, designed to reduce 
staff, increase staff mobility and eventually open the 
way for recruitment of new talent was implemented. 
A total of 240 staff elected to retire from the Bank. 

On November 1, 1989, the Board of Executive 
Directors approved a resolution authorizing changes 
in the Bank's organizational structure. The new or

ganizational structure is designed to streamline the 
institution by enhancing the role of some depart
ments, creating some new units and consolidating 
others. Two departments, Plans and Programs and 
Finance, will be strengthened considerably by the 
reorganization. 

In the Plans and Programs Department, a new 
Sector Lending and Policy Division was created to 
prepare country-specific sector studies to support the 
sector lending operations called for in the Seventh 
Replenishment Agreement. A new Macro-Policy 
Division will focus on issues that affect Bank lending 
operations and help carry out policy dialogue with 
borrowing country authorities. Both divisions will be 
under the Policies Subdepartment. The Programs 
Subdepartment will consist of three divisions that will 
divide the countries of the region along geographic 
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lines. The Office of Strategic Planning will provide 
Management with a long-term perspective to guide 
the Bank's future courses of action. 

In the Finance Department, two new subde-
partments and a new Financial Policy Division were 
created to permit the Bank to operate effectively in 
the world capital markets at the much higher levels 
contemplated under the Seventh Resource Increase. 

In the Project Analysis Department, the new 
Environmental Protection Division will improve the 
Bank's ability to analyze the environmental impact of 
projects and to develop projects that are primarily 
environmental. The new Education and Health Divi
sion will enable the Bank to expand its activities in 
areas that have been strongly affected by the eco
nomic crises of the 1980s. 

In the Operations Department, the new Micro-
enterprise Division will enable the Bank to expand its 
support to the informal sector. A new Cofinancing 
and Export Promotion Division will help mobilize 
additional resources for the region and stimulate 
export growth. 

In the Economic and Social Development De
partment, a new Regional Cooperation Subdepart
ment will combine economic integration with trade 
development and will strengthen regional technical 
assistance. 

These changes represent the first major restruc
turing of the Bank in 16 years and will permit the 
Bank to improve its ability to meet the complex and 
evolving needs of its borrowing member countries. 

est in the Bank's history—bringing the 30 year total 
to $725 million. 

• $8.1 million was approved for Small Projects 
financings, raising the cumulative to $89-3 million. 

• $617.4 million was awarded in contracts for 
goods and services for IDB financed projects. 

• S949.4 million was disbursed to non-borrow
ing member countries to purchase goods and serv
ices for Bank contracts; $1,393.1 million was dis
bursed to borrowing member countries for pur
chases of goods and services for projects in-country 
and in other borrowing countries. 

• 48 projects were completed during the year. 

Resources and Finances: 
• The Bank borrowed $1,983-6 million in the 

world's capital markets. As of December 31,1989, the 
Bank's total outstanding borrowings amounted to 
$14,630.1 million. 

• The Government of Japan contributed an ad
ditional $32 million to the Japan Special Fund. 

• Co-financing arrangements totaled $189.2 
million. 

• Net earnings of $220.6 million increased the 
Bank's total reserves to $3,296 million as of Decem
ber 31, 1989. 

1989 HIGHLIGHTS 

Highlights of the Bank's 1989 activities included: 

Lending and Project Administration: 
• The Bank approved 36 loans totaling $2,618 

million in support of Latin America's economic and 
social development. The year's lending represents 
the highest level of commitments since 1986 when 
loan approvals totaled $3 billion. 

• The Bank disbursed $2,549 million under ap
proved loans, bringing cumulative disbursements, 
after exchange adjustments, to $31.7 billion. 

• Loan repayments totaled $1,222 million, bring
ing cumulative repayments as of December 31, 1989, 
to $9,947.6 million. 

• $6l million was approved in grant and con
tingent repayment technical cooperation—the high-
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PART II 

BANK OPERATIONS, RESOURCES 
AND INSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

OPERATIONS 

THE YEAR'S LENDING 

The loans authorized by the Bank in 1989 came from 
the following sources: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: 24 loans (plus in
creases in previously approved export financing 
credits) for $2,235 million, brought the cumulative 
total of loans, less cancelations, to 784 for $30,113 
million as of December 31, 1989. 

Fund for Special Operations: 12 loans totaling 
$342 million, brought the cumulative total to 818 
loans, less cancellations, for $10,038 million as of 
December 31, 1989. 

STRAWBERRIES GROWN IN COSTA RICA ARE EX
PORTED TO THE U.S. DURING WINTER. Farm 
worker sprays young strawberry plants for a leaf 
disease on a farm near Pods Volcano, where rich 
volcanic soil is ideal for growing strawberries. 
Funds from a $35 million loan for a national farm 
credit program helped finance the infrastructure 
and planting of 15 hectares of strawberries. The 
black plastic used by the farm to prevent weed 
growth and soil compacting was manufactured by 
a plastics factory in San José, which itself received 
two loans from an IDB-financed industrial credit 
program to purchase machinery from Italy, Spain 
and the United States to improve its production. 

Other Funds-, Increases in previously approved 
export financing credits for $41 million from the 
Venezuelan Trust Fund, brought the cumulative total 
to 199 loans, less cancellations, for $1,448 million as 
of December 31, 1989. 

The Bank agreed to partially defray up to 5 
percent of the interest on 8 loans for $211.2 million 
approved in 1989 from the ordinary capital resources 
with funds from the intermediate financing facility 
created under the Sixth General Increase of Re
sources. 

On a sectoral basis, the Bank authorized loans 
totaling $892 million to help expand the region's 
energy base; $621.3 million to increase agricultural 
productivity; $637 million to finance a variety of 
social infrastructure investments; $378.3 million to 
improve the region's transportation system; $72 million 
for export financing and preinvestment; and $18 
million to modernize industry and mining. 

Tables III and IV show the Bank's cumulative 
lending and sectoral breakdown. 

Total Cost of Projects 

The $2,618 million in Bank-financed loans help to 
finance projects involving a total investment of about 
$6,103 million. The Bank's loans cover only a part of 
the total cost of the projects being carried out by the 
Latin American and Caribbean countries. The bal
ance over and above the Bank's contribution comes 
from the Latin American countries themselves and in 
some cases, other sources of financing. A country-by-
country breakdown of this relationship is shown in 
Table V. 

II 
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Table III. The Bank's Yearly (1989) and Cumulative Loans (1961-89) 
(After Cancellations and Exchange Adjustments) 

In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

Country 

D E T A I L BY F U N D S 

Total Amount Ord inary Capital 
Fund for 

Special Operat ions 

1989 1961-89 1989 1961-89 1989 1961-89 

Funds in 
Adminis t ra t ion 

1989 1961-89 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

11.4 

9.4 
169.9 
525.1 
640.0 

40.0 
200.8 
171.3 
58.5 

4.3 
0.1 

46.4 

0.1 
115.3 
143.1 

18.8 

67.8 
26.2 

120.0 
250.0 

4,201.2 
120.5 
154.5 

1,530.0 
6,757.3 
3,583.4 
3,883.9 
1,347.7 
1,063.6 
2,284.1 

940.4 
1,124.3 

304.6 
289.3 
970.6 
707.4 

5,139.6 
461.4 
847.0 
618.2 

1,602.8 
21.7 

184.2 
737.6 

1,411.8 
1,311.6 

11.4 

9.5 
56.9 

474.5 
640.0 

35.7 
188.8 
106.8 

2.3 

104.3 
143.1 

66.1 
26.2 

120.0 
250.0 

3,633.1 
118.5 
92.6 

690.0 
5,378.5 
3,336.2 
3,153.7 

895.0 
398.5 

1,359.5 
274.5 
531.9 
103.0 

300.9 
433.6 

4,538.5 
92.6 

529.4 
163.6 
987.3 

18.7 
151.6 
591.1 

1,237.5 
1,103.3 

103.8 
50.7 

4.3 

62.0 
56.2 

46.4 

18.8 

519 

43.2 
775.8 

1,246.1 
203.3 
665.8 
355.5 
590.2 
834.2 
549.5 
532.4 
193.6 
282.4 
616.5 
178.6 
566.1 
317.5 
283.0 
442.3 
412.1 

3.0 
27.3 

104.7 
101.4 
194.2 

0.2 
9.1 

12.0 
2.5 

4.3 
0.2 

0.2 
11.0 

1.6 

49.1 
2.0 

18.7 
64.2 

132.7 
43.9 
64.4 
97.2 
74.9 
90.4 

116.4 
60.0 

8.0 
6.9 

53.2 
95.2 
35.0 
51.3 
34.6 
12.3 

203.4 
0.0 
5.3 

41.8 
72.9 
14.1 

T O T A L 2,618.5 41,598.7 2,235.6 30,113.1 342.2 10,037.7 41.1 1,447.9 

Table IV. Distribution of Loans 
In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

1989 1961-89 

T O T A L S2,618 100.0 

% 
Product ive Sectors 

Agriculture and Fisheries $ 621 23.7 $ 9 , 1 8 1 22.1 
Industry and Mining 18 0.7 5,557 13.4 
Tourism — — 523 1.3 

Physical Infras t ructure 
Energy 892 34.1 11,486 27.6 
Transportation and Communications 378 14.4 5,421 13.0 

Social Infras t ructure 
Environmental and Public Health 101 3.9 4,175 10.0 
Education, Science and Technology 155 6.0 1,815 4.4 
Urban Development 381 14.5 1,932 4.6 

Other 
Export Financing 66 2.5 929 2.2 
Preinvestment 6 0.2 386 0.9 
Other — — 194 0.5 

$41,599 100.0 

12 
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Table V. How Bank Projects are Financed Yearly (1989) and Cumulative (1961-89) In Millions of U.S. Dollars 
(Cumulative Loans After Cancellations and Exchange Adjustments) 

Country 

Total Cost Bank's Loans 

1989 1961-89 1989 1961-89 

Latin America's 
Contributions 

1989 1961-89 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad ana Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

; 14.1 
206.3 

1,084.4 
1,000.0 

66.7 
273.3 
208.3 
68.1 

51.6 

134.6 
350.0 

23.5 

82.6 
32.7 

400.0 
2,107.1 

$13,144.0 
198.9 
272.0 

2,468.1 
36,542.2 
8,045.8 

10,279.6 
2,267.9 
1,604.9 
4,427.7 
1,490.4 
2,168.1 

417.5 
422.3 

2,175.1 
1,100.0 

13,116.0 
934.9 

1,638.7 
985.9 

3,916.4 
29.7 

289.3 
1,389.2 
5,170.6 
7,847.8 

11.4 

9.4 
169.9 
525.1 
640.0 
40.0 

200.8 
171.3 
58.5 
4.3 
0.1 

46.4 

0.1 
115.3 
143.1 

18.8 

67.8 
26.2 

120.0 
250.0 

4,201.2 
120.6 
154.5 

1,530.0 
6,757.3 
3,583.2 
3,883.9 
1,347.7 
1,063.6 
2,283.1 

940.2 
1,124.3 

304.6 
289.3 
970.6 
707.4 

5,139.6 
461.4 
847.0 
618.5 

1,602.9 
21.7 

184.2 
737.6 

1,411.8 
1,311.6 

4.7 
45.5 

565.6 
360.0 
26.7 
84.5 
39.5 
9.6 

5.2 

34.3 
210.0 

4.7 

16.5 
6.5 

280.0 
1,857.1 

$ 8,942.8 
78.3 

117.5 
947.1 

29,784.9 
4,462.6 
6,396.2 

923.3 
541.4 

2,143.9 
550.2 

1,043.9 
112.9 
133.0 

1,204.5 
392.6 

7,976.4 
473.4 
791.8 
367.3 

2,313.4 
8.1 

105.1 
651.6 

3,758.9 
6,824.8 

TOTAL $6,103.3 $122,343.0 $2,618.5 $41,598.8 $3,550.4 $81,045.9 

Disbursements 

The Bank's disbursements on previously authorized 
loans amounted to $2,549 million in 1989, compared 
with $2,328 million in 1988. 

As of December 31, 1989, cumulative disburse
ments, including exchange adjustments, totaled 
$31,662 million, or 80 percent of the loans authorized 
by the Bank. The 1989 disbursements and cumulative 
totals by funds include: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: $2,193 million, 
bringing the cumulative total to $21,841 million as of 
December 31, 1989; 

Fund for Special Operations: $311 million bring
ing the cumulative total to $8,384 million as of De
cember 31, 1989; 

Other Funds: $45 million, bringing the cumula

tive total from funds administered by the Bank to 
$1,437 million as of December 31, 1989. 

The distribution of 1989 and cumulative dis
bursements by country appears in Table VI. 

Repayments 

Loan repayments amounted to $1,222 million in 
1989. Cumulative repayments as of December 31, 
1989, were $9,947.6 million. 

Repayments received by the Bank during the 
year, identified by sources of loan funds, were: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: $935 million, bring
ing the cumulative total, before repayments to par
ticipants, to $6,299-3 million as of December 31, 
1989; 

Fund for Special Operations: $219 million for a 

13 
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Table VI. The Bank's Yearly (1989) and Cumulative Disbursements (1961-89) In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

DETAIL BY FUNDS 

Total Amount Ordinary Capital 
Fund for 

Special Operations 

Country 1989 1961-89 1989 1961-89 1989 1961-89 

Funds in 
Administration' 

1989 1961-89 

Argentina $ 279.7 
Bahamas 0.6 
Barbados 10.9 
Bolivia 101.4 
Brazil 278.2 
Chile 278.1 
Colombia 261.9 
Costa Rica 51.3 
Dominican Republic 52.2 
Ecuador 116.3 
El Salvador 71.8 
Guatemala 69.9 
Guyana 21.0 
Haiti 13.1 
Honduras 36.5 
Jamaica 67.0 
Mexico 326.0 
Nicaragua 2.3 
Panama 0.4 
Paraguay 15.1 
Peru 6.5 
Suriname 1.9 
Trinidad and Tobago 9.6 
Uruguay 59.0 
Venezuela 158.2 
Regional 259.8 

$ 3,243.5 
6.1 

112.5 
1,002.9 
5,582.6 
2,560.2 
2,757.0 

778.9 
748.0 

1,423.8 
804.4 
846.2 
186.2 
197.7 
789.8 
528.9 

4,734.7 
461.4 
694.6 
493.8 

1,494.1 
4.2 

40.4 
458.3 
705.8 

1,006.0 

253.9 
0.6 
8.7 

68.8 
262.4 
278.1 
244.5 

30.0 
28.8 
85.4 

3.0 
36.4 
14.7 

21.7 
48.7 

319.1 
2.3 
0.3 
5.5 
6.5 
1.7 
7.0 

49.1 
158.2 
254.5( 

$ 2,728.5 
4.1 

55.2 
370.4 

4,331.0 
2,313.0 
2,072.7 

350.4 
174.1 
796.7 
265.9 
389.9 

78.2 
0.0 

255.0 
275.8 

4,155.6 
92.6 

396.2 
142.8 
888.5 

3.8 
15.1 

335.2 
531.5 
818.7 

$ 25.3 

2.2 
22.0 
15.8 

17.4 
9.4 

19.9 
30.9 
63.8 
33.5 

6.3 
13.1 
14.7 
7.2 
6.9 

0.1 
9.5 

0.1 
0.9 

10.0 

2.5 

$ 465.9 
0.0 

40.6 
570.2 

1,118.9 
203.3 
619.9 
331.3 
499.9 
536.7 
422.1 
397.3 
102.0 
190.8 
483.6 
157.9 
544.1 
317.5 
264.8 
338.7 
402.2 

0.4 
20.1 
81.3 

101.4 
173.2 

0.5 
0.1 

9.5 

12.0 
3.5 

5.0 
0.1 

11.0 

$ 

1.5 

1.8 

49.1 
2.0 

16.7 
62.3 

132.7 
43.9 
64.4 
97.2 
74.0 
90.4 

116.4 
59.0 
6.0 
6.9 

51.2 
95.2 
35.0 
51.3 
33.6 
12.3 

203.4 
0.0 
5.2 

41.8 
72.9 
14.1 

TOTAL2 $2,548.7 $31,662.0 $2,192.8 $21,840.9 (11.5 $8,384.1 $45.0 $1,437.0 
1 Social Progress Trust Fund $537.9 million; Venezuelan Trust Fund $789.6 million; Argentine Fund $23.1 million; Canadian Fund $63.1 million; Norwegian Fund $2.5 

million; Swedish Fund $4.9 million; Swiss Fund $3.6 million, and United Kingdom Funds $12.3 million. 
2 Detail may not add to totals due to rounding. 
1 $250 million was disbursed for the Yacyreta Hydroelectric Complex. 

cumulative total, before repayments to participants, 
of $2,597.7 million as of December 31, 1989; 

Other Funds: $68 million, bringing the cumula
tive total to $1,050.4 million as of December 31,1989. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

The Bank provides technical cooperation to help its 
borrowing member countries acquire the technical 
skills and experience needed to prepare, finance and 
implement national and regional development plans 
and projects. A beneficiary will normally use the co
operation to contract the services of a specialized in
stitution, a consulting firm or a specialist of recog

nized competence in order to carry out the following 
activities: 

• Establish priorities and prepare loan propos
als for specific development projects; 

• Develop and train specialized personnel, 
through seminars and other means, to prepare and 
implement development plans and projects. Coun
tries, public institutions and private enterprises that 
are eligible to borrow from the Bank may apply for 
technical cooperation, as may the regional or 
subregional organizations of which these countries 
are members. Under exceptional circumstances, the 
Bank may directly administer regional or subregional 
technical cooperation activities that benefit more 

/ / 
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Table VII. Distribution of Technical 
Cooperation 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Country 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional' 

250 
99 

1,800 
5,694 
2,243 

67 
1,368 
2,435 
3,629 
2,671 

335 
1,739 

957 
3,685 
1,961 
4,150 

52 

453 
95 

1,850 
2,295 
2,890 

367 
19,391 

1961-89 

5 19,348 
5,699 

13,648 
26,560 
63,925 

1,514 
19,783 
16,013 
26,588 
24,779 
19,884 
19,036 
17,461 
26,719 
23,545 
18,541 

1,306 
14,736 
17,013 
17,599 
30,190 

6,814 
7,620 
7,890 
2,126 

276,151 

TOTAL $60,479 $724,491 
1 In 1989. includes $200.000 for Andean Subregion.$1.804.000 for Caribbean 

Subregion and $17.387.000 for Genera] Regional. 

than o n e country. 
The Bank extends grant and cont ingent recov

ery technical coopera t ion to its regional developing 
m e m b e r countries to complemen t its lending opera
tions. In 1989, this assistance a m o u n t e d to S6l million 
in 210 projects including short-term, intrarégional, 
and small project technical coopera t ion compared 
with $55.7 million in 217 projects in 1988. 

In addit ion to its regular technical coopera t ion 
program, the Bank in 1989 put special emphas i s o n 
suppor t for Latin America's agricultural, environ
mental and publ ic health sectors and o n programs 
fostering Latin America's integration. The Bank also 
stressed efforts to p romote the identification, p repa

ration and execut ion of projects. 
During 1989, the Bank approved $2.9 million to 

carry out 108 short-term technical coopera t ion mis
sions. That a m o u n t c o m p a r e d with $2.6 million for 
97 short-term missions app roved in 1988. The main 
pu rpose of these missions is to provide advice to 
borrowers , identify investment opportuni t ies and 
assist in the prepara t ion of projects. 

A total of $443,000 in grant technical coopera
tion was approved under the Bank's intra-regional 
technical coopera t ion p rogram which finances trans
fers of technical assistance a m o n g the countr ies of 
the region. 

The year 's grant and cont ingent repayment co
opera t ion brought the cumulat ive total as of Decem
ber 31 , 1989, to $725 million. Contingent recovery 
technical coopera t ion is subject to repayment only if, 
as a result of the cooperat ion, a loan is subsequent ly 
ex tended by the Bank or another external financial 
institution for the execut ion of the project or p ro
gram. 

In addit ion to its grant and cont ingent repay
ment coopera t ion , the Bank extends loans for tech
nical coopera t ion purposes , primarily for preinvest
ment funds or studies, and allocates por t ions of other 
loans to technical coopera t ion des igned to insure the 
op t imum execut ion of a project. 

During 1989, a total of $12.6 million in loans or 
por t ions of loans was ex tended for technical coop
eration in pre investment activities. This amoun t 
brought the cumulat ive total of such lending to 
$789.6 million as of December 31, 1989. 

In 1989, the Bank established a Special Project 
Preparat ion Facility (SPPF) to accelerate the prepara
tion of priority deve lopmen t projects submit ted to 
the Bank for financing and allocated $6 million to 
fund the Facility for a two-year period. The SPPF will 
cover the costs of additional studies that are n e e d e d 
during the project preparat ion phase . 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

In 1989 the Bank app roved 19 financings totaling 
$8.1 million under its Small Projects Program. The 19 
authorizations compared with 20 financings for $8.7 
million approved in 1988 and brought the cumulative 
total of approvals under this p rogram to 207 for a total 
of $89.3 million. 

The Small Projects Program, l aunched in 1978, 
is des igned to provide financing and technical c o o p -
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RESOURCES (CUMULATIVE) 1980-89 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

eration to low-income individuals and groups who 
ordinarily do not have access to public or commercial 
credit. The individuals and groups that benefit from 
the program are engaged in productive rural and 
urban enterprises. The assistance is channeled through 
public and private nonprofit institutions such as 
cooperatives and foundations for self-help projects 
designed to generate employment opportunities, 
increase productivity and train individuals in the 
management of their urban and rural enterprises. The 
support is supplemented with training in the use of 
intermediate technologies and the utilization of local 
raw materials and semi-finished products. 

The Small Projects Program was initiated with 
$5 million from the Fund for Special Operations and 
the Social Progress Trust Fund. It now also benefits 
from the resources of the Swiss Fund for Technical 
Cooperation and Small Projects and the Norwegian 
Development Fund for Latin America. 

The program's success and the growing impor
tance of microproducers in the region led the Bank 
to include as part of its reorganization a new Micro-
enterprise Division within the Operations Depart
ment. While the Small Projects Program will continue 
as a vehicle for financing small-scale productive 
enterprises, the Bank will now embark on country
wide global microenterprise programs to reach a 
much larger number of these producers. 

SUPPORT FOR LOW-INCOME GROUPS 

A basic policy adopted by the Board of Governors in 
the context of the Fifth, Sixth and Seventh Replenish
ments of Resources mandated the Bank to ensure that 
about 50 percent of its resources lent in each four-
year period should directly benefit low-income groups. 

In response to this policy decision, the Bank 
developed a methodology that goes beyond the 
systems usually employed by international develop
ment institutions to identify the impact of projects on 
low-income groups. The Bank's methodology deter
mines how many and in what proportion the benefits 
of the project accrue to low-income groups. 

A low-income level benchmark was defined in 
cooperation with each borrowing country. This 
country benchmark was based on nutritional needs, 
access to drinking water and sanitation services, 
housing and transportation and other basic necessity 
factors. The country benchmarks, which are subject 
to periodic review, are used to evaluate new loans in 

60000 

40000 

20000 

80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 * 

YEARLYLOANS 1980-89 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

3000 

2000 
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80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 

YEARLY DISBURSEMENTS 1980-89 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

3000 r 

2000 
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I I Fund for Special Operations 

I I Other Resources 

'Includes Seventh General Increase in Resources. 
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DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 

Energy 

Transportation and 
Communications 

Environmental 
and Public Health 

Education, Science 
and Technology 

Agriculture and Fisheries 

Industry and Mining 

' Other 

Urban Development 

includes Export financing, Preinvestment and Tourism 

BANK GROWTH INDICATORS 
Authorized capital of the Inter-American 
Development Bank amounts to $61 billion, 
as of January 17, 1990. 

Bank's loans amounted to $2.6 billion in 
1989, reaching a cumulative total of nearly 
$42 billion. 

Disbursements of more than $ 2.5 billion 
in 1989 raised cumulative total to $31.7 bil
lion. 

Technical cooperation approvals-both 
grant and cont ingent recovery—which 
amounted to $6l million in 1989 brought the 
cumulative amount to more than $724 mil
lion. 

Bank's cumulative lending of nearly $42 
billion supports matching funds of about 
$80 billion in carrying out projects whose 
total cost amounts to $122 billion. 

YEARLY TECHNICAL COOPERATION 
1980-89 (IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 

LOANS AND TOTAL COST OF PROJECTS 1961-89 
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) 

ENERGY 

AGRICULTURE AND FISHERIES 

INDUSTRY AND MINING 

TRANSPORTATION AND COMMUNICATIONS 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND PUBLIC HEALTH 

EDUCATION, SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 

URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
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Table VIII. Support for Economic Integration, 1960-1989 
In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

1989 

Bank 
Support 

Total Cost 
of Projects 

1960-89 

Bank 
Support 

Total Cost 
of Projects 

Loans 
Agriculture 
Industry 
Energy 
Transportation 
Telecommunications 
Education 
Tourism 
Housing 
Export Financing' 
Other 

Technical Cooperation 
Agriculture 
Industry 
Energy 
Transport 
Health Care 
Urban Development 
Education 
Tourism 
Planning 
Multisectoral 
Development Banks 
Export Financing 

$270.9 

250.0 

20.9 

$ 18.2 
11.6 

2.6 

0.4 

3.6 

$5,870.9 

5,850.0 

20.9 

$ 87.5 
78.5 

4.0 

0.5 

4.5 

$2,537.9 
110.7 
247.2 

1,052.9 
603.7 
83.7 
9.9 

29.2 
15.0 

318.2 
67.5 

S 304.4 
165.1 

4.7 
5.0 
2.7 

11.9 
3.9 

11.7 
1.3 
7.5 

63.2 
9.8 

17.6 

$14,810.9 
271.5 
425.1 

12,336.5 
1,088.1 

158.3 
25.4 
50.7 
30.0 

332.6 
92.7 

$ 1,137.3 
851.3 

6.4 
7.4 
8.4 

59.1 
7.9 

22.9 
1.3 

23.0 
108.4 

14.4 
26.8 

TOTAL $289.1 $5,958.4 $2,842.3 $15,948.2 

'Excluding recoveries from prior loans. 

order to estimate the extent to which benefits of the 
project accrue to low-income groups. 

Although not all projects permit the Bank to 
make reasonable estimates of the distribution of the 
costs and benefits generated by the project, for the 
most part it has been possible to either determine the 
flow or, if not, to define low-income beneficiaries as 
a proportion of all beneficiaries of the project. The 
latter approach, "head-counting," is clear in many 
social infrastructure projects such as health and 
education. In some cases, however, the project's 
characteristics do not lend themselves to a clear and 
confident estimate of its impact on these groups. 

An analysis of the distributive impact of the 
Bank's loans in 1989 shows that low-income groups 
obtained 49 percent of the benefits of those loans 
from the Bank's own resources, which were subject 
to distributive analysis. This compares with 41 per
cent in 1988. 

SUPPORT FOR ECONOMIC INTEGRATION 

Economic integration, long an aspiration of the Latin 
American countries, is pursued by the IDB as part of 
a broad framework based on the region's current eco
nomic, political and social needs as well as its long-
term potential. 

The Bank's three major areas of economic inte
gration activities are: 

• Adjusting regional economies to shifting 
global trade patterns; 

• Developing intrarégional trade and business 
cooperation; 

• Promoting physical integration and develop
ment along national boundaries. 

The first area of activity has involved Bank 
efforts to identify and eliminate roadblocks to re
gional economic integration and to regional partici
pation in global trade. This Bank effort takes the form 
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of technical cooperation to help members adopt and 
implement modern technologies and trade-related 
economic policies. 

The Bank's second major area of activity in eco
nomic integration—trade and business cooperation— 
targets the active participation of the private sector in 
regional integration and in the development of 
foreign trade. The Bank has encouraged business 
cooperation in investment projects designed to take 
full advantage of regional and world markets. This 
has involved both delivery of technical cooperation 
to encourage exporters and the preparation of spe
cific export-oriented investment projects. Other IDB 
projects facilitate private-sector participation in inter-

IRR1GATION SYSTEM HELPS DOUBLE CROP PRODUC
TION IN THE DOMINICAN REPUBLIC. The Sabaneta ir
rigation project was financed by a $59 million loan. The 
project provides water to irrigate 16,250 hectares of 
rich valley bottom land in the western Dominican Re
public to enable farmers to plant two crops a year. 

national trade negotiations, in negotiations over the 
accession of new countries to membership in GATT, 
and in drafting new policy measures on foreign trade, 
industrial modernization and economic integration. 

In the third major area—border integration— 
the Bank is supporting member countries' efforts to 
cooperate in the development of infrastructure along 
national boundaries to promote expansion of intra-
regional trade and allow countries to share in the 
region's immense natural resource potential. 

In September 1989, the Bank approved a tech
nical mission to study IDB participation in the 
engineering designs and works for the Paraná-Para
guay waterway project. This project, which involves 
expanding river transport on the nearly 3,000-kilo
meter Paraguay and Paraná River system, is the most 
ambitious of its kind in the history of physical 
integration in the region. It will affect the develop
ment of port and transportation services in Argentina, 
Bolivia, Brazil, Paraguay and Uruguay, and is vital to 
the development of vast inland regions that are rich 
in agricultural and mining potential. 

During 1989 INTAL carried out a number of 
integration support projects, including: 

• A seminar on "Strategies for Latin American 
Integration," at which participants examined options 
for increased participation in the world economy; 

• A seminar on "The Role of Latin American 
Parliaments in the Integration Process," which fo
cused on the contribution of national legislatures to 
the integration movement and the ways in which 
these efforts can complement those of the countries' 
leaders; 

• A meeting on "Savings, Investment and Re-
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AIR QUALITY MONITORING WILL LEAD TO POLLUTION 
CONTROL IN SANTIAGO, CHILE. Environmental engi
neer Yolanda Silva cleans the air intake screen of a 
dichotomous sampler at one of five automatic air pollu
tion and weather monitoring stations financed by a 
1984 $2.5 million loan for pollution studies. The dichoto
mous sampler measures particles smaller than 1/100 of 
a millimeter and the filter tape from the instrument 
(shown in insei)showspollutionfrom these microscopic 
particles at one-hour intervals. Darker circles show the 
increased air pollution during rush-hour. Studies will 
lead to a report recommending technical and legal 
measures for reducing pollution in the city. The pollu
tion data equipment was purchased from the United 
States. 

gional Integration," designed to compare and con
trast the Latin American and Asian experiences, and 

• An annual course on regional integration held 
for a group of public-sector and private-sector repre
sentatives from the Latin American countries to learn 
about the problems of regional integration. 

ENVIRONMENTAL ACTIVITIES 

Environmental management and natural resource 
conservation are issues of growing concern in every 
member country of the Bank. 

The region's countries are interested in invest
ments in watershed protection, forest management, 
coastal management and conservation, urban pollu
tion control, protected areas and national parks, en
vironmental education, training and institutional 
strengthening. Accordingly, within the context of the 
Seventh Replenishment Agreement, the Bank's 
Governors directed the Bank to devote more staff 
and financial resources to environmental manage
ment and natural resource conservation. 

In 1989, the Bank began to fulfill its mandate. 
Highlights of the Bank's environment activities dur-
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ing the year include: 
• Environmental Protection Division: An Environ
mental Protection Division (ENV) was created as part 
of the Bank-wide reorganization to enable the Bank 
to design and finance renewable natural resource 
projects such as forestry, watershed and coastal 
management, and conduct environmental assess
ments of proposed projects. The Division has 13 
professional staff members specialized in ecology, 
natural resource management, geography, hydrol
ogy, biology, forestry, agronomy, economics and 
civil engineering. 

• Loans and Technical Cooperation: Three 
loans for two natural resource management projects 
were approved. One project, involving two loans 
totaling $14.5 million, will help Ecuador manage and 
conserve the watershed and natural resources of the 
Paute River Basin. The second project was the Bank's 
first coastal management loan—$4.7 million to Bar
bados—which will finance preinvestment studies of 
ways to reduce beach erosion and improve water 
quality along the southern and southwestern coast of 
the country. 

Several other loans containing significant envi
ronmental components were approved. For example, 
a $55.6 million loan for an irrigation program in 
Northeast Brazil included a $7.5 million environ
mental protection and social support subprogram. 

The Bank also approved 7 technical coopera
tions totaling $5.1 million for environmental studies, 
assessments, training and institutional strengthening. 
A $514,000 grant to Uruguay will enable that country 
to prepare a nationwide environmental study that 
will serve as a basis for incorporating environmental 
management concepts into development planning. 
Detailed descriptions of these operations and others 
appear in the Description of Projects Section. 

• Environmental Management Committee: The 
Environmental Management Committee, which has 
served as the focus of the Bank's environmental ac
tivities since 1983, reviewed 13 projects in 1989 in the 
energy, water and sanitation, transportation, health 
and mining sectors. The Committee sent special 
monitoring missions to the field to review projects in 
execution. Committee staff also prepared a docu
ment on the conceptual framework that will help 
guide the Bank's environmental activities in the 
future. 

• Programming: Country Programming Papers 
(CPPs), which set out lending strategies for each 

country, have recently included environmental infor
mation and objectives. Currently, several CPPs con
tain environmental chapters, including those in the 
Bahamas, Barbados, Bolivia, Colombia, Dominican 
Republic, El Salvador, Guatemala, Guyana, Haiti, 
Jamaica, Paraguay, Trinidad and Tobago and Uru
guay. Environmental papers have been prepared for 
Costa Rica, Ecuador, Honduras, Nicaragua and Pan
ama and will be incorporated into future CPPs. 

• Nongovernmental Organizations (NGOs): In 
May 1989, the Bank sponsored in Washington, D.C. 
a Hemisphere-wide meeting of government officials 
and representatives from non-governmental organi
zations (NGOs) to discuss environmental issues and 
the pivotal role that NGOs, local groups and commu
nities and indigenous people play in the project 
cycle. Methods were examined for incorporating the 
concerns of these groups into development planning 
and project execution. 

• Environment Commission: The President of 
the Bank and the Director of the Regional Office of 
the United Nations Development Programme, in co
operation with borrowing countries, established a 
high-level Latin America and the Caribbean Commis
sion on Development and the Environment, which 
will seek to define an environmental agenda for Latin 
America. 

SUPPORT FOR WOMEN IN DEVELOPMENT 

The Bank's policy on Women in Development, ap
proved by the Board of Executive Directors in 1987, 
recognizes the increasing economic responsibilities 
of women in the region and sets forth objectives to 
raise women's productivity and improve their access 
to training, income generating activities and credit. 

To implement the policy, the Bank appointed a 
Senior Advisor on Women in Development. The 
Advisor coordinated an interdepartmental working 
group to produce an Action Plan for promoting 
women's interests in the design and implementation 
of Bank-financed operations. The Plan seeks to 
increase the impact of projects on economic growth 
and poverty alleviation for women. It proposes a 
number of steps to be taken in all aspects of Bank 
activity, including program planning, designing and 
implementing investment projects, institutional 
strengthening and inter-agency coordination. 

Several projects were approved in 1989 that di
rectly benefit women, including Small Project financ-

21 



TABLE IX. DISBURSEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF GOODS AND SERVICES BY ORIGIN OF SUPPLIER' 
(Amounts in Millions of US$>-' 

Cumulat ive 1961-87 1961-87 1988 1989 
Local Purchases Exports Tota l Local Purchases Exports Total Local Purchases Exports Tota l 
Amoun t % Amoun t % A m o u n t A m o u n t % A m o u n t Amoun t % A m o u n t % Amoun t A m o u n t 

Total 

% 
B O R R O W I N G C O U N T R I E S 
Argentina 440.8 8.4 246.8 2.4 687.6 4.4 82.2 8.1 32.5 3.5 114.7 5.9 132.0 10.3 35.0 3.1 167.0 6.9 
Bahamas 0.0 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.2 1.7 0.1 
Barbados 15.2 0.3 1 6 0.0 16.8 0.1 0.7 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.9 0.0 1.5 0.1 0.3 0.0 1.8 0.1 
Bolivia 69.5 1.3 0.6 0.0 70.1 0.5 57.5 5.6 0.3 0.0 57.8 3.0 47.6 3.7 7.3 0.6 54.9 2.3 
Brazil 1,149.0 21.8 599.7 5.8 1,748.7 11.2 164.9 16.1 64.1 6.9 229.0 11.8 148.8 11.6 55.6 4.9 204.4 8.5 
Chile 654.7 12.4 29.6 0.3 684.3 4.4 118.8 11.6 3.5 0.4 122.2 6.3 161.8 12.6 1.5 0.1 1612 6.8 
Colombia 272.6 5.2 38.2 0.4 310.7 2.0 83.5 8.2 4.1 0.4 87.6 4.5 128.4 10.0 2.6 0.2 131.0 5.4 
Costa Rica II 1.0 2.1 73.3 0.7 184.3 1.2 19.8 1.9 10.0 1.1 29.8 1.5 34.0 2.6 15.6 1.4 49.7 2.1 
Dominican Republic 116.9 2.2 5.4 0.1 122.4 0.8 15.1 1.5 0.5 0.1 15.7 0.8 27.2 2.1 3.3 0.3 30.5 1.3 
Ecuador 235.0 4.5 0.3 0.0 235.3 1.5 50.3 4.9 0.0 0.0 50.4 2.6 48.9 3.8 0.1 0.0 49.0 2.0 
El Salvador 59.7 1.1 14.4 0.1 74.1 0.5 8.1 0.8 0.7 0.1 8.7 0.4 11.7 0.9 5.5 0.5 17.2 0.7 
Guatemala 60.5 1.1 16.1 0.2 76.5 0.5 20.2 2.0 3.9 0.4 24.2 1.2 24.7 1.9 2.1 0.2 26.8 1.1 
Guyana 1.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.7 0.0 1.3 0-1 0.2 0.0 1.5 0.1 1.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.1 
Haiti 18.9 0.4 0.5 0.0 19.4 0.1 4.0 0.4 0.0 0.0 4.0 0.2 5.9 0.5 0.0 0.0 5.9 0.2 
Honduras 94.5 1.8 15.7 0.2 110.2 0.7 14.6 1.4 0.3 0.0 14.8 0.8 14.4 1.1 0.2 0.0 14.7 0.6 
Jamaica 40.4 0.8 18.6 0.2 59.0 0.4 20.8 2.0 4.4 0.5 25.3 1.3 51.3 4.0 15.4 1.4 66.8 2.8 
Mexico 1,173.2 22.3 393.2 3.8 1,566.4 10.1 236.2 23.1 17.0 1.8 253.2 13.0 316.9 24.7 14.2 1.3 331.2 13.7 
Nicaragua 69.6 1.3 9.7 0.1 79.4 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.3 0.3 3.3 0.1 
Panama 167.8 3.2 18.8 0.2 186.6 1.2 2.3 0.2 4.2 0.5 6.5 0.3 0.2 0.0 2.9 0.3 3.1 0.1 
Paraguay 101.8 1.9 26.2 0.3 128.0 0.8 21.5 2.1 2.5 0.3 24.0 1.2 5.5 0.4 1.4 0.1 6.9 0.3 
Peru 304.7 5.8 34.2 0.3 339.0 2.2 31.6 3.1 6.8 0.7 38.4 2.0 3.2 0.3 1.3 0.1 4.5 0.2 
Suriname 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 
Trinidad and Tobago 0.7 0.0 3.7 0.0 4.4 0.0 3.7 0.4 2.2 0.2 5.8 0.3 7.2 0.6 2.3 0.2 9.5 0.4 
Uruguay 70.1 1.3 18.5 0.2 88.6 0.6 25.5 2.5 2.2 0.2 27.7 1.4 41.4 3.2 0.0 0.0 41.4 1.7 
Venezuela 30.6 0.6 40.4 0.4 71.0 0.5 38.6 3.8 .3.9 0.4 42.5 2.2 70.8 5.5 3.7 0.3 74.4 3.1 
Total Borrowers 5,258.8 100.0 1,606.5 15.6 6,865.3 44.1 1,021.2 100.0 164.2 17.7 1,185.4 60.9 1,284.7 100.0 175.5 15.6 1,460.2 60.6 

N O N - B O R R O W E R S 
Austria 39.5 0.4 39.5 0.3 3.9 0.4 3.9 0.2 6.2 0.5 6.2 0.3 
Belgium 49.5 0.5 49.5 0.3 4.4 0.5 4.4 0.2 4.2 0.4 4.2 0.2 
Canada 169.5 1.6 169.5 1.1 21.5 2.3 21.5 1.1 17.1 1.5 17.1 0.7 
Denmark 30.2 0.3 30.2 0.2 10.6 1.1 10.6 0.5 5.1 0.4 5.1 0.2 
Finland 19.8 0.2 19.8 0.1 0.2 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.5 0.0 
France 618.7 6.0 618.7 4.0 87.9 9.5 87.9 4.5 211.5 18.8 211.5 8.8 
Germany 715.6 6.9 715.6 4.6 88.5 9.6 88.5 4.5 75.0 6.7 75.0 3.1 
Israel 9.0 0.1 9.0 0.1 4.4 0.5 4.4 0.2 6.1 0.5 6.1 0.3 
Italy 825.5 8.0 825.5 5.3 75.7 8.2 75.7 3.9 210.3 18.7 210.3 8.7 
Japan 794.6 7.7 794.6 5.1 63.8 6.9 63.8 3.3 61.4 5.5 61.4 2.5 
Netherlands 117.5 1.1 117.5 0.8 13.7 1.5 13.7 0.7 8.6 0.8 8.6 0.4 
Norway 3.3 0.0 3.3 0.0 6.8 0.7 6.8 0.3 0.6 0.0 0.6 0.0 
Portugal 3.1 0.0 3.1 0.0 0.6 0.1 0.6 0.0 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.0 
Spain 346.3 3.4 346.3 2.2 42.1 4.6 42.1 2.2 37.8 3.4 37.8 1.6 
Sweden 153-2 1.5 153.2 1.0 47.1 5.1 47.1 2.4 21.8 1.9 21.8 0.9 
Switzerland 283.3 2.7 283.3 1.8 30.0 3.2 30.0 1.5 41.4 3.7 41.4 1.7 
United Kingdom 242.0 2.3 242.0 1.6 28.0 3.0 28.0 1.4 28.9 2.6 28.9 1.2 
United States 4,268.2 41.4 4,268.2 27.4 231.3 25.0 231.3 11.9 210.3 18.7 210.3 8.7 
Yugoslavia 5.7 0.1 5.7 0.0 0.6 0.1 0.6 0.0 2.1 0.2 2.1 0.1 
Total Non-Borrowers 8.694.4 84.4 8,694.4 55.9 761.0 82.3 761.0 39.1 949.4 84.4 949.4 39.4 

5,258.8 100.0 10,300.9 100.0 15,559.7 100.0 1,021.2 100.0 925.2 100.0 1,946.4 100.0 1,284.7 100.0 1,124.9 100.0 2,409.6 100.0 
1 It also includes data on the "Export Finance Program" for all the periods indicated above. 

Amounts refer to convertible currencies only. 
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ings for women entrepreneurs in Brazil and Guate
mala. Funds were allocated for research on Women 
in Development issues. One study, "Women and 
Poverty in Latin America and the Caribbean," con
ducted by the International Center for Research on 
Women, documents the increased number of women 
living in poverty and examines alternatives for ad
dressing the problem. The results of this research will 
be published in the Bank's 1990 Economic and Social 
Progress in Latin America report, scheduled for 
publication in September 1990. 

RECIPROCAL BENEFITS 

Bank-loan contracts require the Bank's public sector 
borrowers to procure goods and construction serv
ices through open competitive international bidding 
when the value of the procurement exceeds $200,000. 
The services of consulting firms also must be ac
quired through an open and competitive selection 
process. 

Only the Bank's member countries are eligible 
to participate in procurement financed with re
sources from its ordinary capital, the Fund for Special 
Operations and Venezuelan Trust Fund and certain 
other funds under Bank administration1. The value of 
goods and services procured with Bank resources 
from individual member countries exceeds, in most 
cases at least, the total of cash payments, in convert
ible currencies, paid in or contributed by the member 
country. 

In 1989 a total of 607 contracts amounting to 
$614.7 million were awarded to firms in 33 member 
countries. 

Disbursements of convertible currencies for 
purchases of goods and services totaled $2.3 billion 
in 1989. Borrowing member countries received $1.4 
billion or 60 percent of this value. Local purchases of 
goods and services for projects in the borrowing 
countries totaled $1.3 billion and exports of borrow
ing countries to other borrowing countries amounted 
to $108 million. Non-borrowing member countries 
provided goods and services totaling $949 million in 
1989. Table IX, Disbursements for Purchase of Goods 
and Services by Origin of Supplier, gives a detailed 
breakdown of local purchases and exports of goods 
and services by Bank member countries. It should be 
noted that these disbursement figures reflect only the 
initial round of procurement traced by actual dis
bursements and do not measure amounts received by 

DISBURSEMENTS BY SOURCE OF SUPPLY, 
1980-1989 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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subcontractors or the substantial secondary and 
tertiary impact of the Bank's loans. 

A review of disbursements in convertible cur
rencies reveals that during the first two decades or so 
of Bank operations, the non-borrowing member 
countries provided the majority of goods and serv
ices for Bank-financed projects. In recent years, that 
trend has shifted somewhat and since 1984 the 
borrowing countries have supplied the majority 
share of goods and services purchased with Bank 
resources. This pattern is shown in the accompany
ing graph, Disbursements By Source of Supply, 1980 
to 1989. 

Special eligibility restrictions apply to certain Funds. 
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TABLE X. CAPITAL OF THE BANK 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Subscriptions as of December 31 , 1989 Future Commitments" 

Country Paid-in Callable Sub-Total Paid-in Callable Tota l Grand Total 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 

307,424 
2,087 

10,037 
4,716 
5,103 

3,691,338 
25,213 
67,229 
43,103 
59,605 

3,998,762 
27,300 
77,266 
47,819 
64,708 

76,627 
531 

1,496 
917 

1,255 

2,988,112 
20,411 
57,760 
35,756 
48,350 

3,064,739 
20,942 
59,256 
36,673 
49,605 

7,063,501 
48,242 

136,522 
84,492 

114,313 

Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 

24,682 
307,424 
120,417 
84,347 
84,323 

296,326 
3,691,338 
1,389,949 
1,013,642 
1,012,858 

321,008 
3,998,762 
1,510,366 
1,097,989 
1,097,181 

6,128 
76,627 
28,952 
21,039 
21,039 

239,869 
2,988,112 
1,128,606 

820,458 
819,879 

245,997 
3,064,739 
1,157,558 

841,497 
840,918 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 

12,329 
12,329 
2,075 

25,647 
16,455 

148,115 
148,115 

24,826 
306,809 
197,768 

160,444 
160,444 

26,901 
332,456 
214,223 

3,088 
3,088 

531 
6,369 
4,102 

119,911 
119,911 
20,122 

248,410 
160,058 

122,999 
122,999 

20,653 
254,779 
164,160 

567,005 
7,063,501 
2,667,924 
1,939,486 
1,938,099 

Costa Rica 12,329 148,115 160,444 3,088 119,911 122,999 283,443 
Denmark 2,244 26,841 29,085 579 21,714 22,293 51,378 
Dominican Republic 16,455 197,768 214,223 4,102 160,058 164,160 378,383 
Ecuador 16,455 197,768 214,223 4,102 160,058 164,160 378,383 
El Salvador 12,329 148,115 160,444 3,088 119,911 122,999 283,443 

Finland 2,087 25,213 27,300 531 20,411 20,942 48,242 
France 25,647 306,809 332,456 6,369 248,410 254,779 587,235 
Germany, Fed. Rep. of 26,238 314,264 340,502 6,514 254,442 260,956 601,458 
Guatemala 16,455 197,768 214,223 4,102 160,058 164,160 378,383 
Guyana 6,634 52,862 59,496 1,158 44,442 45,600 105,096 

283,443 
283,443 

47,554 
587,235 
378,383 

Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 

28,566 
197,647 

3,860 
12,329 
2,244 

342,300 
2,372,817 

46,673 
148,115 

26,841 

370,866 
2,570,464 

50,533 
160,444 
29,085 

7,093 
49,267 

965 
3,088 

579 

277,121 
1,920,788 

37,783 
119,911 

21,714 

284,214 
1,970,055 

38,748 
122,999 
22,293 

655,080 
,540,519 

89,281 
283,443 

51,378 

Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 

12,329 
12,329 
41,233 

651 
25,647 

148,115 
148,115 
494,601 

8,107 
306,809 

160,444 
160,444 
535,834 

8,758 
332,456 

3,088 
3,088 

10,278 
145 

6,369 

119,911 
119,911 
400,409 

6,563 
248,410 

122,999 
122,999 
410,687 

6,708 
254,779 

United States 
Utuguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 

283,443 
283,443 
946,521 

15,466 
587,235 

Suriname 5,091 27,529 32,620 627 24,368 24,995 57,615 
Sweden 4,463 52,162 56,625 1,062 42,319 43,381 100,006 
Switzerland 5,694 68,544 74,238 1,399 55,492 56,891 131,129 
Trinidad and Tobago 12,329 148,115 160,444 3,088 119,911 122,999 283,443 
United Kingdom 25,647 306,809 332,456 6,369 248,410 254,779 587,235 

888,484 11,044,084 11,932,568 260,871 8,940,306 9,201,177 21,133,745 
33,005 395,729 428,734 8,203 320,357 328,560 757,294 

172,121 1,970,248 2,142,369 41,064 1,600,914 1,641,978 3,784,347 
2,087 25,213 27,300 531 20,411 20,942 48,242 

T O T A L $2,642,024 $31,812,683 $34,454,707 $692,596 $25,770,149 $26,462,745 $60,917,452 
' Represents figures corresponding to the Seventh Increase of Resources and USA's pending subscription (USS 31,618) to the Sixth Increase of Resources. 
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RESOURCES 

RESOURCE MOBILIZATION 

Seventh General Increase in the 
Resources of the Bank 

The Seventh General Increase in the Resources of the 
Bank was agreed to by the Governors of the Bank's 
member countries in Amsterdam in March of 1989. 
The Agreement increases the authorized capital of 
the Bank by $26.5 billion to a total of $61 billion. The 
increase of resources will permit a $22.5 billion 
lending program in convertible currencies over the 
1990-93 period. 

The paid-in portion of each member country's 
subscription will be 2.5 percent subscribed in con
vertible currencies and the remaining 97.5 percent in 
the form of callable capital subscriptions. The paid-
in share will require paid-in subscriptions of the 
members totaling approximately $66l million. 

The Fund for Special Operations will receive 
new contributions in convertible currencies totaling 
$200 million. 

Subscriptions to the paid-in and callable ordi
nary capital are to be made in four equal and con
secutive annual installments, the first of which is due 
on October 31, 1990. Contributions to the Fund for 
Special Operations are also to be made in four equal 
annual installments beginning on the same date. 

While the Bank's Governors have agreed to the 
Seventh General Increase in the Resources of the 
Bank, the increase became effective on January 17, 
1990 when the respective resolutions had been voted 
on by a sufficient number of member countries and 
a minimum number of member countries had depos
ited instruments agreeing to subscribe to the respec
tive number of shares of capital stock and to contrib
ute to the increase in the Fund for Special Operations. 

New Variable Lending Rate Methodology 

In December 1989, the Board of Executive Directors 
adopted a new methodology to calculate the Bank's 
lending rate on its ordinary capital loans. The new 
Pool Based Variable Lending Methodology permits 
the Bank to adjust quickly, efficiently and in an equi
table manner to rapidly changing market conditions. 

The new methodology will assist the Bank in 

strengthening its financial situation while providing 
resources to borrowers at the lowest possible cost. 
Under this methodology, the lending rate is adjusted 
semi-annually, on January 1 and July 1, by adding a 
spread to the average cost of a pool of borrowing 
needed to finance new lending operations. 

The new methodology uniformly adjusts inter
est changes applicable to outstanding balances on all 
loans made under it, not solely to disbursements as 
is the case under the previous methodology. Thus, 
consistent with the cooperative nature of the institu
tion, all borrowers share equally the costs and 
benefits of changes in the lending rate. 

The lending rate derived under the previous 
methodology will continue to be applied to new 
disbursements of loans approved prior to January 1, 
1990. The rate, however, will be applied with a 
spread equivalent to that of the new methodology 
added to the borrowing cost of the prior year. 

Co-financing and Other Catalytic Initiatives 

The Bank continued its efforts to mobilize additional 
resources for the region's development. These efforts 
included several negotiations with member countries 
to create funds or augment existing funds to increase 
the availability of resources for the region. 

The Ministry of Finance of Japan has aug
mented the Japan Special Fund, established in 1988 
with an initial contribution of 3-5 billion yen, with an 
additional 4.5 billion yen (equivalent to approxi
mately $32 million). The Bank administers this Fund 
on behalf of the Government of Japan. Resources 
from the Fund may be used to co-finance on a 
nonreimbursable basis Bank-supported operations 
for emergency assistance stemming from natural 
disasters, and to grant technical assistance for prein
vestment, prefeasibility and feasibility activities that 
help feed the Bank's pipeline of projects. 

In 1988, the Government of Spain and the Bank 
signed a protocol outlining the guidelines for the 
creation of a Quincentennial Fund in the amount 
equivalent to $500 million. The Fund will be used to 
finance a broad range of projects in Latin America 
and the Caribbean. Authorization for the Spanish 
Government and the Bank to implement the Fund is 
pending in the Spanish Parliament. 

The Bank and other international organizations 
and donor countries co-financed several projects in 
1989. These co-financing arrangements included, 
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TABLE XL CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS TO THE FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Seventh Increase 
of Resources ' 

Country 
As of 

December 31 , 1989a h 
T o be 

Received 
Grand 
Total 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 

5471,754 
12,950 
9,708 
1,569 

31,830 

SI 1,352 
566 
258 

35 
1,343 

483,106 
13,516 
9,966 
1,604 

33,173 

Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 

44,856 
502,890 
246,117 
144,386 
141,952 

926 
11,352 
11,069 

3,190 
3,190 

45,782 
514,242 
257,186 
147,576 
145,142 

Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 

21,531 
13,818 
30,466 
27,861 
19,584 

457 
604 
621 
621 
457 

21,988 
14,422 
31,087 
28,482 
20,041 

Finland 
France 
Germany, Fed. Rep. of 
Guatemala 
Guyana 

12,938 
157,710 
161,593 
29,635 

7,680 

566 
6,901 
7,067 

621 
199 

13,504 
164,611 
168,660 

30,256 
7,879 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 

20,126 
23,791 
12,763 

157,710 
26,478 

457 
457 
559 

6,901 
621 

20,583 
24,248 
13,322 

164,611 
27,099 

Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 

175,948 
302,290 

23,959 
22,239 
13,818 

7,698 
7,947 
1,050 

457 
604 

183,646 
310,237 

25,009 
22,696 
14,422 

Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 

23,669 
26,331 
73,260 

5,636 
157,710 

457 
457 

1,571 
182 

6,901 

24,126 
26,788 
74,831 

5,818 
164,611 

Suriname 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 
United Kingdom 

5,816 
27,868 
35,181 
19,230 

157,710 

152 
1,175 
1,541 

457 
6,901 

5,968 
29,043 
36,722 
19,687 

164,611 

United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Unallocated 

4,633,553 
51,556 

290,169 
12,950 
12,602 

82,304 
1,243 
7,947 

566 
0 

4,715,857 
52,799 

298,116 
13,516 
12,602 

T O T A L i,403,191 $200,000 $8,603,191 

a Including Sixth Increase of Resources at amounts stipulated in Resolution AG-11/83. 
b Including amounts not yet received: Suriname 556 and United States 363,725. Including amounts restricted under the trigger mechanism: 523,338. 
c Amounts Stipulated in Resolution AG-2/90. 
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Table XII. Co-financing and Other Arrangements 1989 
In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

Project 

Inter-
American 

Bank Japan 
World 
Bank 

OPEC 
Fund 

Local 
Contrib. Total 

Coastal Conservation 
(Barbados) $ 4.7 $ 1 . 1 ' 

Northeast Irrigation Program 
(Brazil) 55.6 56.72 

Emergency Social Fund 
(Bolivia) 34.6 3.8' 

Industrial Credit 
(Colombia) lOO.O1 100.0' 

Rehabilitation of Power Company 
(Dominican Republic) 148.8 

Atlantic Coast Highway 
(Guatemala) 64.0 

$23.6 

$4.0 

$ 1.5 

26.7 

50.0 

13.6 

38.7 

$ 7.3 

139.0 

38.4 

250.0 

186.0 

106.7 

TOTAL $407.7 $161.6 $23.6 $4.0 $130.5 $727.4 
1 Local counterpart costs are being financed by the Japan Special Fund. 
2 Parallel financing provided by the Overseas Economic Cooperation Fund of Japan (OECF). 
5 IDB loan approved in 1988. 
1 Co-financing provided by the Export-Import Bank of Japan in 1989. 

among others, co-financings with the Export-Import 
Bank of Japan, the World Bank and the Organization 
of Petroleum Exporting Countries (OPEC). Table XII 
itemizes these arrangements. 

Within the Bank-wide reorganization carried 
out in 1989, a Co-financing and Export Promotion 
Division was created in the Operations Department. 
The new Division will permit the Bank to increase its 
co-financing activities significantly in the years ahead. 
The Bank will also expand its export financing 
program. 

Complementary Financing 

Since the inception of the Complementary Financing 
Program in 1976, the Bank has raised a total of $839 
million in additional private financing for Latin Amer
ica's development. Under the program, resources 
from private commercial banks and other financial 
institutions are channeled to projects in Latin America 
through participations in Bank loans. As of Decem
ber 31, 1989, the amount of complementary loans 
outstanding was $261.9 million. 

BORROWINGS 

During 1989, the Bank completed 11 individual bor
rowings in the world's capital markets for a total of 
$1,983-6 million equivalent, expressed at exchange 
rates prevailing on the date of the receipt of the 
proceeds of the transactions. These borrowings more 
than doubled the $901.9 million obtained in 1988 and 
represented the second largest amount borrowed by 
the Bank in any single year. The largest annual 
borrowing level—$2,333-3 million—occurred in 1985 
when the Bank concluded 24 individual transactions. 
At the end of 1989, the Bank's outstanding borrow
ings amounted to $14,630.1 million. 

As part of its total borrowings, during 1989 the 
Bank refinanced outstanding borrowings in different 
currencies for an amount equivalent to $429.8 million 
through advance repayments and replacing high 
coupon borrowings with new borrowings at lower 
costs, thus reducing the average cost of outstanding 
debt. 

A total of $1,928.3 million of the borrowings 
represented medium- or long-term issues and $55.3 
million were short-term borrowings from Central 
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TABLE XIII. IDB BORROWINGS, FISCAL YEAR 1989 
(In Mil/ions of U.S. Dollars! 

Type Manager/Lenders Units 

Amount 
(US$ 

equiv.) 

MEDIUM- A N D LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 

Japan 5.125% ten-year bonds, due 1999 
5.7% fifteen-year loan, due 2004 

5.625% ten-year bonds, due 1999 

6.2% twenty-five-year loan, due 2014 
Switzerland 5.5% seven-year bonds, due 1996 

(Tranche A) 
6.0% twelve-year bonds, due 2001 
(Tranche B) 
5.75% ten-year bonds, due 1999 
(Tranche A) 

6.0% fifteen-year bonds, due 2004 
(Tranche B) 

United States 8.8759? twenty-year bonds, due 2009 

Germany 

8.40% twenty-year bonds, due 2009 

7.25% ten-year bonds, due 1999 

Yamaichi Securities Company, Ltd. Yen 25,000 
The Bank of Tokyo, Ltd. 
Dai-ichi Mutual Life Insurance 
Company Yen 30,000 
The Nomura Securities Company, 
Ltd. 
Nippon Life Insurance Company 
Swiss Bank Corporation 
Credit Suisse and 
Union Bank of Switzerland 

Credit Suisse, Union Bank of 
Switzerland and Swiss Bank 
Corporation 

Yen 
Yen 

SwF 
SwF 

SwF 

SwF 

Netherlands 7.25% ten-year bonds, due 1999 

Total Medium- and Long-Term Borrowings 

Salomon Brothers Inc. 
Merrill Lynch Capital Markets 
Goldman, Sachs & Company 
Kidder, Peabody & Company Inc. US$ 
Merrill Lynch Capital Markets 
Goldman, Sachs & Company 
Kidder, Peabody & Company Inc. 
Salomon Brothers Inc. US$ 

Deutsche Bank AG, Dresdner Bank 
AG, Commerzbank AG, Bayerische 
Vereinsbank AG and Westdeutsche 
Landesbank Girozentrale DM 
Algemene Bank Nederland, N.V. Dfl 

30,000 
20,000 

100 
150 

100 

200 

300 

300 

300 
200 

189.3 

210.2 

215.4 
140.5 

60.2 
90.4 

59.2 

118.3 

300.0 

300.0 

151.1 
93/7 

1,928.3 

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS 

United States 9.78% thirteen-months bonds, due 1990 

9.80% twenty-five-months bonds, 
due 1991 

Total Short-Term Borrowings 

G R A N D TOTAL 

Brazil, Colombia, France, Honduras, 
The Netherlands, Paraguay, 
Portugal, Dominican Republic and 
Venezuela US$ 23.7 
Barbados, Bahamas, Colombia, 
Germany, Italy, Mexico, Portugal 
and Spain USS 31.6 

23.7 

31.6 

55.3 

1,983.6 
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Banks of member countries. 
In 1989, approximately 38 percent of the Bank's 

borrowing was denominated in Japanese yen, 33 per
cent in U.S. dollars, 16 percent in Swiss francs, 8 
percent in Deutsche marks and 5 percent in Nether
lands guilders. In U.S. dollars or equivalent, Japanese 
yen accounted for $755.5 million of the borrowings, 
the U.S. dollar for $655.3 million, the Swiss francs for 
$328.1 million, the Deutsche marks for $151.1 million 
and the Netherlands guilders for $93.7 million. 

Of the short-term borrowings, $26.3 million 
were raised in the Latin American member countries 
and $29 million in the nonregional member coun
tries. The accompanying tables show the Bank's 1989 
borrowings and the Bank's outstanding borrowings 
by currency as of December 31, 1989. 

In order to carry out its mandate under the 
Seventh General Increase in the Resources of the 
Bank, the Bank will need to substantially increase its 
borrowings in the world's capital markets in the 
coming years. 

Table XIV. Outstanding Borrowings by 
Currency as of December 31, 1989 
In Millions of U.S. Dollars 

Currency Amount 

Austrian schillings 
Deutsche marks 
Eutopean currency units (ECUs) 
Japanese yen* 
Netherlands guilders 
Pounds sterling'" 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars''1 

21.0 
2,477.3 

119.7 
3,897.5 
1,057.6 

636.9 
2,609.3 

2.4 
3,808.4 

TOTAL $14,630.1 
a Includes $209.1 million from rwo Euroyen bond issues sold internationally. 

Includes $2/i().8 million from two Eurosterling bond issues sold internation
ally. 

' $102.8 million (at the then existing exchange rate) were swapped against Swiss 
francs. 

d Includes $ 782.0 million of five Eurodollar bond issues sold internationally. 
e $128.6 million (at the then existing exchange rate) were swapped against Swiss 

francs. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

During 1989, the Bank's gross income from its own 
resources— the ordinary capital and the Fund for 
Special Operations—amounted to $1,704 million 
compared with $1,721 million the previous year. The 
net earnings from the two funds amounted to $223 
million, compared with $247 million in 1988. 

These earnings increased the Bank's total re
serves as of December 31, 1989 to $3,842 million, 
compared with $3,629 million in 1988. Highlights of 
earnings from the Bank's own resources are shown 
below: 

Ordinary Capital Resources: Total income: 
$1,527 million compared with $1,547 million in 1988. 
Net income: $220.6 million compared with $238.4 
million in 1988. Total reserves: $3,296 million as of 
December 31, 1989, compared with $3,070 million at 
the end of 1988. The net income amounts indicated 
above are after charges of $90.5 million in 1989 and 
$50 million in 1988 corresponding to provisions for 
the possibility of losses on loans. 

Fund for Special Operations: Total income: 
$176 million compared with $174 million in 1988. Net 
income: S2.1 million compared with $8.4 million in 
1988. Total reserves: $546 million as of December 31, 
1989, compared with S559 million at the end of 1988. 
The net income amounts indicated above are after 

charges of $50.3 million in 1989 and $50 million in 
1988 corresponding to provisions for the possibility 
of losses on loans. 

The audited financial statements of the ordinary 
capital, the Intermediate Financing Facility Account 
and the Fund for Special Operations, as well as those 
of the Social Progress Trust Fund and the Venezuelan 
Trust Fund, appear on pages 133 through 169. 

FUNDS IN ADMINISTRATION 

Several of the Bank's borrowing and non-borrowing 
member countries as well as international entities 
have entrusted the IDB with funds to finance projects 
according to specific regulations. These trust funds 
have become increasingly important over time, both 
because they augment the Bank's regular resources 
and because, for the most part, they are used to 
finance on concessional terms and conditions proj
ects benefiting low-income people. The funds repre
sent a special effort on the part of donors to help 
those in the shadows of life. 

Since 1961. the Bank has administered 14 
special funds. In 1961, the Bank accepted administra
tion of the first such fund—the United States Social 
Progress Trust Fund. Other special funds followed, 
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Table XV. Funds in Administration as of December 31, 1989 

Name 

Currency Amount 
Date Entrusted or Contr ibuted 

Established By Denomination (million) 
Sector Concentration 

or Purpose 

Social Progress Trust 
Fund 

Venezuelan Trust 
Fund 

Canadian Fund 

Canadian Project 
Preparation Fund 

Japan Special Fund 

Technical Coopera
tion and Small 
Projects Swiss Fund 

Norwegian Develop
ment Fund 

United Kingdom De
velopment Fund 

United Kingdom 
Fund 

Argentine Fund 

Swedish Development 
Fund 

European Economic 
Community Grant 

1961 

1975 

1964 

1974 

1970 

1971 

1966 

1970 

USA 

Venezuela 

Canada 

Canada 

1988 & Japan 
1989 

1973 & Switzerland 
1980 

Norway 

U.K. 

U.K. 

Argentina 

1966 Sweden 

1981 EEC 

U.S.$ 525 Agriculture, sanitation, education, 
social. 

U.S.$ 400 Integration, natural resources, in-
Bolivars 430 dustry, exports. 
Can$ 73 Physical infrastructure and other 

sectors on concessional terms. 
Can$ 6 Preparation of projects—basic stud

ies, feasibility and engineering de
signs. 

Yen 8,000 Technical assistance, small projects, 
emergency assistance. 

SwF 43 Projects that benefit low-income 
groups. 

U.S.$ 2 Loans and small projects, low-in
come groups, health, education, 
agriculture and small-scale indus
try. 

£ 4 Concessional loans. 

f 4 Concessional loans. 

Australes 23 Local counterpart financing for IDB 
equiv. to projects. 
U.S.$ 
U.S.$ 5 Concessional loans. 
ECU 2 Small projects and technical assis

tance. 

beginning with the Canadian Fund in 1964 and the 
Swedish Development Fund and the United King
dom Fund in 1966. During the 1970's, several addi
tional funds were established, including the Norwe
gian Development Fund in 1970 and the Swiss 
Development Fund for Latin America in 1973-

Latin American countries have also asked the 
Bank to administer funds on their behalf. In 1970, the 
Argentine Fund was established to help provide 
counterpart funds for projects located in Argentina's 
neighbor countries—Bolivia, Paraguay and Uruguay. 
In 1975, Venezuela provided a large financial contri
bution through the creation of the Venezuelan Trust 
Fund. Resources of this fund have been used for 
projects in integration, natural resources, industry 

and exports. 
During the 1980's, Japan contributed Y 8,000 

million to the Japan Special Fund. A new fund was 
also established on behalf of the European Economic 
Community, and Spain has announced its intention 
to establish a fund for the equivalent of $500 million, 
in commemoration of 500 years of ties between Spain 
and Latin America and the Caribbean. In addition, 
Spain would provide the equivalent of $150 million 
to fund a Special Account that would subsidize 
interest rates charged on loans from the Spanish 
Fund. 

As previously mentioned, the funds under ad
ministration permit the financing of different types of 
projects under concessional conditions. Some are 
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earmarked for Small Projects, others are intended to 
benefit low-income groups. One fund specifically 
finances the preparation of projects, including basic 
studies, feasibility and engineering designs. 

Six funds were established by donor countries 
prior to their becoming members of the Bank and 
many of them have been replenished by the donors 
over the years. Table XV lists these important sources 
of additional development resources. 

INTER-AMERICAN INVESTMENT CORPORATION 

In 1989, the Inter-American Investment Corporation 
(IIC) completed its organization and became opera
tional. Its first three operations were approved by its 
Board of Executive Directors: an equity investment of 
$2 million in shares of a venture capital firm in Porto 
Alegre, Brazil; a $1 million loan to Terminal 6 S.A. to 
expand the Argentine company's port storage and 
handling facilities; and a $2,350,000 loan and a $1 
million equity investment for Migranja, S.A., a Uru
guayan company, to export fruit to Europe and 
Brazil. 

The Corporation was created to promote the 
economic development of its regional member coun
tries by encouraging the establishment, expansion 
and modernization of private enterprises, preferably 
those that are small- and medium-scale, in such a way 

AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION PROGRAM IN HONDURAS 
HELPSFARMERSPLANAND INVESTWISELY. RenéEscoto 
(right), chief of research at the government's agricul
tural research center for the South Coast region, helps 
farmerfuán Ramón Molina calculate the investment and 
operating costs of storing feed for his cows during the 
dry season. A $6.9 million loan to Honduras in 1985 to 
finance an animal health and production program in
cludes improving the facilities of four research centers, 
programs for controlling livestock diseases, anda strong 
agricultural extension program providing technology 
to farmers. 

as to supplement the activities of the Inter-American 
Development Bank. Enterprises with partial share 
participation by government or other public entities 
whose activities strengthen the private sector of the 
economy are eligible for financing by the Corpora
tion. 

A more detailed review of the Corporation's ac
tivities in 1989 appears in its Fourth Annual Report, 
which is published separately. 
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INSTITUTIONAL MATTERS 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

In 1989, the Board of Governors of the Inter-Ameri
can Development Bank approved the proposal for 
the Seventh General Increase in Resources submitted 
to it by a special Committee of the Board of Gover
nors, thereby clearing the way for final action by each 
of the Bank's 44 member countries to implement the 
$26.5 billion increase in resources. The committee, 
composed of Board members, drafted the proposal 
following the Bank's annual meeting in Amsterdam, 
subsequently submitting it for consideration to the 
full Board of Governors. 

In other actions taken in 1989, the Board: 
• Approved Montreal, Canada, as the site of the 

Thirty-First Annual Meeting of the Board of Gover
nors of the Bank to be held April 2 to 4, 1990. 

• Selected Nagoya, Japan, as the site of the 
Thirty-Second Annual Meeting of the Board of 
Governors of the Bank to be held April 7 to 9, 1991. 

• Selected Santo Domingo, Dominican Repub
lic, as the site of the Thirty-Third Annual Meeting of 
the Board of Governors of the Bank to be held April 
6 to 8, 1992. 

• Selected Hamburg, Federal Republic of Ger
many, as the site of the Thirty-Fourth Annual Meeting 
of the Board of Governors of the Bank to be held 
March 29 to 31, 1993. 

• Approved the 1988 financial statements of the 
ordinary capital, the Fund for Special Operations and 
the Intermediate Financing Facility. 

BOARD OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

The Board of Executive Directors, whose members 
are elected or appointed for three-year terms by the 
Governors of the Bank, is responsible for the conduct 
of the operations of the Bank. It establishes the 
institution's operational policies, approves loan and 
technical cooperation proposals submitted by the 
President of the Bank, authorizes Bank borrowings in 
the capital markets and approves the institution's 
administrative budget. 

In addition to approving the loans, technical 
cooperation and borrowings in 1989, the Board of 
Executive Directors approved the following initia
tives: 

• Changes in the basic administrative structure 
of the Bank. 

• New Variable Lending Rate Methodology ap
plicable to ordinary capital loans. 

• A recommendation to the Board of Governors 
to modify the project financing matrix and conces
sional lending criteria in advance of the effective date 
of the Seventh General Increase in the Resources of 
the Bank. 

• Established a Special Project Preparation 
Facility (SPPF) to accelerate preparation of projects 
for Bank financing. 

The Board is currently composed of 12 Execu
tive Directors and 12 Alternates. Each Alternate 
Executive Director, who is designated by his or her 
principal, has full power to act when the principal is 
absent. The Board performs its duties on a full-time 
basis at the Bank's headquarters in Washington, D.C. 

There were a number of changes in the makeup 
of the Board of Executive Directors of the Bank 
during 1989. These included: 

• Juan L. Cariaga of Bolivia was elected Execu
tive Director for Bolivia, Paraguay and Uruguay, 
effective July 1, 1989, replacing Juan José Diaz Pérez 
of Paraguay who resigned effective June 30,1989. Mr. 
Cariaga had previously been the Alternate Executive 
Director for those countries. 

• Juan Felipe Yriart of Uruguay was appointed 
Alternate Executive Director for Bolivia, Paraguay 
and Uruguay, effective July 1, 1989, replacing Juan L. 
Cariaga. 

• Jorge Ruiz Lara of Colombia was appointed 
Alternate Executive Director for Colombia and Peru, 
effective August 28, 1989, succeeding Manuel José 
Cárdenas, also of Colombia, who resigned effective 
August 26, 1989. 

• Franciscus Godts of Belgium was appointed 
Alternate Executive Director for Belgium, Denmark, 
Finland, Germany, Italy, The Netherlands, Norway, 
Sweden and the United Kingdom effective January 1, 
1989, replacing Bo Jerlstrom of Sweden who re
signed effective December 31, 1988. 

EXTERNAL REVIEW AND EVALUATION OFFICE 

The Board of Executive Directors relies on a system 
independent of Management—the External Review 
and Evaluation Office (ORE)—to assess the effective
ness of the Bank's operations. Under this system, the 
Board approves specific areas of concern to the 
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Board for ORE to evaluate. Subsequently, the Board 
reviews ORE's report and decides whether to ap
prove the specific recommendations for eventual 
implementation by Bank Management. 

During 1989, the Board of Executive Directors 
reviewed three ORE evaluations: IDB's Experience 
Under the Low-Income Goal, IDB Lending for Tour
ism Projects and Intra-Regional Technical Coopera
tion Program (CT-INTRA). Two other evaluations 
were completed and distributed to the Board: Project 
Identification and Promotion and IDB's Planning and 
Programming System. 

In 1989, Bank Management implemented ORE 
recommendations that had been endorsed by the 
Board of Executive Directors, including an increase 
in the proportion of higher-level women profession
als in the Bank; the creation of a mechanism to 
facilitate the preparation of investment projects 
(Preinvestment Studies Financed with Technical 
Cooperation Funds); the creation of an entity respon
sible for cofinancing operations (Cofinancing and 

WORLDS LARGEST HYDROELECTRIC PLANT UNDER 
CONSTRUCTION WILL PROVIDE ELECTRICITY FOR AR
GENTINA AND PARAGUAY. The $10 billion project being 
built jointly by the two countries on the Paraná River 
will have an installed capacity of 2,700,000 kw. when 
completed about 1996. The project includes a navigation 
lock for river traffic, an elevator system to enable fish to 
pass the dam, and a 66.5-km. earthfill dam, one of the 
longest dams ever built for a hydroelectric power proj
ect. The IDB has provided three loans totalling $710 
million to help finance construction of the project. Many 
Bank member countries are supplying the goods and 
services required by the project. 
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ORTHOPEDIC INSTITUTE HELPS PATIENTS WITH LO-
COMOTORYPROBLEMS IN BRAZIL. Physical therapists 
help a woman recoveringfrom an accident learn to walk 
again at the Sarah Institute, an orthopedic hospital and 
rehabilitation center in Brasilia. A $1.4 million grant in 
1981 financed the purchase of video and computer 
equipment to help doctors diagnose corrective surgery 
for patients with locomotory problems. The hospital 
treats patients regardless of their ability to pay. 

Export Promotion Division); and several recommen
dations for strengthening the Institute for the Integra
tion of Latin America. 

PROGRAMMING AND POLICIES 

The Seventh Replenishment Agreement and the sub
sequent reorganization of the Bank led to a major 
change in the way the Bank carries out the program
ming of its loan and technical cooperation activities. 
The Governors mandated the institution to strengthen 
the dialogue between the Bank and the member 
countries in macro and sector analysis, identification 
of the constraints (social, structural and economic) of 
the development process, and the identification of 
more defined strategies for the Bank's action, com
patible with the national development programs of 
each country. 

The Plans and Programs Department will be the 
focus of this effort. The Department has been reor
ganized into the Programs Sub-Department and the 
Policies Sub-Department. These Sub-Departments 
will carry out their duties in collaboration with other 
areas of the Bank and in close consultation with the 
borrowing countries. 

The Programs Sub-Department is primarily re
sponsible for the formulation of proposals to guide 
the Bank's country specific strategies and to ensure 

their implementation. The country specific strategies 
are based on the investment goals and priorities of 
the borrowing country and an assessment of macro-
economic, sectoral and institutional issues. Special 
attention is focused on the impact of country strate
gies on specific issues such as the environment, 
women in development, private and public sectors, 
microentrepreneurs, exports, foreign exchange sav
ings, public sector and education services and low 
income population groups. The Sub-Department is 
also responsible for formulating regional strategies. 

The Policies Sub-Department is responsible for 

34 



to ^ 

CITRUS PACKING AND PROC
ESSING PLANT CREATES JOBS 
AND INCREASES EXPORTS IN 
URUGUAY. Fork lift at the 
Azucitrus packing plant in 
Paysandti loads crates of or
anges onto a truck for export. 
An $11 million loan in 1985 was 
used by Azucitrus, a private 
Uruguayan firm, to finance in

frastructure for 335 hectares 
of new citrus groves and the 
construction of a citrus pack
ing andprocessingplant, creat
ing 300 permanent and 1,200 
seasonal jobs. The firm exports 
citrus fruit, juice concentrate 
and oils to Europe, Canada and 
the United States. 
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the identification, development and negotiation of 
sector loans. This task involves close dialogue with 
national authorities to identify major policy con
straints to improved sector performance and the 
need for policy changes in sectors, to assess institu
tional mechanisms for implementing policy sector 
measures and to determine criteria for measuring 
progress in policy change. Sector lending is a flexible 
modality consisting of fast disbursing funds to sup
port sector or sub-sector policy and/or institutional 
changes. It could include an investment component. 

Under the Seventh Replenishment Agreement, 
sector lending will represent up to 25 percent of the 
Bank's program over the four-year period. 

The Strategic Planning Office was set up to 
assist Management in anticipating new trends, op
portunities and potential problems in the region and 
to help define new instruments and directions for 
Bank activities. 

OPERATIONS EVALUATION AND INTERNAL 
AUDIT 

Utilization of evaluation results is an integral part of 
the Bank's operations. The insights and recommen
dations derived from ex-post evaluations of previ
ously completed projects are routinely taken into 
account during preparation and analysis of new 

projects, and often have an impact on the implemen
tation process. They also provide the basis for 
formulating requirements for the borrower's own ex-
post evaluation reports. 

The Operations Evaluation Office (OEO), a unit 
of the Controller's Office, coordinates the Bank's 
internal evaluation work and is responsible for pro
ducing two types of evaluation studies. The first, 
Project Performance Reviews (PPRs), assesses the 
achievement of the project's physical objectives and 
the related technical, financial and administrative 
factors. The second, Operations Evaluation Reports 
(OERs), covers the same points and also assesses the 
project's socioeconomic impact. During 1989, OEO 
completed five PPRs (one evaluation of a fishery 
project, one review of the effect of Bank projects on 
rural development, and three case studies on the en
vironmental impact of the impoundment aspects of 
hydroelectric and irrigation projects), and four OERs 
(two rural potable water projects, one agricultural 
research and extension project, and one fishery 
project). 

When a sufficient number of evaluations have 
been completed in a particular sector, the major con
clusions are compiled into a summary, which also 
contains recommendations for improving future 
operations. Though no such summary was issued 
during 1989, a substantial amount of work had been 
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RURAL ARTISANS RECEIVE CREDITS AND TRAINING 
TO BOOST PRODUCTION IN PARAGUAY. Textile consult
ant Barbara Ann Stabler of the United States examines 
a wool rug produced by an artisan inArazape whose as
sociation used a small loan to purchase looms manufac
tured in Quebec, Canada. A 1982 Small Project financing 
to the Consejo Nacional de Entidades de Beneficencia fi
nanced technical assistance, equipment and materials 
for more than 400 artisans. The project helped to organ
ize producers of textiles, leather goods and ceramics 
into artisan associations. 

devoted to four summaries on public health projects, 
rural potable water, urban development and the 
environmental impact of the impoundment aspects 
of hydroelectric and irrigation projects. 

To date, OEO has issued 12 sector summaries 
and their recommended actions have had a signifi
cant impact on the design and implementation of 
Bank-financed projects, as the following examples 
indicate. 

Roads: The sector summary on rural roads and 

highways recommended adopting a long-term sec
tor-wide approach to identify alternative projects, 
and limit financing for construction of new roads, 
except when it can be established that increased 
maintenance would not produce greater benefits. 
These recommendations were subsequently incor
porated into the Bank's current transportation policy 
and the guidelines for the preparation of road proj
ects. 

Potable Water and Sewerage: The sector sum
mary of potable water and sewerage projects recom
mended establishing a tariff structure that provides 
for equity and efficiency and strives for full cost 
pricing. This and other recommendations are now 
part of the Bank's operational policy on environ
mental sanitation and the guidelines for preparing 
new projects in this field. 

Industrial Credit Programs: OEO's summary of 
evaluations in this sector recommended that the 
project evaluation capacity of the financial interme
diaries be closely examined, and where necessary, 
strengthened. Recently approved industrial credit 
programs have been designed accordingly. 

During the past year, OEO also reviewed Proj
ect Completion Reports prepared by IDB Field Office 
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staff and ex-post evaluation documents prepared by 
the Bank's borrowers. To derive maximum benefit 
from past experience, OEO reviews all new loan, 
technical cooperation, and Small Project proposals 
looking for those cases that may not have taken ex-
post evaluation results sufficiently into account, or to 
highlight issues that merit closer attention. 

The Office of the Auditor General is responsible 
for internal auditing and performs periodic appraisals 
and audits of financial, accounting, electronic data 
processing, operational and administrative activities 
of the Bank. These audits evaluate the control 
systems of the Bank and identify ways of improving 
the efficiency of operations and the use of resources. 
The Office advises Management on needed changes 
to the Bank's financial and operational systems, with 
special emphasis on related control measures. 

During 1989, major assignments undertaken in
cluded a review of controls, security and computer 
facilities and information-processing systems in op
eration and under development, as well as audits of 
the Bank's system of surveillance of ongoing loans 
and projects. 

SAWMILL MAKES WOOD SHINGLES IN SURINAME. An 
employee at the Suriname Wood Factory saws walaba 
logs into strips to make roof shingles. The factory was 
created in 1988 withfinancingfrom a $6 million loan for 
an industrial credit program. More than 20 firms had 
received financing through the program by the end of 
1989. 

ROLE OF FIELD OFFICES 

The Field Offices in each of the Bank's borrowing 
member countries support Bank efforts in the areas 
of project execution and development. Under the 
supervision of a Representative and a Deputy, each 
Office is staffed with professionals who possess the 
specific technical skills needed to carry out and 
administer the portfolio of Bank-financed projects in 
each country. 

In administering loans, the principal responsi
bility of the Field Office is to ensure that Bank policies 
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Table XVI. Consolidated Administrative Expenses 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Category 
1988 

Actual ' 
1989 

Actual ' 
1990 

Budget 

Board of Governors 
Annual Meeting 
Other Expenses 

Board of Executive Directors 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 
External Review and 

Evaluation Office 

Staff 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 

General Adminis t ra t ive Costs 

Field Offices 
Personnel Costs 
Other Expenses 

Institute for Latin American 
Integration (Net Expenses) 

Contingencies 

Reimbursements from Funds 
under Adminis t ra t ion and IIC 

573.0 
105.2 

5,443.7 
839.3 

1,181.6 

94,259.1 
12,303.9 

20,027.7 

28,965.0 
7,024.9 

838.0 

(2,991.7) 

$ 839.1 
120.4 

5,095.5 
877.4 

1,159.8 

105,127.3 
13,380.0 

21,432.2 

30,229.7 
6,555.7 

793.6 

(4,353.9) 

$ 600.6 
85.0 

6,789.5 
845.0 

1,337.6 

102,162.1 
19,494.0 

23,672.8 

30,304.5 
8,466.5 

896.9 

2,068.5 

(4,250.3) 

T O T A L $168,569.7 $181,256.8 $192,472.7 
1 Includes approximately $4.6 million and $17.S million in 1988 and 1989. respectively, of expenses relating to Special Employment Termination Program approved in 

December 1988. 

and procedures are followed by borrowers and 
agencies that execute the projects. The Office does 
this by reviewing bidding documents, making sure 
that the conditions in the Bank's loan contracts are 
complied with, processing disbursements, keeping 
track of local counterpart funds invested in projects, 
and assisting borrowers and executing agencies in 
resolving technical and financial problems that may 
arise during project execution. 

The Field Offices also play an important role in 
the preparation of new projects. They assist Head
quarters staff in advising prospective borrowers at an 
early stage to ensure that projects presented to the 
Bank for financing conform to Bank policies and 
standards. They participate actively with Headquar
ters staff in the project appraisal phase and, later, in 
the negotiation of conditions that will govern financ

ing approved by the Bank. 
In addition, the Field Offices act as a liaison 

between the Bank and member governments in the 
preparation of country and sectoral studies; in loan, 
technical cooperation and small project program
ming; and in resolving financial and legal issues. 

The President has appointed a special working 
group to conduct a comprehensive review of Field 
Office activities. This group is expected to make rec
ommendations on the organizational structure of the 
offices, delegation of additional authority to them, 
and expanding or creating new functions. 
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ADMINISTRATION 

A major component of the reorganization process de
signed to modernize the Bank went into effect in 
1989—the Special Employment Termination Pro
gram. Under this program, completed on June 30, 
1989, 240 staff members left the Bank. The figure 
represents 17.6 percent of the permanent interna
tional staff of the Bank as of December 31,1988. This 
program was designed to facilitate the Bank's reor
ganization, increase staff mobility, and recruit new 
talent. The Bank will employ new staff on the basis 
of fixed term contracts, thereby providing a signifi
cant measure of flexibility to respond to changing 
needs in the levels of human resources in the Bank. 

In regard to the Field Offices, Management con
tinued its efforts to purchase office space in the six 

EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITIES ARE EXPANDED IN 
RURAL AREAS OF PERU. Teacher helps a young student 
learn to write at a combined primary-secondary school 
which was expanded with funds from a $5 million 
emergency technical assistance grant to Peru in 1982. 
The grant financed a variety of social services and small 
irrigation systems for rural areas of the country's 
central and southern highlands which had been hard 
hit by floods, drought and high unemployment. 

countries in which the Bank still rents office space. 
Staff development and training programs in 

1989 focused on computer training. In addition, 
special emphasis was given to enhancing communi
cation skills, particularly new courses on effective 
writing. Preliminary work began on the design of a 
new management development program to be initi
ated in 1990. 

All of these programs involved budget outlays, 
reflected in the $192.5 million budget for 1990 in 
current dollars. In real terms, this amount is compa
rable to the Administrative Budget levels of 1986 and 
1987. 

The accompanying table shows the consoli
dated administrative expenses for 1988 and 1989, as 
well as the 1990 Administrative Budget. 

At the end of 1989, excluding the Board of 
Executive Directors, their staff and the External 
Review and Evaluation Office, the regular staff of the 
Bank totaled 1,524, including 902 professional and 
622 administrative staff, compared with a total of 
1,021 and 685, respectively, at the end of 1988. Total 
contractual staff-years were 139, compared with 155 
in 1988. 

As of September 30,1989, women occupied 115 
of the professional positions. As in the past, Manage
ment continued to recruit and promote women 
professionals and maintain an adequate nationality 
distribution in the Bank's professional and adminis
trative staff. 

COOPERATION WITH OTHER ORGANIZATIONS 

In 1989, the Bank worked closely with other interna
tional, regional and bilateral institutions. These ef-
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CHICKEN FARM IN HAITI PROVIDES FOOD FOR COUN
TRY'S POPULATION. Employee checks feeders at the 
PRINSA chicken farm in Thomazea. The company re
ceived an equity financing from the Venezuela Trust 
Fund in 1982 to expand its operations. PRINSA now 
produces 26,000 chickens a week, 30percent of which 
are sold at its 45 outlets in Port-au-Prince and other 
cities and the balance is sold to street vendors. After 
African swine fever eradicated Haiti's pig population 
between 1978 and 1981, chicken has become the coun
try 's cheapest and most popular meat. 

forts included channeling resources from and through 
other development assistance organizations; and re
viewing and signing of new agreements with organi
zations with which the Bank has worked in the past. 

The Bank and the Export-Import Bank of Japan 
(EXIMBANK) jointly sponsored a symposium on 
strengthening and accelerating the economic and 
financial relations between Japan and Latin America. 
The symposium, held in Nagoya, Japan, drew minis
ters and presidents of central banks and Latin Ameri
can and Japanese business people. The President of 
EXIMBANK, citing Latin America's "huge growth 
potential," stated that Japan was prepared to main
tain and enhance various forms of cooperation with 
the region, including expansion of trade, increase in 
direct investments and expansion of the program to 

recycle capital back to Latin America. 
The Bank formulated agreements with several 

other organizations in 1989-
The Bank and the Organization of American 

States (OAS) signed an Agreement of Cooperation 
and Coordination of Activities whereby the institu
tions agreed to jointly participate in data collection, 
studies, institutional support, training and research. 
Possible areas of cooperation include natural re
sources, environment, tourism, the informal sector, 
taxation, science and technology, education and 
integration. 

The Bank and the Pan American Health Organi
zation (PAHO) broadened their scope of cooperation 
by including the food, nutrition and animal health 
subsectors on the list of areas of joint collaboration. 
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The Bank and PAHO also signed a technical assis
tance contract for the preparation of investment 
projects and health-related studies. 

In April 1989, at the request of the Board of 
Executive Directors, a seminar was conducted on 
Agricultural Modernization and Development in 
Latin America." Participating in the seminar were the 
Inter-American Institute for Cooperation on Agricul
ture (IICA), the United Nations Food and Agriculture 
Organization (FAO), the World Bank and the Inter
national Fund for Agricultural Development (IFAD). 
The seminar emphasized the contribution of the 
multilateral banks to development of the agricultural 
sector and the prospect of close Bank cooperation 
with the other participating institutions. The Bank 
has since approved an $11,490,000 technical coop
eration grant from the resources of the Fund for 
Special Operations to support the programs of the 
three agriculture research institutions in Latin Amer
ica. It has expanded its program with IICA for the 
formulation of investment projects to include sectoral 
projects. It is also engaged in talks with IICA and FAO 
on ways to cooperate more closely with those 
organizations in the area of agricultural and agro
industrial investment. 

The Bank and the United Nations Development 
Programme (UNDP) have maintained a close work
ing relationship since the 1960's. The two organiza
tions have co-financed a number of national and 
regional projects and on a case-by-case basis have 
developed working arrangements at the operational 
level for the execution of Bank-financed projects by 
the UNDP. The Bank and the UNDP are currently 
negotiating details of an overall basic agreement for 
broad cooperation such as information exchange, in
stitutional cooperation, project development and 
execution, regional cooperation and integration and 
technical cooperation among developing countries. 

The Bank and the United Nations Children's 
Fund (UNICEF) will seek to establish a Social Invest
ment Trust Fund within the IDB. which would use 
contributions from member countries to finance 
social sector projects and alleviate foreign debt 
through market-related debt reduction operations. 
Investments in the social sector have been curtailed 
by the debt crisis, and women and children and other 
vulnerable groups have been particularly hard hit by 
austerity measures. The proposed IDB-UNICEF ini
tiative would seek to help reverse the decrease in 
social investments by channeling resources gener

ated through debt relief for investment in human 
development. 

On the occasion of the Twentieth Anniversary 
of the Cartegena Agreement, the President of the 
Bank and the Presidents of the Andean countries 
established a Tripartite Group to promote investment 
in the Andean countries. The Bank will coordinate an 
inter-institutional effort to identify possibilities for 
cooperation and integration between these coun
tries. 

The Bank hosted a meeting of international and 
regional institutions that focused on the methodol
ogy of assessing the environmental impact of proj
ects. And during the annual meetings of the World 
Bank and the International Monetary Fund, the Bank 
hosted a meeting of the leaders of international and 
regional financial institutions. The meeting focused 
on avenues for closer cooperation and the effective
ness of selected lending strategies. 
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PARTIU 

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECTS 

This section* contains for each borrowing member 
country a brief history of Bank activities in the 
country, a description of the loans, small projects 
financing and technical cooperation authorized by 
the Bank in 1989 from its various sources of funds, 
selected highlights on progress made on projects fi
nanced in prior years, and a summary on project 
implementation, including data on disbursements 
and contracts awarded during the year. 

The interest rates charged by the Bank on loans 
made from its ordinary capital resources reflect the 
costs incurred by the Bank in borrowing funds on the 
world's capital markets. Effective January 1, 1983, the 
Bank instituted a policy under which the interest rate 
for loans approved after that date is determined pe
riodically. In 1989, the interest rate on disbursements 
made on applicable loans was fixed at 8.1 percent. 

Eight loans approved in 1989 from the ordi
nary capital received a partial offset of interest from 
the Intermediate Financing Facility Account. Loans 
made from the ordinary capital in a member 
country's own currency carried an interest rate of 

CONTROL ROOM AUTOMATES THE GENERATION 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF ELECTRICITY AT THE 
GURI HYDROELECTRIC PLANT IN VENEZUELA. 
A $350 million loan in 1984 helped to triple the 
plant's installed capacity to 10,400,000 kilowatts, 
making it the world's second largest hydropower 
plant. The computerized control system was 
designed and built by CAE Electronics of Mon
treal, Canada. 

3 or 4 percent, depending on the nature of the 
project. Loans extended from the ordinary capital 
during 1989 were made for terms ranging from 15 
to 25 years. 

The rates of interest charged on loans ex
tended from the Fund for Special Operations 
varied from 2 to 4 percent, depending on the stage 
of development of the country and the nature of 
the project, with grace periods ranging from 5 to 10 
years. For the less developed member countries, 
the rate of interest was 1 percent during the first 10 
years and 2 percent subsequently. Maturities var
ied from 30 to 40 years. 

Loans not extended directly to the governments 
of the member countries carried guarantees of the 
government or governmental agency. 

The financings for small projects described in 
this section were extended for up to 40 years, with 
grace periods of up to 10 years. A commission of 1 
percent was charged on the financings, which need 
not be guaranteed. 

Technical cooperation is extended on a grant 
or contingent recovery basis. Contingent repayment 
cooperation, which represents a small amount of the 
total, is subject to repayment only if, as a result of the 
cooperation, a loan is made subsequently by the 
Bank or another external financial institution for the 
execution of a project or program. 

Table XVII details the Bank's comparative yearly 
lending by country for 1985-89. The two following 
tables show similar information for small projects fi
nancing and technical cooperation approvals. 

'Allfigures, including the numberofloans, total lending and disburse
ments in the introductory paragraphs and Project Implementation sec-
tions in each country are as of December 31, 1989. Cumulative loan 
total1: are net of cancellations and after exchange adjustments. 
Cumulative contract award figures do not include cancellations. 
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Table XVII. Comparative Yearly Lending, 
1985-89 In Mil/ions of U.S. Dollars 

Table XVIII. Comparative Small Projects 
Financing, 1985-89 In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Country 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

108.9 S 516.3 $ 13.1 S 

21.7 

395.3 
522.5 
413.3 

6.0 
146.2 
274.4 

26.2 
192.0 
58.5 
24.7 
69.8 
30.1 

401.5 

52.8 

14.5 
8.0 

25.6 
21.6 

238.0 
9.6 

20.9 
140.4 
428.8 
359.8 

87.0 
179.9 
140.0 
272.7 

25.2 
65.8 

56.5 
122.9 
59.3 

327.9 

98.4 

19.2 
6.0 

36.8 
73.2 

0.6 
89.7 

369.9 

546.6 
112.8 

0.4 
263.5 
169.3 
43.8 

6.7 

1.5 
57.4 

164.1 

16.7 
32.1 
85.9 

7.8 

153.2 
225.0 

291.4 
115.0 

0.4 
121.2 

7.1 
136.7 
200.0 

61.1 
2.7 

7.2 
10.6 
29.9 

58.4 
13.5 

204.0 

47.8 
18.0 

34.3 

50.0 
272.6 

11.4 

9.4 
169.9 
525.1 
640.0 

40.0 
200.8 
171.3 
58.5 

4.3 
0.1 

46.4 

0.1 
115.3 
143.1 

18.8 

67.8 
26.2 

120.0 
250.0 

Country 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Rep. 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tob. 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

1985 1986 1987 

S 500 

$ 350 

875 
500 
385 
300 

540 
500 

1,100 

1,500 

600 

450 

— $ 250 
800 1,500 

500 

1,500 
200 
50(1 

1500 

500 

1,500 
1,000 
1,000 

250 

500 

250 
750 

500 
500 

1988 1989 

300 — 

500 — 
500 $1,500 
500 900 

1,000 
1,000 

500 

-oo 

250 
500 
500 
700 

265 

500 

1,000 

850 
500 

300 
500 
900 

1,000 

"00 

500 

500 

TOTAL $3,061.2 «3,037.0 «2,361.1 $1,681.9 «2,618.5 TOTAL «6,900 «4,500 $8,500 $8,715 «8,150 

Table XIX. Comparative Yearly Technical 
Cooperation, 1985-89 In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Country 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Rep. 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suri name-
Trinidad and Tob. 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

i 93.0 
9.8 

26.0 
47.5 

154.5 
115.6 
749.2 
175.5 

1,556.1 
1,816.2 

332.8 
1,478.4 
2,184.8 
2,721.9 
1,385.5 
1,370.1 

160.6 
55.0 

2,297.7 
242.3 
634.7 

1,172.5 
18.0 

197.0 
103.3 

21,648.1 

156.6 
380.7 

1,477.0 
855.5 

6,531.4 
144.2 
41.5 

168.4 
862.8 
109.7 

1,575.8 
526.0 
406.0 

38.3 
288.5 
187.5 
27.2 
16.3 

1,550.7 
373.2 
123.5 
194.6 
119.0 
871.0 

27.3 
3,284.0 

3,170.0 
30.0 
71.0 

2.825.6 
84.8 
18.2 

174.3 
1,024.1 

735.0 
492.6 

7,590.4 
442.1 

1,524.1 
58.0 

737.3 
1,179.0 

39.4 
103.5 

1,222.9 
240.0 

38.7 
3,430.6 

95.0 
389.2 

21,120.2 

119.6 
2,993.2 

150.0 
1,937.1 
4,007.3 

39.4 
1,029.3 
1,454.3 
2,056.2 
1,103.9 
1,900.0 
3,042.0 
2,946.6 

225.1 
1,376.3 
5,968.0 

254.4 
200.0 

1,055.4 
250.0 

60.0 
2,019.0 
1,252.0 

231.9 
20,043.0 

250.0 
99.0 

1,800.0 
5,694.0 
2,243.0 

67.0 
1,368.0 
2,435.0 
3,629.5 
2,67 1.0 

335.0 
1,739.0 

957.0 
3,685.0 
1,961.0 
4,150.0 

52.0 

452.9 
95.4 

1,850.0 
2,294.5 
2,889.0 

367.0 
19,391.0 

TOTAL S40,746.1 «20,336.7 S46.835.7 $55,714.0 $60,479.4 

KEY TO ABBREVIATIONS USED 

IN PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS: 

The following abbreviations are used in the country-by-country 
descriptions of loans. Small Projects financings, and technical 
cooperation operations. 

OC Ordinary Capital 
FSO Fund for Special Operations 
SPTF Social Progress Trust Fund 
IFF Intermediate Financing Facility 
VTF Venezuelan Trust Fund 
JSF Japan Special Fund 
CF Canadian Project Preparation Fund 
SWF Technical Cooperation 

and Small Projects Swiss Fund 
NF Norwegian Development Fund 
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ARGENTINA 

The Bank has made 129 loans totaling $4,201 
mill ion to Argentina. Sector emphasis has been 
o n energy, industry and mining, agriculture, 
public health, and transportation and commu
nications. Cumulative disbursements total $3,243 
million. In 1989, the Bank extended the use of a 
line of credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Argentina from the OC to provide 
medium-term financing for exports of capital goods 
and services to other Latin American member coun
tries of the Bank was extended through repayments 
by $11.4 million. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Technical Agricultural Education: Argentina is 
endowed with rich land resources and its agricultural 
products have broad comparative advantages in 
international markets. Nonetheless, the country's 
farmers and ranchers need increased exposure to 
modern production techniques. In 1983, the Bank 
approved two loans totaling $78.5 million—$53-4 
million from the OC and $25.1 million from the 
FSO—to help Argentina expand and improve middle-
level technical agricultural education. The loans are 
being used by the Ministry of Education to build, 
enlarge and repair 50 schools in 16 provinces and 75 
education centers. The schools are being provided 
with teaching materials and equipment; studies are 
being carried out to update curricula; courses are 
offered to upgrade teaching skills and a scholarship 
program for low-income students will be executed. 
One of the primary objectives of the project is to more 
than double enrollment capacity of the schools from 
6,095 to 15,400 students. Almost a quarter of the 
project's goals have been achieved. Seventy-one of 
the seventy-two scheduled physical infrastructure 
works are under construction. Of the 101 studies of 
curricula scheduled to be done, 54 have been com
pleted and as a result 36 new curricula have been 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

600 

1 Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

designed. Local commissions in the Provinces partici
pated in the design of curricula. 

Cardiology Insti tute: In 1987, the Bank approved a 
$2.4 million loan from the SPTF to enable the 
Fundación Favaloro pa ra la Docencia e Investiga
ción Médica to build a portion of the Institute of 
Cardiology and Cardiovascular Surgery in Buenos 
Aires. The Fundación is a non-profit medical educa
tion and research foundation established in Buenos 
Aires in 1975 by a group of physicians. The Institute 
treats primarily low-income patients suffering from 
heart disease and trains doctors and medical techni
cians in cardiology from all over Latin America. The 
loan is being used to build a service unit in the 
Institute's building that will provide consultation, di
agnostic and laboratory services. Loan resources will 
also enable the Institute to buy and install electrical 
equipment. By the end of 1989, the project was 95 
percent completed. 
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EDUCATION LOANS HELP TO 
TEACH YOUNG PEOPLE FARM
ING IN ARGENTINA. Students 
learn to operate a hand-driven 
motorized plow at a satellite 
school in Nueva España, one of 
nearly 1,200 rural primary 
schools in 21 provinces that 
were built or refurbished and 
equipped with funds from a 
$50 million IDB loan to Argen
tina in 1978. The IDB's 1983 
education loans to Argentina 
also focused on improving sec
ondary level agricultural edu
cation in 16 provinces to pro
vide more opportunities for 
rural primary school gradu
ates to continue their farming 
education. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 129 loans approved for Argentina, 88 have been 
closed and 41 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989- Three loans were closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $279-7 million 
compared with $261.9 million in 1988. Contract 
awards for goods and services for projects in 
execution in Argentina totaled $117.0 million in 
1989, bringing cumulative contract awards to 
$2,288.5 million. A contract for $28.2 million was 
awarded in 1989 for heavy construction equipment 
to a firm from Italy. A global agricultural credit 
program being carried out by the Banco de la 
Nación Argentina has significantly increased in
vestments in that sector. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Energy $1,713,334 $ 4,634,093 
Agriculture and Fisheries 670,996 3,140,401 
Environmental and Public Health 465,347 1,176,187 
Industry and Mining 441,993 2,011,538 
Transportation and Communications 344,786 941,904 
Education, Science and Technology 277,568 673,641 
Urban Development 163,519 401,000 
Export Financing 120,350 155,764 
Preinvestment 3,343 9,473 

Total $4,201,236 $13,144,001 
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BAHAMAS 

The Bank has made four loans totaling $120.5 
million to Bahamas. Sector emphasis has been 
on energy. Cumulative disbursements total $6.1 
million. Of the four loans approved for Baha
mas, two have been closed. The bulk of the 
Bank's lending is committed to a $109 million 
loan for an electric power expansion program 
approved in 1988. No new loans were approved 

for the Bahamas in 1989- However, the Bank 
approved several short-term technical coopera
tion missions to assist the government in pre
paring studies in several priority areas such as 
urban transportation, port construction, priva
tization of public sector corporations and road 
maintenance planning and development. 

SURVEY OF CARIBBEAN PINE CARRIED OUT IN BAHA
MAS. Forestry consultant John Hook (left) of the United 
Kingdom and Christopher Russell, a Bahamas gov
ernment forestry assistant, examine pine cones being 
collected at New Providence Island in the Bahamas to 
send to Oxford University, England, for trial plantings 
throughout the world Little research has been done on 
the Bahamian variety of the Caribbean pine. A survey of 
the country's depleted pine forests and the preparation 
of apian to redevelop and manage them was financed by 
a technical assistance grant approved by the IDB for 
the Bahamas in 1984. Aerialphotography forthe survey 
was carried out by a Canadian firm. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Energy 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Industry and Mining 
Tourism 
Other 

Total 

$109,000 
8,047 
1,504 

499 
1,504 

«120,554 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

$181,666 
11,365 
2,500 

830 
2,500 

$198,861 
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BARBADOS 

The Bank has made 27 loans totaling $154.5 mil
l ion to Barbados. Sector emphasis has been o n 
transportation, education, public health, agri
culture and export financing. Cumulative dis
bursements total $112.5 miUion. In 1989, the 
Bank approved two loans for two projects and 
extended the use of a line of credit for export 
financing. 

LOANS 

Coastal Zone Management 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$4.7 million from the OC; $500,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
FSO; 143 million yen (equivalent to 
$1.1 million) grant from the JSF; and 
240,000 Canadian dollars (equivalent to 
$200,000) in contingent recovery tech
nical cooperation from the CF; the 
interest rate on the OC loan will be 
partially defrayed by the IFF. 

Ministry of Employment, Labor Rela
tions and Community Development, 
through the Coastal Conservation Proj
ect Unit (CCPU) 

The loan will finance the preparation of preinvest
ment studies on ways to reduce beach erosion and 
improve water quality along the southern and south
western coasts of the country where fertilizers and 
industrial wastes are discharged into the sea. The 
studies will cover three main aspects of the problem: 

• Analyses of anticipated shoreline changes 
and least-cost solutions and the preparation of pilot 
projects, designs, regulations and manuals on the use 
of coastal resources to enhance the protection, 
conservation and stabilization of beaches along the 
coastal strip; 

• Sampling of onshore and offshore water 
quality, a study of water flows, and design of sewage 
and cleanup systems; 

• An analysis of environmental factors and the 

80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 

] Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

preparation of a coastal management plan as well as 
a coordinated plan of coastal administration by 
pertinent government agencies. 

The grant technical cooperation extended from 
the Bank's FSO will be used to contract consultants 
to evaluate the legal and institutional aspects of 
coastal conservation and coastal zone management 
and to recommend needed modifications. The tech
nical cooperation extended from the CF will be used 
to contract technical and supervisory services in 
coastal geomorphology, water quality analysis, 
hydrodynamics and marine biology. 

This project is the first step in an effort to protect 
and preserve the ecosystem of the onshore and 
offshore waters, beaches and reefs, which are essen
tial to the success of the country's tourist industry. It 
is the first coastal management project financed by 
the Bank and could serve as a model for future 
projects in this field. 

48 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

HOSPITAL TO HELP IMPROVE 
HEALTH CARE IN BARBADOS. 
Architects and Ministry of 
Health officials discuss prog
ress of final construction of a 
new wing for the Queen Eliza
beth Hospital It is one of two 
new buildings for the hospital 
financed by the IDB They were 
constructed by a United King
dom firm and are due to open in 
1990. 

Student Revolving Loan Fund 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$4.7 million from the OC; the interest 
rate on the loan will be partially de
frayed by the IFF. 

Ministry of Education and Culture 

The loan will help provide the education and techni
cal skills required by Barbados to sustain economic 
and social growth in priority development areas. The 
Bank's resources will be used by the Ministry of Edu
cation and Culture through its Student Revolving 
Loan Fund (SRLF) to provide some 600 loans to 

students to attend colleges, universities, technical 
schools or adult education courses in either Barbados 
or other countries that are members of the Inter-
American Bank or the Caribbean Development Bank. 
The project will also qualify the SRLF to provide 
career guidance to students, offer employment place
ment services to graduates and undertake labor 
market and manpower analyses. 

Barbados has one of the most highly developed 
educational systems in Latin America and the Carib
bean. The adult literacy rate is 99 percent, primary 
and secondary school enrollment is almost universal, 
and more than 90 percent of the labor force has more 
than six years of formal education. After age 16, 
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however, there is a significant reduction in educa
tional opportunities and only 25 percent of the 
population in the 17-to-22-year age bracket is en
rolled in tertiary-level education. 

The project will expand opportunities for higher 
education, relieve the shortage of trained profession
als, technicians and craftsmen in the work force, and 
help provide a credit mechanism, as opposed to 
direct investment in facilities, as the most efficient 
way to satisfy the economy's need for trained man
power. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Barbados from the VTF to provide 
short-term financing for exports of manufactured and 
semi-manufactured goods was extended through re
payments by $200,000. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Educat ion a n d Tra in ing Program: In 1986, the 
Bank approved a $19 million loan from the OC to 
help expand and improve primary, secondary and 
vocational education and training in Barbados. The 
project, which is being carried out by the Ministry of 
Education and Culture, covers construction and equip
ping of 10 primary schools; construction, furnishing 
and equipping of Queen's College and the Wotton/ 
Kingsland secondary school; furnishing and equip
ping Springer Memorial Secondary School and equip
ping Harrison College Secondary School. While the 
project has encountered delays, the construction of 
four primary schools, Queen's College and the Wotton/ 
Kingsland secondary school are proceeding satisfac
torily. 

Hospi ta l Expans ion: In 1985, the Bank approved 
two loans totaling $11.7 million—$4.7 million from 
the OC and $7 million from the FSO—to expand 
health care facilities in Barbados. The Ministry of 
Health has used the financing to build and equip two 
new buildings for maternity, surgical, outpatient and 
emergency care at the Queen Elizabeth Hospital and 
strengthen the hospital's administration and its medical 
and nursing services; and to build and equip a poly
clinic at Glebe in St. George to care for some 100 
patients a day. By the end of 1989, Queen Elizabeth 
Hospital was virtually completed and the facilities are 
expected to be fully operational in 1990. The poly
clinic was completed in 1987. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 27 loans approved for Barbados, 16 have been 
closed and 11 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989- Disbursements during the year 
totaled $10.9 million, compared with $10.3 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Barbados totaled $4.1 million 
in 1989, bringing cumulative contract awards to 
$106.4 million. A contract for $3.9 million was 
awarded for nonresidential construction to a con
struction firm in the United Kingdom. While some 
projects have experienced delays in the past, cur
rently project execution is on schedule. A recently 
completed access road from the port area north of 
Bridgetown to the international airport was com
pleted at below cost. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Transportation and Communications $ 38,228 $ 69,697 
Education, Science and Technology 35,449 71,762 
Environmental and Public Health 32,001 51,937 
Export Financing 17,017 24,224 
Agriculture and Fisheries 17,000 26,975 
Tourism 7,955 14,813 
Industry and Mining 6,832 12,613 

Total $154,482 $272,021 
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BOLIVIA 

The Bank has made 91 loans totaling $1,530 mil
l ion to Bolivia. Sector emphasis has been on en
ergy, transportation and communications, agri
culture, industry and mining. Cumulative dis
bursements total $1,002 million. In 1989, the 
Bank approved four loans for four projects, 
three Small Project financings, one major tech
nical cooperation and extended the use of a Une 
of credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Oil Fields Development Program 

Financing: $56.9 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Yacimientos Petrolíferos Fiscales 

Bolivianos (YPFB) 

This loan will increase the production of liquid 
hydrocarbons and improve the planning and geo
logical interpretation activities of the executing agency. 
The project has four components: 

• Development of the Víbora field: Plans for this 
field include drilling five wells—three producing 
wells and two injector wells—that will produce 3,500 
barrels of oil per day and 42 million cubic feet per day 
of natural gas during the first year of operations. By 
the third year of operations, production will drop 
back to 2,850 barrels per day. 

• Development of the Sirari field: This field will 
be developed by drilling eight wells—six producing 
wells and two injector wells—that will produce 
between 1,500 and 2,000 barrels of condensate per 
day and 60 million cubic feet per day of natural gas. 
Two secondary gas pipelines and a secondary oil 
pipeline will be built to cany wet gas to the main 
pipeline and retrieve dry gas to the field for reinjec-
tion. 

• Yapacani-Caranda gas pipeline: The con
struction of a gas pipeline from the Yapacani field to 
Caranda, where it will connect with existing lines to 
the liquid extraction plant in Rio Grande. This 
pipeline will transport the newly discovered hydro-

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

] Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

carbon deposits from several fields north of Santa 
Cruz. 

• Institutional support: The Seismic Data Proc
essing Center of the executing agency will be mod
ernized in order to improve the agency's exploration 
capacity, thereby reducing both the risk and the cost 
of exploration. Studies will also be carried out to 
improve the agency's capacity to forecast product 
demand and for investment planning. 

The hydrocarbon sector is the most important in 
Bolivia's economy. The fields to be developed under 
this project, as well as the other infrastructure related 
works, will help Bolivia increase production by some 
1.9 million barrels per year. 

Agricultural Credit Program 

Financing: $51.2 million from the FSO. 
Executing 
Agency: Central Bank of Bolivia 

The project's objective is to support the economic 
reactivation of the country through short-, medium-
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A NEW HIGHWAY LINKS TWO 
IMPORTANT ECONOMIC AREAS 
IN BOLIVIA. Compacter com
pletes paving section of the new 
highway linking the cities of 
Cochabamba and Santa Cruz. 
Three loans totaling $126.4 mil
lion helped to finance the con
struction and paving of the high
way, which willformpart of the 
highway system that will even
tually connect Sao Paulo, Brazil 
on the Atlantic side of South 
America, with Arica, Chile on 
the Pacific. 

and long-term private sector financings of projects in 
the agricultural and livestock sectors and to generate 
foreign exchange and savings in Bolivia. The Central 
Bank of Bolivia will channel the resources of the 
Bank's loan through the commercial banks to private 
farmers and producers for investment in agriculture 
and livestock raising and for working capital. The 
project will also strengthen the financial system by 
unifying the financial markets and insuring that 
interest rates charged on external funds are consis
tent with rates charged on loans made with domestic 
funds. 

Loan resources will also be used to improve 
regulations and procedures of the Forest Develop
ment Center in supervising environmental conserva
tion of the new farm land developed under the 
project. 

The agricultural sector is critical to Bolivia's de
velopment. It is one of the sectors capable of rapidly 
generating the foreign exchange needed to replace 
the loss of export revenue caused by the collapse of 
natural gas and tin prices. Furthermore, nontradi-

tional agricultural exports such as soybeans, wood 
and coffee are considered to have a strong potential 
in Bolivia, amounting to some $700 million a year in 
a short period of time. 

Emergency Social Fund 

Financing: $34,680,000 from the FSO; $3,860,000 
counterpart grant from the JSF. 

Executing 
Agency: Emergency Sexual Fund (ESF) 

The loan will finance small, labor-intensive projects 
to help alleviate the impact of the current economic 
crisis on low-income groups. The resources of the 
Bank loan will be used by the Emergency Social Fund 
to carry out small-scale public works, including street 
improvements; building bridges, community facili
ties, dikes, schools, primary health facilities; and 
implementing forestation and erosion control meas
ures. The Fund was provided initial financing by 
several developed countries and the World Bank. 
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Bolivia's economic crisis worsened in 1985 with the 
collapse of the world tin market and the sudden drop 
in international petroleum and gas prices. The simul
taneous enactment of a national austerity program 
led to a substantial increase in unemployment and a 
reduction in family income. To create jobs and 
generate income for low-income families, the gov
ernment created the ESF to carry out small-scale in
frastructure projects as well as urgent social service 
projects. 

The project will help ESF complete the second 
and final stage of a program involving projects valued 
at $115 million which will benefit an estimated 1.3 
million persons. 

This project will help Bolivia improve the efficiency 
of its mining sector, increase mineral exports and 
upgrade the management and technical procedures 
of the Corporación Minera de Bolivia (COMIBOL), 
the national mining company. COMIBOL will use the 
Bank's resources to implement a Mining Sector 
Rehabilitation Program which is being carried out at 
a cost of $131 million with the help of the World Bank 
and other national and international organizations. 

The program will consist of four components: 
• Production capacity of the San José mine in 

Oruro will be expanded from 400 to 600 tons a day 
of complex ores, including silver, lead and antimony, 
increasing the level of reserves. 

• Production capacity of the Unificada mine at 
Potosí will be expanded from 240 to 360 tons a day 
of complex ores, including silver and zinc, increasing 
the level of reserves. 

• 31 consultants will be contracted to help im
prove management and technical procedures at 
COMIBOL headquarters. 

• A series of environmental protection works at 
COMIBOL mines, smelters and other installations 
will be designed and implemented and awareness of 
the need for environmental protection will be fos
tered through workshops. 

Until it was recently surpassed by natural gas 
and oil, mining was Bolivia's major source of foreign 
exchange. However, a drop in world tin prices in the 
mid-1980s combined with hyperinflation plunged 
the mining sector into crisis. The government was 
forced to close all COMIBOL mines, lay off some 
23,000 employees of COMIBOL and the National 
Smelting Company, and completely reorganize the 
sector. 

Due to growing international demand for some 
minerals, the Bolivian government established the 
Mining Sector Rehabilitation Program. In addition to 
rehabilitating COMIBOL, the main objectives of the 
program are to strengthen the Ministry of Mining and 
Metallurgy and to finance and provide technical as
sistance to private mines. 

Rehabilitation of Mining Sector 

Financing: $18 million from the FSO. 
Executing 
Agency: Corporación Minera de Bolivia 

(COMIBOL) 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Bolivia from the VTF to provide short-
term financing for exports of manufactured and semi
manufactured goods was extended through repay
ments by $9.1 million. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Small Farmers 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $125,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Central de Cooperativas Agropecuarias 

"Operación Tierra" Ltd. (CFCAOT) 

The project will be carried out by the Central de 
Cooperativas Agropecuarias "Operación Tierra " Ltd. 
(CECAOT), a private non-profit organization of low-
income farmers established to support the produc
tion of quinua, an Andean grain. Credits will be 
extended to farmers for working capital and fixed 
investments. The project will also expand the quinua 
processing plant and related infrastructure works and 
procure equipment and machinery to mechanize 
production. A revolving fund will purchase quinua 
from farmers and provide vehicles for marketing. 
Some 556 farmers will participate in the program, 
which also includes training in quinua production. 

The farmers are located in the Province of Nor 
Lipez in the south central part of the country. The 
primary crop is quinua, a grain well adapted to the 
harsh climate of the region. Each farm family culti
vates an average of 2 hectares. In the past, farmers 
migrated to copper or lithium mines to supplement 
their income. The activities of the cooperative have 
begun to reverse this trend and the Bank's project will 
help that process. 

Agricultural Credit Program 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $110.000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Corporación Regional de Desarrollo del 

Beni (CORDFBENI) 

The Bank's financing will be used by CORDEBENIto 
make loans to farmers for working capital and fixed 
investments to increase production. In addition, an 
investment component will construct a community 
service center and a warehouse for storing grains. 
Beneficiaries will be trained in the production and 
marketing of agricultural products. Technical advi

sors will supervise the credit program. Some 380 
small-scale, low-income farmers will participate in 
the program. 

The project is located in the Department of Beni 
in the remote north central region of the country. It 
is principally lowlands and rich in tropical forests. 
Rice is the primary crop. It is estimated that the family 
income of the beneficiaries would increase by 20 to 
30 percent per year as a result of an increase in their 
production and productivity. 

Support for Cochabamba Microproducers 

Financing: 842,000 Swiss franc loan from the SWF 
(equivalent to $500,000); 180,000 Swiss 
franc technical cooperation grant from 
the same resources (equivalent to 
$107,000). 

Intermediary 
Institution: Centro de Investigación y Desarrollo 

Regional (CIDRE) 

The project's aim is to improve the socioeconomic 
level of microproducers from the city of Cochabamba 
and surrounding areas. It consists of four phases: ori
entation, identification and selection of beneficiaries; 
training; granting of credit; and business guidance 
before and after the granting of credit. Some 470 
microentrepreneurs engaged in areas such as tex
tiles, clothing, food, furniture and metal-working will 
participate in the program. The technical coopera
tion grant will strengthen the intermediary institution 
and train beneficiaries. 

CIDRE is a nonprofit nongovernmental organi
zation created in Cochabamba in 1981 to support de
velopment projects. CIDRE's research suggests that 
there are more than 27,000 microproducers operat
ing in the Department of Cochabamba. Women 
entrepreneurs account for a sizeable number of 
microproducers in the area. Accordingly, the Bank's 
project will target at least 100 women producers as 
beneficiaries of the program. 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Tax Reform 

Financing: $970,000 technical cooperation 
grant from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Finance Ministry 

The purpose of the operation is to assist, in coopera
tion with the World Bank and the International 
Monetary Fund, in the efforts of the Bolivian Govern
ment to consolidate implementation of tax reform 
initiated in 1986. The program includes four ongoing 
reforms: 1) implementation of a plan of action to 
increase tax revenues and establish offices to control 
collections from large taxpayers in various cities; 2) 
strengthening the International Revenue Bureau; 3) 
design a tax collection structure for the Customs di
rectorate; and 4) partially develop the current ac
count system and its implementation. 

Following the severe economic crisis of the 
early 1980's, the Government of Bolivia introduced 
widespread economic reforms to deal with the crisis. 
One of the reforms was to initiate substantive changes 
in the country's tax system in order to raise tax 
revenues. In 1986, the country abolished the existing 
system and set up a simplified tax structure that both 
expanded and diversified the tax burden. The Bank 
was involved in the earlier phases of tax reform and 
this current financing will build on the satisfactory 
results of those reforms. 

quickly. In 1987, the Bank approved a $4 million 
loan from the SPTF to support the program. The aim 
of the Bank's financing was to support employment 
generating opportunities particulary in social infra
structure, e.g. rural and urban health posts, potable 
water and sanitation facilities, reforestation, and irri
gation and drainage projects. To date, work has 
begun on 75 of the 83 subprojects, for which $2.9 
million has been approved. This financing was com
plemented by an additional loan approved in 1989 
described above. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 91 loans approved for Bolivia, 66 have been 
closed and 25 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $101.4 million, compared with $105.3 million 
in 1988. One contract was awarded in 1989 for 
$38,000 for road equipment from Japan, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $596.1 million. An im
portant portion of the Bank's resources finance 
private sector projects through global credit pro
grams in the agriculture, industry, tourism and min
ing sectors. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

C h i m o r é - Y a p a c a n i H i g h w a y : The Chimoré-
Yapacani Highway, financed with the help of three 
loans totaling $126.4 million approved in 1978 and 
1986, was completed and opened to traffic at the end 
of 1988. The new highway, which links Santa Cruz 
and Cochabamba, is part of the basic road network 
that connects the principal economic centers of the 
country. 

Suppor t for Emergency Social Fund: The deep re
cession and high unemployment in the mid-1980's 
led the Government of Bolivia to take a number of 
initiatives. One of these was a previously described 
Emergency Social Fund that would provide financing 
for small-scale projects which could be carried out 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $ 444.966 S 676,008 
Transportation and Communications 428,324 711,892 
Agriculture and Fisheries 258,668 365,450 
Industry and Mining 199,438 402,243 
Environmental and Public Health 64,282 101,968 
Tourism 18,655 30,134 
Preinvestment 17,751 23,604 
Export Financing 16,540 10,584 
Education, Science and Technology 11,928 23,533 
Urban Development 11,428 19,164 
Other 58,680 103,540 

Total SI, 530,630 $2,468,120 
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BRAZIL 

The Bank has made 196 loans totaling $6,757 
mill ion to Brazil. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, transportation and communications, 
industry and mining, agriculture and fisheries 
and pubHc health. Cumulative disbursements 
total $5,582 mUlion. In 1989, the Bank approved 
six loans for four projects, two Small Project 
financings, one major technical cooperation 
and extended the use of a Une of credit for 
export financing. 

LOANS 

Itaipu Transmission Line 

Financing: $253-5 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: FURNAS Centrais Flétricas, S.A. 

(FURNAS) 

The loan will finance construction of a third major 
alternating-current transmission line some 900 kilo
meters in length from the Itaipu hydroelectric power 
plant on the Paraná River to Brazil's southern inter
connected electric power system at São Paulo, as well 
as expand four substations servicing the line. When 
the project is completed, Itaipu will transmit all of the 
energy produced by its nine 60-hertz generators to 
the southern interconnected network which serves 
an area containing more than 50 percent of Brazil's 
population and 80 percent of its industrial produc
tion. When fully operational, the 12,600-megawatt 
Itaipu plant, the largest of its kind in the world, will 
have 18 generators, each rated at 700 megawatts, and 
will supply electric power to both Brazil and Para
guay. Nine of the 18 units now operational are 
generating at 50 hertz, the frequency of Paraguay's 
electric system. The remaining nine, of which five are 
presently operating, will transmit over three alternat
ing-current transmission lines at 60 hertz, the fre
quency of the Brazilian system. Two of Brazil's three 
AC lines are now in operation. 

Brazil has abundant energy resources, renew
able as well as nonrenewable, and one of the highest 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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hydroelectric energy potentials in the world. From 
1975 to 1987, energy use increased nearly 40 percent 
and production increased more than threefold. During 
this period, the installed generating capacity of 
hydroelectric plants grew from 16,200 to 45,600 
megawatts and the length of transmission lines of 
230-kilovolts-and-above more than doubled, from 
24,000 to 54,300 kilometers. Brazil is currently reas
sessing its energy policies in light of changing 
international conditions and domestic economic 
realities. In an effort to achieve maximum expansion 
of the energy sector at the lowest cost, the govern
ment has given priority to the completion of hydro
electric power plants and of the transmission lines 
required to tie them into regional load centers and to 
interconnect regional power systems. 

Minas Gerais Road Improvement Program 

Financing: $90 million from the OC; $30 million 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Departamento de Estradas de Rodagem 

do Estado de Minas Gerais (DER/MG) 
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The loans will improve the State of Minas Gerais's 
existing road network and contribute to the State's 
economy. The project includes four components: 

• Paving 15 dirt roads with a total length of 675 
kilometers; works also include erosion control, build
ing bridges, and road signs and markers; 

• Rehabilitating 28 road sections, totaling 1,000 
kilometers, that have deteriorated due to heavy use; 
Works include replacing or reinforcing the pavement 
structure, and new pavement for all sections; 

• Resealing approximately 30 stretches of road 
totaling 1,000 kilometers whose structural condition 
is satisfactory; 

• Acquiring 250 pieces of road maintenance 
equipment such as asphalt mixers, asphalt heaters, 
compactors and road line painters. 

The State of Minas Gerais is Brazil's largest 
coffee producer and the country's second largest in
dustrial state. The project will help insure a more 
reliable transportation system between distribution 
and consumption centers. 

rainfall, the expansion of irrigation for farming and 
excellent grain and cotton harvests. To stimulate 
economic and social growth in 1987, the state gov
ernment instituted a four-year State Government 
Reform Plan designed to further integrate the various 
regions of the state, link market and production 
areas, cut costs and travel time, route inter-regional 
traffic so that it does not have to pass through 
Fortaleza, the capital, and improve highway mainte
nance. 

The state is giving priority to reconditioning and 
maintaining 2,236 kilometers of highways and main
taining more than 3,586 kilometers of roadway by 
1991. 

Northeast Irrigation Program 

Financing: $55.6 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Companhia de Desenvolvimento do Vale 

do São Francisco (CODEVASF) 

Ceará Highway Reconstruction 

Financing: $69 million from the OC; $20.7 million 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ceará State Highway Department 

(DAER/CE) 

The loan will rebuild some 1,400 kilometers of paved 
highways in the State of Ceará in Brazil's Northeast 
and provide maintenance and control equipment 
and train local personnel in its use. 

The Bank's resources will help to: 
• Recondition some 1,400 kilometers of paved 

roads throughout the state, improve drainage sys
tems, rebuild bridges and construct fences, signals 
and related structures; 

• Improve DAER/CE maintenance procedures 
and acquire maintenance, operations, and traffic 
control equipment and shop tools; 

• Reorganize and expand the department's 
highway maintenance and traffic control operations 
and build highway patrol posts and a training center; 

• Train DAER/CE staff in planning, mainte
nance and operations and management procedures 
and in technical control systems. 

The economy of the State of Ceará has grown 
at a brisk rate since 1987, thanks largely to abundant 

The loan will finance the irrigation of 14,658 hectares 
of land in the states of Bahia and Pernambuco in 
Northeast Brazil and will benefit approximately 2,150 
low-income families and 147 small businesses which 
will be established in the irrigated area. The program 
will comprise three subprograms: 

• Construction of reservoirs, dams, canals, 
pumping stations and related works in the two-state 
area, including four reservoirs in the Nilo Coelho 
project on the São Francisco River in Pernambuco, 
the Cova da Mandioca dam in the Estreito IV project 
in Bahia, and pumping stations, canals and supple
mentary works at the Mirorós project, also in Bahia. 

• Temporary resettlement of 582 families dur
ing the construction stage and their permanent reset
tlement on irrigated plots upon termination of the 
works; establishment of a continuous water monitor
ing system, and implementation of related environ
mental and health measures. 

• Preparation of prefeasibility and feasibility 
studies of the environmental and socioeconomic as
pects of two possible future irrigation projects in 
Bahia, one on the São Francisco River and the other 
in the Grande River Basin. 

Covering an area of 1.5 million square kilome
ters, or 18 percent of the national territory, the North
east is the least developed region of Brazil. Half of its 
36 million inhabitants work the land, most as subsis-
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FEDERAL UNIVERSITY SYSTEM 
IS IMPROVED IN BRAZIL. Stu
dents study in the new library 
at the Universidade Federal Flu
minense. Funds from two IDB 
loans to improve Brazil's fed
eral university system helped 
to finance a new $35 million 
campus for the federal univer
sity branch in Niterói, which 
has an enrollment of 18,000. 

tence farmers. However, semi-arid conditions com
bined with periodic droughts and intermittent flood
ing disrupt the crop cycle, forcing farm families to 
migrate, creating unemployment and reducing al
ready low incomes. 

Utilizing rivers like the Sào Francisco which 
flow year-round, the government has embarked on 
a national irrigation program under which irrigation 
in the Northeast will be expanded from 260,000 
hectares at present to almost one million hectares, 
thus increasing farm production for domestic con
sumption and for export. 

The Bank supported this program with two 

loans totaling S57 million in 1979. The credits fi
nanced the Massangano project, now renamed the 
Nilo Coelho project, near the city of Petrolina in Per
nambuco, involving the development of 12,500 
hectares for agriculture. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Brazil from the OC to provide 
medium-term financing lor exports of capital goods 
and services to other Latin American member coun
tries of the Bank was extended through repayments 
by $6.4 million. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Credit Program for Women Entrepreneurs 

Financing: $400,000 loan from the FSO; $98,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Associação Brasileira para o Desen

volvimento da Mulher - Banco da 
Mulher (BM) 

This project will enable the Associação Brasileira 
pa ra o Desenvolvimento da Mulher-Banco da Mulher 
(BM) to provide credit, training and counseling to an 
estimated 600 small-scale women entrepreneurs and 
their families in the cities of Manaus, Recife and Sal
vador in the North and Northeast of Brazil. The BM 
will provide up to $2,000 per beneficiary for the 
purchase of machinery, raw materials and equip
ment. It will also provide compulsory training for 
project participants in such basic management skills 
as accounting, marketing and production. 

The BM wi\\ use the Bank's technical coopera
tion to improve planning, promotion, follow-up and 
evaluation aspects of its program. 

Women seeking to establish themselves as 
small-scale entrepreneurs in urban centers face nu
merous obstacles, among the most difficult being a 
lack of access to credit, improved technology and 
training in basic business practices. The BM, a private 
institution that promotes the advancement of women, 
has identified and registered ewer 8,500 small-scale 
businesswomen in seven cities, of whom some 2,000 
have received management, commercial and indus
trial training and 250 have received Bank loans 
totaling approximately $122,000. 

Support for Microentrepreneurs 

Financing: 792,000 Swiss franc loan from the SWF 
(equivalent to $500,000); 146,000 Swiss 
franc technical cooperation grant from 
the same resources (equivalent to 
$92,000). 

Intermediary 
Institution: Banco do Estado de Pernamhuco, S.A. 

(BANDEPE) 

The project will provide financial, technical, manage

rial and marketing assistance to the microentrepre-
neurial community of the Casa Amarela neighbor
hood in Recife in northeast Brazil. Credits will be 
used by beneficiaries to finance infrastructure, ma
chinery and equipment and working capital needed 
to produce goods and provide services. Training will 
be provided in management, entrepreneurial assis
tance, technology and marketing. Some 400 microen-
trepreneurs in the industrial and service sectors will 
benefit from the project. 

The Casa Amarela neighborhood, located in the 
hills surrounding Recife, has a population of approxi
mately 330,000, the majority of whom have very low 
incomes. There are some 2,250 microentrepreneurs 
in the neighborhood and there has been a significant 
decline of the informal sector in terms of sales, em
ployment, wage scales and electric power con
sumed. Several reasons for the decline have been 
identified, including access to raw materials, knowl
edge of new technologies and equipment and mar
keting. The Bank's project, a pilot project in that it will 
be carried out by local entrepreneurial organizations 
with direct community participation, addresses these 
problems. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Education for Low-Income Groups 

Financing: $2 million technical cooperation grant 
from the SPTF. 

Executing 
Agency: Fundação Brasileira de Educação 

The program will provide supplementary education 
for some 22,500 low-income youth and adults in Rio 
de Janeiro State who were unable to advance beyond 
the fourth grade of primary school or who were 
forced to interrupt their schooling to go to work. The 
project will be carried out by the Fundação Brasil
eira de Educação, a non-profit agency helping to 
expand and improve vocational training in the state, 
working with the Niterói Educational Center (CEN). 

The program has three main components: 
• Organizing and presenting accelerated courses 

and makeup programs covering the last four years of 
primary school to prepare 6,000 students a year for 
further education; the courses will be conducted in 
40 community centers, with a capacity of 150 stu
dents each, to be established in 12 municipalities; 
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ROAD PAVING ENSURES RELI
ABLE TRANSPORTATION FOR 
FARMERS IN SOUTHERN BRA
ZIL. Paving a 32-kilometer sec
tion of highway between Ipora 
and Descanso in western Santa 
Catarina, an agriculturally rich 
area . Some 820 kms. of high
ways and feeder roads were 
constructed or improved with 
financing from IDB loans total
ing $60 million in 1980. The sec
ond stage of the state's rural 
highway s program,financed by 
a 1985 IDB loan, is more than 
40% completed. 

M M I ^ ^ H m 
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• Training in technical, vocational and general 
subjects for some 1,500 students a year who are either 
working or about to enter the job market; the 
training will be held at 10 community centers to be 
established in six municipalities. 

• Contracting and training up to 25 teachers and 
40 supervisors a year in the specialized teaching 
methods used by the CEN to qualify them to staff the 
program. 

The program is designed to help resolve prob
lems caused by inadequate teacher training, the lack 
of special education materials, low levels of parental 
education, malnutrition and related factors, all of 
which are reflected in a high level of dropouts and 
repeaters in the state schools. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Federal University Development : In 1982. the 
Bank approved two loans totaling $95 million—$75 
million from the OC and $20 million from the FSO— 
to help raise the academic and administrative stan

dards as well as to improve the campuses of Brazil's 
federal universities. Carried out by the Centro de 
Desenvolvimento e Apoio Técnico a Educação (CEI-
DATE), the program provided training for approxi
mately 500 university instructors in master's and doc
toral programs and 2,000 in special courses. In 
addition, about 400 special training courses for some 
7,500 technical and administrative staff members of 
the participating universities were to be carried out. 
The project also called for building laboratories, 
libraries, classrooms and other facilities. The project 
has been virtually completed, and in fact, the original 
goals have been exceeded. 

Santa Catarina Feeder Roads: In 1985, the Bank 
approved two loans totaling S52 million—$33-5 
million from the OC and $18.5 million from the 
FSO—to help carry out the second stage of a program 
to improve feeder roads in the State of Santa Catarina. 
Earlier loans, approved in 1980, financed the first 
stage. The 1985 loans are being used by the Depar
tamento de Estradas de Rodagem do Estado de Santa 
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Catarina to improve 450 kilometers of feeder roads 
that did not meet the minimal technical requirements 
for safe and economic all-weather travel. In addition, 
the program includes building about 2,000 meters of 
bridges to replace outmoded structures and improv
ing the maintenance operations of the state highway 
network. To date, 232 kilometers of roads have been 
improved, and the balance are under construction. 
Almost half of the scheduled bridge works are also 
finished. 

Itaipu Transmiss ion System: The Itaipu hydro
electric complex, located on the Parana River, is a 
joint undertaking of Brazil and Paraguay. When fully 
operational, its total installed capacity of 12.6 million 
kilowatts will make it the largest hydroelectric plant 
in the world. The electricity produced by the 18 
generating units, each with a 700,000-kilowatt capac
ity, will be divided equally between Brazil and 
Paraguay with each country reserving the right to 
purchase the energy not used by the other. Brazil will 
use virtually all of the energy produced at Itaipu. 
Three alternating current and two direct current lines 
will transmit electricity to consumers around São 
Paulo. At present, two alternating and two direct 
current lines are operational. 

In 1986, the Bank approved a $122 million loan 
from the OC to enable FURNAS, a subsidiary of 
Centrais Elétricas Brasileiras S.A. (ELETROBRAS) to 
expand the transmission capacity of the alternating 
current system and increase the reliability of trans
mission to the southern-southeastern-central west 
interconnected system of Brazil. The project provides 
for the construction of three sections of single-circuit, 
750-kilovolt line between the substations of Foz do 
Iguaçu (Itaipu), Ivaiporã, Rabera and Tijuco Preto. 
The project was virtually completed in 1989. An 
additional loan for a third alternating-current trans
mission line was approved in 1989. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 196 loans approved for Brazil, 152 have been 
closed and 44 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Four loans were closed in 1989. Dis
bursements during the year totaled $278.2 million, 
compared with $324.6 million in 1988. Contract 
awards for goods and services for projects in execu
tion in Brazil totaled $44.4 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $2,920.2 million. A 

contract for $8 million was awarded in 1989 for 
aluminum rolling and drawing to a firm in São Paulo, 
Brazil. Project execution has been affected by the 
country's economic situation, which has had an 
impact on the availability of local counterpart funds, 
particularly for the purchase of equipment and 
materials. Nevertheless, several projects were com
pleted during the year, including a coal mining 
project, an electric power distribution system in 
Minas Gerais, a potable water system in the city of 
Salvador in the State of Bahia and a global industrial 
credit program in the Northeast. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $1,974,194 $12,188,530 
Industry and Mining 1,201,027 15,280,030 
Transportation and Communications 1,258,046 3,463,005 
Agriculture and Fisheries 856,330 1,989,042 
Environmental and Public Health 598,545 1,781,232 
Education, Science and Technology 396,087 967,469 
Export Financing 244,977 340,885 
Urban Development 151,967 381,619 
Preinvestment 76,103 150,377 

Total S6.757.276 S36.542.189 
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CHILE 

The Bank has made 104 loans totaling $3,583 
million to Chile. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, industry and mining, urban develop
ment, transportation and agriculture and fish
eries. Cumulative disbursements total $2,560 
million. In 1989, the Bank approved three loans 
for three projects. 

LOANS 

Multisector Global Credit Program 

Financing: $360 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Corporación de Fomento de la 

Producción (CORFO) 

The loan will finance multisector private sector in
vestment and develop capital markets in Chile. The 
Corporación de Fomento (CORFO) will channel the 
program resources through the finance system in the 
form of medium- and long-term credits to private 
companies for investing in all sectors of the economy 
permitted by law, except housing and urban devel
opment. Program resources will finance fixed assets 
and, in the agricultural sector only, working capital. 
The program will foster capital market development 
by making available long-term capital and by sup
porting the issuance of debt instruments by banks 
and leasing companies backed by the expanding 
portfolio of assets. 

Gross domestic investment in Chile has in
creased from less than 10 percent of GDP in 1983 to 
17 percent in 1987-88. A 20 percent annual increase 
in gross investment is believed essential if Chile is to 
maintain 5 percent annual growth in GDP. Rapid 
GDP growth of recent years, even with relatively low 
growth of gross investment, reflects the utilization of 
idle capacity. Recent reports indicate, however, that 
many sectors and subsectors are now working at full 
capacity. 

The sound monetary and fiscal policies of 
recent years have contributed to price stability, 
stimulated corporate investment and made private 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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investment more attractive. Also, the decline of 
inflation rates from 21.5 percent in 1987 to 12.2 
percent in 1988 is bringing equilibrium to public 
sector accounts and contributing to the effective use 
of open market operations by the Central Bank. 

The Bank's loan will help offset a serious lack 
of medium- and long-term investment capital avail
able to the private sector. Internal savings have 
grown appreciably in Chile — from 12.6 percent of 
GDP in 1984 to 21 percent in 1987. However, much 
of this increase represents public sector savings. The 
largest source of public sector savings are the pen
sion funds created by privatization of the social 
security system in the early 1980s. These funds are 
growing at the rate of $400-to-$500 million a year. Yet 
pension fund investments have been highly concen
trated in government paper which accounts for more 
than 70 percent of the volume in the Chilean bond 
market, and only a small part has been made 
available for private sector investment. 
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Multiple Local Development Investment Plan 

Financing: S210 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Ministiy of the Interior (MINTER) 

The loan will finance the second stage of a multiple 
local development investment plan to build and 
improve basic public services throughout Chile, 
largely to improve the living conditions of low-
income groups. MINTER will channel the Bank's 
resources at the municipal and provincial levels into 
the construction, expansion and improvement of 
such basic public services as health, education, 
sanitation, roads and rural electrification. 

The Chilean government has embarked on a 
program to reform and decentralize the public sector 
in an effort to foster more balanced national growth 
and accelerate regional development. It has created 
the National Project System to help incorporate mu
nicipalities, provinces and regions into the develop
ment process. It has also formulated the Public Sector 
Comprehensive Bank (BIP) to identify, evaluate and 
assign priority to local development projects. 

In June, almost 5,000 projects in basic public 
services costing approximately $683 million were in 
the BIP pipeline. Of these, 3.500 projects costing ap
proximately $506 million had been evaluated and 
were ready to be executed; and an additional 1,300 
projects, costing approximately $122 million were 
under evaluation. 

The second stage of the program will provide 
education facilities and equipment for an additional 
494,000 students, double the number benefited under 
the first stage; sharply reduce the number of persons 
in rural and urban areas who lack health, water and 
sewer services, improve some 1,750 kilometers of 
rural roads and 13,156 kilometers of urban roads, and 
increase electric power in rural areas, 47 percent of 
which currently lack electricity. In addition, it will 
prepare feasibility studies of new sectors or types of 
projects eligible for financing during execution of the 
program, and will train public and private sector 
officials in the administration, control and evaluation 
of projects. 

Urban Improvement Program 

Financing: $70 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Ministry of the Interior (MINTER) 

The program will improve the housing and sanitary 
conditions of some 47,000 low-income families while 
promoting the private ownership of homes in urban 
communities of over 3,000 residents throughout 
Chile. The Bank's resources will be used by the 
Ministry of the Interior to carry out the Low-Income 
Urban Area Improvement Program, which will be im
plemented by local governments in whose jurisdic
tion the projects are located. The program will 
subsidize up to 75 percent of the cost to each family 
of basic housing and sanitary improvements. It will 
involve four main components: 

• Installing complete residential services, in
cluding water, sewage, electricity and occasionally 
gas; 

• Realigning streets and alleys and doing basic-
paving; 

• Installing in-house sanitary units and connec
tions, including bath facilities, kitchen and laundry 
areas; 

• Subdividing land and delivering ownership 
deeds to each family. 

In recent years, as the Chilean economy has ex
panded at a 5.5 percent average annual rate, the gov
ernment has embarked on a program to eradicate ex
treme poverty throughout the country. In the housing 
sector, the Ministry of Housing and Urban Develop
ment is charged with programs to provide new 
housing while MINTER administers programs to 
improve basic infrastructure and sanitation. In 1985, 
the government estimated that, of some 2.4 million 
dwelling units in the country, 410,000 lacked sanitary 
facilities, of which some 135,000 were occupied by 
people living in extreme poverty. MINTER estimates 
the number of such dwellings lacking sanitary facili
ties today at 100,000 units. 

Under the Low-Income Urban Area Develop
ment Program, sanitary facilities have been installed 
in almost 86,000 houses with the help of two previous 
Bank loans totaling $81 million. 
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PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

P e h u e n c h e Hydroelectr ic Plant: In 1986, the Bank 
approved a $319-3 million loan from the OC to help 
finance the construction of the 500,000 kilowatt 
Pehuenche hydroelectric plant and its related trans
mission system. Located 250 kilometers south of 
Santiago and 70 kilometers east of Talca, the plant 
will use the waters of the Maule and Melado Rivers 
in generating electricity for Chile's Central Intercon
nected System. The loan is being used by the 
Empresa Eléctrica Pehuenche, S.A., an employee-
owned enterprise and the Empresa Nacional de Elec
tricidad, S.A. (ENDESA). The project involves the 
construction of a dam and reservoir in the Melado 
River Valley. Electricity produced by the plant will be 
transmitted through dual circuit 220-kilovolt lines, 25 
kilometers long, to the Colbun station, where it will 
enter the Central Interconnected System. To date, 
almost 50 per cent of the project has been completed. 
Moreover, due to cost reductions, some $144.5 
million of the original loan has been cancelled. The 
borrower has produced environmental studies of the 
fauna of the area, which the Bank has reviewed and 
approved. 

Agricultural Research Technology: In 1985. the 
Bank approved a $17.6 million loan from the OC to 
help Chile strengthen agricultural research and the 
transfer of agricultural technology in the country. The 
Bank's resources are being used by the Instituto 
Nacional de Investigaciones Agropecuarias (IMA), 
an agricultural research agency affiliated with the 
Ministry of Agriculture, to generate and adapt agricul
tural technology designed to increase farm produc
tion for domestic consumption and for export. The 
program includes intensified research on 21 crops 
important to the export market or to the reduction of 
imports; transfer of technology to more than 45,000 
farmers; improvement of seed production, strength
ening of experimental stations and training of tech
nicians. Considerable progress has been achieved on 
the project with almost two-thirds of the original 
goals having been met. 

Southern Road Network: In 1984, the Bank ap
proved a $35.7 million loan from the OC to help Chile 
build the first stage of a southern road network 
designed to integrate that region of the country into 
the national transportation network. The project. 

which is being carried out by the Ministry of Public 
Works, calls for constructing 351 kilometers of roads 
and upgrading another 278 kilometers. In addition, 
76 kilometers are being paved and 50 bridges are 
being built. By the end of 1989, the project was 
nearing completion with 80 per cent of the new roads 
built, and 70 percent of the roads upgraded and 90 
percent of the paving carried out. In addition, 34 
bridges had been built. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 104 loans approved for Chile, 85 have been closed 
and 19 were financing projects under execution 
during 1989. Two loans were closed in 1989. Dis
bursements during the year totaled $278.1 million, 
compared with $245 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Chile totaled $104.7 million in 1989, bringing cumu
lative contract awards to $1,609.8 million. A contract 
for $27 million was awarded in 1989 to construct a 
bridge, tunnel and elevated highway to a firm from 
Spain. A multiple urban infrastructure program, 
partially financed by a $120.5 million loan approved 
in 1982, was completed. Medium-size cities through
out Chile benefitted from street paving, potable water 
and sanitation services, housing sites and electricity. 
The Colbún-Machicura hydroelectric plant, partially 
financed by a $280 million loan approved in 1983, 
was also completed. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $ 957,815 $2,887,381 
Agriculture and Fisheries 700,401 1,399,132 
Industry and Mining 632,507 1,263,845 
Transportation and Communications 444,037 959,775 
Urban Development 564,104 981,203 
Environmental and Public Health 213,727 429,474 
Tourism 34,865 37,158 
Education, Science and Technology 28,908 75,767 
Export Financing 3,857 5,510 
Preinvestment 3,000 6,514 

Total $3,583,221 S8.045.759 
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COLOMBLA 

The Bank has made 135 loans totaling $3,883 
mill ion to Colombia. Sector emphasis has been 
on energy, environmental and public health, 
agriculture and fisheries, urban development 
and industry. Cumulative disbursements total 
$2,757 million. In 1989, the Bank approved two 
loans for one project, two Small Project financ
ings and one major technical cooperation. 

LOAN 

Science and Technology 

Financing 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Executing 
Agency: 

$35.7 million from the OC and $4.3 mil
lion in Colombian pesos from the FSO. 

Fondo Colombiano de Investigaciones 
Científicas y Proyectos Especiales "Fran
cisco José de Caldas" (COLCIENCIAS) 

The project will expand Colombia's capacity to carry 
out scientific and technical research and to apply the 
results to the country's development needs. COLCIEN
CIAS will use the Bank's resources to carry out the 
second stage of the National Program of Scientific 
Research and Technological Development which 
will involve three major objectives: 

• To finance approximately 300 specific proj
ects in the fields of research, experimental develop
ment and science and technology services by pro
ductive enterprises, universities, government and 
private research and service centers; 

• To train approximately 700 scientific and re
search personnel in the natural and exact sciences, 
engineering, technology and the health and agricul
tural sciences; 

• To disseminate R&D results to producers, to 
popularize science and to improve COLCIENCIAS' 
information center and to establish a national execu
tive committee on Science and Technology and at 
least nine sector advisory committees for the devel
opment and adoption of technology in the country. 

The Government of Colombia has adopted a 
science and technology policy under which priority 

1 Yearly Lending 

^ " Yearly Disbursements 

will be given to modernizing and increasing the inter
national competitiveness of the manufacturing sec
tor. To this end, the Bank in 1982 approved two loans 
totaling $50 million to help initiate the program. A 
total of 429 projects in industry, agriculture and 
forestry, energy and health have been financed 
under the first stage. These projects have promoted 
high-quality research while stimulating interest of the 
business community in scientific and technological 
development. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Bean Producers 

Financing: 803,000 Swiss franc loan from the SWF 
(equivalent to $500,000). 

Intermediary 
Institution: Central Cooperativa Financiera para 

la Promoción Social (COOPCENTRAL 
LTDA.) 

The project will establish a credit fund for produc
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tion, an investment program for purchasing equip
ment and a marketing program for low-income bean 
farmers in northern Colombia. The 500 beneficiary 
farmers belong to two agricultural cooperatives and 
one marketing cooperative. The credits would be 
used to finance the cost of bean production, exclud
ing labor, for items such as seed purchase, fertilizer, 
fungicides and machinery services. The investment 
fund will permit the cooperatives to purchase trac
tors, drying silos, husking machines, humidity detec
tors and a packing machine. The marketing fund will 
be used to purchase the beans from the farmers. 

The beneficiaries' primary crop is beans, which 
adapt well despite arid soil and low rainfall. In ad
dition to agriculture, approximately 20 percent of the 
population hand-produces henequén packaging, a 
less profitable activity than bean-farming. A high pro
portion of young people are leaving the area for ci
ties in Colombia and Venezuela. One of the goals of 
the project is to recruit new bean farmers in the area. 

Support for Small Business 

Financing: $350,000 loan from the FSO; $129,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación Promotora de Servicios 

Microempresariales (PROMIC) 

The project will establish a sales and marketing credit 
program which will expand production, develop 
new markets, improve product quality and generally 
enhance the quality of life of some 900 small-scale 
producers, mainly of garments and leather goods, in 
the city of Bogota. PROMIC, a private, non-profit or
ganization established in 1987. will use the Bank's 
resources to establish two credit funds: 

• Up to $250,000 to create a sales revolving fund 
to provide producers with the working capital needed 
to acquire raw materials; 

• Up to $100,000 to establish a marketing 
service fund to improve PROMIC's operating and 
sales capacity, including remodeling its marketing 
service center and building sales showrooms and 
related facilities. 

Colombia's Small Business Plan was established 
by the government in coordination with the Bank 
and is being carried out by both public and private 
institutions. Some 35.000 small-scale producers have 

been trained and 14,000 credits disbursed under the 
program to date. LJnlike previous operations of this 
nature, the PROMIC project includes spot technical 
assistance in marketing the output of small-scale 
producers. It represents a step forward in develop
ment of the informal sector and may serve as a model 
for future operations on a nationwide scale. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Government Project Bank 

financing: 

Executmg 
Agency: 

130 million yen (equivalent to approxi
mately $1 million) technical coopera
tion grant from funds made available by 
the Government of Japan. 

National Planning Department 

The grant will finance a project bank for Colombia 
that will improve both planning and programming of 
investment projects, and allocating public sector re
sources, particularly at the municipal level. The 
program begins with an evaluation of the country's 
present planning system. Methodologies will then be 
designed to identify and evaluate projects, and a 
program will be set up to train personnel at the 
national, regional, departmental and municipal level. 
Subsequently, an inventory of investment projects 
will be prepared. The creation of this project bank 
reinforces recent efforts in Colombia to decentralize 
decision making. The Government is taking steps to 
improve the municipalities' fiscal, political and 
administrative capacity to manage their own affairs. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Multipurpose River Development for Medellin: 
In 1984, the Bank approved a $200 million loan from 
the OC to help finance the multipurpose develop
ment of the Rio Grande River in Colombia. The 
objectives of the project were to increase the electric 
power generating capacity of plants supplying 
Medellin and nearby areas, to meet the increased de
mand for drinking water in Medellin and to expand 
the sewage systems at seven neighboring municipali
ties. The project was co-financed by a $164.5 million 
World Bank loan. The IDB loan, which is being used 
to finance the potable water and sewage systems, is 
about 60 percent completed. 
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MICROENTREPRENEURS REP
RESENT AN IMPORTANT SEG
MENT OF THE ECONOMY IN 
COLOMBIA. David Mesa (right) 
and an employee finish a colo
nial style "antique " china cabi
net at the Muebles Rústicos Her-
mesa furniture factory in 
Bogota. Mesa bought electric 
saws with an $1,850 loan from 
Artesanías de Colombia, a non
profit organization that admini
stered one of the IDB's first 
Small Project loans to provide 
credits to micro-entrepreneurs 
in 1979. 

Small Business Credit Program: In 1986, the Bank 
made its first major loan—$7 million from the FSO— 
to help finance a global credit program for micro-en
trepreneurs in Colombia. Over half of the economi
cally active urban population of the country is 
employed in the small business sector, which ordi
narily does not have access to conventional credit 
sources. The Bank has been providing support to this 
sector since 1979 through the Small Projects Program, 
in which both credits and training are made available 
to micro-entrepreneurs. 

The 1986 loan was extended to the Banco de la 
República, which is channeling subloans through the 
country's banking system to help stimulate the growth 
of small-scale businesses in the industry, services and 
commercial subsectors. To date, two-thirds of the re
sources of the loan has been committed. Approxi
mately 135,000 people have attended more than 
6,000 training courses in 77 cities. Credits have been 
extended to 1,429 sub-borrowers, of which 60 per
cent are in industry, 35 percent in services and 4 
percent in commercial activities. In addition, the loan 
is helping to strengthen intermediary institutions 
throughout the country. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 135 loans approved for Colombia, 100 have been 
closed and 35 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Two loans were closed in 1989- Dis

bursements during the year totaled S261.9 million, 
compared with $237 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Colombia totaled $149.8 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $1,402.6 million. A 
contract for $30.5 million was awarded in 1989 for 
switchgear and switchboard equipment to a firm in 
Sweden. During the year the Government of Colom
bia approved and signed an industrial credit loan 
contract for $100 million extended by the Bank in 
1988. The EXIMBANK of Japan will co-finance $100 
million for the same project. In addition, contracts for 
two loans totaling $100 million for a potable water, 
sewage and drainage program for the city of Cali 
were signed. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $1,941,906 $ 4,897,494 
Environmental and Public Health 486,616 1,406,712 
Agriculture and Fisheries 329,715 900,981 
Urban Development 327,726 692,585 
Transportation and Communications 306,864 780,055 
Industry and Mining 306,450 1,188,938 
Education, Science and Technology 149,581 324,906 
Preinvestment 34,554 87,890 

Total $3,883,412 $10,279,561 
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COSTA RICA 

The Bank has made 78 loans totaling $1,347 mil
l ion to Costa Rica. Sector emphasis has been o n 
energy, agriculture and fisheries, transporta
tion and communications, industry and mining 
and social infrastructure. Cumulative disburse
ments total $778.9 million. In 1989, the Bank 
approved two loans for two projects, one SmaU 
Project financing, two major technical coopera
tions and extended the use of a line of credit for 
export financing. 

LOANS 

Electricity Development Program 

Financing: $182.8 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Instituto Costarricense de Electricidad 

This loan will finance a program to increase electric
ity generation, transmission and distribution and to 
rehabilitate thermal-electric generating units in Costa 
Rica. The program, which will enable the country to 
meet the growing demand for electricity, consists of 
four components: 

• Miravalles II Geothermal Generation Plant: 
The Miravalles II geothermal-electric plant will be 
enlarged by drilling four additional producing wells 
(three have already been drilled); four reinjection 
wells; installation of wellhead equipment for each 
well; and auxiliary valves and pipes. The plant's 
powerhouse will be equipped with a turbine, a 
cooling tower and a 62-megavolt-ampere enhanced 
capacity substation. When completed, the power 
plant will have a generating capacity of 55 mega
watts. 

• Toro I and II Hydroelectric Power Plants: Toro 
I will require a diversion dam along the Toro River, 
a sand trap, tunnel and conveyance pipe and a pow
erhouse equipped with two vertical-shaft Francis 
turbines. Toro II will begin at the outlet of Toro I, and 
will draw some of its water from the Gata creek. The 
two plants will generate an average of 119 and 308 
gigawatt hours, respectively. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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• Transmission: A new substation will be con
structed at Turrialba and the substations at Barranca, 
Arenal, Moin, Santa Rita, El Coco and Desamparados 
will be expanded. Voltage regulating equipment will 
be installed, transformers replaced and reserve equip
ment will be acquired. 

• Distribution: Under this subproject, some 820 
kilometers of distribution lines will be built, about 
1,000 secondary circuits will be improved and about 
630 kilometers of distribution circuits will be rebuilt 
or converted. The project also covers building feeder 
lines and purchasing operation and maintenance 
equipment. 

• Reconditioning the thermal electric plants in 
San Antonio, Barranca, Colima and Moin is also 
planned. 

Environmental studies have been carried out 
for these infrastructure works and measures will be 
taken where necessary to mitigate the impact of the 
investments. In recent years, Costa Rica has begun to 
import energy from Honduras to meet demand. Since 
Costa Rica's neighbors' energy surplus is diminish
ing, it has become necessary for the country to 
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expand its own energy generating capacity. This 
project will help accomplish that goal. 

Preinvestment Studies 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$6 million from the OC; the interest 
rate on the loan will be partially de
frayed by the IFF. 

Ministry of National Planning and Eco
nomic Policy (MIDEPLAN) 

The loan will help finance the fourth stage of a pre
investment studies program designed to foster eco
nomic and social development in Costa Rica. 

MIDEPLAN will channel the Bank's resources 
through its Preinvestment Fund to centralized gov
ernment institutions on a grant basis and to private 
enterprises on a loan basis to contract the consulting 
services required to prepare general studies, pre-
feasibility, feasibility and engineering design studies 
of priority investment projects under the country's 
National Development Plan. 

Approximately 35 percent of the resources are 
expected to be allocated to studies of the agricultural, 
industrial, mining, energy and tourism sectors; about 
15 percent to studies on the health and environ
mental sanitation and the transportation sectors, and 
the remaining 50 percent to the commerce, educa
tion, and culture and recreation sectors, as well as 
services, general administration and related activi
ties. 

The Bank has approved three previous loans to
taling $11.5 million to finance the first three stages of 
the program. Under the first two stages and thus far 
in the third stage $7.4 million in preinvestment 
studies have generated $800 million in investment 
opportunities, of which the Bank has helped finance 
38 percent, or approximately $300 million. 

The project will increase the number of invest
ment studies and improve the way in which invest
ments are administered, enabling the Preinvestment 
Fund to contribute more effectively to investment 
decisions. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989. the use of a previous 
line of credit to Costa Rica from the VTF to provide 
short-term financing for exports of manufactured and 
semi-manufactured goods was extended through re
payments by $12 million. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Rural Microproducers 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the NF; $85,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación Integral Campesina (FINCA) 

FINCA is a non-profit private development organiza
tion established in 1984 to develop low-income rural 
communities. It provides credits and training to 
organized groups of producers called "Ban-
comunales"—associations of around 30 farmers. 
FINCA 's philosophy is to encourage self-help and 
community involvement in identifying problems and 
solutions. The farmers own or lease small plots of 
between one and four hectares. 

The Bank's financing will be used to make loans 
to the "Bancomunales" for working capital and pur
chase of equipment. Projects eligible for financing 
include crop, agroindustrial, livestock, rural small 
industry and services. Individual subloans will range 
from S150 to $500, with a $25,000 ceiling per "Ban-
comunal." Training, an integral part FINCA 's activi
ties, is carried out through community workshops. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Maintenance of Education Infrastructure 

Financing: $1,356,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Public Education, through 

the Educational Infrastructure Center 
(CENIFE) 

The Bank's cooperation will establish a national pro
gram to conserve and maintain primary and secon
dary public school buildings and equipment, im
prove service and efficiency of the educational 
system, and make an optimal return on public 
investments in the sector. The Bank's resources will 
be used to carry out a five-point program: 

• To formulate policies and standards and 
prepare manuals on school maintenance; 

• To conduct seminars and workshops for 
CENIFE personnel on maintenance and repair of 
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COFFEE GROWERS EXPAND 
PRODUCTION WITH NEW 
PLANTS IN COSTA RICA. Manuel 
Porra Vega weeds young catuat 
rojo coffee plants being grown 
to replace low-yielding 35-year-
oldcoffee trees on his smallfarm 
in Alajuela Province. IDB funds 
channeled through 19 coopera
tives are helping to finance cof
fee tree renovation on small- and 
medium-size farms and to 
modernize coop coffee proc
essing plants and receiving 
tanks. 

school buildings and equipment; 
• To start up the National Conservation and 

Maintenance System, using a sampling of facilities; 
• To develop a computerized information, in

ventory and diagnostic system of school conserva
tion and maintenance; 

• To acquire computer equipment, vehicles, 
manuals and related equipment. 

The Costa Rican education system provides a 
high degree of coverage and 92 percent of the 
students in the system attend publicly-operated 
schools. An increasing per-capita debt ratio, how
ever, has forced the government to cut back invest
ment and expenditure in both the health and the 
education system and, as a result, it has placed 
increasing emphasis on preventive maintenance rather 
than investment in new facilities. 

Modernization of Customs System 

Financing: $914,000 technical cooperation grant 
from FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: General Directorate of Customs 

The grant will help finance a program to modernize 
the national customs system and make it more 
effective, and to implement a special In-Bond Assem
bly Customs System. In the export sector, the pro
gram will design corrective measures needed for the 
efficient administration of export contracts under 
special systems such as temporary admission, in-
bond assembly and free zones. Project components 
include: 

• Preparation of an organization manual, op-
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erations supervision and control; 
• Draft of an Organic Law of the Customs 

System; 
• Regulations for the Customs Legal System; 
• Acquisition of equipment. 
Costa Rica's economy has been mewing rapidly 

toward an international open market. Transit and 
control of the entry and exit of merchandise, and 
collection and control of customs revenues constitute 
important issues for the country. This project is part 
of the reform being undertaken by the Costa Rican 
authorities in an effort to improve the current system. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Farm Credit Program: In 1984, the Bank approved 
a $35 million loan from the OC to help carry out the 
seventh stage of a farm credit program designed to di
versify production and increase productivity. The 
Banco Nacional de Costa Rica (BNCR) is using Bank 
resources to make credits available to small- and me
dium-scale farmers to increase their production of 
crops and livestock. The crop subprogram promoted 
permanent crops such as cacao, macadamia, sugar 
cane, rattan, flowers and citrus fruits while the 
livestock subprogram focused on meat and milk. 
About 1,500 farmers are benefitting from this subpro
gram and 775 ranchers from the livestock subpro
gram. By the end of 1989, all of the loan's resources 
had been committed. 

committed. The technical cooperation to strengthen 
BANCOOP was also in its final stages. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 78 loans approved for Costa Rica, 59 have been 
closed and 19 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Two loans were closed in 1989. Dis
bursements during the year totaled $51.3 million, 
compared with $63-2 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Costa Rica totaled $12.9 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $395.1 million. A 
contract for $4.4 million was awarded in 1989 for 
water, sewer and utility lines to a firm from Costa 
Rica. Loan resources from a previously approved 
agricultural credit program and an industrial and 
tourist credit program were fully committed. The 
Bank is analyzing requests by the government for 
additional resources for future stages of the pro
grams. 

Agroindustr ia l Cooperat ive Credit P rogram: To 
support Costa Rica's efforts to develop its agroindus
trial sector, the Bank approved a $6 million loan from 
the FSO in 1984 to finance a credit program designed 
to stimulate the production of cacao and coffee. The 
program is being executed by the Banco Cooperativo 
Costarricense, R.L. (BANCOOP), which will lend the 
funds to individual cooperative members and to the 
cooperatives themselves. The purpose of the pro
gram is to transform low-income farmers into small-
scale commercial farmers; and to strengthen both the 
coffee- processing cooperatives and the administra
tion of BANCOOP. About 1,000 small farmers in the 
regions of Huetar and Chorotega are receiving credits 
to plant some 2,000 hectares of cacao and to process 
the crop. In the coffee processing subprogram, 19 co
operatives and one federation of cooperatives are 
using the credits to improve their facilities. By the end 
of 1989, all of the resources of the loan had been 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $ 616,483 $1,097,011 
Agriculture and Fisheries 238,999 378,400 
Transportation and Communications 148,684 269,014 
Industry and Mining 86,443 133,953 
Education, Science and Technology 74,745 123,719 
Environmental and Public Health 69,753 115,637 
Export Financing 66,000 77,143 
Urban Development 29,900 49,205 
Preinvestment 16,750 27,039 

Total $1,347,757 $2,271,121 
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DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

The Bank has made 56 loans totaling $1,063 mil

l ion to the Dominican Republic. Sector empha

sis has been o n agriculture and fisheries, en

ergy, transportation and communications, in

dustry and mining, and social infrastructure. 
Cumulative disbursements total $748 million. 
In 1989, the Bank approved four loans for two 
projects, two major technical cooperations and 
extended the use of a l ine of credit for export 
financing. 

LOANS 

Rehabilitation of Power Company 

Financing: $101.8 million from the OC; $5 million, 
also from the OC; $42 million from the 
FSO; the interest rate on the $5 million 
loan will be defrayed by the IFF. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Executing 
Agency: Corporación Dominicana de 

Electricidad (CDE) 

The three loans will reorganize the Corporación 
Dominicana de Electricidad (CDE), the national 
power company, and improve the reliability of 
service throughout the country. The CDE will use 
the Bank's resources to reorganize its finance, en

gineering maintenance and operations systems; 
reduce power losses, cut operating costs and in

crease sales revenue. The program has two main 
components: 

• Reconditioning steamelectric generating sta

tions at Haina and Puerto Plata and gasturbine sta

tions at San Pedro de Macorís and Barahona, or other 
stations to be agreed upon; 

• Reconditioning and extending electric power 
distribution grids in 11 of the most important cities 
after Santo Domingo — Santiago, Puerto Plata, La 
Vega, San Francisco de Marcorís, Higuey, La Romana, 
San Pedro de Macorís, San Cristóbal, Azua, Barahona 
and San Juan de la Maguana. This will involve 
building or rebuilding some 44 kilometers of trans

mission lines, 16 transformer substations and one 

250 

200 

] Yearly Lending 

■■i Yearly Disbursements 

new substation, and installing and upgrading some 
330 kilometers of primary distribution networks 
and 2,150 kilometers of secondary distribution 
networks, as well as transformers and capacitors. 

The CDF. will also contract a consulting firm 
to help operate and maintain the electric power 
system and a second firm to prepare plans to reha

bilitate the distribution and transmission systems in 
the 11 cities. 

The energy sector in the Dominican Republic is 
in critical condition. Developed energy resources are 
scarce and the country must rely largely on petro

leum imports to generate electricity. Sixtythree percent 
of the population does not have electricity and 70 
percent of the power produced in the country is 
consumed in and around Santo Domingo and San

tiago, the two major cities. Furthermore, the CDE 
system, which has almost 60 percent of the installed 
generating capacity, has deteriorated badly in recent 
years, power is rationed in many areas and outages 
are frequent. 

72 



INTER-AMERICAN DIA EIOPMENT BANK 

Technical-Vocational Education TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$20 million from the FSO; $1,413,500 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Fundación APEC de Crédito Educativo 
(FUNDAPEC) 

The loan will finance improvement and expansion of 
vocational education in the Dominican Republic to 
help meet a growing demand for technical and semi
skilled personnel in the industrial, agribusiness and 
tourism sectors. The Bank's resources will be used by 
the Fundación APEC de Crédito Educativo (FUN
DAPEC), a private, non-profit organization, to estab
lish two lines of credit — one to expand and improve 
technical and vocational institutions in both the 
public and the private sectors, and the other to 
provide education loans for students of limited 
means. 

The shortage of trained personnel in three key 
economic areas has prompted the Dominican gov
ernment to work closely with the private sector to 
improve technical-vocational education. Accelerated 
growth of industry and tourism has produced an 
increased demand for skilled and semi-skilled work
ers. The project will help reduce a future annual 
deficit of some 840 skilled workers projected by the 
travel industry, in addition to those in training today, 
and a deficit by 1990 of more than 4,000 skilled and 
semi-skilled technicians in the industrial sector, in
cluding both agribusiness and manufacturing. 

FUNDAPEC will use the Bank's technical co
operation to contract consultants to improve the 
administrative, review, candidate selection, certifi
cation, and teacher training procedures of the tech
nical-vocational schools. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to the Dominican Republic from the VTF 
to provide short-term financing for exports of manu
factured and semi-manufactured goods was ex
tended through repayments of $2.5 million. 

Support for Tax Information System 

Financing: $1,284,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministiy of Finance 

The program's objective is to strengthen the Domini
can Republic's tax information system by consolidat
ing the taxpayer master file and establishing a current 
account to improve tax administration. The financing 
will be used to develop and implement tax informa
tion systems; reorganize the tax and revenue depart
ments; strengthen the training capabilities of the Min
istry of Finance; and to propose improvements and 
adjustments to the current tax system. The program 
is the second stage of an effort by the Government to 
increase tax collections and reduce evasion. The 
Bank helped finance the first stage that created a 
taxpayer master file system and defined key areas in 
tax administration requiring improvement. 

Watershed Management and Conservation 
Study 

Financing: $772,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the JSF. 

Executing 
Agency: Oficina Nacional de Planificación 

(ONAPIAN) 

This grant will finance a comprehensive study on the 
management and conservation of the Bao River 
Hydrographie Sub-Basin. The feasibility study is ex
pected to lead to a follow-up investment to protect 
the renewable natural resources in the area, maintain 
productivity and avoid erosion and sedimentation of 
the reservoirs, as well as to reduce the adverse impact 
on water quality and farm productivity. The main ob
jectives will be to: 

• Identify areas with the greatest need for con
servation and management, particularly those in
volving deforestation and soil erosion; 

• Stress soil conservation in potential farming 
areas, agroforestry and pasture management; 

• Train some 9,000 farmers. 
The Dominican Republic is endowed with a 

wide variety of natural resources, particularly many 
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hydrographie basins, which were once covered 
with pine and other commercial species. The Bao 
River Sub-basin, located to the southwest of San
tiago, covers the northern slope of the Central 
Cordillera range, which has a rich ecosystem that 
has suffered progressive degradation due to un
controlled exploitation. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Rural Water Supply: A rural water supply project, 
financed in part by two Bank loans totaling $8.1 
million approved in 1981, has been virtually com
pleted. The loans—$7.3 million from the FSO and 
1,456,000 Swiss Francs (equivalent to $800,000) from 
the SDF—were used by the Instituto Nacional de 
Agua Potable y Alcantarillado to construct 16 po
table water systems serving 55 rural communities and 
install some 46,627 household connections (30,000 
more than originally planned) in 15 principal cities. 
Much of the construction was performed through 
community participation and using intermediate 
technology. This project was the third such water 
supply project that the Bank has financed for rural 
areas in the Dominican Republic. 

Republic totaled $277,000 in 1989, bringing cumula
tive contract awards to $377.1 million. A contract for 
$154,000 was awarded for transportation equipment 
to a firm in the Dominican Republic in 1989. 

The principal two-lane north-south highway of 
the country that runs from Santo Domingo to San
tiago de los Caballeros has been turned into a four-
lane highway with the help of two loans totalling S36 
million approved in 1980. The Duarte Highway 
crosses the rich Cibao Valley where almost half of the 
country's agricultural crop is produced. 

Integrated Rural Development : In 1979, the Bank 
approved a $27 million loan from the FSO to help 
carry out the third stage of an integrated rural 
development program in the Dominican Republic. 
Earlier Bank loans totaling $44.3 million had financed 
the first two stages. The Programa de Inversiones 
p a r a el Desarrollo Agropecuario (PIDAGRO III'), 
continued programs initiated in the first two stages 
(research, extension, training, animal health and 
cadastral survey) and added four more—plant health, 
aquaculture, soil and water conservation and seed 
production. By the end of 1989, the project was 
completed. The goals of the research, extension and 
training components were exceeded while the goals 
of the other components were met. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 56 loans approved for the Dominican Republic. 
37 have been closed and 19 were financing projects 
under execution during 1989. Disbursements during 
the year totaled $52.2 million, compared with $37.4 
million in 1988. Contract awards for goods and 
services for projects in execution in the Dominican 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Agriculture and Fisheries $ 364,623 $ 613,115 
Transportation and Communications 134,785 224,095 
Energy 271,312 371,654 
Industry and Mining 81,904 120,198 
Environmental and Public Health 54,916 80,449 
Tourism 49,991 71,430 
Education, Science and Technology 40,421 53,764 
Export Financing 7,340 6,879 
Preinvestment 4,706 6,897 
Urban Development 3,479 6,375 
Other 50,000 50,000 

Total $1,063,477 $1,604,856 

74 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

ECUADOR 

The Bank has made 105 loans totaling $2,284 
miUion to Ecuador. Sector emphasis has been 
o n agriculture and fisheries, energy, industry 
and mining, transportation and communica
tions, and social infrastructure. Cumulative 
disbursements total $1,423 million. In 1989, the 
Bank approved three loans for two projects, one 
Small Project financing and one major technical 
cooperation. 

LOANS 

Educational Development Program 

Financing: $44,010,000 from the FSO. 
Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Education and Culture 

The loan will help finance a program to improve the 
public education system in Ecuador through training, 
production of teaching materials, improvement of 
physical infrastructure, and other activities. 

Central to the program is the establishment of 
80 model education centers that will serve as key 
components of a technical and administrative chain 
from the central ministry to the schools. In addition, 
a network of 23 pedagogical institutes will be set up, 
including 20 for the Spanish-speaking population 
and three for those speaking indigenous languages. 
The program includes the following three activities: 

• Human resource development, including 
training education personnel such as administrators, 
supervisors, planners and researchers, training about 
8,390 primary school teachers and 3,050 basic cycle 
(first three years of secondary school) teachers, 
training and fellowships for teachers, technicians and 
others of the pedagogical institutes, and a permanent 
training program for about 7,500 rural primary school 
teachers in the catchment area of each model educa
tional center; 

• Instructional materials, including 3-2 million 
notebooks for primary students and 48,000 instruc
tional guidebooks for the teachers; preparation of 
1,139,000 copies of 12 textbooks and 15,400 instruc-

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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tional guidebooks for use in the basic cycle; and basic 
equipment and furnishings to support teaching ac
tivities in the model educational centers. 

• Physical infrastructure, including remodeling 
or building facilities to house 80 model education 
centers and 23 pedagogical institutes. 

In addition, the program includes a technical 
cooperation component to strengthen the planning 
operations of the Ministry of Education and Culture, 
to set up a development group for the National 
Educational Information System to help ensure the 
execution of the program. 

Quality of teachers as well as the availability of 
textbooks and other instructional materials are prob
lems for Ecuadoran schools. Of the country's 60,025 
teachers at the primary school level, 22 percent have 
degrees in fields not involving teaching or hold 
degrees below the bachelor's level. Of 5,890 teachers 
in the basic cycle, only 35 percent have graduated 
from college in education fields. Moreover, an esti
mated 70 percent of primary school students in rural 
areas lacked textbooks. The Ministry of Education 
has been hampered by a fragmented structure which 
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TECHNICAL EDUCATION 
HELPS EXPAND CADRE OF 
SKILLED WORKERS IN ECUA
DOR José Jocino, a UNESCO 
technical education consultant 
from France, discusses con
struction of new buildings for 
a third technical education cen
ter in Quito with Fabian Ibarra 
Rivera, the project director and 
architect. The school was one 
of 15 technical schools built, 
expanded or remodeled with 
financingfroma 1980 IDB loan. 

has prevented it from meeting needs stemming from 
increased enrollment and the diversification of the 
educational demands of society. 

Paute River Basin Conservation Program 

Financing: $12.2 million from the FSO; $2.3 million 
from the OC; $388,000 technical coop
eration grant, also from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Instituto Ecuatoriano de Electrificación 

(INECEL) 

These loans will help Ecuador manage and conserve 
the watershed and natural resources of the Paute 

River basin and prolong the useful life of the Paute 
hydroelectric plant—a plant that generates 30 per
cent of the country's electricity. The project consists 
of four components: 

• Agricultural and forestry production: An ex
tension service will work with approximately 10,300 
small-scale farmers to improve soil conservation and 
pasture management, and to establish agroforestry 
systems and production techniques. Agroforestry 
activities will include tree plantings and forestry re
search. 

• Resource Conservation: Management and 
conservation of natural forests and protective vege
tation in 19 areas covering 203,000 hectares will 
include establishing protected areas on degraded 
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lands; constructing some 500 dikes to control rain
water runoff and retaining walls along streams; land 
use studies and training of forest rangers. 

• Sediment Management: Feasibility studies 
will be conducted for the second-stage dredging of 
the Amaluza reservoir on the Paute River. 

• Supervision, follow-up and evaluation: Stud
ies involving baseline technical and socioeconomic 
data will be conducted and equipment installed in 
order to measure erosion, sedimentation and runoff. 

The technical cooperation grant will be used to 
hire watershed planning, management and conser
vation consultants. 

The Paute River watershed, located in south-
central Ecuador, is one of the major watersheds in the 
country. Recent studies conducted by the non-gov
ernmental organization Fundación Natura indicate 
that erosion is the most critical environmental prob
lem in the country. The erosion and deterioration of 
the watersheds are primarily due to poor farming 
techniques. This project's goal is to reverse that 
deterioration and save the Paute plant's generating 
potential. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECT 

Microentrepreneurial Credit and Training 

Financing: 510,000 Swiss franc loan (equivalent to 
$300,000) from SWF; 220,000 Swiss 
franc technical cooperat ion grant 
(equivalent to $130,000) from the same 
resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación Eugenio Espejo (FEE) 

This project will provide credit and training in 
business techniques and management to some 300 
small-scale producers and organizations in three 
low-income urban areas of Ecuador. The Bank's 
resources will be used by the Fundación Eugenio 
Espejo (FEE), a private, non-profit organization, to 
provide credit and mandatory training in business 
procedures to project beneficiaries in Mapasingue, 
an urban area of Guayaquil; in the city of Babahoyo, 
and in the parish of Barreiro in Los Ríos Province. 

Approximately 66 percent of the persons of 
working age in Mapasingue, one of the most disad
vantaged areas of Ecuador, work for their own 
account or as employees in the informal sector. More 

than half of the small-scale businessmen in the area 
are engaged as bakers, cobblers or carpenters, or in 
appliance repair, metal-work or garment-making. 
Credit provided under the project will enable them to 
expand production, in many cases contract more 
employees, and improve their living standards. 

The technical cooperation will be used to 
strengthen the administrative, accounting, and finan
cial and credit management systems of the FEE. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Modernization of Tax System 

Financing: $1,785,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Finance and Public Credit 

(MFPC) 

The project will modernize and simplify Ecuador's 
tax system, encourage savings and reduce inequali
ties in income distribution. MFPC will use the Bank's 
resources to carry out two program components: 

• Analysis of proposed changes and modifica
tions in the income tax code, including the combina
tion of present taxes into one progressive tax on total 
income, reduction of top nominal rates to the level of 
approximately 30 percent, lowering administrative 
costs, and increase the level of effective collections; 

• Development and implementation of a tax 
information system — the Taxpayer Master File 
Current Accounts — to support the Ministry's tax 
administration, audit, inspection and control pro
grams. 

The MFPC will contract consultants to carry out 
the first component of the program. The Centro Inter
americano de Administradores Tributarios (CIAD, a 
non-profit international agency located in Panama, 
will provide consultants for the second component. 

The Ecuadoran economy has undergone con
siderable change in the last two decades. In the 
1970s, petroleum became a major export and dollar 
earner whereas the 1980s were marked by the severe 
economic recession that has affected all of Latin 
America. Designed more than 20 years ago, the 
country's tax and fiscal management system is obso
lete and overly complicated. Although adjusted sev
eral times on an ad hoc basis, it has not undergone 
structural change. As a first step, in 1989 the govern-
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ment created the Permanent Commission on Tax 
Reform as an agency of the MFPC. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Reconst ruct ion of Pan American Highway: Over 
1,000 kilometers in length, the Pan American High
way is one of the key highways of Ecuador. The 
Cumbe-Ona section of the road in Southern Ecuador, 
built in the 1940s, is a narrow, winding and moun
tainous gravel road with speed limits of 35 kilometers 
an hour. In 1984, the Bank approved a $24 million 
loan from the OC to finance the reconstruction of this 
79-kilometer road. The loan is being used by the 
Ministry of Public Works and Communications to 
rebuild, straighten and pave the road, and to con
struct a 136-meter bridge over the Leon River. While 
construction had been slowed in the past by heavy 
rains and other factors, the section should be com
pleted during 1990. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 105 loans approved for Ecuador, 77 have been 
closed and 28 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Seven loans were closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $116.3 mil
lion, compared with $135.9 million in 1988. Contract 
awards for goods and services for projects in execu
tion in Ecuador totaled $11.5 million in 1989, bring
ing cumulative contract awards to S566.1 million. A 
contract for $4.8 million was awarded in 1989 for 
dredging equipment to a firm from Japan. 

An industrial reactivation program, partially fi
nanced with a S80 million loan approved in 1985, is 
virtually completed. The program has had a solid 
impact on the industrial sector by increasing export 
and import levels and imprcwing the country's in
stalled productive capacity. 

Mid-Level Technical and Vocational Education: 
One of Ecuador's highest priorities in the early 1980s 
was to expand the agricultural and industrial sectors. 
To help meet this goal, in 1980 the Bank approved a 
$21 million loan from the FSO to improve technical 
and vocational education in the country, and in
crease the number of people trained for middle-level 
jobs in the two sectors. The loan has been used by the 
Ministry of Education and Culture to build, expand 
and remodel seven agricultural and eight industrial 
schools throughout the country, to equip them and 
to obtain consulting services to strengthen planning, 
management and supervision of the secondary-level 
technical education system, and to provide fellow
ships for study abroad and to train teachers. 

The project is nearly completed. All of the civil 
works at the fifteen schools are finished and the nec
essary equipment has been installed at the agricul
tural schools, which are now in operation. Nearly all 
of the equipment at the industrial schools has been 
installed. Eighty-five training courses have been 
concluded and the consulting services rendered. 
Fellowships for study abroad have also been awarded. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Agriculture and Fisheries $ 794,429 Sl , l72,412 
Energy 504,832 1,539,653 
Industry and Mining 291,998 525,045 
Transportation and Communications 256,614 566,476 
Environmental and Public Health 149,301 266,387 
Education, Science and Technology 176,128 213,628 
Urban Development 82,100 102,750 
Preinvestment 26,331 34,083 
Tourism 2,067 7,278 

Total $2,283,800 $4,427,712 

78 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

EL SALVADOR 

The Bank has made 58 loans totaling $940 mil
l ion to El Salvador. Sector emphasis has been o n 
environmental and public health, energy, agri
culture and fisheries, industry and mining, and 
transportation. Cumulative disbursements total 
$804.4 million. In 1989, the Bank approved one 
Small Project financing and extended the use of 
a line of credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to El Salvador from the VTF to provide 
short-term financing for exports of manufactured and 
semi-manufactured goods was extended through re
payments by $4.3 million. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Don Bosco University 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $120,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Don Bosco University (UDB) 

This financing will be used by Don Bosco University, 
a public engineering, science and liberal arts institu
tion in San Salvador, to provide education credit to 
some 500 low-income entrepreneurs and owners of 
small business partnerships under its Small Business 
Program (PROMIPE). The beneficiaries, who do not 
have access to conventional credit, will be associated 
with educational or productive establishments pro
moted by the Salesian Order of El Salvador. The 
project will improve the quality of life of the small-
scale entrepreneurs by providing credit and educa
tion and creating employment in the marginal com
munities of the city. 

The technical cooperation will be used to im
prove the credit and industrial education procedures 
of PROMIPE. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Rural Water a n d Sewage Systems: Since the early 
1970's, the Bank has supported the Government's 
efforts to provide drinking water and sanitation 
services for rural communities throughout the coun
try. The latest rural water and sanitation project, 
financed by a $21 million loan approved in 1985 from 
the FSO, is well underway and a quarter of the 
physical infrastructure works have been accom
plished. The program is being carried out under the 
country's Plan Nacional de Saneamiento Básico 
Rural (PLANSABAR). Approximately 100 rural water 
supply systems are being built in 410 towns and 
villages of between 300 and 2,000 inhabitants each 
and some 75,000 latrines are being installed. To date, 
of the 100 scheduled water supply systems, 20 have 
been completed and 66 are under construction. In 
the latrine subprogram, 14,506 latrine facilities have 
been completed and 5,966 installed. 
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LIVESTOCK RESEARCH PRO
DUCES INCREASED YIELDS IN 
EL SALVADOR. Employee at a 
government livestock research 
development center weighs milk 
from cows being studied to 
determine whichfeed produces 
highest milk yields. The center 
in Izalco is one of three fi
nanced by a $16.3 million 1979 
IDB loan for a livestock and 
animal health program to 
benefit small- and medium-scale 
farmers. 

Agricultural Research and Extension Services: 
In 1982, the Bank approved a $12.9 million loan from 
the FSO to help finance an agricultural research and 
extension project. The project, which has been 
carried out by the Ministerio de Agricultura y Ganad
ería (MAG), is virtually completed. It consisted of 
three subprograms—strengthening research in basic-
grains, coffee, fruits and agroindustrial crops for 
small-and medium-size farmers; building 19 exten
sion centers and related services; and processing and 
distributing high-quality seeds for corn, rice and 
sorghum. In addition, the project has increased 
MAG's research capabilities, expanded its extension 
service coverage, and trained professional staff mem
bers of the Centro Nacional de Tecnología Agrícola 
(CENTA), an agency of the Ministry that had the day-
to-day responsibility for the project. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 58 loans approved for El Salvador, 46 have been 
closed and 12 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Three loans were closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $71.8 million, 
compared with $30.9 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in El 
Salvador totaled $64.2 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $465.8 million. A 
contract for $9-3 million was awarded in 1989 for 

water, sewer and utility lines to a firm from Italy. In 
1989, disbursements for projects in execution reached 
an unprecedented level. The water and sewage 
program for San Salvador, approved in 1987, is ad
vancing quickly. Bids have been received on more 
than 60 percent of the works and 35 percent of the 
Bank's resources have been disbursed. Other proj
ects that are progressing are the agricultural research 
and extension program and the health, water and 
sanitation works that were damaged by the 1986 
earthquake. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Environmental and Public Health $272,273 $ 382,236 
Energy 204,174 411,184 
Agriculture and Fisheries 171,156 278,751 
Industry and Mining 122,813 144,593 
Export Financing 59,823 79,377 
Transportation and Communications 56,939 103,534 
Urban Development 31,208 59,255 
Preinvestment 11,084 16,080 
Education, Science and Technology 10,749 15,344 

Total $940,219 $1,490,354 
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GUATEMALA 

The Bank has made 64 loans totaling $1,124 mil
l ion to Guatemala. Sector emphasis has been on 
energy, transportation and communications, 
environmental and public health, industry and 
mining, and agriculture and fisheries. Cumula
tive disbursements total $846 million. In 1989, 
the Bank approved three Small Project financ
ings, one major technical cooperation and ex
tended the use of a line of credit for export 
financing. 

LOAN 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Guatemala from the VTF to provide 
short-term financing for exports of manufactured and 
semi-manufactured goods was extended through re
payments by $200,000. 

FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Financing for Women Microentrepreneurs 

Financing: $200,000 loan from the FSO; $92,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación para el Desarrollo de la 

Mujer (FDM) 

This financing will provide additional resources to 
the FDMiot agriculture and industry credits to small-
scale women entrepreneurs. It supplements an origi
nal 1984 Bank financing of $300,000. The technical 
cooperation will be used to improve FDM'S project 
and financial analysis, accounting and financial 
management procedures. During the first phase of 
the project, which ended in early 1988. the FDM 
granted credits to small-scale women entrepreneurs 
in 14 departments, helped establish and improve 106 
productive units and created 376 permanent jobs. 
Some 59 percent of the subloans were approved for 
microindustry, 24 percent for services and 17 percent 
for agricultural activities. 

YEARLY LENDLNG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

200 
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J Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

Support for Microentrepreneurs 

Financing: 842,000 Swiss franc loan from the SWF 
(equivalent to $500,000); 186,000 Swiss 
franc technical cooperation grant 
(equivalent to $110,000) from the same 
resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación para el Desarrollo de la 

Pequeña Empresa (FUNDESPE) 

FUNDESPE, a private non-profit organization estab
lished in 1986 by business associations in western 
Guatemala, provides loans and training to small busi
nesses without access to commercial bank credit. The 
microentrepreneurs work in tailoring, machine shops, 
woodworking, shoe repair, household appliance 
repair, metal-working and printing. FUNDESPE has 
been very successful in attracting sponsors from the 
private sector for its programs. 

The Bank's financing will be used to make loans 
to microentrepreneurs for working capital and for in
vestment in the industry, agroindustry, handicrafts 
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and services sectors. Credit would be limited to 
$3,500 per beneficiary, to be repaid within three 
years. The training, initially in classrooms and later at 
the microbusiness itself, will focus on basic account
ing, cost analysis, marketing, management principles 
and investment project formulation. Some 475 micro-
entrepreneurs in eight western departments will 
participate in the program. 

Support for Rural Producers 

Financing: $200,000 loan from the FSO; $85,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Movimiento Guatemalteco de 

Reconstrucción Rural (MGRR) 

The financing augments funds approved in 1985 that 
helped improve incomes of small farmers and busi
ness people in rural eastern Guatemala. Credits and 
technical assistance are extended to farmers produc
ing crops such as corn, black beans, potatoes and 
coffee and to productive enterprises such as agroin
dustries, candle factories, processing plants and 
shops. The original loan benefitted some 3,500 
families and the new financing is expected to reach 
an additional 1,325 families. The technical coopera
tion will be used to strengthen MGRR'sability to ana
lyze projects and its marketing and farm credit 
expertise. 

The project serves several communities in the 
Department of Jalapa. Some of the most isolated 
communities in Guatemala, they lack access to credit 
sources, infrastructure and markets. MGRR, one of 
the few organizations that offer assistance to remote 
areas, estimates that real incomes have increased 15 
percent as a result of the original financing. There 
have been no arrears in its portfolio. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

date its integrated tax system. The program involves 
incorporating other taxes, such as those on vehicle 
registrations, stamp taxes, and special taxes on pro
duction and consumption into the Taxpayer Master 
File/Current Account Systems, which were designed 
for income taxes and value-added taxes. An inte
grated taxpayer data base will be developed and 
implemented to support the audit, collection and 
control functions in order to reduce tax evasion. A 
permanent training system in collection, audit, statis
tics, taxpayer control, taxpayer service and informa
tion systems will also be set up. The project will also 
upgrade and improve the efficiency of the Electronic 
Data Processing Directorate of the Ministry of Public-
Finance. The Inter-American Center of Tax Adminis
trators (CIAT) will cany out the project. An earlier 
financing helped Guatemala and other countries 
establish an integrated tax registration system. The 
new financing will complete the tax system and 
improve fiscal control. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Industr ia l Recovery: During the early and mid-
1980s, economic growth in Guatemala declined, cre
ating a shortage of foreign exchange to pay for 
imports of essential industrial components and spare 
parts, seriously affecting the manufacturing sector. 
To help spark industrial recovery in the country, in 
1983 the Bank approved a $60 million loan from the 
OC. The resources of the loan were used to extend 
189 credits to 131 industrial enterprises. Following 
the successful completion of that program, a second 
loan for $70 million from the OC was approved in 
1985. This loan was extended to the Banco de Gua
temala, which channeled subloans through the com
mercial banking system to private manufacturing 
firms to purchase raw materials, spare parts, semi
finished products, containers and other inputs. By 
the end of 1989, the program was in its final stages 
of execution. 

Improvement of Tax System 

Financing: $1,267,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Public Finance 

The grant will help Guatemala complete and consoli-

Local and Rural Road Program: In order to inte
grate isolated geographic areas into the country's de
velopment process, the Government of Guatemala 
launched a program to build and improve local and 
rural roads. To support this goal, the Bank in 1986 
approved two loans totaling $25.8 million—$12.4 
million from the OC and $134 million from the FSO. 
The funds are being used by the Dirección General 
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FACTORY IN GUATEMALA CITY 
IMPORTS MATERIAL AND EX
PORTS ITS PRODUCTS. The 
GINSA tire factory operates 
three shifts a day six days a 
week to produce 1,700 truck, 
bus and automobile tires a day. 
The company received short-
term loans totaling $3-9 million 
from an IDB-financed industrial 
recovery program to purchase 
nylon, synthetic rubber and 
chemicals from the United 
States. The program provided 
short-term hard-currency cred
its to private companies that 
export part of their produc
tion. GINSA exports to other 
Central American countries, 
Jamaica, Mexico, Panama and 
the United States. 

de Caminos (DGC) of the Ministry of Communica
tions, Transport and Public works to build and reha
bilitate some 400 kilometers of roads. These include 
four sections of existing local roads totaling 133 kilo
meters to link farming areas to the national highway 
system; and in the western and eastern highlands, 
265 kilometers of low-cost rural roads that provide 
access to small farming communities. The road work 
is labor - intensive and approximately a quarter of the 
work has been accomplished to date. 

Deve lopment of Municipali t ies: In 1983, the Bank 
approved two loans totaling S18 million—S8 million 
from the OC and $10 million from the FSO—to help 
provide physical and social infrastructure works to 
municipalities in the highland regions of Guatemala. 
The Bank's resources are being used by the Instituto 
de Fomento Municipal (INFOM) to build and expand 
153 municipal installations, including markets, slaugh
terhouses, community centers, stone paving, bridges, 
culverts and street cleaning services. Technical coop
eration is also being provided to train municipal 
personnel. To date, some 83 municipal infrastructure 
works have been completed with the remaining 70 
subprojects under construction. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 64 loans approved for Guatemala, 45 have been 
closed and 19 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $69.9 million, compared with $86.1 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Guatemala totaled $10.7 
million in 1989, bringing cumulative contract awards 
to $588.9 million. A contract for $5.1 million was 
awarded in 1989 for highway and street construction 
to a firm in Guatemala. 

A $4 million co-financing was approved by the 
International Development Fund of the Organization 
of Petroleum Exporting Countries (OPEC) to rebuild 
a major highway that is also being financed by the 
Bank. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $ 290,703 $ 978,427 
Environmental and Public Health 193,033 289,006 
Industry and Mining 184,258 194,683 
Transportation and Communications 165,064 271,780 
Agriculture and Fisheries 153,319 235,871 
Urban Development 85,709 127,439 
Education, Science and Technology 45,900 62,472 
Tourism 5,109 6,971 
Export Financing 1,136 1,429 

Total 51,124,231 $2,168,078 
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GUYANA 

The Bank has made 16 loans totaling $304 mil
l ion to Guyana. Sector emphasis has been on ag
riculture and fisheries, education, industry and 
mining, public health and energy. Cumulative 
disbursements total $186.2 million. In 1989, the 
Bank approved one loan for one project. 

LOAN 

Primary Education 

Financing: $46.4 million from the FSO; $560,000 
technical cooperation grant also from 
the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Education 

The project is designed to improve the quality of 
primary education in Guyana by upgrading both the 
academic and physical conditions of the country's 
primary school system. The program has three major 
components: 

• Human Resources Development: To train ap
proximately 1,000 teachers in basic classroom man
agement skills and the use of curriculum materials, to 
improve teacher training at the Cyril Potter College of 
Education, and to provide in-service training of edu
cational administrators and supervisors; 

• Curriculum Development and Educational 
Technology: To support the development of the Na
tional Center for Educational Resources Develop
ment as the core institution in the development of 
curricula, teaching materials, testing and in-service 
teacher training; to produce and distribute textbooks, 
to acquire equipment and materials for the country's 
415 primary schools, and to recruit some 121 addi
tional teachers and principals; 

• Physical Infrastructure: To build 27 new 
schools to replace existing ones, and to rehabilitate 
three additional schools. 

The technical cooperation will be used to 
contract consultants to help strengthen key areas of 
administration and supervision at the Ministry of Edu
cation. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

I Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

The deficiencies of primary education in Guyana 
are reflected in the fact that 40 percent of the teach
ers are not considered academically qualified, that 
school buildings are inadequate and obsolete, classes 
are crowded, and students often lack access to 
teaching materials. 

By improving the quality of primary education, 
the project is expected also to increase productivity 
in the workplace and the home and to raise literacy, 
health, nutritional, communications and community 
participation skills. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Development of H u m a n Resources: In 1985, the 
Bank approved a $14.4 million loan from the FSO to 
help develop Guyana's human resource potential by 
strengthening the University of Guyana and three 
technical-vocational institutes in the country. The 
project's first component includes rehabilitating parts 
of the physical plant of the University of Guyana, 
procuring teaching materials and equipment, build
ing a learning resource center, and providing courses 
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for staff development. In the second component, 
three technical-vocational schools are being rehabili
tated. The third part of this program is enabling some 
80 graduate students to go overseas for advanced 
schooling in subjects not taught in Guyana. This pro
gram is being carried out through a student revolving 
loan fund. To date, approximately one-quarter of the 
project's original goals have been accomplished. Few 
students continue their studies at the technical or 
university level, with the result that a large number of 
students are unprepared for specific jobs. Comple
tion of this project should help provide the country 
with a pool of skilled people. 

skilled manpower needs. In energy, considerable 
progress was made during 1989 in rehabilitating 
Guyana's thermal energy generating system. As a 
result of the Industrial Reactivation Programme, 
dozens of private rice mills have been upgraded and 
improved, preparing the way for increased rice 
production and greater export earnings. 

Black Bush Irr igat ion a n d Drainage Program: In 
1978, the Bank approved a $7.2 million loan from the 
FSO to support an irrigation and drainage project on 
some 52,000 acres in the Black Bush area of north
eastern Guyana. In 1985 the project was reformulated 
to include a more limited geographical area (approxi
mately 23,000 acres) and to implement consultant's 
recommendations on tariff structures and operation 
and maintenance systems. The reformulated project 
consists of rehabilitating four primary irrigation canals, 
five tributaries and a major pumping station; acquir
ing operation, maintenance and telecommunications 
equipment; and implementing consultants' recom
mendations. Scheduled works have substantially ad
vanced, and the environmental impact of the project 
is being monitored. Water quality, tested for salinity 
intrusion, continues to be acceptable. The comple
tion of the entire project will help increase rice 
production—an important contributor to the gross 
domestic product and one of Guyana's major ex
ports. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 16 loans approved for Guyana, seven have been 
closed and nine were financing projects under exe
cution during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $21 million, compared with $11 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Guyana totaled $7.2 million 
in 1989, bringing cumulative contract awards to 
$133.9 million. A contract for $1.2 million was 
awarded in 1989 for fluid meters and counting 
devices to a firm in the United Kingdom. 

In education, the Human Resources Develop
ment program is helping to meet the country's urgent 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Education, Science and Technology 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 
Energy 
Export Financing 

Total 

$155,666 
60,800 
36,382 
33,591 
16,186 
2,000 

$304,625 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

$ 278,751 
15,344 

382,236 
144,593 
411,184 

79,377 

$1,311,485 
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HAITI 

The Bank has made 31 loans totaling $289 mil
l ion to Haiti. Sector emphasis has been on health, 
transportation, agriculture, education and in
dustry. Cumulative disbursements total $197.7 
million. In 1989, the Bank approved two Small 
Project financings and two major technical 
cooperations. 

FLNANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Artisans 

Financing: 792,000 Swiss franc loan (equivalent to 
$500,000) from the SWF; 71,000 Swiss 
franc technical cooperat ion grant 
(equivalent to $45,000) from the same 
resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: The Association Les Ateliers-Ecole de 

Camp Perrin (AECP) 

The financing will be used by Les Ateliers-Ecole de 
Camp Perrin (AECP), a non-profit association of 
artisans established in 1977, to establish a fund to 
acquire imported raw materials for artisans in the Les 
Cayes Plain region of Haiti, to build a warehouse to 
store the materials, and to improve the training to 
these artisans. 

The project will enable the AECP to establish 
new workshops and employ and train 40 artisan ap
prentices while helping to improve and expand the 
production of 82 employees in 11 /l¿'CP-affiliated 
workshops and an estimated 100 independent arti
sans from the Les Cayes Plain region and their 300 
employees. 

The technical cooperation will enable the 
AECP to contract consultants to help improve its 
management production, marketing and evalu
ation systems. 

Support for Industries and Microproducers 

Financing: 810,500 Swiss franc loan (equivalent to 
$500,000) from the SWF; 191,500 Swiss 

YEARLY LENDLNG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

j Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

franc technical cooperat ion grant 
(equivalent to $118,000) from the same 
resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Centre pour le Développement et la Santé 

(CDS) 

The main objective of the financing is to improve the 
living standard of low-income inhabitants of three 
urban slum areas in Haiti. Three subprojects will be 
financed: building and operating an Ice Factory in 
Cité Soleil in Port-au-Prince; building an Ironwork 
Production and Training Center in Raboteaux in 
Gonaives Province; and executing a microenterprise 
credit program in Cité Soleil, Raboteaux and Ka 
Soleil. The project will create at least 72 permanent 
jobs in the two specific enterprises and provide 
approximately 130 small loans per year ewer three 
years to microentrepreneurs. In addition, about 80 
people a year will be trained in vocational skills. 

CDS works with other national and interna
tional donors to improve the standard of living and 
educational levels of low-income Haitians. Its pri-
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mary activity is curative and preventive health pro

grams. One of its subsidiaries. Complexe Medico

Social Cite Soleil, manages one of the most com

prehensive health and social service programs in 
the country and has been instrumental in reducing 
infant mortality rates in Cité Soleil. 

The profits from the ice factory will be used to 
expand health care coverage. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Regional Health System 

Financing: 330.2 million yen technical cooperation 
grant (equivalent to S2,540,000) from 
the JSF. 

Ministry of Public Health and Popula

tion 

Executing 
Agency: 

The project will devise a plan to upgrade health care 

in Haiti by decentralizing authority and improving 
regional health facilities and procedures. The Bank's 
resources will be used by the Ministry of Public 
Health and Population to contract consultants to 
draw up two aspects of the plan: 

• Preparation of prefeasibility and feasibility 
studies of the demand for health services, projected 
health care needs, and ways to decentralize admin

istrative control and strengthen regional health op

erations; 
• Preparation of final engineering designs and 

bidding documents. 
The excessive concentration of health care serv

ices in PortauPrince, the capital, has frustrated the 
development of adequate health facilities in other 
parts of the country. Although 73 percent of Haiti's 
5.5 million population lives in rural areas, the capital 
receives 60 percent of the national health budget and 
has 50 percent of the country's health care personnel. 
A longterm development and investment plan for 
the sector will correct the uneven geographical 
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EDUCATION PROJECTS EX
PAND SCHOOL FACILITIES IN 
HAITI. This fourroom primary 
school housed 60 students per 
room until a new addition added 
three more classrooms. The 
school was one of more than 
130 rural schools constructed 
or remodeled with a $9.6 mil
lion IDB loan to Haiti in 1977. 
Another 71 schools are now 
being improved with funds from 
a 1985 IDB loan. 
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distribution of health services while fostering crea
tion of a viable regional health care system. 

Studies for Rural Road Project 

Financing: 110.5 million yen technical cooperation 
grant (equivalent to $850,000) from the 
JSF. 

Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Public Works, Transport 

and Communications (MTPTC) 

Prefeasibility, feasibility and final design studies will 
be conducted to prepare a project for rehabilitating 
approximately 400 kilometers of rural roads in the 
main agricultural production areas of Haiti. The 400 
kilometers would be selected from an inventory of 
1,000 kilometers that make up the Government's 
pipeline of rural roads in need of repair. The justifi
cation for each selected road segment would include 
technical, economic, engineering, and project bene
ficiary factors, as well as an environmental evaluation 
of the area of influence of the proposed road 
segment. 

Dependable rural roads are fundamental in ag
riculture-oriented Haiti. Most existing roads are im
passable during rainy periods, which means that ag
ricultural produce cannot always be transported to 
market and access to health clinics and schools is 
difficult. The eventual investment project that will 
emerge from these studies will improve this situation, 
and provide jobs during construction. 

ture works. Eighteen schools have been built, 
equipped and are functioning. A second group of 
three schools was completed with community par
ticipation. Construction is underway on a third 
group of 11 schools. The remaining elements of the 
project are in various stages of execution. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 31 loans approved for Haiti, 21 have been 
closed and 10 were financing projects under exe
cution during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $13 million, compared with $9 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Haiti totaled $7.4 million in 
1989, bringing cumulative contract awards to $111.8 
million. A contract for $6.2 million was awarded in 
1989 for contracting services to a Haitian firm. 

The international bidding process has been 
initiated for several separate projects, including ag
riculture, irrigation, education and livestock pro
grams. The Government is interested in new loans 
for the social, irrigation, energy, education and 
roads sectors. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Pr imary a n d Normal School Education: In 1985. 
the Bank approved an $11.9 million loan from the 
FSO to help expand and improve primary and rural 
education in Haiti. The loan is being used by the 
Ministry of Education to remodel or expand 71 rural 
primary schools and three teacher preparatory schools 
and to furnish and equip the schools. Resources are 
also being used to print and distribute 240,000 sets of 
textbooks for students in all primary schools and 
5,000 sets of teachers' manuals for the rural schools. 
Some 3,000 public and private school teachers will be 
trained and a new curriculum developed, along with 
textbooks for the preparatory schools. Despite a 
shortage of construction materials, progress has been 
achieved in the execution of the physical infrastruc-

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Environmental and Public Health $115,474 $145,015 
Transportation and Communications 75,217 118,194 
Agriculture and Fisheries 54,903 92,301 
Education, Science and Technology 17,311 28,700 
Industry and Mining 15,328 24,950 
Export Financing 3,117 4,453 
Other 7,950 8,700 

Total $289,300 $422,31.3 
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HONDURAS 

The Bank has made 72 loans totaling $970 mil
l ion to Honduras. Sector emphasis has been on 
energy, transportation and communications, 
public health, industry and mining, and agricul
ture. Cumulative disbursements total $789.8 
million. In 1989, the Bank approved one major 
technical cooperation and extended the use of a 
line of credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Honduras from the VTF to provide 
short-term financing lor exports of manufactured and 
semi-manufactured goods was extended through re
payments by $200,000. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Pilot Program for Community Built Infrastruc
ture 

Financing: $1,775,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the SPTF. 

Executing 
Agency: The Planning, Coordination and Budget 

Secretariat (SECPLAN) 

The project will organize community groups, train 
workers in construction activities, and build essential 
community facilities such as community centers, 
schools and water and sewage systems as part of a 
pilot program to provide experience in community-
building at the local and national levels. The project 
will be carried out by the SECPLAN with the help of 
four other government agencies and will directly 
benefit an estimated 15,000 low-income persons in 
two rural communities and in three neighborhoods 
of Tegucigalpa. 

SECPLAN will use the Bank's resources to 
contract local consultants and technical staff and 
acquire construction materials, equipment, vehicles, 
furniture and supplies. 

Execution of the project will strengthen repre-

YEARLY LENDLNG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

J Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

sentative local organizations known as "patronatos," 
help to resolve a shortage of housing and sanitary 
facilities in many communities, provide employ
ment, and enhance the quality of life of low-income 
groups. SECPLAN and the other executing agencies 
will also derive experience from the project which 
will help them cany out similar investment projects 
at the municipal, department or national levels in the 
future. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Expans ion of Technical Education: In 1982, the 
Bank approved a $20 million loan from the FSO to 
help Honduras expand mid-level technical educa
tion. In the early 1980s, the Government of Honduras 
had placed a priority on bolstering mid-level educa
tion—grades seven and above—and within those 
grades, special emphasis on technical and pre-voca-
tional education. The Bank's loan is being used to 
improve one mid-level industrial-technical institute, 
build two mid-level agricultural schools and eight in
stitutes with a common multi-disciplinary cycle. 
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WATER PROJECT WILL BENE
FIT LOW-INCOME NEIGHBOR
HOODS IN TEGUCIGALPA, 
HONDURAS. Construction 
workers lay pipe for a primary 
water distribution line to ex
pand the water system of the 
country's biggest city. The proj
ect will include 20,000 house 
connections and 950 public 
water taps for low-income 
neighborhoods. The improve
ments are being financed by a 
$54 million 1986 IDB loan. 
Another IDB loan is now help
ing to improve water systems 
for four medium-size cities in 
Honduras. 

Local counterpart funds are being used to hire addi
tional teachers. By 1989, the project was near com
pletion. The industrial-technical institute is 90 per
cent completed. Principal construction works for the 
agricultural schools have been finished, and the eight 
institutes are finished and functioning. Training the 
additional teachers and acquisition of books and 
equipment for the schools are on schedule. This is the 
second loan the Bank has made to help expand the 
pool of skilled and educated people for the country's 
workforce. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

loans totalling $31 million apprcwed in 1985, is 
virtually completed. The north coast road is an 
important part of the country's highway system and 
provides access to the Aguan River Valley, a region 
of great economic potential. 

Following Bank policy when loan service pay
ments have been overdue for more than 180 days, all 
loans to borrowers in Honduras were placed on a 
non-accrual status as of Ncwember 20, 1989. In 
accord with the policy, and pending overdue pay
ments, no new loans may be approved and disburse
ments under outstanding loans are suspended. 

Of 72 loans approved for Honduras, 53 have been 
closed and 19 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $36.5 million, compared with $67 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Honduras totaled $24.4 
million in 1989, bringing cumulative contract awards 
to $624 million. A contract for $10.5 million was 
awarded in 1989 for water, sewer and utility lines to 
a firm in Honduras. 

The improvement and paving of La Ceiba-Saba-
Corocito Highway, partially financed by two Bank 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Energy $226,563 $ 872,545 
Agriculture and Fisheries 220,848 385,790 
Transportation and Communications 200,351 319,944 
Environmental and Public Health 172,883 275,173 
Industry and Mining 66,142 191,842 
Education, Science and Technology 42,065 66,151 
Urban Development 25,592 42,731 
Preinvestment 8,776 10,533 
Export Financing 7,373 10,393 

Total $970,593 $2,175,102 
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JAMAICA 

The Bank has made 50 loans totaling $707 mil
l ion to Jamaica. Sector emphasis has been o n 
industry and mining, export financing, health, 
agriculture and urban development. Cumula
tive disbursements total $528.9 million. In 1989, 
the Bank approved three loans for two projects, 
one major technical cooperation and extended 
the use of a line of credit for export financing. 

LOANS 

Expansion of Health Services 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(Ln Millions of Dollars) 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$70.5 million from the OC; S3 million 
technical cooperation grant from the 
FSO; the interest on the loan will be 
partially defrayed by the IFF. 

Ministry of Health (MOH) 

The project will expand, rehabilitate and improve the 
efficiency and productivity of health services in 
Jamaica. The Bank's resources will be used by the 
Ministry of Health to arrest deterioration of five major 
Jamaican hospitals and increase their bed capacity by 
18 percent. The major components include: 

• Four existing hospitals at Kingston. Montego 
Bay, St. Ann's Bay and Mandeville. ranging in size 
from 240 to over 900 beds, will be expanded and 
equipped. The 70-bed May Pen Hospital will be 
rebuilt; 

• Diagnostic facilities will be improved at the 
472-bed University Hospital in Kingston, the main 
teaching facility of the University of the West Indies; 

The technical cooperation will improve admin
istrative procedures of the Project Executing Unit and 
contract a local consulting firm to supervise the archi
tectural and engineering aspects of hospital construc
tion. 

Health care has improved steadily in Jamaica in 
recent years, but infectious and parasitic diseases are 
still prevalent in some parts of the country. A decline 
in public health spending, furthermore, has led to de
terioration in the maintenance of public health facili-

1 Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

ties throughout the country. Execution of the project 
will improve health care at the secondary and tertiary 
levels, integrate these levels with the primary system, 
train staff at hospitals and upgrade preventive and 
environmental health services. 

Rural Road Program 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

S1.8 million from the OC, and S28 
million, also from the OC. The interest 
on the $28 million loan will be partially 
defrayed by the IFF. 

Ministry of Construction Works 

The loans will help rebuild approximately 520 miles 
of rural roads and improve road maintenance and 
will consist of two components. 

• Reconstructing some 140 rural roads, averag
ing 3.7 miles in length, including improvement of 
drainage systems, installation of new culverts and 
side ditches, reinforcement of road surfaces, and 
application of a double asphalt surface; 
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• Acquiring construction equipment, tools and 
spare parts to improve road maintenance at the 
Ministry of Construction Works and establishing and 
operating a year-long labor-intensive road mainte
nance pilot program on the rebuilt roads and on 
roads built under a previous stage of the program. 

Jamaica has an extensive road network of some 
3,000 miles of main and secondary roads and some 
8,000 miles of tertiary and urban roads. In recent 
years, portions of the tertiary and urban road network 
have deteriorated due to increased traffic volume, 
poor maintenance, heavy rains and natural disasters 
such as Hurricane Gilbert which caused an estimated 
$1 billion of damage to crops, roads, bridges, facto
ries, homes and public utilities in 1988. 

Maintaining the rural road system will help 
stimulate domestic food production by providing 
better links between rural areas and market and dis
tribution points. It will also help narrow the gap be
tween urban and rural living standards. The Bank is 
the only international institution involved in improv
ing and maintaining rural roads in Jamaica. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of previous lines 
of credit to Jamaica from the VTF and the OC to 
provide short-term financing for exports of manufac
tured and semi-manufactured goods and for intra-
regional exports was extended through repayments 
by $11 million and $4 million, respectively. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Support for Development of Environmental 
Database 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$1,120,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Government of Jamaica and Centre for 
Nuclear Sciences of the University of 
West Indies 

The financing will establish an environmental moni
toring and evaluation system for Jamaica by develop
ing an environmental database. Air, water and soil 
samples will be taken from areas known to contain 
pollution— industrial plants, coastal areas receiving 
high levels of pollutants from inland sources and 
streams and rivers. Along with the computer data
base, image analysis maps from the sampling areas 

will be developed and environmental technicians 
will be trained. The project will also draw up a 
proposal for an on-going monitoring and reporting 
system in the Government. 

Pollutant concentrations will be measured us
ing a technique called neutron activation analysis. 
This technique is far more sensitive than conven
tional chemical analysis, and will allow for earlier de
tection of certain environmental changes and thus a 
quicker response by Government agencies and oth
ers in monitoring and enforcement activities. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Industr ia l a n d Tour ism Credit: In 1986, the Bank 
approved a $15 million loan from the OC to support 
industrial and tourism development in Jamaica. The 
National Development Bank, a government agency, 
is using the IDB loan to provide medium-and long-
term credits to eligible beneficiaries to install, ex
pand, modernize and diversify industrial and tourism 
activities; to increase exports and substitute imports; 
and to help create jobs and import raw materials and 
spare parts. The project coincides with Jamaica's 
recent efforts to reduce its dependence on the 
bauxite-alumina industry and diversify its activities 
by developing the agricultural, tourism and industrial 
sectors. By 1989, loan resources were fully commit
ted and 95 percent disbursed. Thirteen subloans have 
been made for industrial activities such as plastics, 
milk processing, animal feed, edible oils, bedding 
and box juices. Fourteen subloans were made to 
refurbish and rebuild hotel facilities and for repairs of 
facilities damaged by Hurricane Gilbert in 1988. In 
response to the continuing demand for such a credit 
program, the Government of Jamaica is preparing a 
proposal for a second stage of the program. 

Pr imary Education Program: In 1983, the Bank 
approved two loans totaling $45.8 million—$37.2 
million from the OC and $8.6 million from the FSO to 
help the Ministry of Education in Jamaica carry out a 
program to improve primary education by upgrading 
teaching techniques and classroom facilities. The 
original project consisted of improving or construct
ing some 42 primary schools and designing and 
implementing a teacher training program. After 
Hurricane Gilbert caused severe damage to the 
nation's schools, the project was reformulated and 
the physical targets of the project were expanded 
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CREDITS HELP EXPAND INDUS 
TRY IN JAMAICA. Quality con
trol is the last step before label
ing bottles of mouthwash at 
Windsor Laboratories Ltd., a 
medicinal products factory in 
Kingston. Funds from a $40 
million IDB loan to Jamaica in 
1984 were channeled through 
the National Export-Import 
Bank to rehabilitate the coun
try 's private industry by provid
ing short- and medium-term 
foreign exchange credits to 
firms like Windsor Laboratories, 
which depend on imported 
materials for the products they 
produce. 

without changing the total cost of the program. Of the 
650 schools damaged by Hurricane Gilbert, 480 are 
currently under reconstruction and 11 schools have 
been refurbished. Work has been completed on 24 
new schools and continues on six other schools. 
Some 200 teachers were trained in 1989, bringing the 
total to 940 since the inception of the project. 

velopment, has benefited 6,325 farmers. Credits were 
used for purchase of equipment, livestock, infra
structure and working capital. The project is virtually 
completed and the Bank is considering a second 
phase of the program which would also include an 
improved soil conservation and support component. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 50 loans approved for Jamaica, 28 have been 
closed and 22 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. One loan was closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $67 million, 
compared with $33 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Jamaica totaled $6.5 million in 1989, bringing cumu
lative contract awards to $243.2 million. A contract 
for $3.4 million was awarded in 1989 for food 
products machinery to a firm from the United States. 

Despite a periodic shortage of local counterpart 
funds, the Bank was able to double the amount of 
resources disbursed in 1989 compared with 1988. 

A small farm credit program, financed by the 
Bank and the International Fund for Agricultural De-

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Industry and Mining $178,203 $ 254,995 
Export Financing 113,999 141,428 
Environmental and Public Health 92,209 137,126 
Agriculture and Fisheries 81,288 211,635 
Urban Development 66,927 95,000 
Transportation and Communications 57,131 87,150 
Education, Science and Technology 56,465 74,500 
Energy 42,660 59,900 
Tourism 11,192 26,410 
Preinvestment 7,288 11,900 

Total $707,362 $1,100,044 
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MEXICO 

The Bank has made 131 loans totaling $5,139 
mill ion to Mexico. Sector emphasis has been o n 
agriculture and fisheries, industry and mining, 
health, transportation and communications, and 
t o u r i s m . Cumulat ive d i s b u r s e m e n t s tota l 
$4,734.7 million. In 1989, the Bank approved 
one loan for one project, two Small Project 
financings and extended the use of a Une of 
credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

Agriculture and Fisheries Credit Program 

Financing: $140 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Fideicomisos Instituidos con Relación 

a la Agricultura (FIRA) 

The loan will prcwide the complementary resources 
required to carry out the seventh stage of a credit 
program designed to stimulate agriculture and fish
ery production in Mexico. It complements a $160 
million credit approved by the Bank in 1987 to foster 
investments in the agricultural sector. 

The Bank's resources will be used by the Agri
cultural Trust Funds, Fideicomisos Instituidos con 
Relación a la Agricultura (FIRA), a specialized 
agency of the Banco de Mexico, to extend credits to 
individual producers and producer groups and asso
ciations to finance investments in a wide variety of 
projects in the agriculture and fisheries sectors. These 
will include cropping, stock raising and agroindustry 
in the farming sector, repair and equipping of tuna 
and shrimp fleets, construction of processing plants 
and breeding ponds for fish farming, and the organi
zation of transportation and marketing networks and 
related activities in the fisheries sector. 

Agriculture employs 27 percent of Mexico's 
labor force, represents 10 percent of gross domestic 
product and in 1987 accounted for 7.5 percent of total 
exports. Fishing has expanded vigorously since 1968 
and fleet size has quadrupled to over 65,000 vessels. 
Shrimp exports to the United States in 1987 alone 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(Ln Millions of Dollars) 
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totaled $435 million. 
The agriculture and fishing sectors were par

ticularly hard hit by the effects of economic reces
sion. Lack of credit has inhibited agricultural exports 
and severely undercut sectoral productivity, while 
total production of fish and fish products peaked at 
1,565,465 metric tons in 1981 and strong measures 
have been taken to prevent a major decline in fishery 
stocks due to overfishing. 

As one of the country's leading medium- and 
long-term lenders, FLRA has been assigned a key 
role in recapitalizing the sectors, helping stimulate 
product diversification and technological innova
tion. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Mexico from the OC to provide 
medium-term financing for exports of capital goods 
and services to other member countries of the Bank 
was extended through repayments of $3.1 million. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Microentrepreneur Credit Program 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $22,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fondo para el Fomento Estatal de las 

Actividades Productivas de Oaxaca 
(FIDEAPO) 

The project will establish a revolving credit line to 
enable entrepreneurs to acquire raw materials, work
ing capital, equipment, tools and machinery for the 
production of goods and services. Beneficiaries will 
include low-income individuals or groups in urban 
and rural areas in the State of Oaxaca. The technical 
cooperation will provide training to beneficiaries and 
strengthen the institutional capabilities of FIDEAPO. 

The State of Oaxaca, a mountainous area, has 
found it difficult to provide economic opportunity 
and social services to its residents. There are approxi
mately 5,000 microenterprises in the State, ranging 
from textiles and wooden furniture to bread and 
cheese producers. The majority of enterprises are 
family-run operations. Execution of the project will 
help raise living standards and create jobs for some 
700 beneficiaries. 

Support for Small-Scale Agricultural Producers 

Financing: $200,000 loan in local currency from 
the FSO. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Desarrollo Rural de Chihuahua. A.G. 

(DERUCHIH) 

The program will improve the social and economic 
conditions of poor farmers in depressed areas of the 
State of Chihuahua by creating new jobs and raising 
productivity. Crop farmers may borrow funds, gener
ally less than S2,000. to use as working capital and to 
procure agricultural machinery and equipment and 
other inputs. Dairy farmers will be able to borrow up 
to $4,000 to purchase cows, storage tanks, medicine 
and silos. Training will be provided. The financing 
supplements an earlier loan for $300,000 approved in 
1985. 

Beneficiaries are peasant landholders who 

work an average plot of 6 to 8 hectares. Many of 
the farmers belong to self-managing groups and 
their crops, which include wheat, corn, soybeans, 
sorghum, and peanuts, as well as their dairy 
products are primarily produced for their own con
sumption. Household incomes are low. Women 
participate to a significant degree in productive 
activities in the rural areas of Chihuahua, and part 
of the training program will be designed specifi
cally for them. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Rural Te lephone Program: While the telephone 
system of Mexico has grown impressively in recent 
years, most of that growth has occurred in urban 
areas. Only six percent of rural communities with less 
than 10,000 inhabitants have access to telephones. 
To help improve service in rural areas, the Bank in 
1985 approved a $25.9 million loan from the OC for 
a rural telephone program that will benefit about 
1.200 communities. The loan was extended to 
Nacional Financiera, S.N.C. (NAFIN), a financial 
agency of the Mexican Government. The program, 
which is being executed by Teléfonos de Mexico, S.A. 
de C. V. (TEIMEX), covers construction of about 58 
subsystems with multiple-access radio central switch
ing offices and accessory equipment; installing public 
telephones in 1,200 communities; and building and 
operating four regional maintenance centers. To 
date, work has been completed on the first 21 
systems and approximately 320 public telephones 
have been installed. 

Bahías de Huatulco Tourist Complex: The Bahias 
de Huatulco region in the State of Oaxaca on the 
Pacific Coast is sparsely populated and relatively 
isolated. In order to help bring the area into the 
economic mainstream and contribute to regional de
velopment, Mexico is building a tourism complex on 
a strip of land about 30 kilometers long and 7 
kilometers wide. To support this effort, the Bank 
approved a S45 million loan in 1985 from the OC. The 
project is being carried out by Nacional Financiera, 
S.N.C.(NAFIN) through its trust fund—the Fondo 
Nacional de Fomento al Turismo (FONATUR). The 
Bank's resources are being used to help finance the 
project's first stage—investments in basic infrastruc
ture. To date, about 70 percent of the physical 
works have been concluded, including airport 
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SMALL PRODUCERS IN MON
TERREY, MEXICO USE CRED
ITS TO BUY RAW MATERIALS. 
Aurelio Rodriguez (right) and 
family members show off a 
nearly finished carved chair 
produced at their family-run 
furniture shop. A small loan 
from the Asesoría Dinámica a 
Microempresas A.C. (ADMICJ a 
non-profit organization, en
abled them to purchase more 
wood to increase their produc
tion. ADMIC received Small 
Project loans totalling $500,000 
from the IDB in 1981 and 1983 
to provide credits to small busi
nesses in Monterrey. 
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facilities, access roads, a harbor and marina, two 
sewage treatment plants, and urban streets and 
plazas. Work continues on a hotel, other potable 
water and sewage facilities, electricity installations 
and an environmental conservation program. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 131 loans approved for Mexico, 113 have been 
closed and 18 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Three loans were closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $326 million, 
compared with $298.7 million in 1988. Contract 
awards for goods and services for projects in execu
tion in Mexico totaled $12.8 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $766.7 million. A 
contract for $3.1 million was awarded in 1989 for 
water, sewer and utility lines to a firm in Mexico. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Agriculture and Fisheries $2,767,572 $ 6,987,409 
Industry and Mining 764,257 2,848,217 
Environmental and Public Health 453,897 879,370 
Transportation and Communications 404,904 744,047 
Tourism 335,470 928,167 
Education, Science and Technology 144,515 264,377 
Urban Development 92,358 194,181 
Preinvestment 88,498 148,740 
Export Financing 88,107 121,458 

Total $5,1.39,578 S13.115.966 
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NICARAGUA 

The Bank has made 45 loans totaling $461 mil

l ion to Nicaragua. Of the 45, sector emphasis has 
been o n agriculture and fisheries, transporta

tion, energy, health and industry. Cumulative 
disbursements total $46l million and cumula

tive contract awards remained at $ 153.4 million. 

Following Bank policy when loan service pay

ments have been overdue for more than 180 days, all 
loans to borrowers in Nicaragua were placed on a 
nonaccrual status as of May 6, 1988. In accord with 
the policy, and pending overdue payments, no new 
loans may be approved and disbursements under 
outstanding loans are suspended. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 196189 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Agriculture and Fisheries $190,829 $444,843 
Transportation and Communications 65,259 117,414 
Energy 54,278 132,340 
Environmental and Public Health 53,138 89,050 
Industry and Mining 43,136 76,453 
Urban Development 22,514 39,496 
Education, Science and Technology 10,333 12,297 
Export Financing 1,826 2,609 
Preinvestment 148 398 
Other 20,000 20,000 

Total $461,461 $934,900 
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PANAMA 

The Bank has made 76 loans totaling $847 mil
l ion to Panama. Of the 76 loans, 54 have been 
closed and 22 are financing projects under exe
cution. Sector emphasis has been o n energy, 
transportation and communications, agricul
ture and fisheries, education and urban devel
opment. Cumulative disbursements total $694.6 
mil l ion and cumulative contract awards re
mained at $156.9 million. 

Following Bank policy when loan service pay
ments have been overdue for more than 180 days, all 
loans to borrowers in Panama were placed on a non-
accrual status as of March 25,1988. In accord with the 
policy, and pending overdue payments, no new 
loans may be approved and disbursements under 
outstanding loans are suspended. 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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i ^ Yearly Disbursements 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Energy $274,568 
Transportation and Communications 177,539 
Agriculture and Fisheries 142,648 
Education, Science and Technology 70,012 
Urban Development 52,510 
Environmental and Public Health 44,378 
Industry and Mining 35,102 
Preinvestment 20,904 
Tourism 19,941 
Export Financing 1,000 
Other 8,340 

Total S846.942 

597,272 
396,304 
236,662 
108,500 
82,420 
72,157 
61,694 
41,460 
41,822 

1,429 

$1,639,720 
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PARAGUAY 

The Bank has made 59 loans totaling $618 mil
l ion to Paraguay. Sector emphasis has been on 
energy, agriculture, public health, transporta
tion, communications and education. Cumula
tive disbursements total $493.8 million. In 1989, 
the Bank approved one loan for one project and 
one Small Project financing. 

LOAN 

Road Improvement 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$18.8 million from the FSO; $200,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Ministry of Public Works, through the 
Highways Directorate 

The loan will finance paving of the 98.6-kilometer 
dirt highway between Santa Rosa and Yby Yaú, 
which will promote development in northeastern 
Paraguay and facilitate trade with Brazil. The project 
also includes preparing studies of the environmental 
impact of the project and developing a National 
Highway Conservation Plan. 

The Environmental Management Plan will pre
scribe how the area is to be settled and the manage
ment measures that will be used, particularly to stem 
soil erosion and to institute conservation practices. 

The National Highway Conservation Plan will 
determine the priorities for investments in rebuilding 
and improving the highway network so that the roads 
meet acceptable technical specifications. 

At present the Santa Rosa-Yby Yaú highway is 
closed an average of more than 60 days a year due 
to rains. The roadway is increasingly important to the 
region as farm production has grown by five percent 
annually, and long-range traffic is increasing by six 
percent yearly. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECTS 

Support for Small-Scale Farmers 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $120,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Crédito Agrícola de Habilitación (CAH) 

The credit program will help seven agricultural coop
eratives made up of some 850 indigenous families in 
the Chaco Central region of Paraguay to finance land 
preparation and to acquire farm equipment and live
stock. Cooperative members farm about 1,900 hec
tares of land, of which approximately 85 percent is 
used for crops such as cotton, peanuts and spurge 
and the remainder for grazing. The technical coop
eration will strengthen the cooperatives, expand 
training for farmers and establish the first of four 
permanent Training Centers for Indigenous Women. 
An earlier Small Project Financing, approved in 1979, 
consolidated the cooperatives. 

99 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

The Chaco Central is a semi-arid region. The 
land's production capacity is not sufficient to provide 
a sole source of income to the farmers. Cooperative 
members come from the Lengua and Nivaclé ethnic 
groups, located in an area of Mennonite communi
ties, and their crops are in regular demand by the 
Mennonites. The project will help increase produc
tivity, improve marketing and make the beneficiaries 
more self-sufficient. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Electric Power Distr ibut ion Network: In 1982, the 
Bank approved two loans totaling $24 million—$10.8 
million from the OC and $13-2 million from the 
FSO—to finance an expansion of the electric power 
distribution system in Asunción and rural areas of 
Paraguay. The loans have been used by the Admin
istración Nacional de Electricidad (ANDE), the 
nation's electric power agency, to carry out a six-part 
program to expand the capacity of the Lambare sub
station in Asuncion; install a transformer substation in 
San Estanislao, located in the San Pedro Department; 
significantly expand the underground distribution 
system of Asuncion; rebuild the distribution system 
in the Barrio Sajonia in Asuncion; and supply electric
ity to consumers in the Central and Cordillera Depart
ments, and in the San Estanislao-Rosario area. In 
1987, due to lower costs incurred in executing the 
project, the project's scope was enlarged to include 
distribution lines to serve consumers in Bella Vista, 
Itapua, Caazapa and Antequera. 

By the end of 1989, the project was virtually 
completed. The Lambare and San Estanislao substa
tions have been operating since the end of 1987. The 
underground distribution system in Asuncion is in 
operation. In Barrio Sajonia, 127 kilometers of medium-
and low-tension lines have been installed. Over 711 
kilometers of lines—38 percent above the original 
goal—have been built in the Central and Cordillera 
Departments, and distribution works have been 
completed for the San Estanislao-Rosario area. The 
distribution lines to Bella Vista, Itapua, Caazapa and 
Antequera are in the final stages of execution. The 
network's improvement permitted new users to be 
incorporated into the system. 

Flood Rehabil i tat ion: In 1983, the Bank approved 
a $34.5 million loan from the FSO to help rebuild and 
repair public works damaged by exceptionally heavy 

rainfall earlier that year that caused the Paraguay and 
Parana Rivers to flood. The loan was used by the Mi
nisterio de Obras Públicas y Comunicaciones, the 
Corporación de Obras Sanitarias and the Instituto de 
Desarrollo Municipal to carry out three subprograms 
involving road infrastructure, water and sewage 
repair and urban infrastructure. The program, which 
has been completed, accomplished: 

• Repairing and rebuilding 496 kilometers of 
national highways, 557 kilometers of principal high
ways, 1,513 kilometers of secondary roads and 32 
bridges. Principal ports were also repaired; 

• Rebuilding damaged facilities, constructing 
dikes on river banks to protect water purification 
plants or sewer outlets and procuring dredging 
equipment to remove sediment in Asuncion, Alberdi, 
Pilar, Concepción, Coronel Oviedo and Villarrica; 

• Repairing streets, schools, health facilities, 
hospitals, and bridges in 18 cities. Some $16.5 million 
of the original loan was not utilized and was subse
quently cancelled. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 59 loans approved for Paraguay, 41 have been 
closed and 18 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. One loan was closed in 1989-
Disbursements during the year totaled $15.1 million, 
compared with $28.9 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Paraguay totaled S3.1 million in 1989, bringing 
cumulative contract awards to $250.7 million. A 
contract for $1.4 million was awarded in 1989 for 
aluminum rolling and drawing to a firm in Paraguay. 

The Bank expects to initiate disbursements on 
two projects involving $59.9 million in Bank re
sources as soon as contractual conditions are met. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Energy $175,196 
Agriculture and Fisheries 136,116 
Environmental and Public Health 102,672 
Transportation and Communications 93,838 
Education, Science and Technology 59,736 
Industry and Mining 24,561 
Urban Development 10,769 
Tourism 4,410 
Preinvestment 436 
Other 10,855 

Total $618,589 

$287,012 
234,211 
171,017 
144,431 
84,280 
41,513 
16,273 
6,608 

582 

$985,927 
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PERU 

The Bank has made 110 loans totaling $1,602 
mill ion to Peru. Sector emphasis has been on ag
riculture and fisheries, industry and milling. 
energy, export financing, and transportation 
and communicat ions . Cumulative disburse
ments total $1,494.1 million. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Hydroelectr ic Plant a n d Transmiss ion Lines: In 
1987, the Bank approved four loans totaling $69.9 
million from the OC to help Peru complete the 
Mantaro-Pachachaca-Callahuanca transmission line. 
Work on the project was initiated with financing from 
Bank loans approved in 1981, but construction on 
this and other electric projects in the country has 
been delayed due to the economic downturn. The 
1987 loan also financed feasibility studies of the 
Huallaga hydroelectric plant and building the 75,000-
kilowatt Carhuaquero hydroelectric complex in the 
Chiclayo area. The Empresa de Electricidad del Perú 
SA. (ELECTROPERU) is executing this program, which 
will ensure the availability of electric energy in the 
country, including Lima, and increase the coverage of 
the Central-North Interconnected System. To date, 
the Mantaro-Pachachaca-Callachuanca transmission 
line has been completed and is operating. Feasibility 
studies for the Huallaga plant are 90 percent com
pleted. Civil works for the Carhuaquero plant are in 
an advanced stage of completion. 

YEARLY LENDLNG AND DLSBURSEMENTS 
(Ln Millions of Dollars) 

300 

250 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 r 
80 81 82 83 84 85 86 87 88 89 

1 Yearly Lending 

H I Yearly Disbursements 

ments have been overdue for more than 180 days, all 
loans to borrowers in Peru were placed on a non-
accrual status as of February 16, 1989- In accord with 
the policy, and pending overdue payments, no new 
loans may be approved and disbursements under 
outstanding loans are suspended. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 110 loans approved for Peru, 94 have been closed 
and 16 were financing projects under execution 
during 1989. One loan was closed in 1989- Disburse
ments during the year totaled $6.5 million, compared 
with $87.9 million in 1988. No contracts were awarded 
in Peru in 1989, and the cumulative contract awards 
remained at $601.3 million. An agricultural credit 
program has helped nearly 12,000 poor farmers to in
crease production. An oil exploration project is also 
well underway. 

Following Bank policy when loan service pay-

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Agriculture and Fisheries $ 456,327 $1,173,252 
Industry and Mining 433,118 1,170,542 
Energy 203,824 578,147 
Export Financing 158,756 233,937 
Transportation and Communications 150,017 311,346 
Environmental and Public Health 97,178 225,980 
Urban Development 53,685 101,105 
Tourism 30,527 71,400 
Preinvestment 10,228 28,396 
Education, Science and Technology 9,308 22,330 

Total Sl.602,968 $3,916,435 
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SURINAME 

The Bank has made five loans totaling $21 mil
l ion to Suriname. Sector emphasis has been on 
education, health, and industry and mining. Cu
mulative disbursements total $4.2 million. In 
1989, the Bank approved one major technical 
cooperation. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Suriname Potable Water Project Study 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

S1.85 million technical cooperation from 
the FSO. 

Suriname Water Supply Company 

of the loan had been committed for 23 subprojects re
lated to the food, beverages, lumber, forestry, furni
ture, clothing and construction industries. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Suriname became a member of the Bank in 1980 and 
the first loan was approved in 1985. Currently, all 
projects are under execution. Disbursements during 
the year totaled $1.9 million, compared with $1.2 mil
lion in 1988. A contract totaling $1.3 million was 
awarded to a consulting firm in Canada for feasibility 
studies and final designs in 1989. 

The drinking water supply system of Paramaribo and 
its metropolitan area is insufficient to meet current 
and future demand. This technical cooperation, ap
proved on a contingency recovery basis, will finance 
preparation of final designs for a water supply project 
that will overhaul, improve and expand Paramaribo's 
water supply system to meet demand up to the year 
2010. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Industr ia l Credit Program: Suriname has tradition
ally relied on bauxite, alumina and aluminum to earn 
foreign exchange income for the country. In the past 
few years, the worldwide depression in the markets 
of these commodities has severely curtailed Suri-
name's ability to earn foreign exchange to finance im
ports. In 1986, the Bank approved a $6 million loan 
from the OC to finance a global industrial credit 
program, designed to establish, expand or improve 
industrial and agroindustrial enterprises that would 
earn or save foreign exchange and create jobs. Loan 
resources are being used by the National Develop
ment Bank (NOB), a government agency, to grant 
subloans to finance fixed assets such as equipment, 
machinery and tools; to build and start up industrial 
plants and maintenance shops and to transport 
industrial inputs or products. By 1989, the resources 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 

Education, Science and Technology 
Environmental and Public Health 
Industry and Mining 

Total 

$ 7,985 
7,762 
5,861 

$21,608 

$10,000 
9,700 

10,000 

$29,700 
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TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO 

The Bank has made 19 loans totaling $184 mil
l ion to Trinidad and Tobago. Sector emphasis 
has been o n urban development, education, ag
riculture and fisheries, transportation and public 
health. Cumulative disbursements total $40.4 
million. In 1989, the Bank approved one loan 
for one project, a Small Project financing, one 
major technical cooperation and extended the 
use of a Une of credit for export financing. 

LOAN 

National Settlements Program 

Financing: $66.1 million from the OC; $1.5 million 
technical cooperation grant from the 
FSO. The interest rate on the loan will 
be partially defrayed by the IFF. 

Executing 
Agency: The Ministry of Settlements and 

Public Utilities 

The project will help Trinidad and Tobago resolve 
the problem of mushrooming squatter settlements by 
offering affordable housing to low-income groups. It 
is entitled the National Settlements Program and will 
have three components: 

• Development of some 5,000 new residential 
lots on approximately 18 urban sites throughout the 
country involving the installation of individual water, 
sewage and electricity connections, storm drains, 
roadways and walkways; granting credits to squatters 
to build their own shelters; and construction of 
community centers on sites with 400 or more dwell
ings; 

• Granting land titles and installing of water, 
electricity, sanitary, highway and other services for 
some 2,500 squatter families located on state-owned 
land mainly in the Port-of-Spain area; 

• Improving management, cost control and fi
nancial and cost-accounting systems at the National 
Housing Authority (NHA) and the reappraisal by the 
government of its shelter and land settlement policy. 

The technical cooperation will assist the NHA in 

YEARLY LENDING* AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 
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Trinidad and Tobago, which joined the Bank in 1967. did not 
apply for Bank loans between 1975 and 1984. 

carrying out the settlements programs. 
The recent decline in world prices of petroleum 

and sugar, Trinidad and Tobago's principal dollar 
earners, accelerated the migration of rural families to 
the cities, resulting in an increase in the number of 
illegal squatters in residential areas from approxi
mately 4,000 to 30,000 between 1978-87. Reduced 
revenues also forced the government in 1986 to cut 
back housing production to less than 500 units. Then 
in 1986 the new national administration decided to 
reduce the government role in the financing of 
housing construction, to lower the unit cost of its 
public housing program, and to encourage greater 
private sector investment in the field. 

Expor t Financing: In 1989, the use of a previous 
line of credit to Trinidad and Tobago from the VTF 
to provide short-term financing for exports of manu
factured and semi-manufactured goods was extended 
through repayments by $1.6 million. 
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FINANCING FOR SMALL PROJECT 

Support for San Fernando Rehabilitation 
Centre 

Financing: $500,000 loan from the FSO; $138,000 
technical cooperation grant from the 
same resources. 

Intermediary 
Institution: The San Fernando Rehabilitation 

Centre Ltd. (SFRC) 

The San Fernando Rehabilitation Centre is a private, 
non-profit organization that provides rehabilitation 
training and employment placement for the disabled 
in southern Trinidad and Tobago. The Centre pro
vides technical training courses, followed by work 
assignments in one of the light manufacturing units 
at the center. Activities include a woodworking shop, 
a sewing shop and a print and book binding shop. 
The Centre has been very successful in winning 
contracts from both national and regional businesses 
and organizations. Graduates of this institute, the 
only such rehabilitation institute in the country, have 
gone on to jobs in the private sector or government. 

The Bank's financing will expand and equip the 
Centre's rehabilitation, training and light manufactur
ing workshop areas. It will also be used to design a 
Vocational Assessment Unit, the first of its kind in 
Trinidad and Tobago. That unit will allow SFRC to 
measure motor and perceptual coordination, dexter
ity, work habits and other factors. Goodwill Indus
tries of Canada has offered to train an individual in 
vocational assessment. The project includes setting 
up a revolving credit program for Centre graduates to 
enable them to begin their own business. The 
average subloan will range from SI,000 to $3,000. 
Approximately 350 disabled people will benefit from 
the project. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Computerization and Management Services 

Financing: $500,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Organization and Management Divi

sion of the Office of the Prime Minister 

This program will provide training in management 
and computer technology to ministries, departments 
and other fiscal entities so that they can deliver their 
services more efficiently. Specifically, the technical 
cooperation includes the following: 

• Help key public agencies to formulate global 
computer policies and standards; 

• Train staff in these agencies in the practical 
use of electronic data processing systems; 

• Develop strategic plans for introducing com
puterization in all fiscal agencies of the government. 

Government agencies, which use computers to 
a much lesser extent than the private sector, are 
under increasing pressure to computerize, due to the 
volume and complexity of information that must be 
managed. This program will train some 200 public 
officers in the design, use and analysis of computer 
systems. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Pr imary Education: In 1986, the Bank approved 
two loans totaling $36.8 million—$29-9 million from 
the OC and $6.9 million from the FSO—to help 
Trinidad and Tobago in its long-term effort to im
prove its educational system. Administered by the 
Ministry of Education, the loans are helping to 
establish a Learning Resource Center, which will 
serve as the focus for future education activities in the 
country. The Center will provide in-service training 
for teachers and curricula development, as well as 
support services for the educational system. The 
loans are also being used to start a comprehensive 
retraining program for teachers and personnel of the 
Ministry of Education; to establish library facilities in 
all primary schools and train 500 school teachers in 
library science; and to construct and equip 16 pri
mary schools. Work on the Learning Resource Center 
has begun. Several schools have been completed 
ahead of schedule. Construction of other schools is 
well underway. Approximately 370,000 textbooks 
have been distributed. Some 250 teachers have been 
trained and the remaining 250 are taking courses. An 
additional 19 schools will be built because of cost 
savings in the construction phases. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 19 loans approved for Trinidad and Tobago, 12 
have been closed and 7 were financing projects 
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PRODUCING STEEL RODS FOR 
EXPORT IN TRINIDAD AND TO
BAGO. Banding prior to ship
ment is the last step in the pro
duction ofrebarsfor construc
tion at the CENTRIN Merchant 
Bar Mill, Point Lisas. Using Ital
ian technology, the $100 million 
plant was built in 1983 as a 
downstream industry to use 
steel from Trinidad's steel mill 
Funds from a $1 million IDB 
loan from the Venezuelan Trust 
Fund in 1985, channeled 
through Trinidad and Tobago's 
Export Development Bank, 
provided a short term line of 
credit to CENTRIN to discount 
the price of export of rebars 
and other steel construction 
products. 

under execut ion during 1989. Disbursements dur ing 
the year totaled $9-6 million, compared with $8.3 
million in 1988. No major contracts w e r e awarded in 
Trinidad and T o b a g o in 1989, a n d the cumulat ive 
contract awards remained at $31.2 million. 

An educat ion program (See Progress High
lights) and the East-West Corridor Highway project 
have achieved targets be low anticipated costs. O n e 
arm of the East-West Corr idor—the Churchill-Roosev
elt Highway—was rebuilt utilizing only $9 million of 
Bank funds instead of the $24 million that was 
originally approved . A 6.1 ki lometer extens ion of the 
four-lane h ighway is be ing studied and remaining 
balances after these works will be cancelled. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Urban Development 
Education, Science and Technology 
Agriculture and Fisheries 
Transportation and Communications 
Environmental and Public Health 
Preinvestment 
Export Financing 

Total 

$ 70,313 
39,966 
29,080 
25,219 

8,380 
5,943 
5,340 

$184,241 

Total Cost of 
the Projects 

t 97,240 
55,219 
42,898 
59,398 
20,090 

9,239 
5,251 

$289,335 

105 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVEU )PMENT BANK 

URUGUAY 

The Bank has made 59 loans totaling $737 mil
l ion to Uruguay. Sector emphasis has been o n 
transportation and communications, agricul
ture and fisheries, public health, energy and 
urban development. Cumulative disbursements 
total $458.3 million. In 1989, the Bank approved 
one loan for one project and two major techni
cal cooperations. 

LOAN 

Montevideo Urban Sanitation 

YEARLY LENDLNG AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

160 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

$26,160,000 from the OC. The interest 
on the loan will be partially defrayed by 
the IFF. 

Montevideo Municipal Government 
(IMM) 

The loan will finance the second stage of a project to 
channel the sewage and wastewaters currently being 
discharged into the Rio de la Plata at Montevideo, into 
a 1.2-kilometer underwater outfall and decontami
nate a 30-kilometer coastal strip that is used for water 
sports, recreation and fishing. The IMM will use the 
Bank's resources to continue work financed by a $78 
million loan approved by the Bank in 1981. 

The current project will channel to the under
water outfall all wastewater flows from the sewage 
system now being discharged along the coastline 
between Punta Carretas and Escolleras de Sarandí in 
the central portion of the project area and will consist 
of three subprojects: 

• The Western interceptor subproject, includ
ing some 6.5-kilometers of intercepting sewers ex
tending from Escolleras de Sarandí to a pumping 
station at Punta Carretas, and the Guaraní and 
Paraguay pumping stations; 

• The Nacientes de Chacarita and the Canteras 
basin subproject, including 150 kilometers of separate 
sewer systems to serve 32,200 persons on 426 hec
tares of land and building and equipping of the 
Maronas and Flor de Maronas pumping station; 

1 Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

• The Chacarita Basin subproject, comprising a 
32-kilometer separate sewage system to serve 13,800 
persons on 265 hectares of land, the Géminis and 
Casavalle pumping stations, and expanding the 
Chacarita pumping station. 

The project also includes the acquisition of ve
hicles, maintenance equipment, computers and re
lated equipment to help the IMM supervise execution 
of the works. 

Since Montevideo's first sewage system was 
built over a century ago, untreated water has been 
discharged at more than 20 points along the 30-
kilometer coastal strip in front of Montevideo.The 
first stage of the project, now virtually complete, 
involved building 13-5 kilometers of interceptors and 
accessory works, pumping stations, outfalls and 
screens and the underway outfall 1.2 kilometers long 
and 1.8 meters in diameter. 

Execution of stage one of the project will reduce 
present pollution over more than 50 percent of the 
coastal area of Montevideo that is open to the public 
and over 95 percent of the city's beaches. 
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ELECTRIC PUMPS IRRIGATE 
URUGUAYAN RICE FIELDS. 
Clive Woodham (right), IDB 
agricultural specialist, dis
cusses new electric water 
pumps for the San Pedro Irri
gation System in Uruguay with 
Ernesto Sterling, technical offi
cer for SAMAN, the National As
sociation of Rice Mills. The elec
tric pumps, of Swedish manu
facture, replaced old diesel-run 
pumps in 1988, have reduced 
cost sharply, require little main
tenance, and can pump 5,000 
liters of water a second . The 
IDB approved a $27.3 million 
loan in 1986 to build 500 kilo
meters of electricity distribu
tion lines in the huge Laguna 
Merin rice-growing area to 
convert 100 irrigation pump
ing stations from diesel to elec
tricity. 

TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Architectural Designs for Pasteur Hospital 

Financing: 286 million yen (equivalent to $2.2 
million) from the JSF. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Ministry of Public Health 

This project will prepare final architectural designs 
for constructing the new 290-bed Pasteur Hospital in 
Montevideo. The Ministry of Public Health will use 
the Bank's cooperation to complete a feasibility study 
prepared by the ministry and submitted to the Bank 
in December 1988. The study accompanied a request 
to the Bank by the Government of Uruguay for a loan 
to finance the construction of the new Pasteur 
Hospital to replace the old structure which was origi
nally designed as a school and has been used as 
military barracks. 

The Government of Uruguay plans to restruc
ture the national health program to expand health 
care coverage and improve the quality of health 
services and physical health facilities. Rebuilding the 
Pasteur Hospital has been awarded top priority 
under this plan. 

National Environmental Study 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agency: 

S514.000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Planning and Budget Office (OPP) 

The project will involve the preparation of a nation
wide environmental study in Uruguay to serve as the 
basis for the incorporation of environmental man
agement concepts into development planning and 
the coordination of government efforts in the field. 
The study will contain an analysis of the national en
vironment and specific recommendations for the 
management and conservation of natural resources. 
It will also involve planning a computerized environ
mental data system, dissemination of environmental 
information through seminars and conferences, and 
preparation of printed materials. 

The project will be carried out by the Planning 
and Budget Office, an agency of the Office of the 
President of the Republic, with the technical support 
of the Organization of American States. 

Although environmental problems have not 
reached critical levels in Uruguay, there is a growing 
awareness in government and industrial circles of the 
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need for environmental safeguards and planning. 
Preparation of the environmental study will pro
vide the country with an integrated short-, me
dium- and long-term environmental management 
strategy. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Development of Rice-Growing Region: In 1986, 
the Bank approved a $27.3 million loan from the OC 
to help improve rice production in the Laguna Merin 
region of Uruguay. This region accounts for 80 
percent of rice production in the country, with up to 
80 percent of total production sold abroad. Despite 
the quality of the rice and the agricultural techniques 
employed, production costs remain high, due in part 
to the use of diesel engines for irrigation and to the 
poor condition of local roads. This project involves 
the electrification of the pump-irrigated system and 
improving local roads in order to reduce production 
and marketing costs. The project is being carried out 
by the Oficina de Planeamiento y Presupuesto de la 
Presidencia de la República (OPP). The project is ap
proximately one-quarter completed. Transmission 
and distribution lines have been installed. Roughly a 
third of the 860 kilometers of local roads scheduled 
for rebuilding are in execution with the remainder in 
the bidding process. The environmental aspects of 
the project are under review. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 59 loans approved for Uruguay, 39 have been 
closed and 20 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989- One loan was closed in 1989. 
Disbursements during the year totaled $59 million, 
compared with $47.4 million in 1988. Contract awards 
for goods and services for projects in execution in 
Uruguay totaled $42.4 million in 1989, bringing cu
mulative contract awards to $340.8 million. A con
tract for $8.2 million was awarded in 1989 for 
highway and street construction to a firm from Uru
guay. 

The most important aspect of the Bank's pro
gram in Uruguay in 1989 was the execution of the first 
stage of the Montevideo Urban Sanitation Program, 
approved in 1981. Although this project initially 
encountered delays, it is scheduled to be completed 
by mid-1990. The second stage, described above, 
was approved in 1989. 

Municipal Works ' P rogram: In 1984, the Bank ap
proved three loans totaling $40 million from the OC 
and the FSO to help finance municipal works in 
towns and cities throughout the country. The pro
gram is being carried out by the Ministry of Transpor
tation and Public Works (MTOP) in conjunction with 
the Administración de Obras Sanitarias del Estado 
(OSE) and involves the construction of markets, 
terminals and social centers, water and sewerage sys
tems and street paving. 

To date, about 50 percent of the physical works 
have been accomplished: Street paving has been 
completed in 31 communities and is in process in 18 
other communities. One bus terminal has been 
completed and another is under construction. Po
table water systems have been completed in one 
community and are in an advanced stage of execu
tion in 16 other communities. Sanitation works in 12 
communities are in various stages of execution. Con
struction of 28 community centers continues. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Transportation and Communications $259,784 S 454,759 
Agriculture and Fisheries 168,813 265,245 
Environmental and Public Health 130,807 203,112 
Energy 60,483 162,009 
Urban Development 48,054 65,301 
Industry and Mining 33,852 138,536 
Export Financing 8,940 12,771 
Preinvestment 7,761 13,204 
Education, Science and Technology 4,524 54,186 
Tourism 1,623 7,091 
Other 13,000 13,001 

Total $737,641 $1,389,215 
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VENEZUELA 

The Bank has made 42 loans totaling $1,411 mil
l ion to Venezuela. Sector emphasis has been on 
energy, industry and mining, health, agricul
ture and transportation. Cumulative disburse
ments total $705.8 million. In 1989, the Bank 
approved one loan for one project. 

LOAN 

Highway and Rural Roads Program 

Financing: $120 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Ministry of Transportation and 

Communications 

This loan will finance the second stage of a highway 
and rural roads program designed to improve access 
to a number of areas and benefit agricultural produc
tion zones. The project consists of three subpro
grams: 

• Constructing and expanding three main high
ways totaling 107.4 kilometers; the highways run 
between the cities of Bajo Hondo, El Tigre, Clar
ines and Piritu in the northeast and Acarigua and 
Barquisimeto in the northwest; 

• Rehabilitating approximately 4,000 kilome
ters of rural roads in the region north of the Orinoco 
River; the works include constructing drains and 
culverts; and adjusting crowns, slopes and em
bankments; an asphalt layer will be applied and 
road signs installed; 

• To insure proper future maintenance, loan re
sources will finance procurement of spare parts, re
building 268 heavy equipment units and recondition
ing repair shops; in addition, this component will 
strengthen the operations of the highway laboratory 
system, particularly quality control of materials used 
in highway maintenance. 

The project reflects Venezuela's recent efforts to 
encourage development that is less dependent on the 
oil industry and less concentrated in the central 
region around Caracas. 

YEARLY LENDING" AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

~\ Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

'Venezuela did not apply for Bank loans between 1974 and 1982. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHT 

Const ruc t ion of Bauxite Mine: In 1985, the Bank 
approved a $108 million loan from the OC to help 
build and start up a bauxite mine at Los Pijiguaos. The 
Japanese Government is co-financing the project 
with an additional loan for $108 million. The project 
is being carried out by C.V.C. Bauxita Venezolana 
C.A. (Bauxiven), a public corporation in charge of 
exploiting the bauxite reserves in the State of Bolivar. 
The project includes mining the bauxite and crushing 
the ore; constructing a conveyor belt transportation 
system to move the ore to the foot of the mountain; 
and building a railroad to carry the ore from the 
mountain to the Orinoco River, where El Jobal was 
chosen as the site for a port to be built. 

By the end of 1989, some 40 per cent of the 
project had been completed. Access roads had been 
completed, the railroad finished, an ore crusher was 
being installed, and port facilities were under con-

109 



INTTR-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENTBANK 

struction. Ore production in 1989 totaled 746,230 
tons. When the project is completed, the mine's 
estimated annual production capacity will go from 
over 3 million tons a year to 5.2 million tons a year. 
In the spring of 1989, the Bank sent a special mission 
to review the environmental and social impact of the 
project. Recommendations were made on erosion 
and deforestation problems, as well as the impact of 
the project on a nearby Indian village. 

PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION 

Of 42 loans approved for Venezuela, 32 have been 
closed and 10 were financing projects under execu
tion during 1989. Disbursements during the year 
totaled $158.2 million, compared with $128 million in 
1988. Contract awards for goods and services for 
projects in execution in Venezuela totaled $14.1 
million in 1989, bringing cumulative contract awards 
to $438.3 million. A contract for $10.5 million was 
awarded in 1989 for single-family housing construc
tion to a firm from Venezuela. 

A forestry development project financed by the 
Bank with a $34.3 million loan approved in 1984 has 
resulted in the planting of pine on almost half of the 
targeted 180,000 hectares. Another project, an agri
cultural technology program financed by a $30 
million Bank loan approved in 1983, is being exe
cuted at an accelerated rate. 

VENEZUELA DEVELOPS RICH BAUXITE ORE RESERVES. 
Workers complete a bridge for the 53-kilometer-long 
railroad line built to transport bauxitefrom the Baux i ven 
mine at Los Pijiguaos in central Venezuela to the port at 
Eljobal on the Orinoco River. Infrastructure to develop 
the mine is being built with the resources of a $108 
million loan approved by the IDB in 1985 with co-
financing provided by the Japanese government. Total 
reserves of the high-content bauxite ore deposits are 
estimated to be four to five billion tons, making them 
among the richest in the world 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Energy $ 376,698 $1,901,500 
Industry and Mining 315,385 1,176,594 
Environmental and Public Health 258,851 651,596 
Agriculture and Fisheries 198,401 595,575 
Transportation and Communications 191,601 638,600 
Education, Science and Technology 34,608 103,626 
Urban Development 31,871 94,450 
Preinvestment 2,885 6,694 
Export Financing 1,404 2,006 

Total $1,411,704 $5,170,641 
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REGLONAL 

The Bank has made 39 loans totalling $1,311 
mill ion for regional projects. Sector emphasis 
has been o n energy, transportation and com
munications, industry and mining and prein
vestment. Cumulative disbursements total $ 1,006 
million. In 1989, the Bank approved one loan 
for one project and ten major technical coop
erations. 

LOAN 

Yacyreta Hydroelectric Power Plant 

Financing: $250 million from the OC. 
Executing 
Agency: Yacyretá Binational Agency 

This project provides additional financing for con
structing the 2.7-million-kilowatt Yacyretá hydro
electric power plant on the Paraná River between Ar
gentina and Paraguay. Started in 1985 at a total 
estimated cost of $5.9 billion, the project is now more 
than 50 percent complete. The project involves: 

• Constructing a generating station of 20 units 
rated at 135,000 kilowatts each and a step-up substa
tion; 

• Building a reservoir with a volume of 21 
million cubic meters covering an area of 1,700 square 
kilometers, including 70 kilometers of earthfill dams, 
a navigation lock, two spillways and irrigation struc
tures; 

• Providing housing units and other services for 
some 35,000 persons who will be displaced by the 
reservoir, and a dam and a diversion canal to protect 
the Aguapey River and the town of Carmen de 
Paraná; 

• A series of environmental protection meas
ures - wildlife refuges and facilities, including fish 
ladders to permit the upstream movement of fish. 

Since 1985, work on the Yacyretá plant has pro
ceeded on schedule. The main spillways and the 
navigation locks have been built and the Paraná River 
diverted to allow construction of the main power
house. By the end of 1988, building and equipment 

YEARLY LENDING AND DISBURSEMENTS 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

300 

80 81 82 83 85 86 87 88 89 

1 Yearly Lending 

^m Yearly Disbursements 

costs had amounted to some $3.2 billion, roughly 53 
percent of the total estimated cost. Commercial 
operations are scheduled to start in early 1993 on 
completion of the first generating units, with final 
units coming on stream in late 1996. 

The Bank extended two previous loans totaling 
$460 million to the Yacyretá project. The World Bank 
also approved two loans totaling $460 million. 

Argentina has a wealth of energy resources in 
the form of oil, gas, hydroelectric power, coal and 
uranium, developed for the most part by the public-
sector. In an effort to stimulate the economy and 
reduce inflation, the new Argentine government is 
proposing gradually to deregulate the oil and gas 
industries and to reduce dependence on the govern
ment of the electric power companies while greatly 
increasing cwerall efficiency of the sector. 

Completion of the Yacyretá project will in
crease substantially the supply of electric power in 
Argentina from 1993 onward representing a savings 
for the country of over $600 million with respect to 
the most economical thermal energy alternative. In 
addition, the regular flow of the Paraná and adjacent 
river basins will stabilize the supply of electricity. 
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TECHNICAL COOPERATION 

Regional Health Studies 

Financing: $2,350,000 technical cooperation grant 
from FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Pan American Health Organization 

(PAHO) 

This project will involve both studies to prepare in
vestment programs in the public health sector of the 
Bank's member countries and basic studies designed 
to support the operation of institutions in the public 
health and nutrition, environmental sanitation and 
animal health sectors. 

Some 27 preinvestment studies will be pre
pared. Approximately 12 will be in the environ
mental sanitation field; 12 in public health and nutri
tion, and three programs and other studies in the 
animal health sector. In addition, approximately 10 
basic support studies will be prepared, three in en
vironmental sanitation, three in public health, and 
four to assess the environmental impact of public 
health programs. 

The project represents the fourth phase of a 
public health program starting in 1981 that has been 
financed by the Bank and executed by PAHO. 

Modernization of Customs Systems 

Financing: $1,250,000 technical cooperation grant 
from FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: General Secretariat of the Organization 

of American States (OAS) 

This project is designed to help foster trade among 
the nations of Latin America and the Caribbean by 
modernizing the region's customs system. The proj
ect includes 

• Training in international trade instruments 
and the simplification and coordination of customs 
procedures of some 160 customs officials from 20 
Bank member countries and 16 staff members from 
subregional institutions, to serve later as instructors 
in their own countries; 

• Training some 720 customs officials from 24 
member countries who will implement the new trade 
instruments; 

• Improving customs laboratory equipment to 
benefit at least 10 member countries. 

The project will be carried out by the General 
Secretariat of the Organization of American States. It 
is designed to update customs offices in the classifi
cation, valuation and taxation of commodities ac
cording to the standards of the General Agreement 
on Taxes and Tariffs (GATT) and in implementation 
of the Simplification and Harmonization of Customs 
Procedures Systems (Kyoto Convention). 

Support for Agricultural Research Centers 

Financing: $11,490,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Consultative Group on International 

Agricultural Research (CGIAR) 

Along with 10 other institutions in other parts of the 
world, the three agricultural research centers in Latin 
America—the International Center for the Improve
ment of Maize and Wheat (CIMMYT) in Mexico, the 
International Center for Tropical Agriculture (CIAT) 
in Colombia and the International Potato Center 
(CIP) in Peru—conduct research aimed at improving 
nutritional levels and solving shortfalls in farm out
put. These institutions research different ways of 
increasing production of basic cereal grains, leg
umes, tubers, livestock products and other foods. 
The 13 centers join donor countries, multilateral 
development organizations and foundations to make 
up the Consultative Group on International Agricul
tural Research (CGIAR). The Bank is a CGIAR mem
ber and since 1974 it has contributed $112 million to 
the core and capital programs of the three centers 
located in Latin America. 

This year marks a change of approach in the 
Bank's support for the centers. A portion of the 
Bank's contribution—$360,000—will fund special 
programs that will address the particular needs of the 
Bank's member countries, primarily in applied re
search and training. 

Project proposals would be derived from the 
special programs submitted by the centers to the 
Bank. The Bank expects to approve six to 10 propos
als a year, or roughly 60 percent of the Bank's 
traditional contribution to the centers. The remaining 
40 percent would continue to provide budgetary 
support for the centers. 
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Caribbean Trade Development 

Financing: 

Executing 
Agencies: 

$1,664,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Secretariat of the Caribbean Commu
nity (CARICOM) and the Caribbean As
sociation of Industry and Commerce 
(CAIC) 

This project is designed to develop information for 
use by the Caribbean Community (CARICOM) and 
the Caribbean Association of Industry and Com
merce (CAIC) in the promotion of both regional and 
extra-regional trade, and to provide technical sup
port to export-oriented firms. Located in Barbados, 
the CAIC provides research, marketing, fund raising 
and related services to private sector firms through
out the Caribbean. 

The project will consist of two subprojects: 
• Auditing companies in the furniture, agroin

dustrial and apparel-and-sewn-products fields to 
identify technical and administrative deficiencies that 
could reduce their export potential; the company 
audits will also screen firms for export assistance 
under the second subproject; in addition, market
ing research and export strategies will be pre
pared; 

• Identifying marketing opportunities in the 
same three areas of production within the Caribbean 
region as well as in the United States, Canada, Europe 
and other overseas markets, and the matching of par
ticipating firms with potential importers. 

The Caribbean countries are suffering serious 
balance of payments problems caused by slowing 
exports, high debt service payments and deteriorat
ing terms of trade. This project will strengthen the 
ability of CARICOM and CAIC to help the private 
sector identify and exploit trade opportunities, ex
pand non-traditional exports and compensate for the 
decline in current export commodity prices. 

Regional Conferences on Education 

Financing: $395,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Inter-American Development Bank 

The IDB organized and carried out two regional con

ferences, one in Quito, Ecuador, and Kingston, Ja
maica, in late 1989 to analyze basic education in the 
Bank's member countries. The regional conferences 
will be followed by a world conference in early 1990 
in Jomtien, Thailand, on ways to eliminate the 
growing global problem of illiteracy, particularly in 
developing countries. 

The regional conferences were attended by 
three ministerial-level delegates from each of the 
Bank's borrowing member countries, as well as 
officials from international, bilateral and non-govern
mental agencies, the private sector and the media. 
The Quito and the Kingston conferences were part of 
10 regional meetings organized worldwide by an 
interagency commission set up by the World Bank 
and three U.N. agencies — the United Nations 
Children Fund (UNICEF), the United Nations Eco
nomic and Social Council (UNESCO) and the United 
Nations Development Programme (UNDP) — to 
establish guidelines for viable national programs to 
combat illiteracy in both adults and children and to 
halt the decline in the quality of education, particu
larly in primary schools. 

Regional Environment Conference 

Financing: $350,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Executing 
Agency: Inter-American Development Bank 

The grant financed the Second Consultative Meeting 
on Environmental Protection and the Conservation of 
Natural Resources, held at Bank headquarters in 
Washington, D.C. May 24-26, 1989. Attended by 50 
public officials from Latin America and 50 represen
tatives from regional nongovernmental organiza
tions (NGOs), the meeting was designed to stimulate 
and strengthen the dialogue between governments 
and NGOs. In addition, representatives from interna
tional NGOs, bilateral and multilateral organizations 
participated in the three day conference. Participants 
discussed, among other topics, methods for involv
ing NGOs and local groups in Bank-financed proj
ects. The First Consultative Meeting, also organized 
by the Bank, was held in 1987. 
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Agricultural Research Seminar 

Financing: $112,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Inter-American Agricultural Coopera

tion Institute (IICA), in coordination 
with the International Federation of 
Agricultural Research Development In
stitutions (IFARD-LAC) and the National 
Agricultural Technology Administration 
(INTA) of Argentina. 

The Bank's cooperation financed a four-day meeting 
in Argentina in 1989 on challenges facing agricultural 
research in Latin America and the Caribbean. The 
meeting was held in Ascochinga, in Argentina's 
Cordoba Province and was attended by some 48 
presidents and general directors of national agricul
tural research institutions in the Bank's member 
countries and by special guests representing regional 
agricultural research institutions and international 
development organizations. Discussions centered on 
the organization and management of agricultural 
research systems, options for financing agricultural 
research, ex-post evaluation of projects, and related 
subjects. 

Drug Abuse Prevention 

Financing: $150,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Intermediary 
Institution: Fundación CONVIVIR 

The Bank's cooperation was used by the Fundación 
CONVIVIR, a private, non-profit organization located 
in Argentina, to finance a seminar in Buenos Aires in 
1989 on drug research and prevention. The two-and-
one-half week seminar was attended by 39 profes
sionals from selected government and non-govern
mental organizations in six of the Bank's member 
countries — Argentina, Bolivia, Brazil, Ecuador, Peru 
and Uruguay — and was the Bank's first initiative in 
the drug prevention field. Instruction at the seminar 
was directed to the use of models, programs and 
strategies relating to research into and prevention of 
drug abuse. Participants will use skills learned at the 
seminar to train other members of their organiza
tions, creating a multiplier effect in disseminating 

drug abuse prevention information and techniques. 
The Bank approved two additional financ

ings totaling $450,000 for regional drug prevention 
and control programs. 

Seminars o n Environment, Natural Resources 

Financing: $100,000 technical cooperation grant 
from the FSO. 

Intermediary 
Institutions: Caribbean Conservation Association 

(CCA) and the Centro de Investigación 
y Promoción Franciscano y Ecológico 
(CIPFE) 

The Bank's cooperation financed the organization by 
non-governmental organizations in Barbados and 
Uruguay of two regional seminars in 1989 on the re
lationship between environmental management and 
the use of natural resources. The Barbados seminar, 
conducted by the CCA with the assistance of the 
University of West Indies and the Caribbean Devel
opment Bank, focused on environmental manage
ment and economics and was attended by some 120 
government officials, environmental specialists and 
non-government organizations from the English-
speaking Caribbean. 

The second seminar, conducted in Montevideo 
by the CIPFE, discussed the impact of environmental 
issues on science, education, planning, economics 
and politics and was attended by approximately 250 
participants from the Bank's Latin American member 
countries. 

Science and Technology 

Financing: $87,000 technical cooperation grant from 
the FSO. 

Intermediary 
Institution: United Nations Centre for the Applica

tion of Science and Technology for De
velopment 

This technical cooperation financed a regional meeting 
April 10-12, 1989, in San José, Costa Rica, of the 
Bank's Latin American and Caribbean member coun
tries to appraise progress made in the development 
of science and technology throughout the region 
during the decade of the 1980s and to discuss 
guidelines for future action in the field. The meeting 
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was called jointly by the Bank and the United Nations 
Centre for the Application of Science and Technol
ogy for Development, in conjunction with the Minis
try of Science and Technology of Costa Rica, in 
preparation for the Tenth Inter-Governmental Con
ference held in August and September to evaluate 
what has been done in the last 10 years to bridge the 
technological gap between the developed and devel
oping countries. 

PROGRESS HIGHLIGHTS 

Central American Electrical Interconnection: 
For many years, the countries of Central America 
have sought to interconnect their respective electric
ity systems in order to reduce costs, increase the use 
of hydroelectric power, and improve the reliability of 
energy supplies in the region. An interconnection 
between Honduras and Nicaragua was financed by 
the World Bank in the early 1970's. In 1981. the Bank 
approved two loans totaling S32 million—$24 million 
from the OC and $8 million from the FSO—to help 
finance additional electrical interconnections be
tween Costa Rica and Nicaragua and Guatemala and 
El Salvador. The loans were extended to the Central 
American Bank for Economic Integration (CABEI) 
which reloaned the proceeds to the electric power 
agencies of the four countries involved. The Costa 
Rica-Nicaragua linkage consists of a 230 kilovolt 
transmission line 265 kilometers long connecting 
Costa Rica and Nicaragua (115 kilometers in Costa 
Rica and 150 kilometers in Nicaragua) along with the 
necessary substations and central dispatch infrastruc
ture. The system is virtually complete, with the ex
ception of the central dispatch unit in Nicaragua. The 
electricity for this system originates from the El Cajon 
hydroelectric complex in Honduras. The Guatemala-
El Salvador linkage consists of a 230 kilovolt trans
mission line 110 kilometers long connecting Guate
mala and El Salvador (94 kilometers in Guatemala 
and 16 kilometers in El Salvador) along with the nec
essary substations infrastructure. Both of the trans
mission lines interconnecting the countries are fin
ished and operational. 

Car ibbean Development Projects: In 1984, the 
Bank approved two loans totaling S25 million—S20 
million from the OC and $5 million from the FSO to 
help the Caribbean Development Bank (CDB) fi

nance a multisector credit and preinvestment pro
gram for its members. The Bank's resources have 
been loaned by the CDB for agricultural, industrial, 
tourism, infrastructure and preinvestment projects. 
By 1989. project resources were committed. IDB 
resources were used to make nine subloans for 
projects such as airports in the Bahamas and Cayman 
Islands, a dock at South Andros and sewerage 
services in the Bahamas. Twenty-six preinvestment 
studies were completed, including institutional 
strengthening and project preparation studies for 
roads and quarry development in the Eastern Carib
bean countries. Discussion is currently underway 
between the CDB and the IDB on new ways to assist 
the CDB with funding. 

DISTRIBUTION OF LOANS 1961-89 
In Thousands of U.S. Dollars 

Sector Amount 
Total Cost of 

the Projects 
Energy $1,027,227 $7,230,055 
Transportation and Communications 138,210 219,315 
Industry and Mining 51,245 196,783 
Preinvestment 39,015 58,752 
Agriculture and Fisheries 14,852 62,619 
Education, Science and Technology 9,902 25,410 
Urban Development 5,997 12,970 
Environmental and Public Health 747 2,948 
Tourism 557 2,416 
Other 23,874 36,570 

Total $1,311,626 S7,847,838 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1989 
Ordinary Capital 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

A m o u n t Interest 
Date ( E x p r e s s e d i n Rate Term 

A p p r o v e d U.S. do l lars ) (%) (Years) 

BARBADOS 

BOLIVIA 

BRAZIL 

CHILE 

COLOMBIA 

COSTA RICA 

G o v e r n m e n t o f Barbados 7/13/89 4 ,700 ,000 
ENVIRONMENT (Coastal Conservation) 

G o v e r n m e n t o f Barbados 11 /29/89 4 ,700 ,000 
EDUCATION (Student Loans) 

Republ ic o f Bolivia 4/5/89 56 ,900 ,000 
ENERGY (Oil Field Development) 

State o f Minas Gerais 5/31/89 90 ,000 ,000 
TRANSPORTATION (Road Improvement Program) 

Federative Republ ic o f Brazil 8/16/89 55 ,600 ,000 
AGRICULTURE (Irrigation Program) 

FURNAS Centrais Elétricas S.A. 12/22/89 253 ,500 ,000 
ENERGY (Itaipu Transmission Line) 

State o f Ceará 12/22/89 69 ,000 ,000 
TRANSPORTATION (Highway Program) 

Republ ic o f Chi le 11/29/89 360 ,000 ,000 
AGRICULTURE (Multisector Global Credit Program) 

Republ ic o f Chi le 12/7/89 70 ,000 ,000 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Urban Area Improvement Program) 

Republic o f Chi le 12/14/89 210 ,000 ,000 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Local Development Investment Plan) 

Republic o f C o l o m b i a 12/22/89 35 ,700 ,000 
SCIENCE (Research and Technological 
Development) 

Republ ic o f Costa Rica 5/19/89 6 ,000 ,000 
PREINVESTMENT (Preinvestment Studies) 

211 

2S 

15 

20 

25 

20 

2(1 

IS 

2S 

2^ 

2(1 

20 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

ECUADOR 

I n s t i t u t o C o s t a r r i c e n s e d e E l e c t r i c i d a d 2( ) 89 
ENERGY (Electricity Power Expansion) 

G o v e r n m e n t o f t h e D o m i n i c a n R e p u b l i c 12/22/89 
ENERGY (Power Company Reorganization) 

R e p u b l i c o f E c u a d o r 2/15/89 
AGRICULTURE (Conservation of Natural Resources) 

182 ,800 ,000 

101 ,800 ,000 
5 ,000,000 

106 ,800 ,000 

2 ,300 ,000 

2(1 

20 
20 

20 

a Variable interest rate applicable to yearly disbursement. 
b Interest rate partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1989 
Ordinary Capital (continued) 

Country 
Borrower 
SECTOR (Project) 

Amount Interest 
Date (Expressed in Rate Term 

Approved U.S. dollars) (%) (Years) 

JAMAICA Government of Jamaica 
HEALTH (Expansion of Health Services) 

12/22/89 70,500,000 2S 

Government of Jamaica 
TRANSPORTATION (Reconstruction of 
Rural Roads) 

12/22/89 1,800,000 

28,000,000 
29,800,000 

20 

20 

MEXICO Nacional Financiera, S.N.C. 
AGRICULTURE (Agriculture and Fishery 
Credit Program) 

3/8/89 140,000,000 20 

TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO Government of the Republic of 
Trinidad and Tobago 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(National Settlements Program) 

12/22/89 66,100,000 2S 

URUGUAY Government of Uruguay 
SANITATION (Urban Sanitation Program) 

11/29/89 26,160,000 !=• 

VENEZUELA Government of Venezuela 
TRANSPORTATION (Highway Program) 

1/11/89 120,000,000 20 

REGIONAL Entidad Binacional Yacyretá 
ENERGY (Yacyretá Hydroelectric Project) 

12/22/89 250,000,000 20 

J Variable interest rate applicable to yearly disbursement. 
b Interest rate partially defrayed by Intermediate Financing Facility. 
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STATEMENT OF APPROVED LOANS, 1989 
Fund for Special Operations 

Country 
B o r r o w e r 
SECTOR (Project) 

A m o u n t Interest 
Date ( E x p r e s s e d in Rate Term 

A p p r o v e d U.S. do l lars ) (%) (Years) 

BOLIVIA Republ ic o f Bolivia 
URBAN DEVELOPMENT 
(Emergency Social Fund) 

11/29/89 34 ,680 ,000 1+2' 40 

Republic o f Bol ivia 
AGRICULTURE (Farm Credit Program) 

12/22/89 51 ,200 ,000 1+2" to 

C o r p o r a c i ó n Minera d e Bolivia 
MINING (Mining Sector Rehabilitation Plan) 

12/22/89 18 ,000 ,000 1+2J 40 

BRAZIL State o f Minas Gerais 
TRANSPORTATION (Road Improvement Program) 

5/31/89 30 ,000 ,000 4" 25 

State o f Ceará 
TRANSPORTATION (Highway Program) 

12/22/89 20,700,000 4" 2S 

COLOMBIA Republ ic o f C o l o m b i a 
SCIENCE (Research and Technological 
Development) 

12/22/89 4 ,300 ,000 30 

DOMINICAN REPUBLIC B a n c o Central d e la Repúbl ica D o m i n i c a n a 
EDUCATION (Vocational Education) 

7/20/89 20 ,000 ,000 1+2" 40 

G o v e r n m e n t o f the D o m i n i c a n Republ ic 
ENERGY (Power Company Reorganization) 

12/22/89 42 ,000 ,000 1+2' 40 

ECUADOR Republ ic o f Ecuador 
AGRICULTURE (Conservation of Natural Resources) 

2/15/89 12 ,200 ,000 1+2" 40 

Republ ic o f Ecuador 
EDUCATION (Improvement of Public-
Education) 

12/22/89 44 ,010 ,000 1+2" 10 

GUYANA 

PARAGUAY 

Republ ic o f Guyana 
EDUCATION (Primary Education) 

Republ ic o f Paraguay 
TRANSPORTATION (Santa Rosa-Yby Yaú 
Highway) 

10/22/89 46 ,400 ,000 1+2" 40 

12/14/89 18 ,800 ,000 1+2" 40 

The first interest rate shown is applicable during the grace period; the second is applicable subsequently. 
Loan extended in the currency of the borrower country. 

118 



INTER-AMERICAN DIA EIA H'MENT BANK 

SELECTED DATA ON LATIN AMERICA 

Table Page 

1 Total Population and Growth Rates, by Country, 1960-1989 120 

2 Urban and Rural Population, by Country, 1960-1989 121 

3 Gross Domestic Product Per Capita, 1960-1989 122 

4 Structure and Growth of Latin America's Gross Domestic Product by Sector, 1960-1988 123 

5 Structure and Growth of Latin America's Gross Domestic Product by Expenditures, 1960-1988 124 

6 Agricultural Sector: Distribution and Growth of Value Added, 1960-1988 125 

Manufacturing Sector: Distribution and Growth of Value Added, 1960-1988 126 

8 Annual Variation in the Consumer Price Index, by Country, 1961-1989 127 

9 Latin America: Balance of Payments Summary, 1987-1989 128 

10 Latin America: Net Resource Transfer and External Debt, 1980-1988 129 

119 



INTER-AMERICAN DIA EI.OP.MENT BANK 

TOTAL POPULATION A N D GROWTH RATES, BY COUNTRY, 1960-89 

Country 

1960 1970 1980 1988 

(Thousands of persons) 

1989 

TABLE 1 

Average Growth Rates 

1961-70 1971-80 

(Percentages) 

1981-89 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

20,616 
113 
231 

3,428 
72,594 

23,962 
171 
239 

4,325 
95,847 

28,237 
210 
249 

5,570 
121,286 

31,534 
234 
254 

6,918 
144,428 

31,929 
238 
254 

7,113 
147,404 

1.5 
4.2 
0.3 
2.4 
2.8 

Chile 7,690 9,599 11,145 12,748 12,961 2.2 
Colombia 15,538 20,803 25,794 30,568 31,195 3.0 
Costa Rica 1,236 1,731 2,284 2,866 2,941 3.4 
Dominican Republic 3,231 4,423 5,697 6,867 7,019 3.2 
Ecuador 4,413 6,051 8,123 10,070 10,327 3.2 

1.7 
2.1 
0.4 
2.6 
2.4 

1.5 
2.2 
2.8 
2.6 
3.0 

l . i 

1.4 
0.2 
2.8 
2.2 

1.7 
2.1 
2.8 
2.3 
2.7 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

2,570 
3,964 

569 
3,675 
1,935 

3,588 
5,246 

730 
4,500 
2,627 

4,525 
6,917 

758 
5,413 
3,662 

5,032 
8,681 

755 
6,263 
4,829 

5,138 
8,935 

755 
6,382 
4,982 

Jamaica 1,629 1,869 2,170 2,427 2,463 
Mexico 38,020 52,771 70,416 84,886 86,740 
Nicaragua 1,493 2,053 2,771 3,622 3,745 
Panama1 1,105 1,487 1,956 2,322 2,370 
Paraguay 1,773 2,351 3,147 4,039 4,158 

Peru 9,931 13,193 17,295 21,256 21,791 
Suriname 598 372 352 359 362 
Trinidad and Tobago 843 1,027 1,068 1,157 1,171 
Uruguay 2,538 2,808 2,914 3,060 3,077 
Venezuela 7,502 10,604 15,024 18,757 19,246 

3.4 
2.8 
2.5 
2.0 
3.1 

l . i 
3.3 
3.2 
3.0 
2.9 

2.9 
-4.6 
2.0 
1.0 
3.5 

2.3 
2.8 
0.4 
1.9 
3.4 

1.5 
2.9 
3.0 
2.8 
3.0 

2.7 
-0.6 
0,1 
0.4 
3.5 

1.4 
2.9 

-0.1 
I.S 
3.5 

1.4 
2.3 
3.4 
2.2 
3.1 

2.6 
0.3 
1.0 
0.6 
2.8 

Latin America 207,235 272,377 346,983 413,932 422,696 2.8 2.5 2.2 

1 Since 1980, Panama's population includes the one from the former canal zone. 
Source: Latin American Demographic Center, Santiago, Chile. 
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URBAN A N D RURAL POPULATION, BY COUNTRY, 1960-1989 
(Thousands of persons) 

TABLE 2 

Country 

1960 1970 1980 1989 

Average Growth Rates 
Urban Rural 

1961-70 1971-80 1981-89 1981-89 

Urban Rural % Urban Urban Rural 7i Urban Urban Rural % Urban Urban Rural % Urban (Percentages) 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

15,256 
79 

144 
887 

33,068 

5,513 
34 
87 

2,541 
39,526 

74.0 
69.9 
62.3 
25.9 
45.6 

3,797 
98 

154 
1,652 

5,237 
73 
85 

2,673 

78.4 
57.3 
64.4 
38.2 

53,531 42,316 55.9 

23,435 
123 
185 

2,489 
81,565 

4,869 
87 
64 

3,081 
39,721 

83.0 
58.6 
74.4 
44.7 
67.3 

25,891 
149 
217 

3,637 
108,608 

6,038 
89 
37 

3,476 
38,796 

81.1 
62.6 
85.5 
51.1 
73.7 

2.1 
2.2 
0.7 
6.1 
4.9 

2.2 
2.3 
1.9 
4.2 
i . i 

1.1 
2.2 
1.8 
4.3 
3.2 

2.4 
0.3 

- 5 . 9 
1.3 

- 0 . 3 

(sj 

Chile-
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

5,021 
7,467 

410 
1,138 
1,515 

2,593 
8,071 

826 
2,093 
2,898 

935 1,635 
1,249 2,715 

160 409 
388 3,287 
436 1,499 

65.3 
48.1 
33.2 
35.2 
34.3 

36.4 
31.5 
28.1 
10.6 
22.5 

7,135 
12,328 

672 
1,735 
2,393 

1,416 
1,607 

167 
889 
736 

2,369 
8,475 
1,059 
2,688 
3,658 

2,172 
3,639 

563 
3,611 
1,891 

74.3 
59.3 
38.8 
39.2 
39.5 

39.5 
30.6 
22.9 
19.8 
28.0 

9,045 
17,107 

1,026 
2,904 
3,825 

1,999 
2,260 

203 
1,248 
1,314 

2,210 
8,687 
1,258 
2,793 
4,298 

2,526 
4,657 

555 
4,165 
2,348 

81.2 
66.3 
44.9 
51.0 
47.1 

44.2 
32.7 
26.8 
23.1 
35.9 

10,932 
22,508 

1,501 
4,372 
5,782 

2,504 
3,083 

214 
1,706 
2,149 

2,029 84.3 
8,687 72.2 
1,440 51.0 
2,647 62.3 
4,545 56.0 

2,634 
5,852 

541 
4,676 
2,833 

48.7 
34.5 
28.3 
26.7 
43.1 

3.6 
VI 
5.1 
4.3 
4.7 

4.2 
2.6 
0.4 
8.6 
5.4 

2.4 
3.3 
4.3 
5.3 
4.8 

3.5 
3.5 
2.0 
3.5 
6.0 

2.1 
3.1 
4.3 
4.7 
4.7 

2.5 
3.5 
0.6 
3.5 
5.6 

-0.4 
0.0 
1.5 

-0.6 
0.6 

0.5 
2.6 

-0.3 
1.3 
2.1 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama' 
Paraguay 

381 
19,296 

622 
441 
603 

1,248 
18,724 

871 
664 

1,170 

23.4 
50.8 
41.7 
39.9 
34.0 

789 1,080 
31,135 21,636 

965 1,088 
707 780 
871 1,480 

42.2 
59.0 
47.0 
47.5 
37.0 

954 1,216 
46,052 24,364 

1,492 1,279 
964 992 

1,215 1,9.32 

44.0 
65.4 
53.8 
49.3 
38.6 

1,266 
61,498 

2,252 
1,204 
1,714 

1,197 
25,242 

1,493 
1,166 
2,444 

51.4 
70.9 
60.1 
50.8 
41.2 

7.6 
4.9 
4.5 
4.8 
3.7 

1.9 
4.0 
4.5 
3.1 
3.4 

3.2 
3.3 
4.7 
2.5 
3.9 

-0.2 
0.4 
1.7 
1.8 
2.6 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

4,630 5,301 
114 
303 

1,947 
5,104 

484 
540 
591 

2,398 

46.6 
19.0 
35.9 
76.7 
68.0 

7,660 5,533 58.1 
218 
502 

2,301 
7,617 

154 
525 
507 

2,987 

58.6 
48.9 
81.9 
71.8 

11,109 6,186 
220 132 
555 513 

2,480 471 
11,409 3,615 

64.2 
62.5 
52.0 
85.1 
75.9 

15,158 
237 
607 

2,724 
15,245 

6,633 
125 
564 
353 

4,001 

69.6 
65.5 
51.8 
88.5 
79.2 

5.2 
6.7 
5.2 
1.7 
i . l 

3.8 
0.1 
1.0 
0.8 
4.1 

3.5 
0.8 
l.o 
1.0 
3.3 

0.8 
-0.6 

1.1 
-2.3 

1.1 

Latin America 101,593 105,719 49.0 156,074 116,280 57.3 225,178 122,019 64.9 295,158 127,538 69.8 4.4 3.7 3.1 0.5 

See Footnote in Table 1. 
Source: 196Í)—69: IDB estimates based on country sources. 1970-89: Latin American Demographic Center. 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

GROSS DOMESTIC P R O D U C T PER CAPITA, ' 1960-1989 

1988 Dollars 

Country I960 1970 1980 1987 1988 1989 

TABLE 3 

As Percent of OECD's2 

1970 1980 1987 1988 1989 

Argentina 2,414.4 3,117.0 3,404.9 2,972.0 2,901.4 2,722.2 27.4 
Bahamas 8,448.4 10,737.3 10,631.4 11,238.7 11,316.5 11,348.8 94.2 
Barbados 2,000.4 3,530.5 3,994.0 4,092.3 4,232.7 4,377.4 31.0 
Bolivia 634.4 817.7 982.5 723.8 723.9 721.2 7.2 
Brazil 1,013.1 1,371.6 2,480.5 2,507.3 2,448.9 2,471.4 12.0 

Chile 1,826.4 2,214.0 2,448.1 2,384.7 2,517.6 2,687.5 19.4 
Colombia 926.7 1,156.6 1,594.9 1,711.3 1,738.9 1,763.6 10.2 
Costa Rica 1,435.3 1,825.1 2,394.3 2,199.3 2,243.3 2,275.2 16.0 
Dominican Republic 823.2 986.6 1,497.2 1,516.6 1,499.7 1,496.6 8.7 
Ecuador 770.9 904.3 1,580.7 1,416.0 1,559.0 1,527.8 7.9 

El Salvador 832.3 1,032.0 1,124.6 969.9 966.5 959.9 9.1 
Guatemala 1,099.5 1,419.5 1,865.9 1,499.5 1,511.3 1,524.3 12.5 
Guyana 1,007.7 1,110.6 1,215.1 1,026.2 1,047.9 1,030.9 9.7 
Haiti 330.5 292.4 386.4 325.8 319.1 314.8 2.6 
Honduras 619.5 781.5 954.3 850.6 857.6 854.5 6.9 

Jamaica 1,610.2 2,364.1 1,880.2 1,835.6 1,842.7 1,832.2 20.8 
Mexico 1,425.1 2,022.3 2,871.9 2,616.4 2,587.6 2,608.2 17.8 
Nicaragua 1,054.7 1,495.4 1,147.3 921.2 793.8 743.2 13.1 
Panama 1,264.3 2,017.3 2,621.8 2,743.5 2,256.5 2,100.3 17.7 
Paraguay 779.2 9.31.0 1,612.5 1,510.8 1,560.1 1,600.3 8.2 

Peru 
Suriname 886.9 2,336.8 3,721.9 3,366.1 
Trinidad and Tobago 3,848.5 4,927.1 8,115.8 5,805.2 5,510.4 5,281.1 43.2 
Uruguay 2,351.5 2,478.3 3,214.9 3,012.3 3,009.5 3,022.8 21.8 
Venezuela 3,879.2 4,941.2 5,224.8 4,482.5 4,617.2 4,135.4 43.4 

,233.5 1,554.1 1,716.5 1,663.6 1,479.3 1,241.0 13.6 

24.0 
74.8 
28.1 

6.9 
17.5 

17.2 
11.2 
16.9 
10.5 
11.1 

7.9 
13.1 
8.6 
2.7 
6.7 

13.2 
20.2 

8.1 
18.5 
11.4 

12.1 

18.2 
68.7 
25.0 

4.4 
15.3 

14.6 
10.5 
13.4 
9.3 
8.7 

5.9 
9.2 
6.3 
2.0 
5.2 

11.2 
16.0 

5.6 
16.8 
9.2 

10.2 

17.2 
66.9 
25.0 

4.3 
14.5 

14.9 
10.3 
13.3 
8.9 
9.2 

5.7 
8.9 
6.2 
1.9 
5.1 

10.9 
15.3 
4.7 

13.3 
9.2 

57.1 
22.6 
36.8 

35.5 
18.4 
27.4 

32.6 
17.8 
27.3 

15.6 
64.9 
25.0 

4.1 
14.1 

15.4 
10.1 
13.0 

8.6 
8.7 

5.5 
8.7 
5.9 
1.8 
4.9 

10.5 
14.9 
4.2 

12.0 
9.1 

3,420.0 3,524.0 20.5 26.2 20.6 20.2 20.1 
30.2 
17.3 
23.6 

Latin America 1,374.9 1,803.4 2,515.0 2,373.2 2,343.1 2,311.7 15.8 17.7 14.5 13-9 13.2 

1 See Methodology in Economic and Social Progress in Latin America. Methodological Notes, Appendix B, 1989. 
2 Due to differences in the methodology used by the IDB and OECD for conversion of national accounts to a common currency, the data are not strictly comparable with 
those published in previous issues of the annual report of previous years. 
Source: The OECD's per capita G D P in constant 1988 U.S. dollars was estimated at SI 1,393 for 1970, $14,204 for 1980, $16,363 for 1987, $16,903 for 1988, and $17,499 

for 1989. OECD Main Economic Indicators, November 1989. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STRUCTURE A N D GROWTH OF LATIN AMERICA'S GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT 
BY SECTOR, 1960-1988 
(Percentages) 

Country 

Agriculture' Industry2 

Average Share 
of GDP 

1960-62 1986-8 

Annual 
Variation 

Average Share 
of G D P 

Annual 
Variation 

TABLE 4 

Services' 

Average Share 
of G D P 

Annual 
Variation 

1987 1988 1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

15.1 
n.a. 
25.0 
22.8 
19.1 

15.0 
n.a. 
8.4 

23.2 
11.2 

3.6 
n.a. 
11.2 

14.0 

5.2 
n.a. 

- 5 . 9 
-0.4 - 0 . 8 

32.9 
n.a. 
23.1 
35.8 

-0.4 36.1 

34.3 
n.a. 
20.2 
25.9 
37.9 

1.8 
n.a. 

- 1 . 2 
1.8 
0.3 

- 3 . 7 
n.a. 
5.5 

11.7 

52.0 
n.a. 
51.9 
41.4 

2.6 44.; 

50.7 
n.a. 
71.4 
51.0 
50.9 

1.9 
n.a. 
5.5 
3.5 
3.1 

- 0 . 4 
n.a. 
4.0 
0.1 
0.5 

Chile 9.9 9.6 3.2 5.5 40.1 37.1 4.9 7.4 50.0 5.3.2 6.8 7.7 
Colombia 29.0 21.4 6.1 3.0 28.0 30.5 6.4 2.4 43.0 48.1 4.3 4.9 
Costa Rica 25.8 19.2 5.0 6.2 20.1 29.6 4.9 4.3 54.1 51.4 6.2 2.9 
Dominican Republic 30.0 15.8 2.9 - 1 . 3 20.8 31.4 18.4 - 1 . 0 49.1 53.4 4.2 2.8 
Ecuador 29.3 16.6 4.1 9.0 21.0 33.7 - 2 0 . 3 21.1 49.7 48.4 2.1 1.5 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

32.0 
29.8 
28.7 
44.2 
33.3 

23.5 
25.7 
25.2 
32.6 
28.4 

2.1 
3.9 
5.8 
0.3 
6.7 

- 3 . 8 
4.3 

- 9 . 1 
- 1 . 0 

2.5 

19.1 
16.1 
36.7 
18.2 
19.2 

24.8 
20.1 
27.0 
22.7 
23.0 

4.0 
3.1 
3.6 

-2.0 
0.9 

0.9 
4.5 

-5.2 
0.3 
4.5 

48.9 
54.1 
34.5 
37.7 
47.5 

51.7 
54.0 
47.8 
44.8 
47.4 

2.4 
2.9 
2.1 
0.3 
4.7 

2.2 
3.5 
1.5 
0.0 
4.3 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

10.9 
14.7 
24.8 
18.1 
35.7 

8.2 
8.5 

21.9 
10.2 
26.2 

2.5 
1.8 
3.2 
7.4 
7.0 

- 7 . 7 
- 1 . 6 

-10 .5 
- 7 . 5 
12.1 

36.0 
26.9 
21.2 
18.3 
18.5 

29.3 
31.3 
31.3 
16.2 
25.3 

6.9 
2.8 

-0.2 
2.6 
3.6 

1.1 
1.2 

23.9 
-30.3 

5.2 

53.1 
58.4 
54.0 
63.6 
45.8 

62.6 
60.2 
46.8 
73.3 
48.5 

4.8 
0.8 
0.2 
1.7 
3.4 

3.6 
1.4 

- 1 . 6 
15.2 
3.9 

Peru 17.2 12.4 4.9 6.2 43.2 40.6 9.3 - 1 3 . 8 39.6 48.7 7.2 - 8 . 2 
Suriname 11.4 9.7 4.7 - 1 3 . 8 42.3 31.6 - 1 7 . 4 3.0 46.3 58.7 - 4 . 8 4.7 
Trinidad and Tobago 6.5 3.8 3.4 11.4 43.6 44.1 - 7 . 6 - 6 . 1 49.8 52.2 - 8 . 0 - 3 . 3 
Uruguay 12.0 12.4 2.6 0.5 26.0 26.4 12.4 - 2 . 2 61.9 61.3 3.9 1.7 
Venezuela 5.4 5.7 4.1 4.7 51.4 41.5 2.4 5.6 43.2 52.7 3.4 6.0 

Latin America' 16.6 11.7 7.0 1.4 34.1 35.0 1.9 -0.5 49.2 53.4 2.6 1.3 

1 Agriculture: agricultural and livestock production, hunting and fishing, and forestry. 
2 Industry: manufacturing, construction, electricity, gas and water, and mining. 
s Services: commerce, transport, communications, financial, public administration and others. 
n.a. Not available. 
Source: Inter-American Development Bank, based on official statistics of member countries. 
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STRUCTURE A N D GROWTH OF LATIN AMERICA'S GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT BY EXPENDITURES', 1960-1988 
(Percentages) 

TABLE 5 

Country 

Consumption Investment Exports of Goods & Non-Factor Services Imports of Goods & Non-Factor Services 

Average Share 
of GDP 

Annual 
Variation 

Average Share 
of G D P 

Annual 
Variation 

Average Share 
of G D P 

Annual 
Variation 

Average Share 
of GDP 

Annual 
Variation 

1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 1960-62 1986-88 1987 1988 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

83.3 
n.a. 
99.6 
73.8 
86.2 

82.1 
n.a. 
78.0 
85.9 
77.9 

1.1 
n.a. 
1.7 
1.7 
3.1 

-6.0 19.9 

3.8 
0.3 

-2.5 

19.4 
15.8 
16.7 

13.1 
n.a. 
15.4 
8.8 

17.7 

17.3 11.2 

2.5 
36.4 

1.8 

2.1 
-27.6 

0.5 

8.0 
n.a. 
33.4 
30.4 

7.5 

15.2 
n.a. 
56.8 
26.7 
12.2 

-1.1 
n.a. 
0.5 
1.5 
5.3 

13.7 
n.a. 
2.2 

11.3 
8.2 

11.2 
n.a. 
52.4 
19.9 
10.5 

10.5 
n.a. 
50.2 
21.5 

7.7 

7.0 
n.a. 

- 1 . 0 
12.7 

- 2 . 6 

- 3 . 8 
n.a. 
2.0 

11.1 
- 8 . 2 

Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Rep. 
Ecuador 

93.5 
79.9 
86.3 
83.4 
88.9 

77.8 
80.3 
73.0 
77.8 
79.8 

3.8 
4.1 
3.6 
1.0 
2.6 

9.0 
5.1 
2.8 

- 3 . 8 
2.0 

14.8 
17.0 
18.2 
9.6 

19.0 

17.1 
17.6 
24.4 
26.2 
16.9 

25.8 
6.7 
3.3 

39.5 
- 3 . 5 

8.5 
7.8 

-8.4 
6.7 
6.5 

12.1 
16.6 
21.8 
23.2 
15.9 

27.9 
18.0 
42.2 
18.8 
24.8 

8.3 
21.0 
13.0 

-16.6 

6.1 
1.0 

10.3 
8.7 

33.2 

20.4 
13.5 
26.2 
16.2 
23.7 

22.7 
15.9 
39.5 
22.8 
21.6 

17.0 
3.9 

17.6 
20.1 
13.5 

12.1 
12.0 

- 0 . 8 
- 2 . 3 
10.9 

tsj 
•fcs 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

87.7 
90.7 
56.1 
85.7 
83.8 

90.4 
86.4 
72.3 
95.2 
80.5 

0.7 
4.2 

-7.7 
0.8 
5.7 

0.7 
4.1 

-0.1 
2.7 
6.4 

13.5 
9.7 

37.6 
6.1 

16.3 

12.7 
9.4 

24.1 
18.9 
16.4 

- 1 . 6 
32.5 

1.2 
- 1 . 8 

7.5 

8.1 
- 0 . 8 

3.5 
- 1 . 4 
- 4 . 3 

22.1 
14.4 

106.5 
21.3 
29.0 

19.6 
13.6 
55.8 
20.8 
35.7 

12.4 
6.0 
1.5 

- 0 . 6 
0.2 

- 4 . 7 
5.0 
0.0 

11.1 
1.0 

23.3 
14.7 

100.2 
13.1 
29.1 

22.7 
9.4 

52.2 
34.9 
32.5 

0.4 
47.8 

- 9 . 7 
1.4 
2.6 

0.8 
3.8 

-2.4 
0.3 
2.2 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

73.9 
79.4 
86.4 
81.5 
82.3 

91.3 
75.1 
92.0 
73.0 
82.6 

4.9 
- 0 . 2 
- 0 . 1 

1.7 
2.0 

- 3 . 0 
1.6 

10.5 
19.6 

3.1 

26.8 
18.1 
15.6 
19.0 
9.0 

13.9 
15.6 
23.0 
14.4 
21.6 

21.3 
2.3 

- 1 . 5 
2.3 
6.7 

14.3 
16.3 
0.3 

-58.8 
3.9 

37.0 
10.2 
24.4 
34.7 
19.5 

51.8 
17.2 
15.6 
40.7 
18.1 

12.0 
9.8 
4.8 

- 1 . 9 
36.7 

15.5 
1.5 

18.1 
- 4 . 8 
31.5 

37.8 
7.7 

26.3 
35.2 
10.8 

57.0 
7.8 

30.6 
28.1 
22.3 

14.5 
4.5 
3.5 

- 4 . 4 
19.4 

8.9 
40.1 

- 5 . 7 
-35.1 

12.0 

Peru 
Suriname 
Trinidad and Tob. 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 

69.9 
74.4 
63.0 
95.5 
31.6 

75.5 
96.3 
77.6 
87.4 
68.5 

8.3 
- 8 . 2 
13.5 
9.1 

- 2 . 1 

10.5 
0.7 

- 4 . 0 
- 1 . 1 
13.2 

22.0 
36.0 
14.7 
12.9 
17.8 

21.8 
6.9 

16.0 
9.2 

18.7 

23.8 
- 6 . 6 
■22.3 
23.9 
26.2 

- 7 . 0 
25.1 

- 4 . 0 
2.5 

- 7 . 4 

26.7 
50.9 
36.1 
10.3 
66.3 

19.7 
39.1 
34.3 
23.2 
27.7 

- 3 . 8 
- 6 . 6 
- 1 . 8 
- 8 . 4 
- 1 . 4 

- 8 . 1 
2.6 

- 4 . 0 
3.7 

- 8 . 4 

18.7 
61.4 
13.8 
18.7 
15.7 

17.0 
42.3 
27.9 
19.8 
14.9 

14.5 
- 6 . 6 
-25.4 

8.7 
- 2 . 8 

13.0 
2.8 

- 4 . 0 
- 2 . 3 

4.4 

Latin America 77.8 77.4 1.9 - 0 . 2 17.6 16.8 7.7 3.6 17.8 17.5 4.2 3.6 13.2 11.7 3.8 3.7 

1 G D P = Consumption + Investment + Exports — Imports. 
n.a. Not available. 
Source: Inter-American Development Bank, based on official statistics of member countries. 



INTER-AMERICAN DEA EIOPMENTBANK 

AGRICULTURAL SECTOR: DISTRIBUTION A N D GROWTH OF VALUE ADDED, 1960-1988 
(Percentages) 

Country 

Regional 
Distribution Share of G D P 

Average 
Growth Rate Annual Variation 

TABLE 6 

1960-62 1986-88 1960-62 1986-88 1961-70 1971-80 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

14.2 
n.a. 
0.2 
1.0 

30.6 

11.4 
n.a. 
0.1 
1.1 

34.2 

15.1 
n.a. 
25.0 
22.8 
19.1 

15.0 
n.a. 
8.4 

23.2 
11.2 

2.4 
n.a. 
0.2 
2.8 
i.O 

1.9 
n.a. 

.0 
3.8 
3.7 

7.0 
n.a. 

- 2 . 5 

-0. 

2.4 
n.a. 
3.9 

3.1 
n.a. 
9.4 

6.9 - 1 6 . 4 22.9 

- 1 . 7 
n.a. 

- 0 . 5 
9.2 

-3.2 
n.a. 
4.5 

-4.7 

3.6 
n.a. 
11.2 

- 0 . 4 

5.2 
n.a. 

- 5 . 9 
- 0 . 8 

- 0 . 3 3.0 10.1 ■7.9 14.0 - 0 . 4 

Chile 3.0 2.7 9.9 9.6 1.9 2.4 - 1 . 2 - 2 . 5 7.5 5.6 8.8 3.2 5.5 
Colombia 9.1 10.2 29.0 21.4 3.7 4.3 - 1 . 9 2.8 1.8 1.6 3.3 6.1 3.0 
Costa Rica 1.0 1.1 25.8 19.2 5.1 2.1 - 4 . 7 4.0 10.1 - 5 . 5 4.8 5.0 6.2 
Dominican Republic 1.7 1.5 30.0 15.8 1.5 2.9 4.6 3.1 .0 - 3 . 5 - 0 . 5 2.9 - 1 . 3 
Ecuador 2.1 2.3 29.3 16.6 3.3 2.5 2.0 - 1 3 . 9 10.6 10.0 10.3 4.1 9.0 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

1.5 
2.8 
0.3 
1.1 
0.8 

1.0 
3.0 
0.2 
0.6 
0.9 

32.0 
29.8 
28.7 
44.2 
33.3 

23.5 
25.7 
25.2 
32.6 
28.4 

3.9 
4.4 
0.7 
0.8 
5.5 

2.6 
3.9 
0.3 
1.2 
2.1 

-4.7 
-3.0 
-1.4 
-4.2 
-0.6 

-3.2 
-1.7 
-3.7 
-3.7 
-0.7 

3.3 
1.6 
3.4 
3.4 
1.2 

-1.1 
0.4 
0.0 
0.6 
2.9 

-3.1 
-0.8 
3.7 
2.4 
2.4 

2.1 
3.9 

-5.8 
0.3 
6.7 

-3.8 
4.3 

-9.1 
-1.0 
2.5 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

0.6 
17.2 
0.9 
0.6 
1.1 

0.3 
17.2 
0.6 
0.6 
1.5 

10.9 
14.7 
24.8 
18.1 
35.7 

8.2 
8.5 

21.9 
10.2 
26.2 

l , i 

3.9 
6.7 
5.4 
.3.0 

-0.9 
2.8 

-0.4 
0.8 
6.1 

-7.9 
-2.0 
2.8 
1.5 
0.4 

7.2 
2.0 
5.8 
3.1 

■2.4 

10.1 
2.7 

- 5 . 3 
1.7 
5.9 

-3.5 
J.8 

-4.8 
5.0 
1.6 

-2.1 
-2.7 
-8.8 
-2.2 
-6.1 

2.5 
1.8 

■3.2 
7.4 
7.0 

- 7 . 7 
- 1 . 6 
10.5 

- 7 . 5 
12.1 

Peru 4.7 3.8 17.2 12.4 4.3 - 0 . 4 3.0 - 1 0 . 8 11.8 3.8 6.2 4.9 6.2 
Suriname 0.1 0.1 11.4 9.7 3.4 3.2 - .3.0 - 8 . 8 3.8 1.4 - 1 . 5 4.7 - 1 3 . 8 
Trinidad and Tobago 0.5 0.2 6.5 3.8 1.3 - 1 . 5 3.2 - 3 . 4 0.2 7.5 3.4 3.4 11.4 
Uruguay 1.4 0.9 12.0 12.4 3-0 1.3 - 7 . 3 2.1 - 6 . 8 4.5 4.3 2.6 0.5 
Venezuela 3.5 4.4 5.4 5.7 5.6 2.9 3.6 0.4 0.8 8.3 8.3 4.1 4.7 

Latin America1 100.0 100.0 16.6 11.7 3.4 2.9 0.2 - 0 . 1 3.3 4.9 - 2 . 5 7.0 1.4 

Excludes Bahamas, 
n.a. Not available. 
Source: Inter-American Development Bank, based on official statistics of member countries. 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT HANK 

M A N U F A C T U R I N G SECTOR: DISTRIBUTION A N D G R O W T H OF VALUE ADDED, 1960-1988 
(Percentages) 

Regional 
Distribution Share of G D P 

Average 
Growth Rate Annual Variation 

TABLE 7 

Country 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

1960-62 1986-88 1960-62 1986-88 1961-70 1971-80 1982 1983 1984 1985 1986 1987 1988 

18.2 
n.a. 
0.1 

33.7 

8.9 
n.a. 
0.0 
0.2 

43.2 

24.6 
n.a. 
8.8 

10.8 
26.9 

23.4 
n.a. 
9.9 

10.5 
28.3 

5.2 
n.a. 
6.5 
6.4 
6.8 

l.o 
n.a. 
5.5 

- 5 . 1 
n.a. 

- 5 . 4 

7.7 -0.4 

10.2 
n.a. 
2.5 

5.9 - 1 2 . 4 - 4 . 6 
-6.1 

3.8 - 10.3 12.9 
n.a. n.a. n.a. 

1.9 - 9 . 5 5.1 
14.0 
6.1 

-9.3 2.1 
8.3 11.3 

-0.6 - 4 . 9 
n.a. 

- 6 . 6 
n.a. 
6.8 

3.3 6.5 
1.0 - 3 . 4 

Chile 5.5 2.9 23.0 20.9 5.3 - 0 . 1 - 2 1 . 0 3.1 9.8 1.2 8.0 5.5 8.7 
Colombia 5.1 5.0 20.6 21.1 5.7 5.1 - 1 . 4 1.1 6.0 3.0 5.9 5.0 2.3 
Costa Rica 0.4 0.6 14.1 22.2 8.8 6.6 - 1 1 . 4 1.8 10.4 2.0 7.3 5.5 2.2 
Dominican Republic 0.7 0.8 15.5 17.1 7.4 5.5 3.3 1.0 - 2 . 4 - 7 . 1 7.0 10.7 - 3 . 6 
Ecuador 0.7 1.2 12.8 17.2 5.0 12.0 1.5 - 1 . 4 - 1 . 8 0 . 2 - 1 . 7 3.5 3.8 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

0.6 
1.0 
0.1 
0.3 
0.2 

0,1 
0.9 
0.0 
0.1 
0.2 

15.0 
13.1 
10.1 
13.9 
10.8 

17.7 
15.7 
10.6 
15.5 
15.1 

8.1 
7.6 
2.1 
0.5 
7.1 

2.3 
5.5 
3.5 
6.9 
5.8 

- 5 . 2 
12.9 

- 1 . 6 
- 3 . 6 

2.0 
- 1 . 9 
16.4 

5.5 
5.3 

1.3 
0.5 

-5.9 
-5.9 
8.4 

3.7 2.5 
-0.8 0.7 
-3.1 0.0 
-2.9 0.4 
-2.2 2.7 

3.0 
2.0 

■7.5 
3.9 

2.4 
2.2 

-4.7 
-0.8 
4.9 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

0.7 
16.1 
0.5 
0.3 
0.4 

0.3 
21.4 

0.4 
0.2 
0.5 

17.2 
17.5 
16.3 
10.3 
16.0 

16.3 
21.2 
24.9 

8.7 
16.2 

5.9 
9.2 

10.0 
10.8 
6.6 

-2.3 
6.7 
2.0 
i.O 
8.1 

7.5 
-2.7 
0.1 
2.2 

-3.7 

1.9 
■7.8 
5.6 

■1.8 
■4.2 

-4.2 
5.0 
0.4 

-0.5 
1.5 

0.5 3.6 
6.0 - 5 . 7 

-4.7 2.1 
2.0 2.2 
5.0 - 1 . 4 

5.2 
2.6 

-1.6 
3.7 
3.5 

- 2 . 5 
2.2 

-28.1 
-23.4 

5.8 

Peru 5.3 3.7 24.8 24.0 5.3 2.7 - 1 . 0 - 1 6 . 9 5.5 4.9 16.8 13.7 - 1 3 . 9 
Suriname 0.1 0.1 17.4 14.1 6.9 2.8 - 1 6 . 4 - 9 . 5 - 3 . 2 6.5 3.7 - 1 8 . 7 0.2 
Trinidad and Tobago 0.9 0.3 16.1 10.6 2.9 1.8 2.3 - 1 . 2 - 1 . 4 - 1 1 . 4 7.9 - 4 . 4 - 8 . 3 
Uruguay 1.9 0.8 21.5 21.9 1.2 3.2 - 1 6 . 9 - 7 . 0 2.8 - 1 . 6 12.1 12.4 - 3 . 7 
Venezuela 7.0 7.6 13.9 19.8 7.5 4.8 4.1 - 1 . 7 4.6 4.8 7.2 2.4 5.2 

Latin America
1 100.0 100.0 21.2 23.4 6.7 5.6 ■2.1 -4.2 5.1 4.3 6.3 2.3 - 1 . 

Excludes Bahamas, 
n.a. Not available. 
Source: Inter-American Development Bank, based on official statistics of member countries. 
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ANNUAL VARIATION IN THE CONSUMER PRICE INDEX', BY COUNTRY, 1961-1989 
(Percentages) 

1961-70 1971-80 1981-85 1986 1987 1988 

TABLE 8 

1989* 

Countr ies wi th Relat ive 
Price Stability (Annual 
Rise in Prices of Less 
T h a n 5 Percent) 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Venezuela 
Panama 
Nicaragua 
Dominican Rep. 
Honduras 
Guyana 
Costa Rica 
Mexico 
Haiti 
Barbados 
Trin. & Tobago 
Paraguay 
Jamaica 
Suriname 
Ecuador 

0.7 
0.8 
1.(1 
1.3 
1.7 
2.1 
2.2 
2.3 
2.5 
2.8 
2.9 
3.0 
3.1 
3.4 
4.2 
4.2 
4.4 

3.3 Panama 
Barbados 
Haiti 
Honduras 

( I ! ) 

1.3 
3.3 
4.4 

Haiti 
Panama 
Honduras 
Barbados 

11.5 
0.9 
2.5 
3.3 

Haiti 
Panama 
Honduras 
Barbados 

- 0 . 2 
0.4 
4.5 
4.8 

Panama 
Bahamas 
Barbados 

1.0 
4.0 
4.7 

\ l 

Countr ies wi th Modera te Bolivia 5.6 
Inflat ion (Annual Rise in Bahamas2 6.2 
Prices of be tween 5 and Peru 9.7 
15 Percent Colombia 11.1 

Panama 
Bahamas 
Honduras 
Venezuela 
Guatemala 
Suriname 
Guyana 
Dominican Rep. 
El Salvador 
Haiti 
Costa Rica 
Ecuador 
Trin. & Tobago 
Paraguay 
Barbados 

7.1 
7.5 
8.2 
8.5 
9.7 
9.9 

10.3 
10.5 
10.9 
10.9 
I I . I 
12.7 
13.2 
13.4 
14.6 

Bahamas 
Honduras 
Suriname 
Guatemala 
Barbados 
Haiti 
Venezuela 
Trin. & Tobago 
EI Salvador 

5.9 
6.9 
7.0 
7.7 
7.8 
9.1 

1 1.1 
12.4 
14.7 

Bahamas 
Trin. & Tobago 
Guyana 
Dominican Rep. 
Venezuela 
Costa Rica 

5.5 
7.7 
7.9 
9.8 

11.6 
11.8 

Bahamas 
Jamaica 
Trin. & Tobago 
Guatemala 
Bolivia 

6.0 
6.7 

10.7 
12.3 
14.6 

Bahamas 
Suriname 
Trin. & Tobago 
Jamaica 
Guatemala 
Chile 

5.1 
7.3 
7.8 
8.2 

12.1 
14.8 

Trin. & Tobago 
Honduras 
Suriname 
Costa Rica 
Guatemala 
Haiti 

9.0 
9.6 

10.0 
12.0 
12.0 
12.0 

Countr ies wi th H igh Argentina 21.4 
Inflat ion (Annual Rise Chile 27.1 
Grea te r T h a n 15 Percent) Brazil 46.2 

Uruguay 47.8 

Mexico 
Jamaica 
Bolivia 
Nicaragua 
Colombia 
Peru 
Brazil 
Uruguay 
Argentina 
Chile 

16.8 
18.5 
20.2 
20.4 
21.3 
31.9 
36.7 
63.1 

141.6 
174.1 

Paraguay 
Jamaica 
Dominican Rep. 
Guyana 
Chile 
Colombia 
Ecuador 
Costa Rica 
Uruguay 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Peru 
Brazil 
Argentina 
Bolivia 

15.9 
16.9 
16.9 
19.7 
21.5 
22.4 
28.1 
37.4 
46.0 
62.4 
66.9 

104.9 
153.9 
382.4 

2,692.0 

Jamaica 
Suriname 
Colombia 
Chile-
Ecuador 
Paraguay 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Uruguay 
Peru 
Mexico 
Argentina 
Brazil 
Bolivia 
Nicaragua 

15.1 
18.7 
18.9 
19.5 
23.0 
31.8 
32.0 
37.0 
76.4 
78.0 
86.2 
90.1 

145.3 
276.4 
681.5 

Dominican Rep. 
Costa Rica 
Chile 
Paraguay 
Colombia 
El Salvador 
Venezuela 
Guyana 
Ecuador 
Suriname 
Uruguay 
Peru 
Argentina 
Mexico 
Brazil 
Nicaragua 

16.1 
16.8 
19.9 
21.8 
23.3 
24.9 
28.1 
28.7 
29.5 
53.3 
63.6 
85.9 

131.3 
131.8 
229.7 
911.9 

Bolivia 
El Salvador 
Costa Rica 
Paraguay 
Colombia 
Venezuela 
Guyana 
Dominican Rep. 
Ecuador 
Uruguay 
Mexico 
Argentina 
Peru 
Brazil 
Nicaragua h 

16.0 
19.8 
21.0 
23.4 
28.1 
29.5 
40.1 
44.4 
58.2 
62.2 

114.4 
342.5 
667.9 
682.3 
,295.3 

Bolivia 
Jamaica 
Chile 
El Salvador 
Mexico 
Colombia 
Paraguay 
Dominican Rep. 
Ecuador 
Guyana 
Venezuela 
Uruguay 
Brazil 
Nicaragua 
Argentina 
Peru 

15.9 
16.0 
17.0 
19.4 
20.0 
25.8 
29.0 
43.0 
75.6 
80.0 
82.0 
87.0 

1,324.7 
1.890.0 
3,079.5 
3.522.7 

1 Annual averages of monthly consumer price indexes. 
2 Average 1967-70. Data for years before 1966 not available. 
* Preliminary estimate. 
Source: International Monetary Fund, International Financial Statistics and IDB estimates. 



LATIN AMERICA: BALANCE OF PAYMENTS SUMMARY'. 
(In Millions of Dollars) 

1987 

1987-1989 
TABLE 9 

Country 

1988* 1989" 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade-

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items' 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade2 

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items1 

Balance on 

Merchandise 
Trade-

Current 
Account 

Capital 
Account 

Reserves 
and 

Related 
Items1 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 

975.0 
- 8 7 7 . 1 
- 3 2 7 . 0 
- 1 2 7 . 6 

11,106.2 

-4,228.3 
- 1 5 8 . 4 

- 5 3 . 3 
- 4 1 7 . 3 

-1,498.7 

2,496.9 
- 2 0 . 2 
100.9 
199.7 

4,435.2 

1,949.9 
57.7 

- 6 . 3 
48.0 

-2,131.0 

4,066.2 
- 7 7 3 . 6 
- 3 7 3 . 3 

57.8 
19,181.0 

■1,787.8 
- 1 3 3 . 5 

2.2 
- 1 3 6 . 3 
4,904.0 

3,828.3 
78.9 
47.4 

167.8 
■2,378.0 

1,904.7 
1.1 

25.0 
43.6 

1,705.0 

5,350.0 
n.a. 
n.a. 

95.0 
16,000.0 

1,690.0 
n.a. 
n.a. 

- 50.0 
110.0 

1,190.0 
n.a. 
n.a. 

100.0 
100.0 

500.0 
n.a. 
n.a 

- 5 0 . 0 
-210.0 

Chile 1,229.7 - 8 1 2 . 0 1,020.2 - 1 3 5 . 8 2,219.3 - 1 6 6 . 7 1,095.5 - 8 2 4 . 0 1,670.0 - 7 4 4 . 0 979.0 - 2 3 5 . 0 
Colombia 1,868.5 337.5 - 1 . 3 - 4 0 2 . 1 647.9 - 4 6 5 . 1 1,082.1 - 1 7 7 . 4 780.0 - 4 5 5 . 0 540.0 - 8 5 . 0 
Costa Rica - 1 3 6 . 7 - 2 5 5 . 4 163.2 - 3 8 . 5 - 7 1 . 4 - 1 4 2 . 4 289.7 - 2 4 2 . 9 - 4 0 5 . 0 - 3 8 0 . 0 440.0 - 6 0 . 0 
Dominican Republic - 8 8 0 . 2 - 3 4 5 . 9 201.3 133.3 - 7 1 8 . 4 - 1 3 1 . 4 386.0 - 1 2 2 . 5 - 8 7 5 . 0 - 1 3 5 . 0 120.0 15.0 
Ecuador - 3 3 . 1 -1 ,131 .0 1,164.9 100.5 589.0 - 5 9 7 . 2 418.2 - 1 4 . 2 610.0 - 5 0 5 . 0 720.0 - 2 1 5 . 0 

oc 

El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 

■333.6 
■350.6 

4.8 
-103.8 
- 4 9 . 5 

144.6 
-437.6 
-109.4 
- 2 7 . 5 
-225.5 

83.5 
453.7 

- 2 1 . 1 
77.7 

235.0 

-56.7 
54.4 
74.5 
16.2 

-64.9 

-343.5 
339.8 

18.8 
■128.5 
- 2 3 . 7 

61.0 
-417 .8 
- 9 0 . 6 
- 4 8 . 8 

-231 .3 

125.0 
351.7 

- 1 2 . 4 
69-9 

129.2 

64.0 
83.3 
21.0 

-22.0 
-18.8 

-520.0 
-390.0 

n.a. 
-160.0 
- 2 0 . 0 

- 8 5 . 0 
385.0 

n.a. 
-142.0 
208.0 

- 6 0 . 0 
425.0 

n.a. 
32.0 

213.0 

145.0 
- 4 0 . 0 

n.a. 
110.0 
- 5 . 0 

Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

- 3 6 1 . 8 
8,450.2 
- 4 3 9 . 0 
- 5 9 5 . 6 

- 9 7 . 2 

- 7 9 . 5 
3,971.0 
- 6 5 2 . 0 

288.2 
- 1 3 3 . 4 

178.2 
-969.8 
430.0 
205.0 
161.6 

- 1 6 9 . 9 
-5,672.7 

262.0 
37.5 

- 3 7 . 5 

- 3 9 9 . 4 
1,703.1 
- 4 8 3 . 0 
- 1 7 7 . 2 

68.7 

74.1 
-2,965.3 
- 6 0 2 . 0 

737.0 
- 1 2 5 . 0 

113.6 
3,239.5 

602.0 
460.7 

- 5 4 . 0 

- 1 7 8 . 5 
6,799.0 

170.0 
5.4 

168.6 

n.a. 
- 2 0 0 . 0 
- 2 8 5 . 0 
- 6 9 0 . 0 

80.0 

n.a. 
5,300.0 
- 3 4 5 . 0 

95.0 
- 4 7 . 0 

n.a. 
6,300.0 

365.0 
- 1 0 5 . 0 

162.0 

n.a. 
1,000.0 
- 2 0 . 0 

10.0 
- 1 1 5 . 0 

Peru - 5 1 7 . 2 -2 ,103 .0 1,502.0 760.0 - 5 6 . 5 - 1 , 9 5 1 . 0 1,944.0 124.0 1,570.0 - 3 0 0 . 0 1,270.0 - 9 7 0 . 0 
Suriname - 0 . 7 - 3 0 . 3 1.2 9.3 55.5 - 3 6 . 8 15.2 23.8 n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Trinidad and Tobago 349.5 - 2 4 7 . 1 186.6 254.1 287.1 - 1 4 8 . 4 64.8 87.1 n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 
Uruguay 102.4 - 1 3 1 . 0 283.2 - 8 1 . 6 292.4 33.9 194.5 - 1 9 . 0 435.0 98.0 - 6 3 . 0 - 3 5 . 0 
Venezuela 1,735.3 -1 ,123 .7 - 1 2 9 . 3 1,021.5 - 1 , 3 4 6 . 9 - 4 , 6 9 1 . 3 298.4 4,098.5 4,990.0 1,290.0 - 9 8 0 . 0 - 3 1 0 . 0 

Latin America 20,496.9 - 8 , 4 4 6 . 2 12,017.8 - 4 , 1 6 0 . 7 23,823-3 - 8 , 3 4 7 . 4 4,796.4 6,473.9 28,035.0* -9 ,178 .0 ' ' 11,748* -2 ,570 .0* 

1 Excluding errors and omissions. 
2 Exports and imports valued at f.o.b. prices. 
1 According to conventional usage, the sign ( — ) means an increase. 
" ECLAC estimates. The capital account includes errors and omissions. 

Total on 19 countries. 
* Preliminary, 
n.a. Not available. 
Source: International Monetary Fund, Balance oí Payments Tapes and IDB estimates and ECLAC. 



INTER-AMERICAN DIA T.I.OPMENT BANK 

LATIN AMERICA: NET RESOURCE TRANSFER 
A N D EXTERNAL DEBT, 1980-88 
(Millions of dollars) 

Year 

Capital 
Account 

(1) 

Investment 
Income 

(2) 

Net Resource 
Transfer 

(3) = (1) + (2) 

1980 
1981 
1982 
1983 
1984 
1985 
1986 
1987 
1988 
1989 

$33,372 
52,451 
32,245 
6,070 
10,941 
3,704 
8,414 
12,018 
4,797 
12,055" 

$-19,047 
-28,155 
-39,643 
-35,377 
- 3 8 , 3 9 6 
-37,572 
- 3 3 , 6 4 6 
-31,225 
-34,128 
- 39,400-

14,326 
24,296 
-7,399 
■29,306 
-27,455 
■33,869 
■25,232 
■ 19,207 
29,331 
■27,652* 

TABLE 10 

Disbursed 
External Debt 

(4) 

$242,625 
296,209 
333,419 
360,929 
377,140 
389,271 
409,057 
445,154 
427,282 
433,873

b 

a ECLAC and IDB estimates.The capital account includes errors and omissions. 
World Bank projections. 

Sources: Columns (1) and (2) IMF, Balance of Payments Tapes and IDB estimates, (4) World Bank. 
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FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER 

Under the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member country shall have 135 votes plus 
one vote for each share of ordinary capital stock held 
by that country. The Agreement also provides that no 
increase in the subscription of any member to the or
dinary capital stock shall become effective which would 
have the effect of reducing the voting power of the 
regional developing members below 53.5 percent, of 
the United States below 34.5 percent, and of Canada 
below 4 percent of the total voting power. 

In making decisions concerning operations of the 
Fund for Special Operations, the number of votes and 
percent of total voting power for each member country 
are the same as determined by the provisions of the 
Agreement referred to above. 

Subscriptions to shares of ordinary capital stock, 
and the voting power of the member countries, are 
listed on the following page. 

GUYANA EXPANDS TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL 
EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES FOR ITS PEOPLE. George 
Dunn, an education consultant from the United King
dom, and Linda Troyer, project director for the IDB-
financedtechnical education subprogram, discuss what 
new shop machinery to purchase for the Guyana Tech
nical Institute. It is one of three tuition-free post-secon
dary-level institutes that are being improved and 
equipped with funds from a 1985 IDB loan. 

131 



INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK AND VOTING POWER 
December 31, 1989 

Member countries 

Regional developing members 
Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Total regional developing members 

United States 

Canada 

Nonregional members 
Austria 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Israel 
Italy 
Japan 
Netherlands 
Norway 
Portugal 
Spain 
Sweden 
Switzerland 
United Kingdom 
Yugoslavia 
Total nonregional members 

GRAND TOTAL 

Subscribed 
shares 

331,478 
6,405 
3,964 

26,610 
331,478 

91,018 
90,951 
13,300 
17,758 
17,758 
13,300 
17,758 
4,932 

13,300 
13,300 
17,758 

213,079 
13,300 
13,300 
13,300 
44,418 

2,704 
13,300 
35,540 

177,592 

1,537,601 

989,152 

125,202 

2,263 
5,364 
2,411 
2,263 

27,559 
28,226 

2,230 
27,559 
30,743 
4,189 
2,411 

726 
27,559 

4,694 
6,154 

27,559 
2,263 

204,173 
2,856,128 

Number 
of votes 

331,613 
6,540 
4,099 

26,745 
331,613 

91,153 
91,086 
13,435 
17,893 
17,893 
13,435 
17,893 
5,067 

13,435 
13,435 
17,893 

213,214 
13,435 
13,435 
13,435 
44,553 

2,839 
13,435 
35,675 

177,727 
1,540,976 

989,287 

125,337 

2,398 
5,499 
2,546 
2,398 

27,694 
28,361 

2,365 
27,694 
30,878 
4,324 
2,546 

861 
27,694 

4,829 
6,289 

27,694 
2,398 

206,468 
2,862,068 

Percentage 
of total 

number of 
votes' 

11.59 
0.23 
0.14 
0.93 

11.59 
3.18 
3.18 
0.47 
0.63 
0.63 
0.47 
0.63 
0.18 
0.47 
0.47 
0.63 
7.45 
0.47 
0.47 
0.47 
1.56 
0.10 
0.47 
1.25 
6.21 

53.84 

34.57 

4.38 

0.08 
0.19 
0.09 
0.08 
0.97 
0.99 
0.08 
0.97 
1.08 
0.15 
0.09 
0.03 
0.97 
0.17 
0.22 
0.97 
0.08 
7.21 

100.00 

Data are rounded to the nearest one-hundredth of one percent; detail may not add to subtotals and grand total because of rounding. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 134 through 144 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Ordinary Capital at December 
31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Bank's 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards which 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that 
our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

ÇA*K^ U)eJLk*+~<.— 
PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 7, 1990 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

December 31, 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash (Note C) 
Investments (Note D) 

Loans outstanding (Note E) (Appendix 1-1) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations 
Less undisbursed balance of approved loans 
Less principal collected and loans sold 

or agreed to be sold 

Allowance for loan losses 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

1989 

i 173,160 
3,649.635 

30,109,469 
(8,201,792) 

(6,626,782) 
15,280,895 

(140,500) 

80,717 
329,244 

S 3,822,795 

15,140,395 

409,961 

1988 

$ 175,604 
3,940,783 

28,461,485 
(8,309,921) 

(5,809,913) 
14,341,651 

(50,000) 

54,903 
369,704 

$ 4,116,387 

14,291,651 

424,607 

Receivable from members (Note I) 
Capital subscriptions 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing 

demand obligations 
Amounts required to maintain value of 

currency holdings 

591 

432,772 

5,777 439,140 

446 

494,124 

5,777 500,347 

Other Assets 
Property (Note F) 
Unamortized borrowing costs 
Miscellaneous 

Special Reserve assets (Note G) 
Total assets 

242,438 
134,609 
26,262 403,309 

839,793 
$21,055,393 

242,462 
137,461 
11,817 391,740 

712,934 
$20,437,666 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

LIABILITIES A N D CAPITAL 

Liabilities 
Borrowings (Note H) (Appendix 1-2) 

Less unamortized discount 

Accrued interest on borrowings 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Advance payments of capital 

$14,630,121 
(33,199) 

14,596,922 
375,985 
144,502 

$15,117,409 

$14,265,595 
(44,885) 

14,220,710 
378,332 
167,923 

808 $14,767,773 

Capital 
Capital Stock (Note I) (Appendix 1-3) 

Subscribed 2,856,128 shares 
(1988—2,825,274) 

Less callable portion 
34,454,707 

(31,812,683) 
2,642,024 

34,082,502 
(31,482,410) 

2,600,092 

General Reserve (Note J) 
Special Reserve (Note G) 

2,456,167 
839,793 5,937,984 

2,356,867 
712,934 5,669,893 

Commitments (Note E) 
Total liabilities and capital $21,055,393 $20,437,666 
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ORDINARY CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note E) 

Interest 
Credit commissions 
Special commissions 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments 
Other (Note H) . 

Total income 

1989 

» 931,726 
80,291 

128,393 
24,300 

1,164,710 
370,128 

ÍL45D 
1,527,387 

1988 

I 980,416 
83,992 

134,779 
22,122 

1,221,309 
328,592 

(3,275) 
1,546,626 

Expenses 
Borrowing expenses 
Provision for loan losses (Note E) 
Administtative expenses 

Total expenses 

1,112,801 
90,500 

103,507 
1,306,808 

1,163,574 
50,000 
94,650 

1,308,224 

Net income 
Allocation to Special Reserve (Note G) . . 
Addition to General Reserve for the year 

General Reserve beginning of year 
Translation adjustments (Note J) . . . 

General Reserve end of year 

220,579 
(128,393) 

92,186 

2,356,867 
7,114 

$2,456,167 

238,402 
(134,779) 
103,623 

2,301,313 
(48,069) 

$2,356,867 
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O R D I N A R Y CAPITAL 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousand of United States dollars—Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Borrowings (excluding related costs): 

Gtoss proceeds from borrowings 
Repayment of borrowings 

Participations: 
Sales of loans to participants 
Repayments to participants 

Capital: 
Collections of receivables from members 

Net cash provided by financing activities . . 

1989 

$1,983,671 
(1,137,418) 

4,000 
(64,092) 

102,331 
888,492 

1988 

$ 901,942 
(833,150) 

32,673 
(76,518) 

177,579 
202,526 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash used for lending activities 

Purchase of property 
Investments of the Special Reserve . . 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities 
Net cash used for investing activities . 

(2,192,789) 
935,336 

(1,257,453) 
(7,869) 

(129,851) 
(32,852) 

(1,428,025) 

(1,942,416) 
849,646 

(1,092,770) 
(3,854) 

(104,501) 
LM! 

(1,199,780) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Interest and other costs of borrowings . . . 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and investments 
Net decrease in cash and investments 

1,187,538 
(1,110,495) 

343,525 
132 

(100,677) 
320,023 

(74,082) 
$ (293,592) 

1,213,145 
(1,153,622) 

358,335 
538 

(88,706) 
329,690 

(199,505) 
$ (867,069) 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash 
provided by operat ing activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Other income 
Interest and other costs of borrowings 
Administrative expenses, including depreciation 

Provision for loan losses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

$ 220,579 

22,828 
(26,603) 

9,889 
2,830 

90,500 
$ 320,023 

$ 238,402 

(8,164) 
29,743 
(3,822) 
17,587 
5,944 

50,000 
$ 329,690 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increase (decrease) resulting from exchange 

rate fluctuations: 
Borrowings 
Loans outstanding 

(481,727) 
(379,101) 

$(1,027,675) 
(914,355) 
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NOTES T O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Note A—Summary of Significant Account ing 
Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; 
however, the Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of 
all of its members. Such currencies have been derived from 
capital and borrowed sources including earnings from each. As
sets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the 
United States dollar are translated generally at approximate mar
ket rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the financial 
statements. Income and expenses in such currencies are trans
lated generally at the approximate market rates of exchange 
prevailing during each month. Fluctuations of rates of exchange 
of currencies received from capital subscriptions do not have 
any effect on the United States dollar equivalent of such cur
rencies because of the maintenance of value provisions described 
in Note B. The Bank generally follows the policy of holding, 
investing and lending the proceeds of borrowings in the curren
cies borrowed. 

The adjustments resulting from the translation into United 
States dollars of assets and liabilities denominated in borrowed 
currencies are shown in the Statement of Income and General 
Reserve as translation adjustments affecting the General Reserve 
directly. 

Exchange gains or losses realized upon conversion of one 
borrowed currency into another are generally insignificant and 
are tecorded in other income. 

No representation is made that any currency held in the 
ordinary capital is convertible into any other currency at any 
rate or rates. 

Loans 

The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of 
loans on a continuous basis. The Bank ceases to accrue income 
under all loans to or guaranteed by a given borrower, including 
a member, when service under any of such loans, made from 
any fund owned or administered by the Bank, is overdue for 
180 days; income is recorded thereafter only as it is collected, 
until loan service is current under all loans. The Bank considers 
recording provisions for loan losses no later than when loan 
service is overdue from a borrower for two years. Provisions fot 
loan losses are charged against income. 

Administrative Expenses 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, including 
depreciation, are allocated to the funds pursuant to an allocation 
method approved by the Board of Executive Directors. During 
1989 such expenses were charged 57 .1% to the ordinary capital 
and 42.9% to the Fund for Special Operations (1988—56.1% 
and 43.9%, respectively). 

Property 

Property is recorded at cost. Major improvements are capitalized 
while routine replacements, maintenance and repairs are charged 
to expense. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line 
method over estimated useful lives (30 to 40 years for buildings 
and 3 to 7 years for equipment). 

Note B—Maintenance of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member is required to maintain the value of its 
currency held in the ordinary capital, except for currency derived 
from borrowings. Likewise, the Bank is required to return to a 
member an amount of its currency equal to any significant in
crease in value of such member's currency which is held in the 
ordinary capital, except for currency derived from bottowings. 
The standard of value fot these purposes is the United States 
dollar of the weight and fineness in effect on January 1, 1959 
(see Note I). 

Note C—Restricted Currencies 

Cash includes $165,889,000 (1988-$155,536,000) in the non-
convertible currencies of regional borrowing members, of which 
$71,126,000 (1988-$70,204,000) has been restricted by one of 
the members, in accordance with the provisions of the Agree
ment, to be used for making payments for goods and services 
produced in its territory. 

N o t e D — I n v e s t m e n t s 

The investments of the Bank—Ordinary Capital—are stated at 
amortized cost which approximates market and consist of the 
following: 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

Obligations issued or 
guaranteed by govern
ments or issued by 
United States Agencies 

Time deposits and other 
obligations of banks 

(in thousands) 

$ 806,425 

2,843,210 
$3,649,635 

$ 435,016 

3,505,767 
$3,940,783 

The average return on investments was 8.26% in 1989 and 
6.56% in 1988. 

N o t e E—Loans O u t s t a n d i n g 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies or 
political subdivisions of such members or to private enterprises 
located in their territories. For loans to borrowers other than 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

members and central banks, the Bank in almost all instances has 
received either the member's guarantee or other security 
deemed appropriate. The Bank has a policy of not rescheduling 
loan repayments. 

Under the loan contracts with the borrowers, the Bank may 
sell participations in the loans to commercial banks or other 
public or private organizations, but it reserves to itself the admin
istration of the loans. 

Loans approved are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; however, 
disbursements do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, 
if any, take certain actions and furnish certain documents to the 
Bank. Of the undisbursed balances, the Bank has entered into 
irrevocable commitments to disburse approximately 
$107,891,000 at December 31, 1989. 

The Intermediate Financing Facility Account (IFF) was es
tablished in 1983 by the Board of Governors of the Bank for 
the purpose of providing to certain botrowets part of the interest 
payments for which they are liable on loans from the capital 
resoutces of the Bank. During 1989, the IFF paid $11,323,000 
of such interest on behalf of borrowers (1988—$7,683,000). 
The IFF is funded from the General Reserve of the Bank's Fund 
for Special Operations. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, loans made to 
or guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual 
status at December 31, 1989: 

Loan Principal 
at December 31, 1989 

Country 

Honduras 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Average 
Month placed in ! interest 

nonaccrual Outstanding Overdue rate % 

November 1989 
May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

(in thousands) 
222,520 

71,908 
294,917 
621,395 

$ 11,232 
6,765 

56,589 
80,244 

8.94 
9.23 
9.02 
8.52 

$1,210,740 $154,830 

Placing these loans in a nonaccrual status resulted in a re
duction in loan income of $134,677,000 and $48,653,000 for 
the years 1989 and 1988, respectively. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have re
quired the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated 
above, the Bank commenced in 1988 to provide for the possi
bility of loan losses, and accordingly, provisions of $90,500,000 
and $50,000,000 have been charged to income in 1989 and 
1988, respectively, for a total allowance for loan losses of 
$140,500,000 at December 31, 1989. 

The average interest rate on loans outstanding, which in
cludes the special commission (Note G), was 7.43% and 8.14% 
in 1989 and 1988, respectively. In addition to the interest rate, 
the Bank charges a credit commission of .75% (1.25% on loans 
approved prior to January 1, 1989) p e r annum on the undis
bursed convertible currency portion of loans and a one-time 
inspection and supervision fee of 1% on the principal amount 

of the loans. The average return on loans outstanding was 8.16% 
and 8.92% in 1989 and 1988, respectively. 

The average interest rate on loans outstanding excluding 
those in nonaccrual status was 8.34% and 8.46% in 1989 and 
1988, respectively; the average return on loans outstanding ex
cluding those in nonaccrual status was 9 .13% and 9.27% in 1989 
and 1988, respectively. 

Note F—Property 

The property of the Bank-Ordinaty Capital 
lowing: 

—consists of the fol-

December 31, 

1989 1988 

(in thousands) 
Land, buildings, improve

ments and equipment, at 
cost 

Less-accumulated depreciation 

Note G—Special Reserve 

$274,238 
31,800 

$242j438 

$266,369 
23,907 

$242,462 

The amount of special commissions earned by the Bank on loans 
made out of the ordinary capital resources is segregated as a 
special reserve for meeting the Bank's obligations created by 
borrowing or by guaranteeing loans. On all loans granted to date 
the rate of commission is 1% per annum. The following is a 
summary of changes in the Special Reserve: 

Year ended 
December 31, 

1989 1988 

Balance beginning of year . . . 
Allocation of special commis

sions 
Translation adjustments 

Balance end of year 

(in thousands) 
$712,934 $580,777 

128,393 
(1.534) 

$839,793 

134,779 
(2,622) 

$712,934 

The Special Reserve assets consist of the following: 
December 31, 

1989 1988 

(in thousands) 
Investments 

United States Government 
and Agencies obligations, 
at amortized cost which 
approximates market 

Accrued loan commissions . .. 
$796,880 

42,913 
$839,793 

$667,029 
45,905 

$712,934 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

N o t e H — B o r r o w i n g s 

The borrowings of the Bank consist of loans, notes and bonds 
issued in various regional and nonregional member currencies, 
at interest rates ranging from 4 .25% to 14.625%. During 1989 
and 1988 the average cost of borrowings outstanding was 8.05% 
and 8.19%, respectively. The Bank will from time to time bor
row additional amounts for its ordinary capital in the course of 
its operations. 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent to 
December 31, 1989 are as indicated in Appendix 1-2. 

Losses of $7,583,000 in 1989 (1988—$7,635,000) reflect
ing purchases of bonds pursuant to advance redemption provi
sions are included under other income. 

Note I—Capital Stock 

Composition 

The capital of the Bank consists of "paid-in" and "callable" 
shares. The subscribed "paid-in" capital has been or is to be paid 
in gold and/or United States dollars (see below) and in the cur
rency of the respective member, which in some cases must be 
made freely convertible, in accordance with the terms for the 
respective increase in capital. Non-negotiable, non-interest bear
ing demand obligations have been or will be accepted in lieu of 
part of the member's subscription to the "paid-in" capital. The 
subscribed "callable" portion of capital shall be called only when 
required to meet obligations of the Bank created by borrowings 
of funds for inclusion in the Bank's ordinary capital resources 
or guarantees chargeable to such resources and is payable at the 
option of the member either in gold, in United States dollars, 
in fully convertible currency of the member country, or in the 
currency required to discharge the obligations of the Bank for 
the purpose for which the call is made. 

Valuat ion 

The Agreement provides that the ordinary capital be expressed 
in terms of United States dollars of the weight and fineness in 
effect on January 1, 1959. The Second Amendment to the Ar
ticles of Agreement of the International Monetary Fund elimi
nated par values of currencies in terms of gold effective April 
1, 1978, and consequently the General Counsel of the Bank has 
rendered an opinion that the Special Drawing Right (SDR) has 
become the successor to the 1959 U.S. dollar as the standard 
of value of the Bank's capital stock and for the purpose of main
taining the value of the Bank's currency holdings. The SDR has 
a value equal to the sum of the values of specific amounts of 
stated currencies, including the U.S. dollar. Pending a decision 
by the Bank's governing boards, and as suggested in the General 
Counsel's opinion, the Bank is continuing its practice of using 
the 1959 U.S. dollar, which pursuant to the devaluations of the 
United States dollar in 1972 and 1973 is equal to approximately 
1.2063 current U.S. dollars, as the basis of valuation. 

In these terms, at December 31, 1989 the subscribed capital 
was $34,454,707,000 (2,856,128 shares of approximately 
$12,063 each) consisting of $2,642,024,000 (219,011 shares) of 
"paid-in" capital and $31,812,683,000 (2,637,117 shares) of 
"callable" capital. If the SDR were to have been substituted for 
the 1959 dollar on December 31, 1989, subscribed capital would 
have totalled $37,534,092,000, consisting of $2,878,155,000 of 
"paid-in" capital and $34,655,937,000 of "callable" capital. Such 
substitution would not have materially affected either the overall 
financial position or the results of operations of the Bank— 
ordinary capital. For a statement of subscribed capital at De
cember 31, 1989 see Appendix 1-3. 

Changes for the period 

The following table summarizes the changes in the subscribed 
capital for the years ended December 31, 1988 and 1989: 

Balance at January 1, 1988 and 1989 
Subscriptions to an increase of capital approved in 1983 
Balance at December 31, 1989 

Subscribed capital 

Amount (in thousands) 

Shares 

2,825,274 
30,854 

Paid-in 

$2,600,092 
41,932 

2,856,128 $2,642,024 

Callable 

$31,482,410 
330,273 

$31,812,683 

Total 

$34,082,502 
372,205 

$34,454,707 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

In January 1990 an increase in the capital stock of the Bank was 
approved in the amount of $26,500,007,000, consisting of 
$662,705,000 of "paid-in" capital and $25,837,302,000 of "call
able" capital. Subscriptions under this increase will become ef
fective in four equal installments on October 31 of each of the 
years 1990 through 1993. 

Subscriptions to 2,621 shares of "paid-in"capital amounting 
to $31,618,000 with respect to the increase of capital approved 
in 1983 are still pending from one member country at December 
31, 1989. 

N o t e J — G e n e r a l R e s e r v e 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors the 
net income from the ordinary capital resources of the Bank, 
after allocation to the Special Reserve (See Note G), has been 
added to a General Reserve to provide for possible future losses 
on loans or any annual excess of expenses over income. 

Beginning in 1981 the adjustments resulting from the trans
lation into United States dollars of assets and liabilities denom
inated in borrowed cutrencies have been made directly to the 
General Reserve. Such adjustments consist of credits (charges) 
as follows: 

Years ended December 31, 

1989 1988 

Cumulative adjust
ments, beginning of 
year 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 

Cumulative adjust
ments, end of year 

(in thousands) 

$(6,780) 541,289 

7,114 (48,069) 

$ 334 $(6,780) 

N o t e K—Staf f R e t i r e m e n t P l a n 

D e s c r i p t i o n 

The Bank has one Staff Retirement Plan for the benefit of its 
international employees and one for the benefit of local em
ployees in the field offices. Both plans are defined benefit plans. 

F u n d i n g po l i cy 

The Plans are funded by employee and Bank contributions at 
the rates of 10%. and 24% of payroll, respectively. In accordance 
with the provisions of the Plans, any and all contributions to the 
Plans by the Bank shall be irrevocable, and shall be held by the 
Bank in the Retirement Funds, to be used in accordance with 
the provisions of the Plans, and neither such contributions or 
any income thereon shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes 
other than the exclusive benefit of participants and retired par

ticipants or their beneficiaries or estates under the Plans prior 
to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect thereto. 

T y p e s of assets 

The assets of the Retirement Funds are invested by several in
dependent investment managers principally in government, cor
porate and other bonds, common stocks and real estate invest
ment funds. 

P e n s i o n Costs 

Pension costs of the Bank for 1989 and 1988 were $17,799,000 
and $17,368,000, respectively, and were charged to administra
tive expenses and allocated to the funds as indicated in note A. 

C o m p o n e n t s of p e n s i o n cos ts 

Pension costs for the year ended December 31, 1989 comprised 
the following (in thousands): 

Service cost $ 21,050 
42,194 

593 
(46,038) 

$ 17,799 

Reconciliation of Plan assets (in thousands): 
Projected benefit obligation at December 31, 

1989, based on December 31, 1988 valua
tion of the Plan $ 525,340 

Plan assets at December 31, 1989 541,731 
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obli

gation 16,391 
Remaining unrecognized net obligation at Jan

uary 1, 1989 8,303 
Unrecognized net gain resulting mainly from a 

better than expected return on plan assets . . (24,694) 
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Balance 

Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Expected return on Plan assets 

Sheet $ 0 

Actuarial assumptions 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 
Weighted average rate of salary increase 

9.00% 

9.75% 
9.63% 
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APPENDIX 1-1 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE E 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Member in 
whose territory 

loans have 
been made 

Argentina 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic . 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago . 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

Currency in which 
outstanding portion of 

approved loans 
is collectible 

3,632 
118 
92. 
689. 

5,377, 
3,335 
3,153 
894 
398 

1.359, 
274 
531, 
102. 
300. 
433, 

4,537, 
92, 
529 
163 
987 
18 
151 
591 

1,237 
1,103 

Total 1989 
Total 1988 

$30,109. 

,860 
530 
583 
,967 
,627 
,996 
,579 
,954 
514 
,343 
,464 
,919 
990 
949 
,633 
,398 
.639 
,300 
,156 
129 
,653 
,586 
121 
451 
128 
469 

S28.461.485 

Principal 
collected 

$1,001,582 
3,284 
8,229 
38,950 

1,637,594 
318,072 
418,557 
60,220 
20,282 
106,029 
66,702 
71,835 
2,876 
14,406 
60,946 

1,245,624 
18,937 
43,262 
20,170 
148,099 

333 
75,986 
149,901 
198,055 

$5,729,931 
$4,913,113 

Loans sold 
or agreed 
to be sold 

$118,186 

14,000 
59,740 
121,566 
172,705 
1,520 
200 

103,257 
15,251 
40,725 

18,060 

22,186 
1,794 

58,000 
429 

128,513 

13,951 
5,768 
1,000 

$896,851 
$896,800 

Undisbursed 

$ 904,570 
114,395 
37,417 
319,614 

1,047,501 
1,023,169 
1,020,370 
544,549 
224,407 
562,786 
8,599 

142,022 
24,791 
45,963 
157,885 
382,888 

133,121 
20,808 
89,122 
14,893 
136,478 
255,872 
705,914 
284,658 

$8,201,792 
$8,309,921 

Outstanding 

$ 1,608,522 
851 

46,937 
317,403 

2,632,792 
1,873,189 
1,541,947 
288,665 
153,625 
587,271 
183,912 
277,337 
75,323 
222,520 
214,802 

2,886,700 
71,908 
294,917 
121,749 
621,395 
3,760 
14,775 

245,312 
375,868 
619,415 

$15,280,895 

Freely 
convertible 
currencies 

$ 1.557,379 
851 

46,722 
311,918 

2,538,191 
1,854,292 
1,528,971 

288,665 
153,625 
585,683 
182,016 
275,789 

75,323 
222,520 
211,808 

2,858,677 
71,908 

294,046 
120,034 
611,677 

3,760 
14,775 

245,082 
375,868 
619,415 

$15,048,995 

$14,100,353 

Other 
currencies 

$ 51,143 

215 
5,485 

94,601 
18,897 
12,976 

1,588 
1,896 
1,548 

2,994 
28,023 

871 
1,715 
9,718 

230 

$231,900 

Outstanding 
1988 

$ 1,522,762 
349 

40,621 
263,233 

2,637,832 
1,737,420 
1,398,730 

282,627 
139.945 
533,420 
204,604 
267,588 

62,370 
214,291 
190,005 

2,848,559 
72,173 

300,643 
122,929 
632,270 

1,949 
7,912 

212,288 
224,312 
422,819 

$241,298 $14,341,651 

T h e freely conver t ib le cur renc ies in which the ou t s rand ing por t ion of 
approved loans is collectible a re as follows: 

Cur renc ies 1989 1988 

Aust r ian schillings $ 2 4 , 4 2 5 $ 2 8 , 0 5 2 
Belgian francs — 76 
Brirish p o u n d s s ter l ing 3 6 5 , 5 4 8 4 3 1 , 0 6 0 
Canadian dollars 3 7 , 4 0 7 4 2 , 6 7 0 
European cu r rency uni ts 6 7 , 3 8 9 6 6 , 5 6 8 
French francs 4 , 1 8 0 5 ,705 
G e r m a n m a r k s 2 , 3 4 1 , 0 0 8 2 , 1 3 4 , 7 6 3 
Italian lire 7 6 1 2 , 5 1 6 
J a p a n e s e yen 3 ,495 ,872 3 , 2 8 8 , 2 5 3 
N e t h e r l a n d s gu i lders 9 0 9 , 8 6 0 6 6 9 , 7 0 0 
Spanish pese tas 1,314 1,696 
Swedish k r o n o r 1,411 2 , 2 5 9 
Swiss francs 2 , 9 4 3 , 4 9 5 2 , 9 3 1 , 6 0 3 
Tr in idad and T o b a g o dollars 2 ,137 2 ,428 
Uni t ed States dollars 4 , 8 3 6 , 9 0 9 4 , 4 7 4 , 7 8 3 
V e n e z u e l a n bolivars 17 ,245 18 ,112 
Yugoslav dinars 34 109 

$ 1 5 , 0 4 8 , 9 9 5 $ 1 4 , 1 0 0 , 3 5 3 
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A P P E N D I X 1-2 

STATEMENT OF BORROWINGS—NOTE H 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars- -Note A 

Payable in 

Austrian schillings 
British pounds sterling 
European currency units 
German marks 
Japanese yen 
Netherlands guilders 
Swiss francs 
Trinidad and Tobago dollars 
United States dollars 

Total 

December 31, 1989 

Principal 
outstanding 

$ 21,027 
636,940 
119,703 

,477,324 
,897,504 
,057,648 
,609,250 

2,347 
3,808,378 

$14,630,121 

Weighted 
average 

cost (%) 

8.80 
11.03 
10.12 

7.87 
6.64 
8.32 
5.96 
8.34 

10.06 
7.96 

Due 
dates 

1991 
1991/15 

1993 
1991/01 
1990/17 
1990/99 
1990 / 05 

2002 
1990/ 11 

December 31, 
1988 

Principal 
outstanding 

$ 48,913 
717,970 
117,258 

2,342,302 
4,135,646 

980,245 
2,584,907 

2,353 
3,336,001 

$14,265,595 

Sinking fund requirements and maturities subsequent to December 31, 1989 are approximately equivalent to the following: 

Year 

1990 
1991 
1992 
1993 
1994 
1995/99 
2000/04 
2005 / 09 
2010 /14 
2015/17 

Amount 

$ 507,532 
1,060,091 
1,626,601 
1,411,065 
1,125,737 
5,759,500 
1,743,961 

481,684 
495,190 
418,760 

$14,630,121 
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A P P E N D I X 1-3 

STATEMENT OF SUBSCRIPTIONS TO CAPITAL STOCK—NOTE I 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars -Note A 

Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic . 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 

Total 1989 

Paid-in portion of 
subscribed capital 

Shares 

331,478 
2,263 
6,405 
3,964 
5,364 

26,610 
331,478 
125,202 
91,018 
90,951 
13,300 
2,411 
17,758 
17,758 
13,300 
2,263 

27,559 
28,226 
17,758 
4,932 
13,300 
13,300 
2,230 

27,559 
17,758 
30,743 

213,079 
4,189 
13,300 
2,411 
13,300 
13,300 
44,418 

726 
27,559 
2,704 
4,694 
6,154 
13,300 
27,559 

989,152 
35,540 
177,592 
2,263 

Freely 
convenible 
currencies 

$ 203,365 
2,087 
5,983 
2,961 
5,103 
16,322 

203,365 
120,417 
55,781 
55,769 
8,167 
2,244 
10,881 
10,881 
8,167 
2,087 

25,647 
26,238 
10,881 
4,065 
8,167 
8,167 
2,075 

25,647 
10,881 
28,566 
130,743 
3,860 
8,167 
2,244 
8,167 
8,167 

27,276 
651 

25,647 
2,859 
4,463 
5,694 
8,167 

25,647 
888,484 
21,834 
138,790 
2,087 

Other 
cutrencies 

5,574 

66,904 

4,162 

4,162 
4,162 

13,957 

2,232 

4,162 
11,171 
33,331 

Callable 
portion of 
subscribed 
capital 

$104,059 $ 

4,054 
1,755 

8,360 
104,059 

28,566 
28,554 
4,162 

5,574 
5,574 
4,162 

5,574 
2,569 
4,162 
4,162 

3,691,338 
25,213 
67,229 
43,103 
59,605 

296,326 
3,691,338 
1,389,949 
1,013,642 
1,012,858 
148,115 
26,841 
197,768 
197,768 
148,115 
25,213 

306,809 
314,264 
197,768 
52,862 
148,115 
148,115 
24,826 

306,809 
197,768 
342,300 

2,372,817 
46,673 
148,115 
26,841 
148,115 
148,115 
494,601 

8,107 
306,809 
27,529 
52,162 
68,544 
148,115 
306,809 

11,044,084 
395,729 

1,970,248 
25,213 

Total 
1989 

$ 3,998,762 
27,300 
77,266 
47,819 
64,708 
321,008 

3,998,762 
1,510,366 
1,097,989 
1,097,181 
160,444 
29,085 

214,223 
214,223 
160,444 
27,300 

332,456 
340,502 
214,223 
59,496 
160,444 
160,444 
26,901 

332,456 
214,223 
370,866 

2,570,464 
50,533 
160,444 
29,085 
160,444 
160,444 
535,834 
8,758 

332,456 
32,620 
56,625 
74,238 
160,444 
332,456 

11,932,568 
428,734 

2,142,369 
27,300 

$ 

Total 
1988 

Total 1988 
2,856,128 $2,176,861 $465,163 $31,812,683 $34,454,707 
2,825,274 $2,134,929 $465,163 $31,482,410 

3,961,160 
27,046 
76,530 
47,373 
64,093 
317,992 

3,961,160 
1,496,168 
1,087,664 
1,086,867 
158,936 
28,808 

212,207 
212,207 
158,936 
27,046 

329,332 
337,293 
212,207 
58,942 
158,936 
158,936 
26,648 

329,332 
212,207 
367,380 

2,546,290 
50,063 
158,936 
19,386 

158,936 
158,936 
530,791 

8,674 
329,332 
32,317 
56,095 
73,539 
158,936 
329,332 

11,781,558 
424,706 

2,122,223 
27,046 

$34,082,502 
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FUND FOR 
SPECIAL OPERATIONS 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 146 through 153 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Fund for Special Operations at 
December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended 
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting prin
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 7, 1990 
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BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

ASSETS 
Cash and investments 

Cash (Note C) 
Investments (Note D) 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

948,921 $ 872,188 
895,278 $1,844,199 884,972 $1,757,160 

Loans outstanding (Note E) (Appendix II-l) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations . . . . 
Less undisbursed balance of approved loans 
Less principal collected and loans sold or 

agreed to be sold 

Allowance for loan losses 

10,026,389 
(1,653,462) 

(2,741,862) 
5,631,065 
(100,300) 5,530,765 

9,735,963 
(1,660,557) 

(2,531,549) 
5,543,857 

(50,000) 5,493,857 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 
On loans 

8,133 
31,709 39,842 

5,526 
35,535 41,061 

Receivable from members 
Contribution quotas (Note F) (Appendix II-2) 
Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing 

demand obligations (Note F) 
Amounts required to maintain value of 

currency holdings (Note B) 
Property, improvements and equipment, at 

cost less accumulated depreciation 
$614; 1988—$528 

Other assets 
Total assets 

72,187 

1,535,858 

114,990 1,723,035 

1,381 
35 

$9,139,257 

100,767 

1,604,523 

114,990 1,820,280 

1,467 
9,221 

$9,123,046 

LIABILITIES A N D F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Undisbursed technical cooperation 

projects and other financings 

16,262 $ 3,285 

118,519 $ 134,781 102,580 $ 105,865 

Fund balance 
Contribution quotas authorized and subscribed 

(Notes B and F) (Appendix II-2) 
General Reserve (Note G) 

8,458,206 
546,270 9,004,476 

8,457,907 
559,274 9,017,181 

Commitments (Notes E and G) 
Total liabilities and fund balance $9,139,257 $9,123,046 
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F U N D FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND GENERAL RESERVE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note E) 

Interest 
Credit commissions 
Service charges 
Supervision and inspection fees 

Investments 
Other 

Total income 

1989 

$ 91,271 
4,788 
2,618 
3,870 

102,547 
72,938 

778 
176,263 

1988 

$ 98,422 
5,691 
3,746 
3,350 

111,209 
61,581 

1,264 
174,054 

Expenses 
Provision for loan losses (Note E) 
Administrative expenses 

Total expenses 

50,300 
77,663 

127,963 

50,000 
73,919 

123,919 

Income before technical cooperation 
expense 

Technical cooperation expense 

48,300 

46,230 

50,135 

41,755 

Net income 

General Reserve beginning of year . 
Translation adjustments (Note G) . . 
Allocation to Intermediate Financing 

Facility Account (Note G) 
General Reserve end of year 

2,070 

559,274 
426 

(15,500) 
$546,270 

8,380 

566,545 
(151) 

(15,500) 
$559,274 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Capital: 

Collections of receivables from members 
Participations: 

Sales of loans to participant 
Repayments to participant 

Net cash provided by financing activities . . 

Years ended December 31, 

1989 

$ 96,553 

8,004 
(15,703) 
88,854 

1988 

$126,233 

8,114 
(18,456) 
115,891 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 

Net cash used for lending activities . 
Miscellaneous assets and liabilities . . 
Net cash used for investing activities 

(311,517) 
219,490 
(92,027) 
35,000 

(57,027) 

(320,924) 
232,395 
(88,529) 

8,871 
(79,658) 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from investments 
Other income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash provided by operating activities . . 

Transfer to the Intermediate Financing Facility Account 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash 
and investments 

106,080 
70,368 

778 
(77,589) 
(30,291) 
69,346 

(15,500) 

1,366 

117,643 
63,799 

1,264 
(73,904) 
(33,625) 
75,177 

(15,500) 

(2,701) 

Net increase in cash and investments $ 87,039 $ 93,209 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash 
provided by operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and amounts paid 

or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 

Provision for loan losses 

Net cash provided by operating activities . 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Increases (decreases) resulting from exchange 

rate fluctuations: 
Due from members 
Contribution quotas 

$ 2,070 

3,533 
(2,570) 

74 
15,939 
50,300 

$ 69,346 

$ (2,793) 
(1,802) 

$ 8,380 

6,434 
2,218 

15 
8,130 

50,000 

$ 75,177 

$(17,769) 
(20,445) 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Note A—Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; 
however, the Bank conducts its operations in the currencies of 
all of its members. Assets and liabilities denominated in curren
cies other than the United States dollar are translated generally 
at approximate market rates of exchange prevailing at the dates 
of the financial statements. Income and expenses in such cur
rencies are translated generally at approximate market rates of 
exchange prevailing during each month. Except as indicated in 
the following sentence, fluctuations of rates of exchange do not 
have any effect on the United States dollar equivalents of such 
currencies because of the maintenance of value provisions de
scribed in Note B. The net adjustments resulting from the trans
lation into United States dollars of assets, liabilities and contri
bution quotas which do not have maintenance of value 
protection, being derived from the 1983 increase in contribution 
quotas (see Note F), are shown in the Statement of Income and 
General Reserve as translation adjustments affecting the General 
Reserve directly. 

No representation is made that any currency held in the 
Fund for Special Operations is convertible into any other cur
rency at any rate or rates. 

Loans 

The Bank follows the policy of reviewing the collectibility of 
loans on a continuous basis. The Bank ceases to accrue income 
under all loans to or guaranteed by a given borrower, including 
a member, when service under any of such loans, made from 
any fund owned or administered by the Bank, is overdue for 
180 days; income is recorded thereafter only as it is collected, 
until loan service is current under all loans. The Bank considers 
recording provisions for loan losses no later than when loan 
service is overdue from a borrower for two years. Provisions for 
loan losses are charged against income. 

Adminis t ra t ive Expenses 

Substantially all administrative expenses of the Bank, including 
depreciation of property capitalized in the Bank's ordinary cap
ital, are allocated to the funds pursuant to an allocation method 
approved by the Board of Executive Directors. During 1989, 
such expenses were charged 42.9% to the Fund for Special 
Operations and 5 7 . 1 % to the ordinary capital (1988-43.9% and 
56 .1%, respectively). 

Technical cooperat ion 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as well as 
certain reimbursable financings which may not be fully recovered 
are charged to income at the time of approval. 

Note B—Maintenance of Value 

In accordance with the Agreement Establishing the Bank (Agree
ment), each member is requited to maintain the value of its 
currency held in the Fund for Special Operations to the extent 
established by the terms for the respective increases in contri
bution quotas. Likewise, and subject to the same terms of con
tribution quota increases, the Bank is required to return to a 
member an amount of its currency equal to any significant in
crease in value of such member's currency which is held in the 
Fund for Special Operations. The standard of value for these 
purposes ranges from the United States dollar at its 1959 value 
to the United States dollat at its value in effect at any given 
time. Holdings derived from the 1983 and 1990 increases in 
contribution quotas (see Note F) do not have maintenance of 
value protection. 

The General Counsel of the Bank has rendered an opinion 
that since the effectiveness on April 1, 1978 of the Second 
Amendment to the Articles of Agreement of the International 
Monetary Fund, which eliminated par values of currencies in 
terms of gold, the Special Drawing Right (SDR) has become the 
successor to the 1959 U.S. dollar as the standard of value. The 
Bank's governing boards have not made a decision on this matter. 
If the SDR were to have been substituted for the 1959 United 
States dollar on December 31, 1989, the financial position and 
the results of operations of the Bank-Fund for Special Oper
ations-would not have been materially affected. 

"Amounts required to maintain value of currency holdings" 
represent amounts due from member countries for maintenance 
of value adjustments resulting from the changes in the values of 
currencies in 1972 and 1973. Such amounts include $12,602,000 
for which payment responsibility has not been assigned as they 
relate to outstanding loans repayable at borrowers' options either 
in the currencies disbursed or in the borrowers' currencies. The 
obligation for payment of this amount is being allocated to in
dividual members on the basis of the currencies received in loan 
repayments. 

Note C—Restricted Currencies 

Cash includes $942,977,000 (1988-$868,859,000) in the non-
convertible currencies of regional borrowing members, of which 
$100,825,000 (1988-490,442,000) has been restricted by one 
of the members to be used for making payments for goods and 
services produced in its territory, in accordance with provisions 
of the Agreement. 

N o t e D — I n v e s t m e n t s 

The investments of the Bank-Fund for Special Operations-are 
stated at amortized cost which approximates market and consist 
of the following: 
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FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

Obligations of governments 
and United States Agen
cies 

Time deposits and other 
obligations of banks 

(in thousands) 

$186,726 

708,552 
$895,278 

$441,469 

443,503 
$884,972 

N o t e E—Loans O u t s t a n d i n g 

The Bank makes loans to its developing members, agencies or 
political subdivisions of such members or to private enterprises 
located in their territories. For loans to borrowers other than 
members or central banks, the Bank in almost all instances has 
received either the member's guarantee or other security 
deemed appropriate. The Bank has a policy of not rescheduling 
loan repayments. 

The Boatd of Executive Directors has authorized partici
pations by the Social Progress Trust Fund in the United States 
dollar or local currency portions of loans made from the Fund 
for Special Operations provided that, with respect to such loans, 
the provisions of the Social Progress Trust Fund Agreement 
have in substance been complied with as fully as though the 
loans had been made initially from the Trust Fund. 

Loans approved are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; however, 
disbursements do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, 
if any, take certain actions and furnish certain documents to 
the Bank. Of the undisbursed balances, the Bank has entered 
into irrevocable commitments to disburse approximately 
$58,758,000 at December 31, 1989. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, loans made to 
or guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual 
status at December 31, 1989: 

Country 

Honduras 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed in 
nonaccrual 

November 1989 
May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Loan principal at 
December 31, 1989 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$ 396,016 

253,096 
197,480 
266,365 

$1,112,957 

$ 3,916 
10,628 
13,609 
21,525 

$49,678 

Placing these loans in a nonaccrual status resulted in a re
duction in loan income of $22,554,000 and $9,762,000 for the 
years ended 1989 and 1988, respectively. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have re
quired the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated 
above, the Bank commenced in 1988 to provide for the possi
bility of loan losses, and accordingly, provisions of $50,300,000 
and $50,000,000 have been charged to income in 1989 and 1988 
respectively, for a total allowance for loan losses of 
$100,300,000 at December 31, 1989. 

N o t e F—Contr ibut ion Quotas Author ized and 
Subscribed 

Non-negotiable, non-interest bearing demand obligations have 
been or will be accepted in lieu of part of the payment of the 
members' contribution quotas. The Canadian contribution quota 
is being increased by collections of principal, interest and service 
charges after May 3, 1972 on loans extended from the Canadian 
Trust Fund administered by the Bank, which was originally es
tablished in the amount of CAN$74,000,000. 

In 1983 the Board of Governors authorized an increase of 
contribution quotas in the equivalent of $702,576,000 payable 
during the years 1983 to 1986 in freely convertible currencies 
to be designated by each member country at rates of exchange 
in effect on February 24, 1983. On the basis of such rates, 
cumulative contribution payments by member countries under 
the increase were $632,942,000 at December 31, 1989. In Jan
uary 1990 the Board of Governors authorized an increase of 
contribution quotas in the equivalent of $200,000,000 payable 
during the years 1990 to 1993 in freely convertible currencies 
to be designated by each member country at the rates of ex
change in effect on March 20, 1989. Currencies held by the 
Bank which are derived from authorized contributions in 1983 
and 1990 are not subject to the maintenance of value provisions 
of the Agreement. 

The following table summarizes the changes in contribution 
quotas subscribed for the years ended December 31, 1988 and 
1989: 

Contribution 
quotas subscribed 

Balance at January 1, 1988 
Contributions by Canada— 

Trust Fund collections 
Decrease in the U.S. dollar 

equivalence of contributions 
approved in 1983 due to ex
change rate fluctuations 

Balance at December 31, 1988 
Contributions by Canada— 

Trust Fund collections 
Decrease in the U.S. dollar 

equivalence of contributions 
approved in 1983 due to ex
change rate fluctuations 

Balance at December 31, 1989 

$8,476,234,000 

2,118,000 

(20,445,000) 
8,457,907,000 

2,101,000 

(1,802,000) 
$8,458,206,000 
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FUND FOR SPECIAL OPERATIONS 
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N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

At December 31, 1989 the cumulative increase in the U.S. 
dollar equivalence of contribution quotas because of exchange 
rate fluctuations was $54,994,000 (1988—$56,796,000). 

Note G—General Reserve 

In accordance with resolutions of the Board of Governors, the 
net income of the Fund for Special Operations is to be added 
to a General Reserve to provide for possible future losses on 
loans or any annual excess of expenses over income. 

In both 1989 and 1988 the Board of Governors allocated 
the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible currencies from 
the General Reserve to the Intermediate Financing Facility Ac
count (IFF) for the purpose of providing to certain borrowers 
part of the interest for which they are liable on loans from the 
capital resources of the Bank. In addition, the equivalent of 
$ 15,500,000 in convertible currencies is to be allocated annually 
from the General Reserve to the IFF during each of the years 
1990 through 1996, $23,500,000 from 1997 through 2001 and 
$30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010, subject to adjustment 
by the Board of Governors. 

As indicated in Note A, the adjustments resulting from the 
translation of assets, liabilities and contribution quotas which do 
not have maintenance of value protection, is shown as an ad
justment to the General Reserve. Such adjustments consist of 
credits (charges) as follows: 

Years ended 
December 31 , 

1989 1988 

Cumulative adjustments, 
beginning of year 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 

Cumulative adjustments, 
end of year $821 

Note H—Staff Retirement Plans 

(in thousands) 

$395 $546 

426 (151) 

$395 

Description 

The Bank has one Staff Retirement Plan for the benefit of its 
international employees and one for the benefit of local em
ployees in the field offices. Both plans are defined benefit plans. 

Funding policy 

The Plans are funded by employees and Bank contributions at 
the rates of 10% and 24% of payroll, respectively. In accordance 
with the provisions of the Plans, any and all contributions to the 
Plans by the Bank shall be irrevocable, and shall be held by the 
Bank in the Retirement Funds, to be used in accordance with 
the provisions of the Plans, and neither such contributions or 

any income thereon shall be used for, or diverted to, purposes 
other than the exclusive benefit of participants and retired par
ticipants or their beneficiaries or estates under the Plans prior 
to the satisfaction of all liabilities with respect thereto. 

Types of assets 

The assets of the Retirement Funds are invested by several in
dependent investment managers principally in government, cor
porate and other bonds, common stocks and real estate invest
ment funds. 

Pension Costs 

Pension costs of the Bank for the years ended December 31, 
1989 and 1988 were $ 17,799,000 and $ 17,368,000, respectively 
and were charged to administrative expenses and allocated to 
the funds as indicated in Note A. 

Components of costs 

Pension costs for the year ended December 31, 1989 comprised 
the following (in thousands): 

Service cost 
Interest cost on projected benefit obligation 
Amortization of prior service costs 
Expected return on Plan assets 

Reconciliation of Plan assets (in thousands): 
Projected benefit obligation at December 31, 

1989 based on December 31, 1988 valuation 
of the Plan 

Plan assets at December 31, 1989 
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obli

gation 
Remaining unrecognized net obligation at Janu

ary 1, 1989 
Unrecognized net gain resulting mainly from a 

better than expected return on plan assets . . 
Prepaid pension cost recognized in the Balance 

Sheet 

Actuarial assumptions 
Weighted average assumed discount rate 
Weighted average expected long-term rate of 

return 
Weighted average rate of salary increase 

$ 21,050 
42,194 

593 
(46,038) 

$ 17,799 

$525,340 
541,731 

16,391 

8,303 

(24,694) 

$ 0 

9.00% 

9.75% 
9.63% 
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I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T B A N K 

A P P E N D I X II-l 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE E 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars- -Note A 

Member in 
whose territory 

loans have 
been made 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

Argentina $ 519,018 
Barbados 41,418 
Bolivia 773,345 
Brazil 1,245,888 
Chile 203,440 
Colombia 671,892 
Costa Rica 351,677 
Dominican Republic . . . . 593,743 
Ecuador 835,740 
El Salvador 546,932 
Guatemala 523,729 
Guyana 191,643 
Haiti 282,658 
Honduras 613,791 
Jamaica 176,925 
Mexico 566,091 
Nicaragua 312,500 
Panama 285,626 
Paraguay 443,835 
Peru 413,119 
Suriname 2,955 
Trinidad and Tobago . . . . 27,314 
Uruguay 104,496 
Venezuela 101,393 
Regional 197,221 
Unallocated — 

Principal 
collected 

$ 194,362 
5,748 

91,328 
576,915 
143,345 
227,040 
69,680 
66,201 
77,381 
32,810 
61,116 
2,635 

21,360 
65,615 
30,343 

324,871 
35,934 
56,917 
98,632 
119,495 

9,788 
36,777 
65,239 
55,941 

Loans 
sold 

or agreed 
to be sold 

Cuttency in which 
outstanding portion 
of approved loans 

is collectible 

Freely 
convertible Other 

Undisbursed Outstanding currencies currencies 

$ 29,267 $ 

3,652 
51,829 

7,298 
7,834 
3,171 

18,303 
18,113 
15,548 
12,782 

400 
2,450 

19,309 

2,587 
23,470 
13,011 
1,278 

17,320 

2,821 
21,782 

164 

53,119 
2,551 

205,588 
127,212 

45,837 
24,296 
90,331 

297,532 
127,370 
135,017 
91,585 
91,584 
132,851 
20,674 
21,960 

18,218 
103,620 
9,939 
2,599 
7,260 

23,410 

21,073 
(164) 

$ 242,270 
33,119 

472,777 
489,932 
52,797 

391,181 
254,530 
418,908 
442,714 
371,204 
314,814 
97,023 
167,264 
396,016 
125,908 
216,673 
253,096 
197,480 
240,305 
266,365 

356 
10,266 
41,488 
14,372 

120,207 

$ 19,733 
30,820 

387,420 
25,872 
15,101 

217,109 
224,073 
370,808 
388,618 
328,192 
273,752 
94,208 
139,681 
349,071 
106,983 
72,939 

237,215 
156,039 
158,474 
146,025 

956 
19,513 
14,946 
91,703 

222,537 
2,299 

85,357 
464,060 
37,696 
174,072 
30,457 
48,100 
54,096 
43,012 
41,062 
2,815 

27,583 
46,945 
18,925 

143,734 
15,881 
41,441 
81,831 
120,340 

356 
9,310 

21,975 
(574) 

28,504 

Outstanding 
1988 

$ 232,736 
32,536 

462,586 
519,907 
59,832 

400,754 
255,390 
408,334 
423,045 
313,549 
292,720 
92,726 
158,561 
387,104 
123,235 
235,314 
253,177 
197,368 
240,836 
267,047 

257 
10,144 
34,049 
18,336 

124,314 

Total 1989 $10,026,389 $2,469,473 $272,389 $1,653,462 $5,631,065 $3,869,251 $1,761,814 
Total 1988 $ 9,735,963 $2,253,844 $277,705 $1,660,557 $3,731,737 $1,812,120 $5,543,857 

The freely convertible currencies in which the outstanding portion of approved loans is collectible are as follows: 

Currencies 1989 1988 Currencies 1989 

Austrian schillings 
Belgian francs 
British pounds sterling 
Canadian dollars 
Danish kroner 
Finnish markkas 
French francs 
German marks 
Israeli shekels 
Italian lire 

$ 8,277 $ 6,529 Japanese yen 
27,472 23,784 Netherlands guilders 

121,965 123,555 Norwegian kroner . . 
245,726 234,806 Portuguese escudos . 

12,096 7,453 Spanish pesetas 
8,181 5,754 Swedish kronor 

113,954 107,761 Swiss francs 
129,812 125,053 United States dollars 

49 50 Venezuelan bolivars . 
35,732 36,406 Yugoslav dinars 

Total 

144,840 
18,771 
14,241 
3,089 

128,242 
23,641 
30,377 

2,739,076 
54,251 

9,459 
$3,869,251 

1988 

132,664 
14,595 

3,105 
125,821 

18,422 
27,162 

2,673,382 
55,486 
9,949 

$3,731,737 
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A P P E N D I X II-2 

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTION QUOTAS—NOTES B AND F 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note A 

Contribution quotas authorized and subscribed 

Subject to maintenance 
of value 

Members 

Argentina 
Austria 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Belgium 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Canada 
Chile 
Colombia 
Costa Rica 
Denmark 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Finland 
France 
Germany 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Israel 
Italy 
Jamaica 
Japan 
Mexico 
Netherlands 
Nicaragua 
Norway 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Peru 
Portugal 
Spain 
Suriname  
Sweden 
Switzerland 
Trinidad and Tobago . . . 
United Kingdom 
United States 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Yugoslavia 
Total before unallocated 

amount 
Unallocated (Note B) 

Total 1989 

Total 1988 

Before 
adjustments 

$ 402,819 
10,955 
8,800 
1,403 

27,098 
32,535 

402,819 
194,540 
111,440 
111,385 

16,215 
11,692 
21,721 
21,721 
16,215 
10,955 

133,396 
136,692 
21,721 

6,980 
16,215 
16,215 
10,794 

133,396 
21,721 

148,825 
259,249 

20,261 
16,215 
11,692 
16,215 
16,215 
54,492 

4,994 
133,396 

5,280 
23,729 
29,752 
16,215 

133,396 
4,100,000 

43,502 
250,060 

10,955 

7,193,886 

$7,193,886 

$7,191,785 

Adjustments 

$ 28,935 

42 

9,057 
60,071 
12,577 
21,706 
19,327 
3,704 

6,557 
3,952 
1,757 

5,726 

2,299 
5,964 

2,569 

15,041 

4,420 

5,842 
8,504 

13,232 

1,403 

243,553 
3,674 

12,109 

492,021 
12,602 

$504,623 

$504,623 

Not subject 
to 

maintenance 
of value 

$ 43,896 
2,847 

908 
124 

6,304 
3,264 

40,000 
41,361 
11,240 
11,240 

1,612 
2,760 
2,188 
2,188 
1,612 
1,983 

28,788 
35,416 

2,188 
700 

1,612 
1,612 
2,331 

26,682 
2,188 

44,414 
28,000 

5,159 
1,604 
2,126 
1,612 
1,612 
5,536 

642 
28,863 

536 
4,941 
7,141 
1,612 

25,628 
290,000 

4,380 
28,000 

2,847 

759,697 

$759,697 

$761,499 

Total 
1989 

$ 475,650 
13,802 
9,708 
1,569 

33,402 
44,856 

502,890 
248,478 
144,386 
141,952 
21,531 
14,452 
30,466 
27,861 
19,584 
12,938 

162,184 
172,108 

29,635 
7,680 

20,126 
23,791 
13,125 

160,078 
26,478 

193,239 
302,290 

25,420 
22,239 
13,818 
23,669 
26,331 
73,260 

5,636 
162,259 

5,816 
28,670 
36,893 
19,230 

159,024 
4,633,553 

51,556 
290,169 

13,802 

8,445,604 
12,602 

$8,458,206 

Total 
1988 

$ 474,465 
13,667 
9,708 
1,569 

33,134 
44,856 

502,890 
245,167 
144,386 
141,952 
21,531 
14,345 
30,466 
27,861 
19,584 
12,938 

160,896 
170,466 
29,635 

7,680 
20,126 
23,791 
13,021 

159,358 
26,478 

199,450 
302,290 

25,203 
22,239 
13,818 
23,669 
26,331 
73,260 

5,636 
161,311 

5,816 
28,758 
37,095 
19,230 

162,284 
4,633,553 

51,556 
290,169 

13,667 

8,445,305 
12,602 

$8,457,907 

Contribution 
quotas 

receivable 
from members 

1989 

$ -
625 

7,781 

56 

63,725 

72,187 

$ 72,187 

$100,767 
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INTERMEDIATE FINANCING 
FACILITY ACCOUNT 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Governors 
Inter-American Development Bank 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 156 through 158 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Inter-American Development Bank—Intermediate financing Facility 
Account at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the changes in its fund balance for the years then ended in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements are the responsibility 
of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based 
on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting prin
ciples used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 7, 1990 
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BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash $ 1,358 $ 626 
Investments, at amortized cost which 

approximates market 
Obligations issued or guaranteed by 

governments or issued by United 
States Agencies $ 13,088 $ 14,672 

Time deposits and other obligations 
of banks 196,091 209,179 182,902 197,574 

Total cash and investments 210,537 198,200 

Accrued income on investments 5,525 1,748 
Total assets $216,062 $199,948 

LIABILITIES A N D F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 536 $ — 

Fund balance 215,526 199,948 

Commitments (Note D) Total liabilities and fund balance $216,062 $199,948 
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INTERMEDIATE FINANCING FACILITY ACCOUNT 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Additions 

Allocation from Fund for 
Special Operations (Note A) 

Income from investments 
Total additions 

Deductions 
Interest paid on behalf of ordinary 

capital borrowers (Note D) 
Increase for the year 

Fund balance beginning of year 

Translation adjustments (Note C) . 

Fund balance end of year 

1989 

$ 15,500 
16,991 
32,491 

11,323 
21,168 

199,948 

(5,590) 

$215,526 

1988 

$ 15,500 
12,070 
27,570 

7,683 
19,887 

189,457 

(9,396) 

$199,948 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

N o t e A — N a t u r e of the A c c o u n t 

In 1983 the Board of Governors of the Inter-American Devel
opment Bank (Bank) established the Intermediate Financing Fa
cility Account (IFF) for the purpose of providing to certain bor
rowers part of the interest payments for which they are liable 
on loans from the capital resources of the Bank. For initial fund
ing purposes, the equivalent of $61,000,000 in convertible cur
rencies of the General Reserve of the Fund for Special Opera
tions (FSO) was transferred to the IFF on December 15, 1983. 
In addition, the equivalent of $15,500,000 in convertible cur
rencies of the General Reserve of the FSO has been transferred 
annually beginning in 1984; a similar amount is to be allocated 
annually by the Board of Governors during each of the years 
1990 through 1996, $23,500,000 from 1997 through 2001 and 
$30,000,000 from 2002 through 2010. These amounts are sub
ject to adjustment for appropriate reasons related to the funding 
of the IFF. 

The IFF is also authorized to receive additional contribu
tions from any member country. 

Note B—Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies 

Translation of currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollars; 
however, the IFF conducts its operations in various convertible 
currencies, including the United States dollar. Assets and lia
bilities denominated in currencies other than the United States 
dollar are translated at approximate market rates of exchange 
prevailing at the dates of the financial statements. Income and 
expenses in such currencies are translated at the approximate 
market rates of exchange prevailing during each month. The 
adjustments resulting from the translation of assets and liabilities 
are shown in the Statement of Changes in Fund Balance as trans
lation adjustments. 

N o representation is made that any currency held in the 
IFF is convertible into any other currency at any rate or rates. 

Administrative Expenses 

Administrative expenses of the IFF are paid and absorbed by 
the Inter-American Development Bank-ordinary capital and 
Fund for Special Operations. 

N o t e C—Translat ion Adjus tments 

As indicated in Note B, the adjustments of assets and liabilities 
denominated in currencies other than the United States dollar 
are shown as translation adjustments in the Statement of 
Changes in Fund Balance. Such adjustments consist of credits 
(charges) as follows: 

Years ended December 31, 

1989 1988 

Cumulative adjustments, 
beginning of year 

Translation adjustments 
for the year 

Cumulative adjustments, 
end of year 

N o t e D — C o m m i t m e n t s 

(in thousands) 

$32,627 $42,023 

(5,590) (9,396) 

$27,037 $32,627 

The payment by the IFF of part of the interest due from bor
rowers is contingent on the availability of resources. At Decem
ber 31, 1989 the amounts disbursed and outstanding and un
disbursed by the Bank under loans on which the IFF would pay 
part of the interest, were classified by country, as follows: 

Country 

Disbursed 
and 

Outstanding Undisbursed 

Barbados 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Panama 
Paraguay 
Suriname  
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 

(in thousands) 
$ 7,133 

14,382 
9,622 

39,252 
22,299 
9,353 

42,958 
16,773 
57,952 

889 
37,564 

1,496 
5,573 
2,959 

$268,205 

$ 26,048 
74,447 
12,640 
20,019 

12,461 
844 

4,731 
141,454 
46,225 
20,000 
11,295 
96,114 
35,290 

$50L568 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Social Progress Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 160 through 164 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Social Progress Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American 
Development Bank, at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed 
above. 

PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 7, 1990 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS T R U S T F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY T H E INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments 
Cash $ 3,571 S 6,537 

Investments, at amortized cost which 
approximates market 
United States Government and Agencies 

obligations $ 12,154 $ 15,353 
Time deposits and other obligations of 

banks 3,050 15,204 2,500 17,853 
Total cash and investments 18,775 24,390 

Participations in loans made from Fund for 
Special Operations (Note C) 148,085 155,784 

Loans outstanding (Note D) (Appendix IV-1) 
Total loans approved, 

less cancellations 537,886 537,885 
Less principal collections (471,404) (462,740) 
Less undisbursed balance (14) 66,468 (3,837) 71,308 

Allowance for losses on loans and participations (7,300) (3,000) 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On investments 4 3 
On participations 446 744 
On loans 367 817 88 835 

Other assets 200 200 
Total assets $227,045 5249,517 

LIABILITIES A N D F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 784 S 679 
Undisbursed technical cooperation 

projects and other financings 41,293 $ 42,077 45,598 $ 46,277 
Fund balance 

Fund established by the United States 
Government (Note A) 525,000 525,000 

Accumulated excess of expenses over 
income (202,749) (195,221) 

Amounts returned to the United States 
Government (Note E) (137,283) 184,968 (126,539) 203,240 

Total liabilities and fund balance $227,045 $249,517 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENSES 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

1989 

Income 
Loans (Note D) 
Participations and other (Note C) 
Investments 

Total income 

Expenses 
Administrative expenses (Note A) 

Direct expenses 
Indirect and overhead expenses charged 

by administtator 
Total administrative expenses 

Provision for losses on loans and participations (Note D) 
Translation adjustments 

$ 257 

695 
952 

4,300 
3,561 

Income (loss) before technical cooperation 
expense 

Technical cooperation expense 
Excess of expenses over income 
Accumulated excess of expenses over income 

beginning of year 

Accumulated excess of expenses over income 
end of year 

1,555 
1,523 
1,480 
4,558 

8,813 

(4,255) 

3,273 
(7,528) 

(195,221) 

$(202,749) 

1988 

$ 353 

937 
1,290 
3,000 
1,326 

1,405 
2,449 
1,353 
5,207 

5,616 

(409) 

7,170 
(7,579) 

(187,642) 

$(195,221) 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS T R U S T F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY T H E INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 

Purchases of participations in loans 
Collections of participations 
Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

1989 

$ (3,824) 
8,664 

(8,004) 
15,703 

16 
12,555 

1988 

$ (2,562) 
11,310 
(8,114) 
18,456 
(1,709) 
17,381 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income on participations 
Income from investments 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 
Net cash used for operating activities 

Refunded to the U.S. Government 

1,276 
1,821 
1,479 
(863) 

(7,578) 

(3,865) 

(10,744) 

1,823 
2,610 
1,350 

(1,062) 
(9,224) 

(4,503) 

(14,965) 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on 
cash and investments 

Net decrease in cash and investments 

(3,561) 

$(5,615) 

(1,326) 

$( 3,413) 

Reconciliation of excess of expenses over 
income to net cash used for operating activities 
Excess of expenses over income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Participation income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 
Technical cooperation and other financings 

Provision for losses on loans and participations . . . 
Translation adjustments 

Net cash used for operating activities 

(7,528) 

(279) 
298 

(1) 
89 

(4,305) 
4,300 
3,561 

$ (3,865) 

$(7,579) 

418 
161 

(3) 
228 

(2,054) 
3,000 
1,326 

$( 4,503) 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Note A—Nature of the Fund 

In 1961 the United States of America and the Inter-American 
Development Bank (Bank) entered into an Agreement whereby 
the Bank became Administrator of the Social Progress Trust 
Fund. Pursuant to the Agreement the Bank charges the Trust 
Fund for salary costs of certain of its professional staff, other 
direct expenses and the Fund's share of allowable overhead ex
penses. At December 31, 1989, the Government of the United 
States and the Bank had agreed to final overhead rates for all 
years through 1987 and the Bank has proposed the use of the 
rate of $2.88 per $1.00 of salary cost on a provisional basis for 
1988 and 1989, until such time as further overhead rate studies 
are completed. 

N o t e B — S u m m a r y of S ign i f i can t A c c o u n t i n g 
Policies 

Translation of Currencies 

The financial statements are expressed in United States dollats, 
the currency in which the Trust Fund was established and which 
continues to be its predominant currency. Assets and liabilities 
in currencies other than United States dollars are translated gen
erally at approximate market rates of exchange prevailing at the 
dares of the financial statements. Income and expenses in such 
currencies are translated generally at the approximate market 
rates of exchange prevailing during each month. The adjustments 
resulting from the translation of the Latin American currencies 
held by the Trust Fund into United States dollars are shown in 
the Statement of Income and Expenses as translation adjust
ments. No representation is made that any currency held by the 
Fund is convertible into any other currency at any rate or rates. 

Loans 

The Bank as Administrator follows the policy of reviewing the 
collectibility of loans on a continuous basis. The Bank as Ad
ministrator ceases to accrue income under all loans to or guar
anteed by a given borrower, when service under any of such 
loans, made from any fund owned or administered by the Bank, 
is overdue for 180 days; income is recorded thereafter only as 
it is collected, until loan service is current under all loans. The 
Bank as Administrator considers recording provisions for loan 
losses no later than when loan service is overdue from a borrower 
for two years. Provisions for loan losses are charged against 

Technical cooperation 

All non-reimbursable technical cooperation projects as well as 
certain reimbursable financings which may not be fully recovered 
are charged to income at the time of approval. 

Note C—Participations in loans made from Fund for 
Special Operations 

The Board of Executive Directors has authorized the use of the 
resources of the Social Progress Trust Fund to purchase partic
ipations in loans made from the Fund for Special Operations 
provided that, with respect to such loans, the provisions of the 
Social Progress Trust Fund Agreement have in substance been 
complied with as fully as though the loans had been made initially 
from the Trust Fund. Through the purchase of participations in 
the local currency components of loans made from the Fund for 
Special Operations, the value of which must be maintained by 
the respective borrowers, it has been possible to substantially 
maintain the value of the Trust Fund resources so invested. 

Note D—Loans Outstanding 

Loans from the resources of the Trust Fund are made to de
veloping members of the Inter-American Development Bank, 
agencies or political subdivisions of such members or to private 
enterprises located in their territories. For loans to borrowers 
other than members and central banks, the Bank as Adminis
trator has received in almost all instances the member's guar
antee. The Bank as Administrator has a policy of not resched
uling loan repayments. 

Loans approved are disbursed to borrowers in accordance 
with the requirements of the project being financed; however, 
disbursements do not begin until the borrower and guarantor, 
if any, take certain actions and furnish certain documents to the 
Bank. 

Loan disbursements have been made principally in United 
States dollars although, in the case of certain loans, disburse
ments have been made in the national currencies of the bor
rowers or in the currencies of other members. In accordance 
with the provisions of practically all loan agreements, loans dis
bursed in United States dollars may be repaid in the national 
currency of the borrower at the market rate of exchange existing 
at the date of repayment or in United States dollars at the elec
tion of the borrower. 

Pursuant to the policy described in Note A, loans made to 
or guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual 
status at December 31, 1989: 

Loan principal and 
participations 

at December 31, 1989 

Country 

Honduras 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed in 
nonaccrual 

November 1989 
May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$13,489 $ 180 

17,143 752 
10,655 1,745 
16,507 1,554 

$57,794 $4,231 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

SOCIAL PROGRESS TRUST FUND 
INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

N O T E S T O F I N A N C I A L S T A T E M E N T S (continued) 

December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Placing these loans in a nonaccrual status resulted in a re
duction in income of $1,058,000 and $259,000 for the years 
1989 and 1988, respectively. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have re
quired the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated 
above, the Bank commenced in 1988 to provide for the possi
bility of losses on loans and participations and accordingly, pro
visions of $4,300,000 and $3,000,000, have been charged to 
income in 1989 and 1988, respectively, for a total allowance for 
loan losses of $7,300,000 at December 31, 1989. 

Note E—Amounts returned to the United States 
Government 

The Bank as Administrator has returned to the Government of 
the United States the equivalent of $137,283,000 of the assets 
of the Trust Fund during the years 1980-1989 (1989— 
$10,744,000; 1988—$14,965,000) for use in financing social 
development projects of the Inter-American Foundation, and 
will return up to the equivalent of $44,148,000 during the years 
1990 and 1991. 

SOCIAL P R O G R E S S T R U S T F U N D 
A D M I N I S T E R E D BY T H E I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T B A N K 

A P P E N D I X IV-1 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE D 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars -Note B 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 

Argentina 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Colombia 

Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 

Honduras 
Mexico 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Paraguay 

Peru 
Uruguay 
Venezuela 
Regional 

Total 1989 

Total 1988 

Loans approved, 
less 

cancellations 

$ 45,900 
20,648 
61,510 
34,352 
49,008 

11,700 
8,407 

27,449 
37,688 
28,313 

7,602 
34,927 
13,035 
12,862 
7,799 

45,108 
10,350 
72,861 
8,367 

$537,886 
$537,885 

Principal 
collected 

$ 42,278 
13,918 
54,870 
34,352 
47,419 

11,309 
8,183 

24,276 
19,962 
14,787 

7,534 
31,707 
12,466 
12,075 
6,829 

42,842 
9,669 

72,861 
4,067 

$471,404 

$462,740 

Undisbursed 

$ 14 

$ 14 

$3,837 

Outstanding 

$ 3,608 
6,730 
6,640 

1,589 

391 
224 

3,173 
17,726 
13,526 

68 
3,220 

569 
787 
970 

2,266 
681 

4,300 
$66,468 

Outstanding 
1988 

$ 3,415 
3,827 
8,774 

2,082 

646 
475 

4,061 
19,028 
14,423 

162 
4,015 
569 
787 

1,121 

2,266 
1,123 

4,534 

$71,308 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN 
TRUST FUND 

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

Inter-American Development Bank 
Administrator of the Venezuelan Trust Fund 

In our opinion, the financial statements appearing on pages 166 through 169 present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Venezuelan Trust Fund, which is administered by the Inter-American 
Development Bank, at December 31, 1989 and 1988, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Bank's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for the opinion expressed 
above. 

$**<- ¿d¿a*¿**«*.—-
PRICE WATERHOUSE 

Washington, D.C. 
February 7, 1990 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

BALANCE SHEET 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

December 31, 

1989 1988 

ASSETS 

Cash and temporary investments 
Cash $ 31 $ 2,719 
Temporary investments, at amortized cost 

which approximates market 
United States Government and Agencies 
obligations $ — $ 18,060 
Time deposits and other obligations of 
banks 96,552 96,552 81,250 99,310 
Total cash and temporary investments 96,583 102,029 

Loans outstanding (Note C) (Appendix V-l) 
Total loans approved, less cancellations 800,185 778,699 
Less undisbursed balance (10,601) (10,007) 
Less principal collected (534,087) (485,345) 

255,497 283,347 
Allowance for loan losses (11,000) 244,497 (5,000) 278,347 

Investment in equities, at cost 1,535 1,535 

Accrued interest and other charges 
On temporary investments 1,544 1,533 
On loans 5,156 6,700 7,034 8,567 

Total assets $349,315 $390,478 

LIABILITIES A N D F U N D BALANCE 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 91 $ 450 

Fund balance 
Fund established by the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund (Note A) $410,000 $429,655 
Accumulated earnings 501,769 487,444 
Translation adjustments (Note B) (8,955) (8,330) 
Less amounts returned to the Venezuelan 

Investment Fund (Note A) (553,590) 349,224 (518,741) 390,028 
Total liabilities and fund balance $349,315 $390,478 
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND ACCUMULATED EARNINGS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Income 
Loans (Note C) 
Temporary investments 

Total income 
Expenses 

Provision for loan losses (Note C) 
Direct and indirect expenses (Note A) 
Commission on temporary investments (Note A) 

Total expenses 
Net income 
Accumulated earnings beginning of year 
Accumulated earnings end of year 

1989 

$ 13,434 
8,364 

21,798 

6,000 
1,429 

44 
7,473 

14,325 
487,444 

$501,769 

1988 

$ 16,904 
7,514 

24,418 

5,000 
1,508 

47 
6,555 

17,863 
469,581 

$487,444 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars—Note B 

Years ended December 31, 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Lending (excluding related income): 

Loan disbursements 
Loan collections 
Net cash provided by lending activities 

Other assets and liabilities 
Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Loan income collections 
Income from temporary investments 
Administrative expenses 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Refunded to the Venezuelan Investment Fund 

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations in cash and investments 

Net decrease in cash and temporary investments 

Reconciliation of net income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Net income 
Difference between amounts accrued and 

amounts paid or collected for: 
Loan income 
Investment income 
Administrative expenses 

Provision for loan losses 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

1989 

$(40,280) 
54,609 
14,329 

(314) 
14,015 

14,948 
8,340 

(1,518) 
21,770 

(40,534) 

(697) 

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities 
Decrease in loans outstanding resulting from exchange rate fluctuations 

$ (5,446) 

$ 14,325 

1,514 
(24) 
(45) 

6,000 

$ 21,770 

$ 13,521 

1988 

$(61,603) 
62,471 

868 
317 

1,185 

19,212 
8,127 

(1,500) 
25,839 

(47,031) 

$(20,007) 

$ 17,863 

2,308 
613 

55 
5,000 

$ 25,839 

$ -
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INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

VENEZUELAN TRUST F U N D 
ADMINISTERED BY THE INTER-AMERICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 

Note A—Nature of the Fund 

In 1975 the Venezuelan Investment Fund and the Inter-Amer
ican Development Bank (Bank) entered into a Trust Agreement 
whereby the Bank became the Administrator of the Venezuelan 
Trust Fund. The initial resources of the Trust Fund were 
$400,000,000 and 430,000,000 Venezuelan Bolivars (Bs.), 
equivalent to $100,000,000 at the rate of exchange in effect at 
that time. 

The purpose of the Fund is to contribute to the financing 
of projects and programs having a significant effect on the de
velopment of member countries of the Bank which are relatively 
less developed or of limited market, or of intermediate size, 
through better utilization of their natural resources and the pro
motion of their industry and agroindustty and to expand the 
Bank's export financing program, with emphasis on the strength
ening of the integration plans of Latin America, and to cooperate 
in the solution of problems which may arise affecting national 
and regional economic and social development plans. 

In accordance with the Trust Agreement, the Bank charges 
the Trust Fund for direct and indirect expenses and a commission 
on temporary investments. The direct and indirect expense 
charge is determined as a percentage of the Fund's assets at the 
end of the year, excluding certain assets not committed under 
loans. The Venezuelan Investment Fund may require the return 
of all sums received in payment of loans made from the Trust 
Fund as well as all collections of income derived from Trusr 
Fund resources. Amounts returned to the Venezuelan Invest
ment Fund in 1989 were $40,534,000, comprised of 
$36,765,000 and Bs.54,647,000 (1988—$47,031,000, com
prised of $43,256,000 and Bs.54,739,000). 

Note B—Translation of Currencies 

The accounting records are maintained and the financial state
ments are expressed in United States dollars. Assets, liabilities 
and fund balance denominated in Venezuelan Bolivars, which 
is the only other currency of the Fund, are translated into United 
States dollars at the rates of exchange in effect at the dates of 
the financial statements. For the full year 1988 and until March 
13, 1989 the Venezuelan Government had designated the rate 
of Bs.14.50 to $1.00 for transactions of the Fund. Since March 
14, 1989 transactions in Venezuelan Bolivars are made at a 
floating rate of exchange. Income and expenses in Venezuelan 
Bolivars were translated at the exchange rates in effect during 
each month. 

In addition to a reduction in the United States dollar equiv
alent of assets, the above mentioned change in the rate had the 
effect of reducing the United States dollar equivalent of the 
initial resources of the Fund by $19,655,000. The portion of 
amounts returned to the Venezuelan Investment Fund repre
senting refunds of principal collected was also reduced by 
$5,685,000. The resulting net adjustment is shown in the Bal
ance Sheet as translation adjustments under Fund Balance, and 
consists of charges as follows: 

Balance, January 1, 1988 and 1989 
Translation adjustments in 1989 
Balance, December 31, 1989 

Note C—Loans Outstanding 

$8,330,000 
625,000 

$8,955,000 

Loans approved are disbursed to borrowers in accordance with 
the requirements of the project being financed; however, dis
bursements do not begin until the borrower and guarantor take 
certain actions and furnish certain documents to the Bank. For 
borrowers other than members or central banks, the Bank as 
Administratot has received either the member's guarantee or 
other security deemed appropriate. 

The Bank as Administrator follows the policy of reviewing 
the collectibility of loans on a continuous basis. The Bank as 
Administrator ceases to accrue income under all loans to or 
guaranteed by a given borrower, when service under any of such 
loans, made from any fund owned or administered by the Bank, 
is overdue for 180 days; income is recorded thereafter only as 
it is collected, until loan service is current under all loans. The 
Bank as Administrator considers recording provisions for loan 
losses no later than when loan service is overdue from a borrower 
for two years. Provisions for loan losses are charged against 
income. The Bank as Administrator has a policy of not resched
uling loan repayments. 

Pursuant to the policy described above, loans made to or 
guaranteed by the following countries are in a nonaccrual status 
at December 31, 1989: 

Country 

Honduras 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 

Month placed 
in nonaccrual 

November 1989 
May 1988 
March 1988 
February 1989 

Loan principal at 
December 31, 1989 

Outstanding Overdue 

(in thousands) 
$27,519 $ 855 

31,058 5,314 
16,924 2,184 
12,182 1,068 

$87,683 $9,421 

Placing these loans in a nonaccrual status resulted in a re
duction in loan income of $7,186,000 and $5,398,000 for the 
years 1989 and 1988, respectively. 

In consideration of the delays in payments which have re
quired the application of the nonaccrual policy as indicated 
above, the Bank as Administrator commenced in 1988 to pro
vide for the possibility of loan losses, and accordingly, provisions 
of $6,000,000 and $5,000,000 have been charged to income in 
1989 and 1988, respectively, for a total allowance for loan losses 
of $11,000,000 at December 31, 1989. 
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V E N E Z U E L A N T R U S T F U N D 
A D M I N I S T E R E D BY T H E I N T E R - A M E R I C A N D E V E L O P M E N T B A N K 

A P P E N D I X V- l 

SUMMARY STATEMENT OF LOANS—NOTE C 
December 31, 1989 and 1988 
Expressed in thousands of United States dollars -Note B 

Countries in which 
loans have been made 

Argentina 
Bahamas . 
Barbados . 
Bolivia . . . 
Brazil . . . . 

Loans 
approved, 

less 
cancellations 

$ 2,577 
2,025 

18,719 
36,748 
51,721 

Principal 
collected 

$ 2,577 
784 

15,414 
15,967 
51,721 

Undisbursed 

1,973 
1,936 

Outs tanding 

$ — 
1,241 
1,332 

18,845 

Outstanding 
1988 

$ — 
1,379 
1,447 

21,791 

Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic 
Ecuador 
El Salvador 

1,791 
85,513 
57,340 
52,316 
74,197 

1,791 
64,268 
16,878 
22,737 
55,367 

598 
21,245 
39,864 
29,579 
18,830 

24,626 
41,675 
33,531 
20,204 

Guatemala 
Guyana . . 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica . . . 

31,636 
8,000 
6,867 

43,049 
95,166 

12,176 
1,929 
4,177 

13,530 
87,162 

926 
2,000 

2,000 

18,534 
4,071 
2,690 

27,519 
8,004 

20,848 
4,500 
3,676 

31,790 
8,777 

Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 
Regional 

Total 1989 

Total 1988 

35,325 
21,746 

157,625 
5,340 
8,940 
3,544 

$800,185 

$778,699 

4,267 
3,822 

145,443 
4,340 
8,940 

Z2Z 
$534,087 

$485,345 

1,000 

168 

$10,601 

$10,007 

31,058 
16,924 
12,182 

832 

2,747 
$255,497 

33,183 
18,573 
12,936 

832 

3,579 

$283,347 

Loans approved, less cancellations, include short and medium 
term lines of credit for export financing to the following coun
tries at December 31, 1989: 

Argentina $ 2,577 
Barbados 
Bolivia 
Brazil 
Chile 
Costa Rica 
Dominican Republic . 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 
Guyana 
Haiti 
Honduras 
Jamaica 
Nicaragua 
Panama 
Peru 
Trinidad and Tobago 
Uruguay 

17,017 
16,346 
51,721 

1,791 
66,000 

7,340 
54,440 

1,136 
2,000 
3,117 
7,373 

90,565 
1,000 
1,000 

146,000 
5,340 
8,940 

Total $483,703 
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GOVERNORS AND ALTERNATE GOVERNORS 

Country Governor Al ternate 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 
BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 
COLOMBIA 

COSTA RICA 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
ECUADOR 
EL SALVADOR 

FINLAND 
FRANCE 
GERMANY 
GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 

HAITI 
H O N D U R A S 
ISRAEL 
ITALY 
JAMAICA 

JAPAN 
MEXICO 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 

PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 
PORTUGAL 
SPAIN 

SURINAME 
SWEDEN 
SWITZERLAND 
TRINIDAD A N D TOBAGO 
UNITED KINGDOM 

UNITED STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 
YUGOSLAVIA 

Antonio Erman González 
Ferdinand Lacina 
Lynden Pindling 
L. Erskine Sandiford 
Ph. Maystadt 
L. Enrique Garcia 
Mailson Ferreira da Nóbrega 
Joe Clark 
Roberto Toso Corezzola 
Luis Fernando Alarcón Mantilla 

Rodrigo Bolaños Zamora 
Ole Loensmann Poulsen 
Guillermo Caram 
Jorge Gallardo Zavala 
Mirna Liévano de Márquez 

Kai Helenius 
Pierre Bérégovoy 
Hans-Peter Repnik 
Juan Francisco Pinto Casasola 
Cari B. Greenidge, M.P. 

Reginaldo Panting P. 
Michael Bruno 
Guido Carli 
Seymour Mullings 

Ryutaro Hashimoto 
Pedro Aspe Armella 
W. Kok 
Joaquín Cuadra Chamorro 
Torun Dramdal 

Guillermo Ford B. 
Enzo Debernardi 
César Vasquez Bazán 
Miguel Cadilhe 
Carlos Solchaga 

Subhas Ch. Mungra 
Michael Sohlman 
Pierre-Louis Girard 
Winston Dookeran, M.P. 
Lynda Chalker, M.P. 

Nicholas F. Brady 
Ricardo Zerbino 
Miguel Rodríguez Faudes 
Branimir Zekan 

Enrique Folcini 
Othmar Haushofer 
Ethlyn C. Isaacs 
Winston Cox 
Jean-Pierre Arnoldi 
Raúl Boada 
Wadico Waldir Bucchi 
Frederick W. Gorbet 

Francisco J. Ortega 

Eduardo Lizano Fait 
Sten Lilholt 
Manuel E. Gómez Pieterz 
Edison Ortiz Duran 
J. Roberto Orellana M. 

Osmo Sarmavuori 
Jean-Claude Trichet 
Hans Tietmeyer 
Lizardo Arturo Sosa López 
Haslyn Parris 

Gonzalo Carias Pineda 
Gad Arbel 
Lamberto Dini 
Omar Davies 

José Angel Gurría Treviño 
J.P. Pronk 
Pedro Antonio Blandón Lanzas 
Bernt H. Lund 

Mario Julio Galindo H. 
Oscar Jacinto Obelar 
Pedro Coronado Labó 
Luis Gomes Moreno 
Apolonio Ruiz Ligero 

Rudie W. Braam 
Carl Johan Groth 
Pietro Veglio 
Carson Charles 
J.L.F. Buist 

Richard T. McCormack 
Ariel Davrieux 
Eduardo Quintero 
Boris Skapin 

As of February 7, 1990 
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND ALTERNATE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

Luiz Barbosa 
BRAZIL 
Gustavo Darquea Espinosa (Alternate) 
ECUADOR 

Alberto Benítez Bonilla 
EL SALVADOR 
Marta Julia Cox (Alternate) 
H O N D U R A S 

Juan L. Cariaga 
BOLIVIA 
Juan Felipe Yriart (Alternate) 
URUGUAY 

Tulio De Andrea 
PERU 
Jorge Ruiz Lara (Alternate) 
COLOMBIA 

José Luis Flores Hernández 
MEXICO 
Mario Read Vittini (Alternate) 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 

William M. McWhinney 
CANADA 
Kenneth J. Hatley (Alternate) 
CANADA 

Larry K. Mellinger* 
UNITED STATES 

Sonia Pérez Rodríguez 
VENEZUELA 
Roberto Leyton (Alternate) 
PANAMA 

George Lincoln Reid 
BARBADOS 
Horace Barber (Alternate) 
JAMAICA 
Jorge Sakamoto 
ARGENTINA 
Benjamín Mira (Alternate) 
CHILE 

Richard C. Samuel 
UNITED KINGDOM 
Franciscus Godts (Alternate) 
BELGIUM 

Julio Vinuela Diaz 
SPAIN 
Hugo Bruggmann (Alternate) 
SWITZERLAND 

Haiti 
Honduras 
Nicaragua 

Elected by: 
Brazil 
Ecuador 
Suriname 

Elected by: 
Costa Rica 
El Salvador 
Guatemala 

Elected by: 
Bolivia 
Paraguay 
Uruguay 

Elected by: 
Colombia 
Peru 

Elected by: 
Dominican Republic 
Mexico 

Elected by: 
Canada 

Appointed by: 
United States 

Elected by: 
Panama 
Venezuela 

Elected by: 
Bahamas 
Barbados 
Guyana 

Elected by: 
Argentina 
Chile 

Elected by: 
Belgium 
Denmark 
Finland 
Germany 
Italy 

Elected by: 
Austria 
France 
Israel 
Japan 

Jamaica 
Trinidad and 

Tobago 

Netherlands 
Norway 
Sweden 
United 

Kingdom 

Portugal 
Spain 
Switzerland 
Yugoslavia 

Number of 
Votes 

352,345 

85,068 

75,855 

135,639 

231,107 

125,337 

989,287 

191,162 

47,034 

422,766 

105,891 

100,577 

External Review and Evaluation Office 
José Manuel Casanova, Director 

Percentage of 
vot ing power 

12.32 

2.98 

2.65 

4.74 

8.08 

4.38 

34.57 

6.68 

1.65 

14.77 

3.70 

3.51 

* Mr. Mellinger's term expired November 22, 1989 and his reappointment is pending U.S. Senate confirmation. 

As of February 7, 1990 
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PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE BANK 

President 
Executive Vice President 

Controller 
Deputy Controller 
Deputy Controller 

Auditor General 

External Relations Advisor 

Chief, Office of the President 

Operations Department 
Manager 

Senior Deputy Manager 
Deputy Manager—Region I 
Deputy Manager—Region II 
Deputy Manager—Region III 
Deputy Manager—Special Programs 

Finance Department 
Manager 

Senior Deputy Manager—Treasurer 
Deputy Manager—Policy Planning and Capital Markets 
Deputy Manager—Cashiers and Accounting 

Economic and Social Development Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Development Studies 
Deputy Manager—Regional Cooperation 

Project Analysis Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Infrastructure 
Deputy Manager—Productive Sectors and Environment 
Deputy Manager—Social Development 

Legal Department 
General Counsel 

Deputy General Counsel 
Deputy General Counsel 

Plans and Programs Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Programs 
Deputy Manager—Policies 

Administrative Department 
Manager 

Deputy Manager—Budget and Services 
Deputy Manager—Human Resources Administration 

Secretariat Department 
Secretary 

Deputy Secretary 

Special Representative in Europe 

Enrique V. Iglesias 
James W. Conrow 

Alberto Pico 
Carlos Eduardo Guedes 
Ronald P. Brousseau 

William L. Taylor 

Margaret Daly Hayes 

Andrés Bajuk 

Elcio Costa Couto 
G. Stimson Eveleth 
Carlos Ferdinand 
Joel Riley 
Euric Allan Bobb 

Edgar J. Roberts 

Kiyoto Ido 

Nohra Rey de Marulanda 
Willy van Ryckeghem 
Juan Pablo Pérez Castillo 

Lucio Graciano Reca 
Miguel A. Rivera 

Maritza Izaguirre 

Freeborn G. Jewett, Jr. 
Sara Ordonez Noriega 

Ciro De Falco 
Richard Fletcher 
Sebastião Marcos Vital 

Keith A. Bezanson 
Emil Weinberg 
Rosa Olivia V. Lawson 

Pedro Luis Echeverría 
Oscar Rodriguez-Rozic 

Jorge C. Elena 

As of February 16. 1990 
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CHANNELS OF COMMUNICATION AND DEPOSITORIES 

Member Country Channel of Communicat ions Depository 

ARGENTINA 
AUSTRIA 
BAHAMAS 
BARBADOS 
BELGIUM 
BOLIVIA 
BRAZIL 
CANADA 
CHILE 
COLOMBIA 
COSTA RICA 
DENMARK 
DOMINICAN REPUBLIC 
ECUADOR 
EL SALVADOR 
FINLAND 
FRANCE 

GERMANY 
GUATEMALA 
GUYANA 
HAITI 
H O N D U R A S 
ISRAEL 
ITALY 
JAMAICA 
JAPAN 
MEXICO 
NETHERLANDS 
NICARAGUA 
NORWAY 

PANAMA 
PARAGUAY 
PERU 
PORTUGAL 
SPAIN 
SURINAME 
SWEDEN 
SWITZERLAND 

TRINIDAD A N D 
T O B A G O 

UNITED KINGDOM 
UNITED STATES 
URUGUAY 
VENEZUELA 

YUGOSLAVIA 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Federal Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance and Planning 
Ministère des Finances 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Canadian International Development Agency 
Banco Central de Chile 
Banco de la República 
Banco Central de Costa Rica 
Danish International Development Agency 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Ministerio de Finanzas 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs 
Ministère de l'Economie, des Finances et du 

Budget 
Federal Ministry for Economie Cooperation 
Banco de Guatemala 
Ministry of Finance 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Ministero del Tesoro 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministry of Finance 
Secretaría de Hacienda y Crédito Público 
Ministry of Finance 
Ministerio de Cooperación Externa 
Royal Norwegian Ministry of Development 

Cooperation, Multilateral Department 
Ministerio de Planificación y Política Económica 
Banco Central del Paraguay 
Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas 
Ministerio das Finanças e do Plano 
Ministerio de Economía y Hacienda 
Centrale Bank van Suriname 
Ministry for Foreign Affairs, Trade Department 
Office Fédéral des Affaires Economiques 

Extérieures 
Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 

Overseas Development Administration 
Treasury Department 
Ministerio de Economía y Finanzas 
Oficina de Coordinación y Planificación de la 

Presidencia de Ia República 
Federal Secretariat for Finance 

Banco Central de la República Argentina 
Oesterreichische Nationalbank 
Central Bank of The Bahamas 
Central Bank of Barbados 
Banque Nationale de Belgique 
Banco Central de Bolivia 
Banco Central do Brasil 
Bank of Canada 
Banco Central de Chile 
Banco de la República 
Banco Central de Costa Rica 
Danmarks Nationalbank 
Banco Central de la República Dominicana 
Banco Central de Ecuador 
Banco Central de Reserva de El Salvador 
Bank of Finland 
Banque de France 

Deutsche Bundesbank 
Banco de Guatemala 
Bank of Guyana 
Banque de la République d'Haïti 
Banco Central de Honduras 
Bank of Israel 
Banca d'Italia 
Bank of Jamaica 
Bank ofJapan 
Banco de México, S.A. 
De Nederlandsche Bank, N.V. 
Banco Central de Nicaragua 
Bank of Norway 

Banco Nacional de Panamá 
Banco Central del Paraguay 
Banco Central de Reserva del Perú 
Banco de Portugal 
Banco de España 
Centrale Bank van Suriname 
Sveriges Riksbank 
Banque nationale suisse 

Central Bank of Trinidad and Tobago 

Bank of England 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
Banco Central del Uruguay 
Banco Central de Venezuela 

National Bank of Yugoslavia 

As of February 7, 1990 
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FIELD OFFICES AND REPRESENTATIVES 

A R G E N T I N A , José Maria P u p p o 
Calle Esmeralda 130, Pisos 19 y 20 
(Casilla de Correo No. 181, Sucursal 1) 
Buenos Aires Tel: 334-1756' 

B A H A M A S , Johann Schmàlzle 
IBM Building, 4th Floor 
P.O. Box N-3743, Nassau Tel: 322-2674 

BARBADOS, Leonardo A. da Silva 
Maple Manor, Hastings 
(P.O. Box 402), Christchurch Tel: 427-3612 

BOLIVIA, Francisco R. Albergucci 
Edificio BISA 5o. Piso 
Avenida 16 de julio. No. 1628 
(Casilla 5872), La Paz Tel: 37-0293 

BRAZIL, David B. Atkinson 
Setor Comercial Sul (SCS) 
Quadra 3 No. 40 
Edifício Planalto—2° andar 
70300 Brasilia D F . , Tel: 321-7848 

CHILE 
Avenida Pedro de Valdivia 0193, Piso 11 
(Casilla No. 16611, Correo 9 Providencia) 
Santiago Tel: 231-7896 

COLOMBIA, Alejandro Scopelli R. 
Avenida 40 A No. 13-09, 8o Piso 
(Apartado Aéreo 12037) Bogota Tel: 288-0366 

COSTA RICA, Carlos Miguel González 
Edificio Centro Colón, Piso 12 
Paseo Colón enrre Calles 38 y 40 
San José Tel: 33-3244 

D O M I N I C A N REPUBLIC, Nelson R. O c a m p o 
Avenida Winston Churchill esquina 
Calle Luis F. Thomen, Torre B H D 
(Apartado Postal No. 1386) 
Santo Domingo Tel: 562-6400 

ECUADOR, Manuel R. Aristy 
Avenida Amazonas 477 y Roca 
Edificio Banco de los Andes, 9o. Piso 
(Apartado Postal No. 9041, Sucursal 7) 
Quito Tel: 56-2141 

EL SALVADOR, Carlo Binetti 
Condominio Torres del Bosque* 
10o. Piso, Colonia la Mascota 
[Apartado Postal No . (01) 199] 
San Salvador Tel: 23-8300 

G U A T E M A L A , Rober t H. Bellefeuille 
Edificio Geminis 10 
12 Calle 1-25, Zona 10, Nivel 19 
(Apartado Postal 935) Guatemala Tel: 35-2650 

G U Y A N A , Jac in to Vélez 
47 High Street, Kingston 
(P.O. Box 10867) Georgetown Tel: 5-7950 

H A I T I , Georges D. Landau 
Bâtiment de la banque Nationale de Paris 
Angle de la Rue Lamarre et Calve 
(Boite postale 1321) 
Port-au-Prince Tel: 2-3100 

H O N D U R A S , Charles T. Greenwood 
Edificio Los Castaños, 5o. y 6o. Pisos 
Colonia Los Castaños 
(Apartado Postal No. 3180) 
Tegucigalpa Tel: 32-8953 

J A M A I C A , Alber to Quevedo T o r o 
40-46 Knutsford Boulevard, 6rh floor 
(P.O. Box 429) Kingston, 10 

M E X I C O , Rodolfo Silva 
Paseo de la Reforma 379, Piso 7 
Col. Cuauhtemoc 
Delegación Cuauhtemoc 
06500 México, D.F. 

N I C A R A G U A , Chris t ian Will 
Edificio BID 
Kilómetro 4lh- Carretera a Masaya 
(Apartado Postal 2512) Managua 

P A N A M A , Luis A. Sánchez Masi 
Avenida Samuel Lewis 
Edificio Banco Unión, Piso 14 
(Apartado Postal 7297) 
Panamá 5 

P A R A G U A Y , Rober to Spitale 
Edificio Aurora I, Pisos 2 y 3 
Calle Caballero, Esquina 
Eligió Ayala (Casilla 1209) Asunción 

PERU, Luis Bui t rago 
Paseo de la República 3245, 14o. Piso 
(Apartado Postal No. 3778) 
San Isidro, Lima 100 

S U R I N A M E , José Air ton Teixei ra 
6th Floor Hakrinbank NV 
Dr. Sophie Redmondstraat 11-13 
Paramaribo 

T R I N I D A D A N D T O B A G O , Garne t R. Woodham 
Tatil Building, 11 Maraval Rd. 
(P.O. Box 68) 
Port of Spain Tel: 622-8367 

U R U G U A Y , Vladimir Radovic 
Andes 1365, Piso 13 
(Casilla de Correo 5029, Surcursal ! ) 
Montevideo 

V E N E Z U E L A , Fernando A. Cossio 
Edificio Cremerca, Piso 3 
Avenida Venezuela, El Rosal 
Caracas 1060 Tel: 951-5533 

I N S T I T U T E FOR T H E I N T E G R A T I O N OF 
L A T I N AMERICA, 
Eduardo Za lduendo , Direc tor 
Calle Esmeralda 130 - Pisos 16, 17, 18 
(Casilla de Correo No. 39, Sucursal 1 ) 
Buenos Aires Tel: 394-2265 

SPECIAL R E P R E S E N T A T I V E IN E U R O P E 
Jorge C. Elena, 
17 Avenue Matignon 
75008 Paris, France Tel: 42 56 03 82 

U N I T E D K I N G D O M , Je rome I. Levinson 
Morgan House, 1 Angel Court 
London EC2R, 7HJ Tel: 726-4380 

Tel: 926-2342 

Tel: 514-6817 

Tel: 67-0831 

Tel: 63-6944 

Tel: 9-2061 

Tel: 42-3400 

Tel: 74-317 

\ 

* 
¥ 

Tel: 92-0444 

As of February 7, 1990 'Local telephone number. 
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